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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

House or CoMMONS
Fripay, January 27, 1939.

Resolved,—That the following members do compose the Standing Com-
mittee on Marine and Fisheries:—

Messrs. Black (Mrs.), Brasset, Brooks, Brunelle, Clark (Essex South),
C6té, Deslauriers, Farquhar, Ferron, Gauthier, Green, Hanson, Kinley, Lapointe
(Matapedia-Matane), MacLean (Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton North-
Victoria), MacNeil, Mayhew, MecAvity, McCulloch, McDonald (Souris),
Michaud, Neill, Pelletier, Pottier, Reid, Rickard, Robichaud, Stirling, Taylor
(Nanaimo), Telford, Tomlinson, Tustin, Veniot, White.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE
Clerk of the House.

Ordered—That the Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries be em-
powered to examine and inquire into all such matters and things as may be
referred to them by the House; and to report from time to time their observa-
tions and opinions thereon, with power to send for persons, papers and records.

Attest. '
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE

Clerk of the House.

TraURsDAY, March 2, 1939.

Ordered,—That Bill No. 15, An Act to amend The Fisheries Act, 1932,
together with the proposed amendment of Mr. Neill thereto, be referred to the
said Committee.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE

Clerk of the House.

Monpay, March 12, 1939.
Ordered,—That the name of Mr. Mayhew be substituted for that of Mr.
Ward on the said Committee.
Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE

Clerk of the House.

WEeDNESDAY, March 29, 1939.

Ordered—That the said Committee be empowered to print, from day to
day, 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings
and evidence, and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

Ordered,—That the said Committee be empowered to sit while the House
is sitting.

Attest. :
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE

7618613 Clerk of the House.



FirsT REPORT

Your Committee reoommends that it be empowered —

1. to print, from day to day, 500 copies in English and 200 cop‘iee‘ in
French of its minutes of proceedings and evidence, and that
Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto; i

2. to sit while the House is sitting.
All of which is respectfully submitted.

& " A. E. MacLEAN,
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
WEeDNESDAY, March 29, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 a.m.
Mr. MacLean (Prince) presided.

Members present: Messrs. Brasset, Coté, Deslauriers, Ferron, Green,
Hanson, Kinley, Mayhew, MacLean (Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton North-
Victoria), MecAvity, MecDonald, Michaud, Neill, Reid, Robichaud, Taylor
(Nanaimo), Telford, Tustin and Veniot. (20.)

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division,
Fisheries Department.

The chairman read the Order of Reference. He also read a telegram
received from the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union.

The Honourable the Minister of Fisheries, Mr. Michaud, made a brief
statement respecting the provisions of Bill 15 referred to the Committee, and the
amendment thereto moved by Mr. Neill. The Minister stated that he would
submit to the Committee, at its next sitting, a memorandum received from the
Province of Quebec.

The clerk was instructed to obtain copies of the Committee’s final report,
dated April 5, 1937, on its inquiry into the advisability of the Government
issuing trap fishing licenses in British Columbia waters.

It was suggested by Mr. Neill that a Departmental representative be called
at a future date to report on the recommendations contained in the said report
and on the extent to which these recommendations have been acted upon.

On motion of Mr. Reid:

Resolved,—That the Committee request permission to print, from day to
day, 500 copies in English and 200 copies in French of its minutes of proceedings
and evidence, and that Standing Order 64 be suspended in relation thereto.

On motion of Mr. Hanson:

Resolved,—That the Committee ask leave to sit while the House is sitting

The Committee adjourned at 12 o’clock to the call of the chair.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.

Moxpay, April 3, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 a.m.
Mr. A. E. MacLean presided.

Members present: Messrs. Coté, Deslauriers, Hanson, Kinley, Mayhew, Mac-
Lean (Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton North-Victoria), MacNeil, McAvity,
McDonald (Souris), Michaud, Neill, Pottier, Reid, Taylor (Nanaimo), Telford,
Tomlinson and Veniot (18). ;

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, head of the Western Division, Fisheries
Department.
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The Comm1ttee resumed its consideration of Bill No. 15 and Mr. Neill’s
amendment thereto.

The clerk read a letter received by the Honourable the Minister of Fisheries,
Mr. Michaud, from the Minister of Marine and Fisheries of the Province of
Quebec, Mr. 0. Gagnon.

Considerable discussion took place in this connection.

It was agreed to print Mr. Gagnon’s letter in the Minutes of Evidence of
this day.

It was decided to have Mr. J. A. Rodd, Superintendent of Fish culture,
Fisheries Department, appear before the Committee at a later date.

Mr. Michaud said he would have a statement prepared as to whether or not
fish were ascending the Saguenay River prior to the building of dams.

Mr. Whitmore was instructed to prepare a written statement as to the manner
in which the recommendations of the Committee in 1937 have been carried out
and also with respect to salmon gill-net fishing operations in Straits of Juan de
Fuca during 1938. (Printed i appendiz 1 to this day’s evidence.)

On motion of Mr. Reid:—

Resolved,—That Mr. Whitmore prepare a statement showing the salmon
catch, by varieties, in the Fraser River, in 1938, by methods of gear. (Printed
n appendw: 1 to to-day’s evidence.)

Discussion followed with regard to trap licences.

On motion of Mr. MacNeil:—

Resolved,—That Mr. Whitmore file a report for printing as an appendix
respecting the status of legislation in the state of Washington with regard to
fish traps south of the international boundary. (Printed in appendiz 1 to to-days’
evidence.)

The Committee considered Mr. Neill’s amendment.

The Minister filed with the clerk tabulated statements as regards the numbers
of different species of salmon and method of eapture.

On motion of Mr. MacNeil:—

Resolved,—That the statements submitted by the Minister be incorporated
in to-day’s evidence as an appendix. (Printed as appendiz 2 to to-day’s evidence.)

On motion of Mr. MacNeil:—

Resolved,—That Sessional Papers Nos. 235 and 235A be printed to to-day’s
evidence. (Printed as appendixz 3 to to-day’s evidence.)

On motion of Mr. Mayhew:—

.R(’solvcd, That the 1937 report of the Committee on Marine and Fisheries
be incorporated in to-day’s evidence. (Printed as appendix 4 to to-day’s
evidence.)

~The chairman again read the telegram received from the Pacific Coast
Fishermen’s Union and it was agreed that he should acknowledge receipt thereof.

The Committee adjourned at 12.25 a.m., to meet again at the call of the chair.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commattee.




MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons, Room 268,

Orrawa, ApriL 3, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

) (Order of reference read by the chairman.)

The CuamMaN: Bill No. 15 was on March 2 referred to this committee.
The Minister of Marine and Fisheries, Mr. Michaud, is with us this morning,
and perhaps it would be better to take up that bill. T believe the minister
has a statement to make concerning the Quebec government and, if it is the
wish of the committee, the minister will now make that statement.

Mr. Hanson: Agreed.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Mr. Chairman, the statement referred to is in the
form of a letter dated September 13, 1938, addressed to the Minister of
Fisheries, Ottawa, by the Hon. O. Gagnon, Minister of Mines and Fisheries for
the province of Quebec. I will ask the clerk to read this letter for the record.

The CLERK:

y QuEBEC, September 13, 1938.
Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ontario.

My dear Sr:—1. By an order-in-council, No. 1653, dated August
25, 1923, the federal government granted to the Quebec Development
Company Ltd., in so far as the rights and powers of that government
were concerned, the permission to dam the Saguenay river between Lake
St. John and the foot of the rapids, but one of the conditions applied
was as follows:

“An approved fishway shall be established on the dams or
spillways by the applicant company at its own expense if requested
by competent authority.”

2. By orders-in-council, No. 1762, dated October 11, 1923, No. 1011
dated June 20, 1925, No. 2347 dated December 17, 1926 and No. 1236,
dated July 21, 1927, the provincial government granted to the Quebec
Development Company Limited and to its parties concerned the right
to dam the Saguenay river, but that permission was “subject to the
federal and provineial laws and regulations governing navigation and
floating of wood, the mines and the fisheries.”

3. During the course of last fall, 1937, you were kind enough .to
place Mr. J. A. Rodd, an officer of your department in fish culture, at
the disposal of my department, with a view to study the feasibility of
fishways on the dams constructed on the Saguenay river by virtue of
the orders-in-council just mentioned. Mr. Rodd made a long report, the
conclusions of which are as follows:

Under the conditions above outlined, height of dams, velocity
and turmoil of tailraces and spillway and general nature of river
and contour of banks, the undersigned has no hesitation in saying
that in his opinion the provision of efficient fishways over or
around the existing obstructions in the Saguenay river is not feasible.
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4. Professor B. W. Taylor, of McGill university, fish culture director
for my department, has also at my request studied conditions at the
dams with a view to finding out the possibility and practicability of
establishing fishways there. He made a report to me and here are the
conclusions:

However, technically I should say it was impossible to build
an efficient fishway at any of the four dams I saw.

5. In a letter dated May 2, I wrote you asking for an interpretation
of section 20 of your fishery law. Among other things, I stated as follows:

“As the hatcheries, here, are under the control of the province,
do you feel that the said section of the Act is operative, or inoperative,
so far as the province of Quebec is concerned? If it is operative,
would you be disposed to accept the opinion of our experts regarding
certain dams to which fishways should be added and, even, regard-
ing amounts of money which might be required for the operation
of hatcheries, when the constructian of fishways would cost too
much or would not be practical.”

6. To that letter you replied on May 12, as follows:

“It is the understanding of my department after consultation
with that of Justice, that this section as it stands is effective in
Quebec and in all other parts of Canada, as it is in substance a
provision for the protection of the fisheries. Keeping in view that
the fisheries in your province, excepting those about the Magdalen
Islands are being administered by your department, I would be
prepared, at least after proper consideration of the matter, to approve
recommendations under the provizsions of this section that your
department might finally make so far as they would affect waters in
which the fisheries are being administered by you.”

7. After referring to section 20 of your fishery Act, I wrote to the
Saguenay Power Company, as well as to the Alcoa Power Company, who
both have dams on the Saguenay river, to inform them that, so far as
reports from experts were concerned, the construction of fishways was
considered neither useful nor practical and that my department intended,
in the interest of the fisheries of the province, to take advantage of the
provision contained in the aforementioned section which provides “that
the owner or occupier of such slide, dam or other obstruction may be
required to pay to the minister from time to time such sum or sums of
money as he may require to construct, operate and maintain such com-
plete fish hatchery establishment as will in his opinion meet the require-
ments for maintaining the annual return of migratory fish.”

As the construction of a fishway, from the report by experts, should
not cost less than $72,000 in the case of the Saguenay Power Company,
and $90,000 in the case of the Alcoa Power Company, I asked from
each of these companies a yearly contribution of $5,000, to be paid each
year for hatchery purposes.

After a lengthy exchange of communications with Mr. Aime Geoffrion,
lawyer for both of these companies, he finally wrote to me on July 29,
last, stating as follows:—

“In addition to the objection which may be a matter of form
only—a result which is due to the fact that I have been dealing
so far with the Quebec government, and not the federal at Ottawa—
I gave the opinion to my clients that the right which you wish to
exercise does not, in the circumstances, exist, not even at Ottawa.
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Consequently, they invested me with the duty of suggesting that you
have the regular order given by the minister at Ottawa, should he
find advisable to give it, and we shall refuse to submit to it, then,
you could take a lawsuit for a decision on the question. The ques-
tion being a new one and the right which you claim not being limited,
as it could be exerted indefinitely and not only once, the manage-
ment of the companies believe, in order to justify themselves, in
view of the opinion which I have given, that they have a right to a
decision by the court one way or the other.”

9. Mr. Geoffrion is therefore legally applying the statute.

I would like to know in the circumstances, if you would be dis-
posed to send the notice provided at paragraph (b) of section 57, to
the following gentlemen:—

Mr. McNeely Dubose,
General Superintendent,
The Saguenay Power Co. Ltd.,
Arvida, P.Q.
and—
Mr. J. A. Hughes,
The Alcoa Power Company,
Kenogami, P.Q.

with a view to obtaining from each of the said companies a yearly con-
tribution of $5,000 for “the construction, operation and maintenance of an
entire hatchery.”

In case the said companies should refuse to comply with your
notice, I would appreciate that you let me know if you would agree to
take procedures against them, after the 30-day period had expired, by
exacting the maximum fine provided in section 57.

10. The question has a very great importance, if taken from a
fisheries’ viewpoint, because our main streams have been, or are exposed
to be, closed by dams for industrial purposes. Besides, the question is
not. applicable only to the province of Quebec, but to the whole country.
In the circumstances, the sooner we shall know our standpoint with regard
to section 20 of your law, the better it will be for all concerned.

I remain,

Yours very truly,
(Sgd.) O. GAGNON.

Mr. SyLvestrRe: Mr. Chairman, I am not a member of this committee, but
I am vitally interested in the matter because these two dams are located in my
riding. Could I have a copy of that correspondence?

The CuamrMaN: Certainly. Would you like to give some evidence before
the committee?

Mr. SyLvestre: It is the first time I heard of the question. I do not know
what they want, but, as far as I am concerned, I understand the province of
Quebec requires a certain grant on behalf of the federal government to keep a
hatchery?

Mr. Cot: On behalf of the companies. They want to impose a fine of
$5,000 against the Alcoa Company to replace the fishways.

Mr. SyLvesTre: It was closed last year, but for five or six years they had a
hatchery open in Lake St. John, kept by the provincial government.
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Mr. Cot#: Am I to understand that no salmon is or was going out above
the place where the dam is built?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I could not answer that. If you want to investigate
that angle of the question we can produce the evidence. It might be on record
in the department, or perhaps we could find out from the fish culture branch
of the department.

Mr. Cor#: Mr. Minister, from the report I have just heard it seems to me
that the Quebec government wants to impose a tax of $5,000 on the Alcoa Com-
pany to replace the fishways that they were supposed to build to enable the
salmon or sea trout to go out. If any salmon or sea trout were going up that
way, it would be all right; but if it can be proven that no salmon or sea trout
went up that far, we have no right to impose a tax of $5,000 on the Alcoa
Company if they did not do any harm to the fishways. I do not see why the
government of Quebec is asking for that, unless it can show us evidence that the
building of those dams did any harm to the fishways.

Mr. Rem: If this amendment to the Fisheries Act was just applicable to the
province of Quebec, I would say your argument would be sound; but this Act
pertains and applies to the whole of the Dominion of Canada. I think there is
a principle involved here. If this matter goes through, it might have a bearing
on what takes place later on the Fraser river. I take it that this company is
arguing that it is too costly to build a fishway, and in view of that we will put
the hatchery above the dam. I do not know what good that would do if the
fish cannot get up and the fish in the hatchery can get down. That is a matter
that may come out later; but if the department says it is going to cost too much,
~and in view of that we will allow a hatchery to go, I do not see how we can very
well let it go without discussing it because it has a bearing on future develop-
ments on the Fraser river. That is what is happening on the other side. They
ean build a fishway any height.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: That is the reason the matter is here so that we may
study it. This is the place to present any views that the members of the
committee may have or the views of anyone interested in the matter.

Mr. Rem: I would be afraid that those in British Columbia might argue
that because some company in the province of Quebee had maintained it was too
costly vou allowed them to build a hatchery away above the dam. A com-
pany might very well argue that it is going to cost perhaps half a million dollars
to build one of those dams. I think it is a very important matter.

Mr. Cot£: Is this confined exclusively to the Saguenay river?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The law would apply to the whole of Canada, if it
passes.

Mr. Hanson: Everybody should be entitled to the same consideration.

Mr. Cort: We have no evidence that any kind of fish went up as far as the
dam. Why impose a fine of $5,000 on the company if they did not do any harm?

Mr. MacNEemL: Is it not shown in the correspondence just read that the fish
culture experts did consider that fish were passing beyond that point?

Mr. Cor#: No, they do not say that; they say it will be too expensive.

The Cuamman: I think Mr. Rodd, the superintendent of fish culture in the
department, would be a good man to have here and we could ask him some
questions.

Mr. Rem: They say that the fishway is going to cost too much money and,
to let us off lightly, we will pay $5,000 a year for the hatchery above the dam.

Mr. MAcNEmwL: I gather they would not have considered the point at all
but for the fact that fish must be passing up beyond that point.

The CHAmRMAN: Mr., Whitmore, you were going to look into this?

A. J. WurrMors, Chief, western division, Department of Fisheries.
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Mr. WartMore: I did not go into those details. This is all incidental to
the application by the provincial government. That is a matter for the atten-
tion of the provincial government.

Mr. Porrier: I did not get Mr. Geoffrion’s legal opinion. What does he
say, that we have no power to legislate?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: No, he does not say that.

Mr. MacNEiL: On what ground does Mr. Geoffrion say the companies will
refuse?

Hon. Mr. Micuaaup: He does not state the ground.
Mr. Core: He just refuses.

Hon, Mr. Micuaup: Mr. Geoffrion’s opinion comes in through a quotation
made by the honourable Mr. Gagnon in his memorandum. Evidently there
was some correspondence between Mr. Geoffrion and the Department, of Fisheries
at Quebec regarding this matter, and Mr. Gagnon, the minister, quotes from
correspondence between his department and Mr. Geoffrion, as follows:

“In addition to the objection which may be a matter of form only—a result
which is due to the fact that I have been dealing so far with the Quebec govern-
ment, and not the federal at Ottawa—I gave the opinion to my clients that
the right which you wish to exercise does not, in the circumstances, exist, not
even at Ottawa. Consequently, they invested me with the duty of suggesting
that you have the regular order given by the minister at Ottawa, should he
find advisable to give it, and we shall refuse to submit to it, when you could
take a lawsuit for a decision on the question. The question being a new one
and the right which you claim not being limited, as it could be exerted indefinitely
and not only once, the management of the companies believe, in order to justify
themselves, in view of the opinion which I have given, that they have a right
to a decision by the court one way or the other.”

Mr. Core: So we are caught on both sides.

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: Apparently. If we are at liberty to surmise and to
weigh the citation and consider it, 1t appears that Mr. Geoffrion is of opinion
that at least the province would not have the right to repeat the demand more
than once under the present legislation. That is, if they have no rights, they
have a right to ask for the payment of a fine under section 57 (b) and the
concluding paragraph of the section. That is the penalty clause. That is
why they have asked to amend the law, to make it clear that instead of having
the provision of section 7 (b) apply once, they could have the right to demand
an annual payment of $5,000.

Mr. Mayaew: Would that not be a very light fine per annum if, for
instance, someone came on to the Fraser river and built a dam to prevent the
fish going up the Fraser river? It might be easily conceived that that would
be a fairly cheap way for them, much cheaper than to build a proper ladder
for them to get up, or a hatchery on the other side.

_ Hon. Mr. Micaaup: The amount of the penalty does not depend on the
minister or the department, it depends on the presiding judge or magistrate.
He can impose the minimum fine or any amount between $4 and $20 a day.

Mr. MacNemw: What were the names of those companies, clients of Mr.
Geoffrion? I am sorry, I did not catch the names of the companies.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: The Saguenay Power Company and the Alcoa Power
Company—that is a name made up of the use of the initial letters of the com-
pany, the Aluminium Company of America, and it is known as the Alcoa
Power Company Limited.

Mr. NeiLn: I may have misunderstood what was read but I though Mr.

Gagnon wanted you not to pass legislation but to demand the $5,000 a year;
isn’t that what he wants? -
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Hon. Mr. MicuAup: Exactly.

Mr. NemwL: What are you doing this for?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: We found out that we had no right to do it.

Mr. NeiLL: You had no right? '

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: No.

Mr. NemwL: And then you bring in this legislation.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Exactly, to make it possible to meet the request of
the province of Quebec. The legislation is simply to enable us to meet the
request of the government of Quebec, because we find that under the law as it
now stands we have no right to ask for the payment of any amount with
regard to the service a year. We have a right to ask for the payment, but
no right to demand the payment.

Mr. NemwL: The situation really was that you found that you could only
fine the companies once?

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: Yes, that appears to be the position, although it is
not very celar. It is only a citation from Mr. Gagnon evidently.

Mr. Rem: That is not contained in the Act?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: No, it is not in the Act. The bill as it is does not
state any amount. If you read Bill 15 it provides:—

57A. (1) Where the Minister determines that the provision of an
efficient fishway or canal around any slide, dam or other obstruction
is not feasible or that the spawning areas above such slide, dam or other
obstruction are destroyed by reason of amy such obstruction, the owner
or occupler of any such slide, dam or other obstruction, shall from time
to time pay to the Receiver General such lump sum or annual sum of
money as may be assessed against him by the Minister for the purpose of
constructing, operating and maintaining such complete hatchery estab-
ment as will, in the opinion of the minister, meet the requirements for
maintaining the annual return of migratory fish.

And it provides in the next subsection:—
(2) Such lump sum or annual sum shall be payable at such time or
times as the minister may direct and may be sued for and recovered
with full costs of suit in the Exchequer Court of Canada.

Mr. Cori: That would be the amendment?

Mr. Micuaup: Yes. The old section, which was paragraph (b) of section
57 is indicated on the opposite page of this draft bill under explanatory notes.
The section as it stands now reads as follows:—

57. Every owner or occupier of a slide, dam or other obstruction
across or in any stream,—

(b) Where the minister determines that the provision of an effective
fishway or canal around the slide, dam or other construction is not
feasible, or that the spawning areas above such slide, dam or other
obstruction are destroyed, who after thirty days’ mnotice in writing,
neglects or refuses to pay the mimister such sum or sums of money as he
may require to construct, operate and maintain such complete hatchery
establishment as will in the opinion of the minister meet the require-
ments for maintaining the annual return of migratory fish; shall be liable
to a penalty of not less than four dollars and not more than twenty
dollars for each day or part of a day during which such notice is not
complied with.

That is the only sanction that applies to refusals to comply with any demand
we can make upon them.
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Mr. Kintey: In addition to that if the companies refuse to build a fishway
it gives you the authority to build one.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes, but the impossibility or the impracticability in
connection with that is, suppose we spend $90,000 or $70,000 to build a fishway
and then try to recover the cost we might find ourselves in a position where we
would not get our money back. We want to guard against that.

Mr. Kinvey: Your opinion is that everything is in the hands of the minister;
if you don’t think it should be done it will not be done.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The difficulty is in connection with collecting the amount
we would invest in these fish facilities.

Mr. MacNEeiL: Does this section as altered apply to all dams, rivers and
streams in Canada?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

Mr. MacNEeiL: The suggestion was made, I think, that it only applied to
certain streams.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: Section 56 as now in the Act covers all the various
types of structures—sections (a), (b) and (¢), I think. This is the penalty clause
for section 20 of the Act. Section 20 is a directive section, or the positive elect-
ment of the Act; then section 57 is the penalty clause in the old Act, for the
enforcement of the provisions of section 20.

Mr. Rem: Might I ask, just for information: in the new bill it says that
paragraph (b) is repealed?

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Yes.

Mr. Rem: And that paragraphs (¢) and (a) are re-designated (b) and (c).

Hon. Mr. MicuEAUD: Yes.

Mr. Rem: The question that is giving me concern is this: with section (d)
still remaining in the Act with the penalty clause reading, “shall be liable to a
penalty of not less than $4 and not more than $20 for each day or part of a
day thereafter’—

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

Mr. Rem: —does that not somewhat conflict with your amendment? Is
that not still attached to the old section? The way it reads is this, it must be
attached to the whole section now; and yet you are leaving it in the Act and
adding in another clause for an indefinite sum of money. Section (d) as it
reads—

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: We remove from the Act.

Mr. NemwL: I would suggest that we should hear from the local member if
he is here. :

. Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: He just stated that he had not had time to look into
that.

The CualRMAN: I think possibly Mr. Sylvestre could answer some questions
which would help to throw a lot of light on the local situation, if he would care
to do so, and I think he would; because he is acquainted with the whole situation.
However, I would point out that this question is one that affects the whole of
Canada. It affects this section in particular, and out of courtesy for the member
I think we should give him an opportunity of being heard.

Mr. MacNemL: I would like to be cléear on this question of jurisdiction.
The provincial government of Quebec, I take it, is the one that is responsible
for the installation of fishways in the province of Quebec.

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: Yes.

Mr. MacNeiL: Is there a situation similar to that in British Columbia?

Hon. Mr. MicaauD: No, since 1922 there has been an understanding with
Quebec, made at the request of the government of Quebec after a fight before
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the Privy Council for jurisdiction, and the understanding is that the federal
government will abstain from exercising any administrative jurisdiction in
Quebec, and the Quebec government have undertaken to look after the admin-
istration and pay for the cost of it.

Mr. MacNemL: Is that constitutional?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I would not undertake to give an opinion on that.

Mr. MacNewwL: I thought we were always told that the dominion authority
th{,;uld not divest itself of any of its powers under the British North America

ct.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I would not care to give any opinion on the con-
stitutionality of the agreement. It was done in 1922 and it has been operative
ever since.

Mr. MacNEmw: In view of that situation I cannot understand why the
Quebec government should not take unto themselves whatever powers may be
necessary to ensure enforcement.

Hon. Mr. Micaauvp: Under the decisions of the Privy Council all the local
regulation of all our fisheries either inland or on the coast are subject to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the federal government—it is very complicated, and
the situation has been made more complicated through several decisions of the
Privy Council.

Mr. NemwL: The province did try it and the companies through Mr. Geoffrion
told them they were not going to pay any attention to them.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, and they came to Ottawa and we found that we
could not comply with their request, and as it has been the practice in the depart-
ment to accede to the requests of the provinces when they make them, we simply
said we would go ahead and make it, as far as it is possible on our part, legal
for you to attain the object which you have in view. That is practically the
situation.

The CrAarRMAN: Mr. Sylvestre, would you like to give us such information
as you may have about the situation?

Mr. SyLvestre: I appreciate the explanation given by the minister, and I
can assure you there has been some difficulty, and it arises out of the fact that
these companies in 1925 and 1926 built two dams on the Saguenay river, one of
them 200 feet high, and it certainly would have been an expensive proposition to
build fishways. It was for that reason, I think, that a hatchery was built above
the dam in 1927, on lake St. John. This hatchery has been kept in operation
since that time, and so far as T know it was operated by the provincial govern-
ment without any assistance from the federal government. However, it has
been closed since last year, and for that reason I do not quite understand what
the Minister of Fisheries in Quebec means. Probably, as far as I can see,
he wants to pass the buck, and is trying to meet a difficult situation by getting
a grant from the federal government in this way. So far as this bill is concerned,
I have not yet had an opportunity to study it to such an extent as would enable
me to give answers to general questions. As I understand the situation it is
rather complicated because of jurisdiction being divided between the two
governments.

Mr. Rem: Can you tell me, from a practical point of view, if they have now
no fishway and it is too expensive to operate the hatchery, how do they get the
fish up and down the river?

Mr. Syvvestre: Of course, you know lake St. John is about 40 miles long
and 25 miles wide, but on account of these dams the fish cannot go up and they
cannot go down.

Mr. Coré: Are there any sea trout or any salmon going through there now?

Mr. SyuvesTrE: No.
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Mr. Rem: How then can they spawn and replenish the supply?
Mr. Cork: They do not.
Mr. SyLvestre: The salmon we have in lake St. John is not salmon, it is

sea trout. So far as I have been able to find out since these dams have been
built there are more fish in lake St. John than ever there were before.

The Cuamrman: Well, Mr. Sylvestre, before the dams were built, in your
opinion, were the fish passing up into lake St. John?

Mr. SyLvestrE: Oh yes, it was free water.

The CuAmRMAN: And since the dam was built they cannot go up.

Mr. SyLvesTrE: No, certainly not; and there are two dams, not just one.

The CmARMAN: Is there any very general complaint from the public at
large, particularly the fishermen?

Mr. SyLvesTre: No, there are apparently more fish in the lake now than
there were before.

Mr. Rem: Would not that be harmful to the fish industry along the coast,
if there is no source of replenishment for the supply?

Mr. SyrvesTtrE: No, they don’t need them.

Mr. Rem: Did they formerly spawn above the dams?

Mr. SyLvesTre: Yes, but they can’t get up to the lake now.

Mr. Kinvey: Is it a big lake?

Mr. SYLVESTRE: Yes, as I said, it is some 40 miles long by some 25 miles wide.

Mr. Cort: Where were the salmon going before?

Mr. Syrvestre: I am not going to say as to that, but they could go there
if they liked.
! Mr. Kintey: But now there are two dams there and no fishway, and even
if there were a fishway a 70-foot dam is quite an obstacle.

Mr. SynvesTre: But there are two dams there now within 12 miles:

A ?PVIr. Kinvey: Then you would have to have two fishways. How high are

they?
Mr. SyLvestre: They are about 200 feet high each.

Mr. KinvLeEy: Then the fish would have to elimb 200 feet?
Mr. SyLvesTtrE: Yes.

Mr. Vexior: Are there any falls between?
Mr. Syvvestre: No, just rapids.

Mr. Corg: If the amendment passes would the Quebec department have
the right to apply that law to any river? What I mean is this: supposing there
would be the possibility of establishing a fishway and the other government

would say, there will not be any fishway but we will tax you for a hatchery there;
does the law cover that?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: It is not the Quebec government that determines the
feasibility of a dam or otherwise, it is the department itself.

Mr. Coré: Under the terms of this amendment would the federal govern-
ment have the right to say to a company that they would be required to erect
a dam on any river in the province of Quebec in lieu of building fishways, and
if they say, “we will not do it, we would rather pay you $5,000 for so many
years—perhaps even in perpetuity—and we will have a hatchery there”; would
you have the right to do that, according to the amendment?

Hon. Mr. MicueAup: We have to do it through the Quebec government.
However, if the Quebec government revoke or abandon their understanding or
so-called agreement with Ottawa and the administration of the fisheries of

Quebec reverted back to the federal administration then we would have the
powers under this Act.
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Mr. KinLey: To make a private company build a hatchery?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: To make a private company—? ;

Mr. Kintey:  Yes. In the province of Quebec could you make a private
company build a hatchery? i

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Of course this is all subject—as they state in their
memorandum—to the original order-in-council, to the original power that they
got in 1922 from the federal government when they got the power to control
these waters. The federal authority reserves the right to impose upon the
companies the obligation of taking care of the fish.

Mr. Porrier: Was there a statute passed transferring this authority? .

How could you by order-in-council pass control of fisheries over to the province
of Quebec?

Mr. Cort: It is illegal.

Mr. PorTier: It cannot be done by order-in-council; you cannot transfer
rights under the British North American Act from the federal to the provincial
authority in that way.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: There was no transfer of that kind; all that was
done was that the federal authority agreed to abstain from administering
fisheries there.

Mr. NemwL: If you have abstained the province has no power, and there
is no control at all.

Hon. Mr. MiceauDp: I would rather let the Department of Justice decide
that than to offer a decision myself.

Mr. Cot: You may remember that this question of dual jurisdiction came
up in connection with the licensing of salmon fishing in the bay of Chaleur.
Quebec collected a licence fee for that purpose and Ottawa wanted to do the
same thing, and the fishermen had to pay two licences.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: It is a fight which started right after Confederation
and continued right up until 1922; and by that decision the provinces lost.
There is no question about that.

Mr. Hanson: Has the department any information as to whether or not
the fish went up this river before the dams were built?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: 1 think it is possible to find somewhere in the
department’s records that we give that information, because before 1922 the
department administered fisheries, and they must have had some data on that.
I will be pleased to look into that aspect of it and bring here any information

I can find in regard to it.
I think, Mr. Chairman, that it would be well to have the memorandum

relating to the letter from Mr. Gagnon put on the record so that all hon.
members will have a chance to read it, and whatever has been said before this
committee. In the meantime I will instruct that a search of the records of our
department be made to find if there is any evidence as to whether or not fish—
salmon or sea trout—were going up these waters before the dams were built;
and at the next meeting we will bring back what we are able to find in the
department.

Mr. NerLL: When were the dams built?

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: They were started in 1922, the powers were given to
the companies in 1922.

Mr. NemwL: And they have been built recently?

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: 1925.

Mr. NemL: Sixteen years.

Hon. Mr. MicuAauD: Yes, it is an old thing.
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Mr. MacNEemw: If they run there anythmg at all like they do in British
Columbia the seafish run by this time is destroyed.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, if there were any seafish going up there before the
dams were built. There is no run now, because these dams are 200 feet high.

The CuarMax: Who operates the hatchery that is there?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The provincial government.

Mr. Rem: While we are waiting for that information I had a question or
two I would like to ask. I am still somewhat disturbed over this section of the
Act; T am still of the opinion that section (d) will remain in the Act—that
penalty of from $4 to $20 a day.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, certainly, there is no intention of deleting section
(d).

Mr. Rem: I would like to be quite sure that there will be no conflict between
section (d) and section (c).

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: No, it is only (b). We simply remove paragraph (b)
and make it a new section, 57A; and the remaining paragraphs are re-lettered
(a) remains paragraph (a) and paragraph (c) becomes (b), and paragraph (d)
becomes paragraph (c); but the same penalty attaches as before. There is no
intention to change it either.

Mr. Mayurew: Would it not be better to determine before the dams are
built what the builders will be required to do in the way of providing fishways?
Of course, it cannot be done with respect to those that are already built, but I
have in mmd the situation in British Columbia where the question may apply to
the Fraser river, and I think in a situation of that kind this matter should be
determined in advance of construction.

Mr. MacNeiL: Would it be possible to have the fish expert appear here at
our next sitting?

Hon. Mr. MicuHAUD: Yes, we will have Mr. Rodd.

Mr. Porrier: Could we have an opinion from the Department of Justice as
to whether we have the right here, or whether we have not—could we have their
opinion as to our standing with respect to the fisheries in the province of Quebec?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I do not think we should bother about that, we have
had the opinion of the Department of Justice on that point; that s w h\ we are
bringing this Act in.

Mr. Porrier: I see. That automatically takes care of what I had in mind.

The CrAlRMAN: It would seem as though we cannot go very much further
with this bill to-day.

Mr. MacNemw: I think we should provide opportunity for members who
know the situation in their respective ridings to provide any material they may
have with respect to this matter. I think we should make our information as
complete as possible.

The Cuamrman: Yes, I think that is only fair.

Mr. NemvL: This section 57A. is substituted for the present sub-paragraph
(b) ; does that mean that it eliminates (b)?

Mr. MacNEiL: Yes, it is repealed.

Mr. NemL: It does not say so in the notes.

Mr. TomuiNsoN: Are you referring to paragraph (d) of section 57?

Mr. MacNEeiwL: Paragraph (d) is repealed.

Hon. Mr. MicuauD: It is repealed.

Mr. MacNEiL: And section 57A takes its place.

Mr. Rem: I trust the department will get rid of any perissology in this Act.
76186—2
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is cut out.

Mr. NemL: I understood you to say that it remained. '

- Hon. Mr. MicuauD: Not section (d). There is no intention of interfering
with the present paragraph (d), except that it becomes (c). j

Mr. Rem: My own opinion is that section (d), the penalty clause providin
from $4 to $20 per day, should probably be changed to conform to the provisions
of the new amendment which you have there; that is, that there is no penalty,
no amount of penalty specified. There is no possible comparison between the
river we are now discussing and, for instance, the Fraser river, you could not
possibly estimate the damage done on the Fraser river by dollars. That $4 you
have in there would not begin to cover damage that might be caused in this way.
I think it would be better if it were left to the minister, so that when the matter
of any major river came up the penalty could be assessed accordingly. This
provision of $4 a day would not begin to approach the damage which could be
caused on a river like the Fraser where, as everyone knows, it would run into
thousands of dollars a day. '

Hon. Mr. Micuauvp: Exactly. That is the object we have in view in
bringing in this section 57A; to enable us to assess properly and adequately.

Mr. REm: According to the amount of the damage.

Hon. Mr. MicHaup: Acecording to the damage; and we would have the
right to recover the damage assessed through the exchequer court.

Mr. TomrinsoN: Why have you section (d) in at all?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is another question altogether.

Mr. MacNEeinL: Does not the same thing apply to section (d) which relates
to spillways to permit the escape of fish down the river? If such a means were
not provided on the Fraser river you could not begin to estimate the amount
of damage which might result.

Mr. Rem: You could not begin to estimate the damage that would be
caused.

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: To whom?

Mr. Rem: To the whole fishing industry on the west coast.

Hon. Mr. Micuavp: That $4 is not for the purpose of establishing damage,
it is simply a penalty, and that penalty has no relation whatever to the amount
of damage. 3

Mr. MacNEewL: Under section (d) a power company might build a dam
across the upper regions of the Fraser river and fail to provide a spillway
enabling the fish to return down stream, and even if a hatchery were built
above the dam there would still be no means by which the fish could get down.
It provides that the company should pay a penalty of not less than $4 and no
more than $20 a day for every day in the year during which such means remain
unprovided. If the maximum of that penalty were collected for every day in
the year it still would not be sufficient to reimburse the provinee for the loss
sustained by failure to provide for escapement.

Mr. Rem: That is just the point I have in mind, and I am not speaking
of a hypothecal case, because at the moment the Fraser river has been plotted
out; but suppose a certain power company goes to the province and says “we
want a right to build a dam”; if the province says, “all right, go ahead”,
they may put up a dam 200 feet high across the Fraser river without providing
either a proper fishway or a proper spillway—it would not begin to compensate
for the loss. Such a company might very well pay a fine such as that out of
power and carry on. I do not think the question should be left this way, but
rather it should be left to the minister to assess the amount of damage. I under-
stood you to say that this is simply a penalty.
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Hon. Mr. Micuavp: That is provided for a case where a dam has been
authorized with a fishway provided or specified by the minister under this
authority, then in the operation of the fishway they do not allow enough water
to run over to let the fish ascend; in a case such as that they are penalized.
And if they repeat that the minister has the right to compel them to provide
a proper fishway under section 57A, and if they do not do it to impose a tax on
them to provide for sufficient propagation through a hatchery.

Mr. Rem: I think in the case of British Columbia the dominion govern-
ment would find they had no right to stop the building of a dam on the Fraser
river,

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: We have the right to see that they provide for the
ascent and descent of fish. If they do not we have the right to do it; and if it
is not practical or possible we have the right to tax them to provide for
artificial propagation.

Mr. Remn: Descent is just as important as ascent.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

Mr. TayLor: It is quite indispensible in so far as the Fraser river is
concerned, because there is also an international question involved. The interests
down around Mission would be very much concerned if fish could not go up
river and spawn.

Mr. MacNeiL: In the later part of section 20, Mr. Chairman, the minister
is empowered:

- The minister may require the owner or occupier of such slide, dam
or other obstruction to pay him from time to time such sum or sums
of money as he may require to construct, operate and maintain such
complete fish hatchery establishments as will in his opinion meet the
requirements for maintaining the annual return of migratory fish.

Do I understand that the only change in the Act will be that instead of
from time to time he now may collect such sums annually?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: It is to make that clear.

Mr. NeiLL: That is the purpose of the Act.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is the purpose of the Act, and to make it clear
that we have the right to repeat the dose; because Mr. Geoffrion says there is
a question as to our right to impose that more than once.

Mr. MayaEw: I still do not think the dose is heavy enough.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: That amount has been determined by the Quebee
government for that particular case, but it does not apply to all cases. In other
cases it might be $15,000 a year as being the amount necessary for the operation
of a hatchery or maintaining fish propagation there. But this has been
determined by the government of Quebec as a sum sufficient to meet that par-
ticular case.

The CramMan: The minister made a suggestion that that be incorporated
in the report. Is that agreed?

Mr. Rem: Agreed.

The Caamman: If we cannot go any further on that question to-day, what
is the wish of the committee? Do you wish to take up Mr. Neill’s amendment?

Mr. Rem: I think we might as well proceed.

The CramrMAN: Mr. Neill’'s amendment is to bill 15.

Mr. MacNeiL: Mr. Chairman, I think it would facilitate the work of the
committee if we first requested the department to file with the committee
up-to-date data with regard to fishing in British Columbia, that is the cateh

of last year in the fish traps, the percentage of sockeye salmon caught in the
76186—2}
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traps as compared with those caught on the Fraser river, and certain corre-
spondence that was asked for. T also think it is important that the department
furnish us with the exact present status of the legislation in the State of
Washington in regard to traps. That ought to be placed on the record before
our next meeting so that we will have an opportunity to digest the information.

Mr. Rem: If we had the information tabled, we would be better able to
discuss it at a future meeting. '

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Here is a statement of numbers of different species of
salmon and method of capture reported by operators of salmon purse-seines,
drag-seines,” and trap-nets, and by salmon canning, curing and cold-storage
establishments, of gill-net and troll caught fish, for the province of British
Columbia, 1938. Would that meet your requirements?

Mr. NemwL: Does it say ‘“traps”?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Trap-nets.

Mr. Rem: Is that for all districts or just the Puget Sound district?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: The province of British Columbia.

Mr. MacNEiL: Could we have the figures for the Puget Sound distriet?

Hon. Mr. MicuHaup: On the second page is shown the pack of sockeye
salmon from runs to Fraser river, 1909 to 1938. The figures are given from
the Sooke traps; British Columbia (Fraser) exclusive of Sooke traps; State of
Washington and total cases.

The next page shows the catch of fish at salmon trap-nets at Sooke,
British Columbia, 1937.

Mr. NemL: 19377 i

Hon. Mr. MicHAauD: And the same for 1938 on the next page.

Mr. Rem: Might I ask regarding the Sooke area; is there also information
as to any catch by any other gear?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: We have not a prepared statement on that, but Mr.
Whitmore says he could give you the information you desire on that matter.

Mr. MacNeiL: May we have those published as an appendix to to-day’s
proceedings?

The Cuarman: They will go in to-day’s proceedings.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: There is a copy for each member present.

Mr. Tavyror: Will that contain sports fishing around the Sooke area?

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: That is a provincial matter.

Mr. NemL: Mr. Minister, you said that there was some information that
was not complete; will that be brought down?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: To-day.

Mr. NemL: Could that not be put into the minutes of to-day, so that we
could get it out of the printed record?

Mr. MacNEemL: The whole sessional paper.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: That is a matter for the committee.

Mr. NeiLL: Each member will want it.

Mr. MacNEeiL: I also desire a copy of the completed sessional paper. I will
leave it to your good judgment as to whether or not it should be reproduced for
the members of the committee or printed. My personal opinion is that that
information should be printed as an appendix to the proceedings.

The CuarmaN: You are asking for that to be printed without being pre-
sented to the committee here?

Mr. NemL: Yes; as an appendix.

Mr. MacNEeiL: This sessional paper is evidence and I suggest it be printed
as an appendix to the report of the committee’s proceedings.




MARINE AND FISHERIES 15

Mr. NeiLL: Have this printed to-day with the supplementary one that will
be presented to-day.

The CuHAIRMAN: You have heard the question, gentlemen; there is a return
to be tabled in the house to-day in connection with the Sooke trap question, and
Mr. Neill and Mr. MacNeil are asking that that be incorporated in to-day’s
minutes of proceedings and printed.

Mr. Rem: What is the return?

Mr. NemwL: It is the correspondence since last year, the return of all
correspondence, copies, documents and telegrams, and there is a supplementary
one which the minister says is coming down to-day. There will not be many
of them?

Hon. Mr. Micuauvp: I do not think so.

The CHARMAN: Is it the wish of the committee to hand them to the clerk
to be incorporated in to-day’s report?

Mr. MacNeiwL: I so move.

The CuamMaN: Mr. MacNeil makes that motion, seconded by Mr. Neill.
You have heard the motion. All in favour? (Carried).

Mr. MacNeiL: Mr. Chairman, may we also have a statement from the
department as to the manner in which they have carried out the recommendations
of the committee of 1937? That might be submitted in written form.

Mr. WaitMmore: I have not prepared it.

Mr. Rem: Yes; it might simplify the discussion and save a lot of time.

The CuamrMaN: Mr. MacNeil suggested the other day, I think, that the
report that was tabled at the conclusion of our deliberations two years ago be
in.cc})lrpz)‘;‘ated. Did you wish it incorporated or do you suggest that we start off
with 1t? :

Mr. Nemwn: If we have the statement of the department it will include a
reference to each clause.

Mr. Tayror: That was Mr. Green’s suggestion.

The CuAlRMAN: Do you want it printed in to-day’s record?

Mr. MacNEiL: I suggest the statement of the department will deal with that
clause by clause.

Mr. WaITMORE: I am prepared to give evidence on it, but if you would like
it in statement form, all right.

Mr. Tayror: As long as it is indicated that it is the whole report.

Mr. ReEm: I think there should be one further report. On page 1 of the
report just handed to us you will note that it gives the catch of fish for the whole
of British Columbia. Now as traps are only operating in one area, I think we
should have the catch in that area compared with traps.

Mr. NemwL: Page 2 gives it to you.

Mr. Rem: Not by the gear. You cannot compare them. I think we should
have a statement of the gear for that district, because that is the district we are
discussing, and I would so move.

Mr. MacNEewL: I will second that motion.

Mr. Wairmore: What distriet would you want it for, or what boundaries,
district number 1 or the Fraser river district?

Mr. Rem: The Fraser river district.

Mr. WairMORE: This amendment has to do with the Sooke area.

Mr. NemwL: We want the details on page 2 broken up into the kind of gear.
Is that not what you want?

Mr. Rem: Yes.
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Mr. WaitMoRE: Page 2 applies only to sockeye. I think I can quite readily
give you the information for sockeye, but there might be great difficulty giving it
for other varieties.

Mr. NemwwL: Of course, you want it for pinks and springs, do you not?

Mr. REm: You are giving us the trap figures, and they are being compared
with the whole of British Columbia.

Mr. WaIrMORE: Quite so. The purpose of that statement was just to give a
comparison of the fish that were taken by traps with fish taken by other methods,
in order to show the relative proportion.

Mr. Tayror: This is the usual return, is it not?

Mr. Wairmore: Yes. That statement is published in our annual report
every year.

Mr. NemL: We want a statement covering pinks and springs, as well as
sockeyes. :

- Mr. WHIT™MORE: I am afraid it is going to be very difficult to get a state-
ment for other varieties, but I will do what I can.

Mr. MacNeiL: Have the trap licences been issued. for this year?

Mr. Warrmore:  Yes, they have been issued. ]

Mr. NemwL:. What date?

Mr. WaitMORE: I do not know the date they were actually issued, but
the authority for issuing was given the second week in March.

Mr. NemL.: How many licences?

Mr. Wartmore: I think five licences have been applied for.

Mr. NeiLL: Seven, is it not?

Mr. WaIiTMORE: There were only five licences issued last year.

Mr. NemwL: Yes, used; but there has always been seven.

Mr. WaiTMORE: No.

Mr. MacNemw: I wonder if Mr. Whitmore could give us whatever informa-
tion the department has with regard to the status of legislation in the state of
Washington with regard to fish traps south of the international boundary? No
doubt he has followed that closely and could file such information with the
committee at a later date. If that goes in as an appendix it will save us a lot of
time.

Mr. Nemn: It would not be a big job.

Mr. MacNEemw: I so move, Mr. Chairman.

The CramrMaN: It has been moved and seconded that Mr. Whitmore file
a report for this committee to print on the situation south of the international
boundary in respeet to fish traps.

Mr. TayLor: Do you mean the Puget Sound area or do you want to go
farther south?

Mr. MacNeiL: The traps affecting the Fraser river run.
‘ h'}‘he CuamrmManN: You have heard the motion, gentlemen; what is your

wish ?

Mr. Hanson: Agreed.

Mr. Rem: 1 think we had better adjourn until we get that information.

The CualRMAN: Are you going to ask to print this last committee report
or is a typewritten copy sufficient?

Mr. Hanson: I move that we print it.

The CuamrmaN: You want it printed in the report?

Mr. KivLey: 1 think it is a good part of the reeord.
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The CuHamrMAN: Will someone make a motion to that effect?

Mr. Nemw: Is anything being done about answering the wire that was
received from some fishing organization asking to be allowed to send witnesses?

The CuamrMAN: We should first dispose of the motion before the com-
mittee. The motion is that this last report be incorporated in to-day’s minutes.

Mr. MaysHEwW: I so move.

Mr. Hanson: I will second the motion.

The CuamrMAN: I declare the motion carried. Gentlemen, we had a
wire from the fishermen’s union of British Columbia asking that they be allowed
to send witnesses here at the expense of the government to give evidence. What
is your pleasure regarding that? The telegram I received is dated March 11
from Vancouver, and reads:—

The CHAIRMAN,
Standing Committee, Marine and Fisheries,

House of Commons,
Ottawa.

Request permission practicable fishermen this association appear before
your committee re traps. Suggest government share cost transportation
and sustenance.

PACIFIC COAST FISHERMEN’S UNION.

Mr. NErwL: What is the date of it?
The CuHAlRMAN: March 11.

Mr. NemnL: I have a letter from somebody saying that they had not
received any reply to it. That is what brought it to my mind, but possibly we
had better not decide one way or another until we get more information.

Mr. MacNEeiL: Perhaps it would save time if you acknowledged the telegram
and asked if it would be possible for all the organizations to combine their
representations. I think that is now possible by reason of certain organization
changes that have taken place in British Columbia. It would save a lot of time
and argument.

Mr. NemL: It would be a good idea if you could get them all to agree,
but I have my doubts. :

Mr. Rem: The gill-netters are vitally interested; they are more interested
than the seiners. :

Mr. MacNEiL: They might agree.
Mr. Rem: I do not think they would.
Mr. MacNEL: They have all been meeting together.

A Mr. Rem: The gill-netters will not agree to the purse-seiners representing
them.

Mr. TayrLor: I think the secretary admitted that he had had three days’
fishing on the Fraser river. The other man had not seen the Sooke traps for
19 years; so do not let us have that kind of thing again.

The Caamrman: Mr. MacNeil, your suggestion is that we wire and ask them
if the different unions can combine?

Mr. KixLey: Could they send in a brief?
Mr. Rem: If you wire them, do not make it misleading in any way. Be

careful not to do that. If you send a wire they will take it that you have
accepted their suggestion.

Mr. NemL: This is a suggestion to the chairman, that the chairman act
on his own responsibility as a matter preparatory to the decision of the committee.
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Mr. NemwL: He had better make it clear. &
Mr. Hanson: He should make it clear that if the committee should call
witnesses, would it be possible for all interested parties to combine?

Mr. Mayuew: I move that they be wired and told that the committee
have not decided yet whether they are going to call witnesses or not, and then
you will be perfectly free to call at any time all the witnesses you desire. If
you are going to have witnesses from one section you must have witnesses from
all sections. I do think that the Sooke trap interests would feel that they should
be represented as well as the gill-netters or any other group.

Mr. NemwL: If they applied for permission to be heard.

Mr. Mayuew: They will, if they know representations are coming from
other places.

The Cuamrman: Should we ask them in the wire if they have a brief
prepared or if they wish to present a brief?

Mr. MacNEemL: You might as well. They might be content with that.

Mr. KinLey: The matter was so well ventilated two years ago that a brief
would almost cover it, if it was a brief representing all the interested parties.

Mr. Hansox: I think a brief should satisfy the committee.

Mr. Mayaew: We have not decided. We cannot tell them any more than
that we have not decided. We might acknowledge receipt of the telegram,
which is the courteous thing to do, and say that the committee has not decided
whether we will call witnesses or not, but that they will be advised if we wish
to have witnesses.

Mr. MacNE1L: There i1s no objection to inquiring if they are able to combine
on witnesses.

Mr. MayseEw: Not at all.

Mr. NemL: In the event.

The CuamMman: We could say, “ No decision arrived at regarding witnesses.
Committee wish to know if all unions could combine.”

Mr. NeiLL: In the event.

The CHAIRMAN: You mean to combine on one witness?

Mr. MacNeiL: On representations.

Mr. NemwL: They would need two.

Mr. Mayaew: Then that would not be a combination.

Mr. NeiLL: They would agree that one man from the seiners and one man
from the gill-netters should be heard.

Mr. MaysEw: One witness from each branch?

Mr. NemLL: Yes, but they would agree.

Mr. Mayuew: They would not agree if there was one witness from each
branch. In that case the Sooke men would have to be represented.

Mr. MacNEeiL: There would be no objection to that.

Mr. Tayror: Would they be compelled to join this all-embracing organ-
ization?

Mr. MacNEeL: No.

Mr. Tayror: That is what is going on in British Columbia just now.

Mr. MacNEm: I think it is well-known that under the auspices of the
trades and labour congress of Vancouver they are all meeting together in
conference on this and many other matters, and they have the machinery to
determine whether or not representatives could be sent here who could speak
on this matter for all the organized fishermen.

Mr. KixvLey: I suppose they will send bona fide fishermen?
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Mr. Tayror: I would suggest that as the only basis on which they should
be received and paid, if they do come,

The CuArMaN: To whom should this be addressed?

Mr. MacNewL: A. V. Hill, Secretary, Fishermen’s Union, 164 Hastings
Street east.

The Cuairman: I suppose the difficulty will be that if we hear one side we
will have to hear the other side?

Mr. NemL: Yes.

Mr. Rem: We can decide that afterwards, Mr. Chairman.

The CrarMax: It does not look as though we can hold another meeting
before the Easter adjournment.

Mr. Rem: With the information we are going to get, I doubt if we can.

Mr. MacNeiwL: It will take us sometime to get through this material.

Mr. Hanson: I move that we adjourn to meet again at the call of the chair

The Cuamman: Carried.
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APPENDIX 1

STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES FOR STANDING
COMMITTEE OF THE HOUSE OF COMMONS
ON MARINE AND FISHERIES

A. Action taken to implement recommendations of Committee’s Report dated
April 5, 1937, regarding question of issue of salmon trap-net fishing
licences in British Columbia.

1. Recommendation: Being satisfied of the great need for conservation of
the fish and the avoiding of all wanton and useless destruction of this great food
resource, your Committee recommends that the Department of Fisheries con-
tinue to work in co-operation with the authorities in the United States with
such object in view.

There has been for years an exchange of information between local officers
of the Department of Fisheries and those in charge of the fisheries administra-
tion in the State of Washington pertaining to the Fraser River salmon runs.
This has embraced data bearing on the intensity of fishing, the progress of
runs, escapement for reproduction purposes, ete., and is important to the extent
of the assistance it gives in determining conservation measures that may be
required in any particular season. During 1937 and 1938 this collaboration
has continued.

A development of outstanding and far-reaching importance in international
co-operation bearing on the sockeye salmon runs going to the Fraser via
Strait of Juan de Fuca took place in July, 1937, when ratifications of the Con-
vention between Canada and the United States for the preservation and
rehabilitation of this salmon run were exchanged. This Convention was signed
in 1930. It was approved by Canada in the same year but failed to receive
approval by United States until 1937. Ratification climaxed negotiations
covering a period of nearly 30 years for some arrangement of international
management of fishery in which there had been participation by fishermen of
the two countries almost since inception of the fishery about 1876.

Intensive fishing and a disaster at Hell’'s Gate Canyon on the Fraser in
1913, when a rock slide prevented the big spawning run of that year reaching
the spawning grounds, are largely responsible for the small returns for many
years from this fishery compared with those prevailing in earlier years. If a
proper system of restocking was to be developed and productivity restored,
joint action by the two countries was essential, as inadequately controlled fish-
ing on one side would nullify any protective measures taken on the other. The
Convention is designed to enable international control capable of doing this.

What a return to former conditions would mean will be realized from the
following figures: in 1913, the last “big” year, the pack of Fraser sockeye put
up on the United States side was 1,673,000 cases. On the Canadian side it was
719,000 cases. At present day prices of about $12.50 per case, this would mean
a value to the two countries of about $30,000,000. In 1935 the combined pack
of these fish caught by American and Canadian fishermen was approximately
117,000 cases, with valuation of approximately $1,440,000. In 1938 the pack
amounted to 311,000 cases, with an estimated value of $3,900,000.

A brief outline of the terms of the Treaty follows:

Article I sets out the area of Convention waters as follows:—

(a) Territorial waters and high seas off the portion of the Washington
and British Columbia coasts lying between 48° and 49° north latitude.

(b) The waters of Juan de Fuca Strait, the northerly portion of Puget
Sound, and the Gulf of Georgia up to the mouth of the Fraser.

(¢) The Fraser River and streams and lakes tributary thereto.
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Article II provides for the appointment of a Commission of six members,
three from each country. :

Article III provides that the Commission shall make a thorough investiga-
tion into the natural history of the Fraser River sockeye salmon, into hatchery
methods, spawning ground conditions and other related matters; also to improve
spawning grounds, construct and maintain hatcheries, etc. The cost thereof
is to be borne equally by the two Governments.

Articles IV and V give the Commission power to regulate sockeye fishing
within Convention waters.

Article VI safeguards the situation for each country by providing for an
affirmative vote by at least two of the members of each country to assure the
adoption or repeal of any regulation or action.

Article VII provides that the Commission shall so regulate that 50 per cent
of the quantity of salmon the Commission allows to be taken shall be caught by
the fishermen of each country.

Articles VII, IX and X have to do with the responsibility of each Govern-
ment to enact proper legislation and for the enforcement thereof.

Article XI fixes the life of the Convention at 16 years from the date of
exchange of ratifications and thereafter until one year from the date on which
either country gives notice of its desire to terminate it.

Approval of the Convention by United States was conditional on the follow-
ing understandings, which were agreed to by Canada:

(a) That the Commission shall have no power to authorize any type of
fishing gear contrary to the laws of the State of Washington or Canada.

(b) That the Commission shall not promulgate or enforce regulations until
the scientific investigations provided for in the Convention have been made
covering two cycles of sockeye salmon runs, or 8 years.

(¢) That the Commission shall set up an Advisory Committee composed of
five persons from each country, representative of the various branches of the
industry, which Committee shall be invited to all non-Executive meetings of the
Commission, and shall be given full ouportunity to examine and be heard on all
proposed orders, regulations or recommendations.

The Commission appointed under the Convention held its inaugural meeting
in October, 1937, at Vancouver. Headquarters for its scientific staff were estab-
lished at New Westminster, aifd its work has been actively going on since then.

2. Recommendation: That no more trap licences be granted in British
Columbia waters, except in the so-called Sooke area, and concerning which we
are unable to come to a decision as to whether they should be continued or not
without the opportunity of securing further information.

No salmon trap-net licences have been granted in British Columbia, other
than for the Sooke area, since and including 1937. Five licences were granted
in that arca for 1937 and 1938, and applications for the same number have been
approved for 1939.

3. Recommendation: That if the said traps are allowed in the so-called
Sooke area, the licence fee for each trap be $500 per annum, commencing with
the year 1937.

The British Columbia Fishery Regulations were amended immediately,
increasing the annual salmon trap-net licence fee from $50 to $500 effective as
from and including 1937.

4. Recommendation: That an opening of suitable size be made in the lead
of such traps in order that fish may have a better opportunity of passing on
towards the spawning grounds when the trap is closed.
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The Regulations were immediately amended to provide for a V-shaped
opening in the lead of each salmon trap-net immediately adjacent to the entrance
of the trap during weekly close seasons. Difficulty was experienced by the trap
operators in designing a practical opening of this type, and the Regulations
were amended by Order in Council of April 29th, 1937, so as to require an
opening not less than ten feet in width at any point. This had the effect of
enlarging the area of the opening.

5. Recommendation: The Department should be careful to see that the
Regulations providing for the closing of traps in use, for 48 hours per week, be
rigidly enforced, and that the traps be subject to the same regulations as
regards opening and closing seasons as preseribed for all other varieties of
fishing under the Fisheries Act and Regulations.

Fishing at the traps was required to be conducted in accordance with general
regulations applicable to other methods of salmon fishing in the area. The 48-
hour weekly close season prevailed. Eight sockeye salmon taken in 1937 prior
to May 15th, the legal opening date for fishing for that variety of salmon, were
surrendered to the Department. They were handed over to a charitable institu-
tion in Victoria furnishing free meals to needy persons. Any fish below minimum
weight requirements were likewise given to needy persons. In 1938 operation
of the trap-nets for the purpose of scientific investigations by the International
Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission during the weekly close times was author-
ized. On five occasions advantage was taken of this permission, fish so taken
being used to recompense the trap-net operators for fish from legal catches
utilized by the Commission for tagging.

6. Recommendation: That all inspectors or guardians employed by the
Department of Fisheries be independent of all fishing companies or fishing plant
owners.

Every precaution was taken to assure strict compliance with this recom-
mendation.

7. Recommendation: That for the next year or two the check made in
connection with the catch, as well as the escapement of sockeye and other
varieties of salmon in the Sooke area, be made with great care and detail, so
that the records expressed in both cases and numbers may be as accurate as
possible. 2

Statements have already been handed to the Committee showing the catch
of fish at the traps during 1937 and 1938, and it is understood are being printed
as an appendix to the Committee’s Proceedings.

Observations reveal that while some salmon pass through the lead openings
during weekly close times, larger numbers passed on by following the lead of
the traps and around the outside piling until clear of the traps.

B. Status of legislation in State of Washington pertaining to salmon trap-net.
fishing.

In 1935 salmon trap-nets were removed from Washington State waters
following action by way of Initiative No. 77, which culminated in a popular
vote by the state giving a large majority against their use. There appears to
be little doubt this vote was influenced largely by the attitude of sport fisher-
men, although purse-seiners were also opposed to their use.

The State of Washington Legislature mets bi-annually. In 1937 and
again this year, Bills were unsuccessfully introduced looking to restoration
of salmon trap-nets, generally on some modified scale compared to their former
use. This year, one such Bill, sponsored by the Washington State Fisheries
Administration, contemplated the operation of eight traps under lease from
the state in outer Puget Sound waters. Another Bill, privately introduced and
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proposing re-introduction of traps in the Point Roberts area, received the
approval of the State Senate, but before being dealt with by the Lower House,
the Legislature was prorogued. At the time of prorogation of the 1939 Legis-
lature last month, no action had been taken that would provide for the return of
fixed gear in the waters of the State of Washington, and as a result no type of
fixed gear, including salmon trap nets, will be operative in Puget Sound or in
any other waters of the State of Washington for at least the years 1939 and

1940.
C. Salmon gill-net fishing operations in Straits of Juan de Fuca dwuring 1938.

The following extract from the Annual Report of the local Fishery Inspector
summarizes salmon fishing carried on by gill-nets in the Straits of Juan de
Fuca during 1938:—

Sockeye gill-net fishing off Sooke by about 17 nets is worthy of
note as this is the first time for over ten years that this method has been
tried. Although the fishermen had the expected difficulty of having their
nets wound up by swirling tides, they were exceptionally fortunate in
having good weather conditions and some fair catches made. However,
in mid-August the fishermen left for the Fraser river immediately they
heard sockeye had reached there. Due to tide conditions in the trap area
it was found necessary to fish far offshore where exposure to weather
constituted considerable danger to boats and gear.

The operations extended from August 3 to 16 inclusive. While in all 17
gill-netters fished at some time during this period, the greatest number delivering
fish in any one day was 12. Their total catch was: sockeye 3,006, springs 30,
cohoe 291, pinks 77, chums 30. Fishing was largely conducted from four to five
miles offshore in the area between Sooke and Sheringham Point. The prevalence
of mud sharks and grayfish interfered with operations to some extent and some
damage to the fishing nets was experienced. Fishing was “spotty.” On some
days some fishérmen secured good catches, in one instance, 469 sockeye in one
night. On other days fishing was unproductive.

D. Catch of salmon by wvarieties by different methods of gear used, Fraser
River Area, 1938.

The following table shows unrevised figures of salmon caught by gill-nets
and purse-seines separately in District No. 1 (Fraser River Area), during 1938:

Variety By Gill-nets By Purse-Seines
Bosiaoes Bl S o il SR S T T T T ) 5968863 21¢
R T o IR R L G P 816 iy
Chums, e s SRR PR R P 548,700 258
Red' Bprings monnts . b = BRI D L0 G T 01 1,610,381 10,383

White Spriniepounds i, &5 o DSEEE L D s 9 (135402 9,080
Coloa, Doahulsier -, o o Sl uRERE 2 o ol 9 778 419 27,716
Department. of Fisheries, Ottawa.
April 6, 1939.
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STATEMENT OF NUMBERS OF DIFFERENT SPECIES OF SALMON AND METHOD OF
CAPTURE REPORTED BY OPERATORS OF SALMON PURSE-SEINES, DRAG-
SEINES, AND TRAP-NETS, AND BY SALMON CANNING, CURING, AND
COLD STORAGE ESTABLISHMENTS, OF GILL-NET AND TROLL
CAUGHT FISH, BRITISH COLUMBIA—1938

Unrevised figures.

— Sockeye | Springs |Blueback v%i:;eé— Cohoe Pink Chum Total

E 7 o) AR 1,182] 144,978/ 412,663 891 950,813 16,188 815/ 1,526,728
L Gillnet.. . oii.coh 4,443,814| 162,506 1,174 82,876| 825,432| 2,745,707| 1,072,985( 9,334,494
fial Purse-Seine........ 522, 542 10, 525 366 1,580 328,666 4,152,990| 3,576,914 8,593,583
i Drag-Seine. . it OBt L O S N T T S 19,477 74,405 12,811 166,310
. Trapnet.......... 41,372 12308771 h ol 873 25,223 1,472 953 82,570
Lotals. 0, ik 5,068,527| 330,686] 414,203 85,418| 2,149,611| 6,990,762| 4,664,478/19,703, 685

-

PACK OF SOCKEYE SALMON FROM RUNS TO FRASER RIVER—I1909 TO 1938

Figures represent cases of 48 one-pound tins or equivalent

British Columbia State of
From : gt Total
—_— xy (Fraser) exclusive Washington,
Sooke Traps ot Sooke Traps U.S.A. Cases
% %o %

43,187 2:6 542,248 32-2 1,097,904 65-2 1,683,339
17,387 4-4 133,045 33-4 248,014 62-2 398,446
4,330 2-3 58,487 30-7 127,761 67-0 190, 578
15,095 4-9 108,784 35-3 184,680 59-8 308, 559
62,085 1 2:1 684,506 28-4 1,673,099 69-5 2,409,760
12,700 2-4 185,483 34-8 335,230 62-8 533,413
2,090 1-4 89,040 57-2 64,548 41-4 155, 678
4,752  4-1 27,394 23:5 84,637 . 72-4 116,783
24,550 4.4 123,614 22-1 411,358 73-5 559,702
2,348  4-1 16,849 23-9 50,723 72-0 70,410°¢
6,194 6-2 20,628 29-6 63,346 63-2 100,168
3,801 3-4 44 595 40-2 62,654 56-4 111,053
2,781 2-6 35,900 25-2 102,967 72-2 142,598
3,088 3-1 48,744 48-6 48,566 48-3 100, 398
2,232 2-9 29,423 37-2 47,402 59-9 79,057
, 543 3:3 36,200 332 69,369 63-5 109, 112
3,862 2-8 31,523 22.3 106,064 74-9 141,449
2,091 1-6 83,580 64-2 44,569 34:2 130,249
4 337 2.7 57,085 22 06,343 61-0 157,765
2,769  3-1 26,530 29-4 61,044 67-5 90,343
3,480 2:0 60,407 34-4 111,856 63-6 175,743
5,334 1-2 93,416 20-7 352,194 78-1 450,944
2,440 2:0 38,507 30-9 83,728 67-1 124,675
4,000 2-7 61,769 42-8 78,319 54-5 144,088
8,721 4.9 43,745 24-6 125,738 70-5 178,204
6,117 1-2 135,159 271 352,579  T1-7 491,855
5,610 4.7 57,212 48-8 54,677 465 117,499
3,837 1-7 164,408* 72-2 59,505** 26-1 227,750
6,152 46 66,583 50-1 60,259 45-3 132,094
3,652 1-2 168,574 54-1 138,986  44-7 311,2i2

T Unrevised figures. g .
* In addition equivalent of approximately 16,000 as (approx. 7%) exported to Washington for canning..
** Includes approximately 16.000 as (approximately 7%) packed from imported Fraser caught fish..



CATCH OF FISH AT SALMON TRAP-NETS AT SOOKE, BRITISH COLUMBIA, 1937

e i 0
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14,328 2,116 1,313 5,730 1 s {o iR R 48 250,
33,708 1,321 1,367 13,736]...... 11 i § 56 180
26.357 921 1,080, 35,780 2 ) poe- e 56 725
16,182 1,069 914| 53,775 10 T e 63 811
5.053 783 1,346| 15,791 1 [ | B 45 215
1,220 328 2,017 8,587 49 Blsa i 35 300
10 482 5,042| 21,901 183 18 s 35 400
........ 356 2,767 6,588 100 L e 26 620!
........ 220 2,590 659 501 (7! Gk 54 450
11 106 2,784 605 389 5 5 P 34 380/
........ 39 2,954 14 154 RN 29 120
2 9 530 9 1 e S 49 138
| PR 602 10 § v R T 32 250
99,514 19,412| 26,545 164,325 1,642 449 6 648 5,589 165

* Herring total: 1,439 fish; 108} tons.

11 Whale; 1 Porpoise; 7 Mackerel.
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CATCH OF FISH AT SALMON TRAP-NETS OPERATED IN SOOKE AREA—BRITISH COLUMBIA—193

/ Sock- | g : Steel- | Stur- Gray- Her-
Date of Lift ava Springs | Cohoe | Pinks |Chums head | ‘geon Cod ﬁsg Skate (ﬁn")
T A 9 48 Btk 1 PRl LR e i GUEEE et i 415
- 46 84 - 1 R 4 78 10 4 5,000
30.. 94 1 5 R 3 39 26 4 2,100
June 6.. 101 165 (" o ROy L 1 41 18 3 4,750
13... 272 379 P2 1 A SR 2 62 9 5 450
20... 147 302 L R TR P EA 30 35 10 400
a0 193 816 /Dl Bl 2 1 65 65 9 500
&5 304 | 1,075 86 3 2 69 150 9 595
K 203 394 63 2 1 29 |. 40 3 180
1t A 58 - 99 PIOP A= i 1 16 |. 170 B O
e 243 403 R el o 55 |. 65 i PO
18 and 21 3 912 131 76 2 61 97 9 160
25 ard 28 1,492 935 512 287 3 79 146 {1 TP
Aug. 1and 4 3,247 | 1,223 781 277 1 50 419 13 290
5 8and 11 1,903 1,120 521 287 10 45 156 18 4. ok v
A3<14. 2. 0% b1, 1 B HENIEI AR el Ot B SR, cemane O R e s ool i B et B T e s T e
;(5) azmd 18.. 3,015 1,397 1,288 205 16 36 60 h g (WY
2. 1 Lk A bl ESEE T, Ll e T R e L R e A ey ) A I
22, 25 and 26. .. 20, 598 1,111 | 2,491 100 ° 23 22 1 16 50 A PN SRe]
“ 29 and Sept. 1. 7,603 850 | 2,127 171 75 IR RO 171 235 7 100
*Sept.3-4............ 8 30 G111 e T SRR, (S (R T ML LU, ety o e 1Y sl Bl O LT
6 and 8.. 545 406 | 2,619 50 27 s (L TR 18 152 10 2,400
EORIGE2 and 182 0o i e i 595 | 3,758 |..:v.... 69 20 Lo e 10 142 8 3,100
D Rnd 220 R 171 el I el 100 {F) RS 7 234 8 | 51,800
RS AR 20, /0,1 LSRGt PRI TS L 147 i R Rk ALY 19 429 16 | 28,800
Sise=Bandg. 5 e 9 903 14 59 1 et 89 310 14 3,000
o b1 and 9.5 Tl S e /) ) SRR NOEN Mt SNSRI N S r ] SRR e IR T
? ’:: 10,11 and 13- o DT 4 1,4% ........ 335 {1 SRS & 16 92 6| 39,900
atand 20:... ... A A R AR Ak [=shr ] TQRIL I B s o 11 95 8 1,600
st L RUINEMIYREE FoL ) P 18 () Rl 16 ST BE AR 7 35 4 9,400
V ige 1 ORI 41,372 | 12,677 | 25,223 1,472 953 873 16 740 | 3,240 205 | 154,940
2 - Under-
Date of Lift Hake| Bass I{:;It" Sole E::l Shark cE:ii:d E:‘x;'dr:.- }é’:;‘] S:;i:gn Miscellaneous
........ 1 trout
14
........ 8 Fl.
3
9
9
....... 1FL
1
8 | 4FL
........ 9 Fl. 1 Shad
8 Fl. 1 Shad
9 |14 FL
5 | 8FL 1 H. Seal
........ 3 FL
........ 2 Fl.
........ 1W.F
........ 3 FlL
........ 1FL
4 | 10ct.
........ 1 Shad
........ 1 Oect.
........ 1 Oct.
70

Misc. Catch—Undersized Salmon: springs 41, cohoe 4, pinks 25; trout 1; flounders 62; shad 3; hair seal 1; wolf-fish 1;

octopus 3. . d 2 » F ok
*Taken from traps to replace fish tagged by International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission.
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APPENDIX 3
SesstoNAL Papers No. 235

Copy
DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Tugespay, March 28, 1939.
Return to an Order of the House of Commons, dated 8th March, 1939,

. showing:—

A copy of all correspondence, letters, telegrams and other documents
exchanged between the Minister or any official of the Department of Fisheries
and any other person or persons regarding the use of fish traps in British
Columbia, since April 29, 1939, to date:

FERNAND RINFRET,
Secretary of State.

Reference No. 127

- Mover: Mr. Neill

Dated: March 28, 1939. .

Copy
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

Orrawa, March 25th, 1939.

Sir,—With reference to the Order of the House of Commons moved by
Mr. Neill on March 8th, Reference No. 127, for a copy of all correspondence,
et cetera, regarding the use of fish traps in British Columbia since April 29th,
1938, to date, I now attach a return of the correspondence, et cetera, on the
files of the Department of Fisheries, with reference to the subject.

I -am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,
J. J. COWIE,
Acting Deputy Minister.

Under-Secretary of State,
Ottawa.

Copy

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
Orrawa, March 25th, 1939.

Return To an Order of the House of Commons:—
moved by Mr. Neill on March 8th—Reference No. 127,—for a copy of all
correspondence, letters, telegrams and other documents exchanges between the
Minister of Fisheries and any other person or persons regarding the use of fish
traps in British Columbia, since April 29th, 1938, to date.

By Order.

76186—3
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~ APRIL 22nd, 1938.
- PERMIT

Under the provisions of section 4 of the Fisheries Act, 22-23 George V,
Chapter 42, permission is hereby given Doctor W. F. Thompson, Director of
Investigations for the International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission, or
his duly accredited representative, or representatives,—

(a) to have operated licensed commercial salmon traps in the Sooke
area during such weekly close times as are found necessary for the pur-
poses of the International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission for the
capturing of an adequate number of sockeye salmon for tagging purposes,
the traps used to be closed as required by the Fishery Regulations during
the remainder of such weekly close times as may occur after the needed
quantity of sockeye salmon is procured for tagging purposes: and

(b) also to have operated a purse-seine, or purse-seines in the Fraser

River, or adjacent waters, for the capture of sockeye salmon for tagging

purposes during the weekly close times or at other periods. »

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries.

May 3rd, 1938.

Drar Sir,—You will recall that some time ago Mr. A. W. Neill, M.P., laid
on the Table of the House petitions to “The Honourable the House of Commons
in Parliament Assembled” praying that no more fish trap licenses shall be
granted in British Columbia. Attached are three such petitions that were
addressed to me.

Faithfully yours,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minister.
The Clerk,
House of Commons,
Ottawa.

ASSOCIATED BOARDS OF TRADE OF VANCOUVER ISLAND

Nanamvo, B.C., June 28, 1938.

Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

Hon. S: Referring to my letter dated 1st February, 1938, and to your
reply of I‘ebruary 9th, in respect of subject matter, kindly be advised that at
this year’s Convention of this Organization, held at Courtenay Comox on
15th-16th instant, the action taken by the Convention in 1937, and which was
for the abolishment of said traps, has been sustained by this year’s Convention.

Text of the Resolution (No. 14) was communicated to you embodied in
my letter of June 28, 1937.

Yours faithfully,
(Sgd.) M. C. Ironsimg, Secretary, A.B.T.V.L
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July 2nd, 1938.

Dear SIr:

Re: Fish Traps at Sooke

This is to acknowledge receipt of yours of the 28th ultimo having reference
to the above captioned matter.
Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minaster.
M. C. Ironsme, Esq.,
Secretary,
Associated Boards of Trade of Vancouver Island.
Nanaimo, British Columbia.

KYUQUOT TROLLERS CO-OPERATIVE ASSOCIATION
Bastion Buiping, 1124 Government St.,

Victoria, B.C., June 25th, 1938.
The Honourable J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir: The members of the Kyuquot Trollers Co-operative Association,
Vietoria, B.C., at their Semi-annual Meeting held at Kyuquot, deplore and
protest against the continued issuance of Trap Licenses in British Columbia,
considering it an unfair privilege, that excludes other fishing gear from opera-
tion within such fixed location, and also as a destructive measure, which does
not distinguish between legal size nor out-off season fish.

KYUQUOT TROLLERS CO-OPERATIVE ASSN.
(Sgd.) H. E. BaYER, Secretary.

VICTORIA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Vicroris, B.C., June 28, 1938.
Honourable J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Sir: In view of the conflicting resolutions which have been reaching
your Department from Vancouver Island, I have been directed by the Board
of Directors of the Victoria Chamber of Commerce to communicate to you
the history of what has been going on for the past twelve months on the Island.

A year ago the Associated Boards of Trade had their Annual Meeting at
Alberni. One of the clauses in the Constitution of the Associated Boards requires
that all Boards of Trade who are members should communicate the proposed
resolutions to the Secretary at least sixty days prior to the Convention. This
provision gives an opportunity to the member Boards to discuss all Resolutions
and to instruct their delegates when they attend the Convention.

At the 1937 Convention, there was no proper Resolution before the Con-
vention when it opened, but in the last hour of the Convention Mr. A. W.
Neill, M.P., proposed a Resolution from the floor without any notice whatever.
That Resolution, of course, was in accord with his arguments in the House
of Commons, and in view of the manner in which it was brought before the
Convention the delegates were taken by surprise and were, of course, not pre-
pared to argue the question as to whether the trap net system of fishing is

good or bad.
76186—3}
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Although our Victoria Board has for sometime been on record as favouring
the continuance of the traps, the Victoria delegates has insufficient information
to debate the subject. The result was that the Resolution of Mr. Neill was
carried without any contrary arguments, because of this lack of information
on the part of the delegates.

At Nanaimo on January 26th, 1938, the Eexuctive of the Associated Boards
of Trade held its meeting and the Victoria delegates explained the situation,
at the same time informing the Execulive of the standing Resolution of the
Victoria Chamber of Commerce in favour of fish traps since June, 1936. When
the matter was explained to the Executive, it was agreed that the matter should
be re-opened at the 1938 Convention for arguments to be presented by both sides.

At the Convention held last week at Courtenay, the matter came up before
the Annual Convention in pursuance of the recommendation of the Executive.
It required a two-third vote of the delegates to rescind the former motion, and
in view of the circumstances this was almost an impossible task.

Many of the up-island communities have many trollers and the delegates
from these communities, of course, were not interested in traps, and the question
resolved itself into a discussion of the advantage to the Island of trollers as
opposed to the fish trap industry. The contention of the up-island communities
is that more people are employed in trolling than is the case with the fish traps.
The number of communities who are interested in trollers is such that a two-
thirds vote was not secured, though the vote was about evenly divided. It has
always been represented that the fish traps are detrimental to the continuance
of a supply of fish, and this point was not before the Board.

I am directed by the Directors of the Victoria Board to reaffirm its support
of continuing fish traps at Sooke and it is hoped that when the International
Salmon Commission investigates the matter of salmon fishing on the Pacific
Coast, that the up-island Boards, as well as our own Board, will have a full
opportunity to express their views with respect to the continuance of fish traps
at Sooke.

Trusting the above will give you a history of the negotiations on the Island
during the past twelve months.

Yours very truly,

Signed D. MacBRIDE,
President.

July 9, 1938.

Dear Sir,—I wish to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 25th ultimo
in which it is explained that the members of your Association at their recent
semi-annual meeting, urged discontinuance of salmon trap-net licences in British
Columbia.

Your letter will be duly drawn to the attention of the Minister on his return
to Ottawa.

Yours very truly,

J. J. COWIE,
Acting Deputy Minister.
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F. C. E. Bever, Esq.,
Secretary, ;
Kyuquot Trollers Cooperative Association,
1124 Government St.,

Victoria, B.C.
July 9, 1938.

Dear Sir,—I wish to acknowledge receipt in the absence of the Minister of
your letter of the 28th ultimo explaining the outcome of recent consideration by

- the Associated Boards of Trade of Vancouver Island of the salmon trap-net

question and re-affirming the views of your Board in support of continuance of

these traps at Sooke.
Your letter will be brought to the attention of the Minister.

Yours very truly,

J. J. COWIE,
2 Acting Deputy Minister.
D. MacBring, Esq.,
President,
Victoria Chamber of Commerce,
P.O. Box 608,
Victoria, B.C.

COMMISSIONER OF FISHERIES
ProviNcE oF BriTisa CoOLUMBIA

Vicroria, August 5, 1938.

Honourable J. E. MicHAuD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Mr. MicHAUD,—At the request of the Board of Trade of Port Alberni
and district, which district I represent, I am forwarding to you resolution on
fish traps passed at a recent meeting of the Associated Boards of Trade on
Vancouver Island for your consideration.

This is submitted to me purely as a resolution of that gathering, not in
any way intended to express my personal views.

Yours very truly,

GEO. S. PEARSON,
Commassioner.

RESOLUTION NO. 14—FISH TRAPS

Whereas it has been the policy of the Fisheries Department of the Dominion
Government for a number of years to refuse Trap Licences in British Columbia,
with the exception of the Sooke area, and that this was done on account of
traps being very destructive to all kinds of fish and the loss of employment of
fishermen. :

And Whereas the reason and the only justification for allowing traps in the
Sooke area was that the fish, after passing that area, moved over into the
American waters where traps numbering over two hundred took a large toll
before they later returned to our side, and went into the Fraser river, and it
was found that we only got on our side of the line, both at Sooke and in the
Fraser river, about thirty (30 per cent) of the total sockeye run going that
way and it was considered that as long as the Americans maintained that large
gunll{ber of traps we might well take what toll we could in the neighborhood of

ooke; '

5 A4
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And Whereas three years ago the Americans in the. State of Washington
forbade use of traps in their waters, with the result that our proportion of the
catech jumped to (50 per cent) fifty per cent and even as high as (80 per cent)
eighty per cent;

And Whereas an attempt was made this spring to reintroduce traps on the
American side and one of the strongest arguments used was that, although they
had cut out (219) two hundred and nineteen traps on their side of the line we
gadkrefused to follow suit and cut out the four or five in the neighborhood of

ooke;

And Whereas in view of the above facts which were fully brought out before
the Committees of the House of Commons it is desirable that we should
encourage the Americans to maintain their policy of no traps and give employ-
ment to our fishermen;

Therefore Be It Resolved that this Convention of the Associated Boards
of Trade of Vancouver Island recommend to the Dominion Government to give
notice that after the end of this fishing season no more trap licences will be
granted anywhere in British Columbia. .

10th September, 1938.

Dear Mr. PearsoN,—I duly received your letter of the 5th ultimo enclosing
resolution by the Board of Trade of Port Alberni and district urging the aboli-
tion of fish traps in British Columbia which was forwarded by you at the request
of that Board.

Faithfully yours,

J. E. MICHAUD,

Minister.
Honourable Gro. S. PEARsON,
Commissioner of Fisheries,
Victoria, B.C.

HOUSE OF COMMONS
CANADA

OtTAwA, January 24, 1939.
Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa,

Honoured and Drar Sir,—I revert to page 241 Unrevised Hansard to note
the question on the orders of the day by the Hon. A. W. Neill for Comox-Alberni
in regard to the continuation or otherwise of the Sooke traps.

You well know, Sir, my opinion about the movement so ably boosted by
the hon. member; and mature consideration does not alter my fixed impression
that this is a fight between fishermen devoted to definite types of fishing.

In view of the intefnational arrangements made to consider the whole
question I cannot help but feel that it should be left in your judgment and
through you to the deliberations of the Commission to determine the whole
question.

Yours very truly,

J. 8. TAYLOR, M.P.
Nanaimo.
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January 25, 1939.

Dear Mr. Tavror,—I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your favour
of January 24 with reference to trap fishing and thank you for the same.

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries
J. 8. Tavior, Esq., M.P,,
House of Commons,
Ottawa.

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING COMPANY LIMITED
504-5 UnioN BuiLpING

Victoria, B.C., January 30, 1939.
J. 8. Tavior, Esq.,, M.P.,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Mr. Tavror,—Thank you for your kind letter of the 24th instant and
for copy of Hansard of the 23rd.

We have read with interest and some surprise the statement of Mr. A. W.
Neill relative to the distribution of the sockeye catch as between Puget Sound
and the Fraser river. His question to the Minister reads as follows:—

In view of that fact, is he prepared to take the responsibility of main-
taining our traps, only 4 in number as against their 219, knowing that the
results will be that our catch will drop from eighty per cent as it is at
present to thirty per cent as it used to be when the American traps were
operating.

This question is a striking illustration of the necessity of basing any legis-
lative action on facts as first ascertained by a fact finding body such as the
International Sockeye Commission rather than on an unwarranted assumption
such as “have you stopped beating your wife” or distorted figures like those
quoted above.

As a matter of fact it is safe to say that the Minister does not know that
the result of continuing to issue our five (not four) trap licences will be to
reinstate the pound nets on Puget Sound. Indeed, the precise contrary is true.
The State of Washington may or may not reinstate this mode of fishing. The
purse seiners of course are well organized and are opposing the repeal or amend-
ment of Initiative No. 77 as they wish to retain the monopoly they have at
present of the supply of sockeyes and pinks. However, they frankly admit
that their catches have dwindled since the abolition of the traps due to the fact
that the fish do not school up as well as they did when the traps were in use.
For that reason they are asking permission to build dummy traps in the vicinity
of Point Roberts to assist them in making better hauls.

The Governor is also much perturbed over the loss sustained by the
abolition of the pound nets in the way of loss of employment by fishermen and
cannery workers alike.

The Director of Fisheries finds his department hampered through loss of
revenue and is urging amendment to the Act.

The cannerymen have so far failed to come to any agreement among them-
T_el}\lre; as to the distribution of the licences in case the pound nets are re-estab-
ished.

Sport fishermen are as a rule opposed to all forms of commercial fishing.

It is therefore problematical what action if any the legislature will take,
but one thing is sure and this will be apparent to anyone discussing the matter
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with those most vitally interested, that whatever action they take will be b

- on what will best serve the interests of the State of Washington and not whether

five fish traps at Sooke, B.C. are continued or not.

Now, let us examine briefly this “eighty per cent” statement of Mr. Neill’s
and see how accurate he is when he quotes figures. ;

This is a matter of record and can be easily verified by reference to the
official reports of the Dominion Department of Fisheries for the year 1936-37
(the latest copy available) and the annual bulletins of the State of Washington
Department of Fisheries, Nos. 37 and 38. This will enable us to check up on
his statement that since the traps were abolished on Puget Sound the B.C. pro-
portion of the sockeye cateh has risen from 30 per cent to 80 per cent.

The following statement is taken from the authorities mentioned, the
figures for 1935 and 1936 being taken from the Dominion report and those for
1937 and 1938 from the State of Washington bulletin. Please bear in mind that
the Puget Sound traps were only abolished in 1934.

PUGET SOUND AND FRASER RIVER SOCKEYE PACKS
Years 1935 to 1938 inclusive

Combined Fraser Per- Puget Per-
Year Pack River centage Sound centage
(cases) (cases)

1505 VUSRI S Rl T & 11 57,212 51 54,677 49
1986, 5. e stk i 223,913 164,408 74 59,505 26
198 o e S T 60, T S 100,382 62 60,355 38
1938 D A 30T 166 168,702 55 139,064 45
Total. . i o 804,306 490,704 61 313,601 39

From the above you will note that the percentage of the total Fraser river
sockeye catch taken by the Fraser river fishermen since the passage cf Initiative
No. 77 is actually 61 per cent instead of 80 per cent.

We might say that the above figures are intended to represent the actual
number of Fraser river sockeyes canned on the Fraser river and on Puget Sound.
In recent years fish have been carried greater distances than hitherto which
makes- it necessary for the department to make some adjustment in the pack
reports in order to eliminate fish which were canned on the Fraser river but
which were caught in other districts. The above figures are after such adjust-
ments have been made.

As to Puget Sound having sacrificed 219 pound nets, it should be understood
that this number represents the number of licences issued, not the number of
trap nets or pound nets actually in operation. Under the State of Washington
regulations, it was only necessary to construct a trap net once in every four
years. Consequently, there were many more licences issued than trap nets
operated. In 1934 the last year traps operated there, there were some 215
licences issued and about 75 traps actually operated. For the sake of accuracy
therefore we should use the number 75 instead of 219.

Were the statements inceluded in Mr. Neill’'s question correct, can anything
be more absurd than to suppose that the continuation or discontinuance of the
five traps at Sooke would be any material factor in deciding the question in the
State of Washington of whether they do or do not amend their Initiative No. 77?

Just how much would the catch of sockeye at Sooke affect the distribution
of sockeye cateh as between British Columbia and Puget Sound?

In 1938 for example the total Puget Sound and Fraser river pack of sock-
eyes was 307,766 cases while the pack of the Empire Cannery from sockeyes
caught by the Sooke traps was 3,725 cases or about 1:2 per cent. One must,
indeed, have a most deplorable lack of perspective to imagine that the destruec-
tion of this little industry at Sooke would affect in any degree the decision of
the trap net question on Puget Sound. To gravely inform the Minister that he
knows this to be the case seems to be the height of impertinence.
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We are quite sure that the Minister has all the above information available,
but burdened as he is with so many questions from both the Atlantic and Pacific
coasts he might not take it amiss if the figures were again brought to his notice.

Thanking you again for keeping us so well advised of all matters, we
remain, .
Yours very truly,

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING CO. LTD.,
by Cuas. F. GoobricH.

HOUSE OF COMMONS

CANADA
Otrawa, February 2, 1939.
Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa.

Hoxourep AND DEar Sir,—I am placing before you by the enclosure a
letter which I have this morning received from Mr. Chas. G. Goodrich of the
Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Co. Ltd., Victoria, B.C., who makes the
undermentioned statement in the penultimate paragraph of his letter. It °
provides the excuse which I have for sending the whole letter to you:—

We are quite sure that the Minister has all the above information
available but burdened as he is with so many questions from both the
Atlantic and Pacific coasts he might not take it amiss if the figures were
again brought to his notice.

* Yours very truly,

JNTAYLOB M.E
Nanaimo.

February 3, 1939.

Dear Mr. TavyLor,—I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your
letter of February 2, together with copy of letter directed to you by Mr. Chas.
F. Goodrich of the Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Co. Ltd., Victoria,
British Columbia.

While thanking you for the attention given to the matter in bringing addi-
tional facts before me, I beg to assure you that I will give every consideration
to your representations on behalf of the company.

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minmister of Fisheries.
J. 8. Tayror, Esq.,, M.P.,
House of Commons,
Ottawa.

HOUSE OF COMMONS

CaNaDA .

OrtAawa, February 8, 1939.
Honourable J. E. MicHAUD,

Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ontario.

Dear M. BIICHAUD,—I desire to place on record with your department my
protest against the issuance of licences this year for the operation of stationary
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fish traps at Sooke, B.C. In my opinion this question should again be reviewed
in the light of developments in the State of Washington. ,

The continued operation of traps in Canadian waters will strengthen the
movement to restore traps in American waters. Any such action by American
operators will have disastrous effects on the interests of Canadian operators.

I trust that the views expressed by the organized fishermen in British
Columbia and important business interests on the Pacific coast, in opposition
to the Sooke traps, will this year receive your sympathetic consideration.

Yours sincerely,

GRANT MacNEIL,
Vancouver North.

FeBruarY 9, 1939.

Dear Sir,—I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the
8th instant by which you bring to my attention your opposition to the issuance
of licences for fish traps at Sooke, British Columbia.

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minister of Fishertes.
GranT MacNEwmw, Esq., M.P.,
House of Commons,
Ottawa.

HOUSE OF COMMONS

CANADA
Ortawa, 8th February, 1939.
Hon. J. E. MicHAUD, ,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa.
Ho~ourep AND DEAR SIR,—

Sockeye fishing in B.C.

Please add to my last letter dealing with this matter the enclosed copy of a
letter just received from the Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Co. Ltd.,
giving a more comprehensive graph of the 4 year catches of Fraser river
sockeyes caught in Fraser river, the Sooke trap nets and Puget Sound.

Mr. Goodrich suggests that these figures cannot be challenged by anyone
and they would therefore take the place of the general figures already sub-
mitted.

Yours very truly,

J. S. TAYLOR, M.P., Nanaimo.

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING AND PACKING COMPANY LIMITED

: Vicroria, B.C., Feb. 4, 1939.
J. 8. Tavror, Esq., M.P.,
Ottawa.

Dear Mr. Tavror,—Referring again to our letter of the 30th ulto., it
occurs to us that it might have been more satisfactory and comprehensive to
have included the figures of the Sooke traps packed at the Empire Cannery
at Esquimalt, in the tabulation showing the comparative catches of Fraser
river sockeyes as between Canadian gear and that of Puget Sound.
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We hafre therefore made such a tabulation as appears below and should
you have occasion to use the figures, we suggest that you use those in this
letter, which cannot then be challenged by anyone.

FRA IVER SOCKEYES CAUGHT IN FRASER RIVER, SOOKE
iy o ISSTRAP NETS AND PUGET SOUND

Years 1935 to 1938, inclusive

Combined Fraser Sooke Puget
Year Pack River % Traps % Sound %
(cases)

2 ri L SRR o R ST 5 57,212 48-7 5,610 4.8 54,677 46-5
B80T N e 2R T 164,408 72-2 3,837 1-7 59,505 26-1
OSSR 5, . 1166:880 100,382 60-1 6,152 3-7 60,355 36-2
RRBSH L vttt dreinie's ¥eoue s 11,080 168,702 54-1 3,770 1-2 139,604 44-7

Fotall 1000 . 828074 490,704 59-6 19,369 3 313,601 38-1

Very truly yours,

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING AND PACKING CO.,
Cuas. F. GoODRICH.

February 9, 1939
Dear Mr. TAYLOR,

Re: Sockeye fishing in British Columbia

I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 8th instant to
which you had attached a copy of a letter directed to you by the Sooke Harbour
Fishing and Packing Company, Limited, Victoria, British Columbia.

I appreciate very much the information which you bring before me and will
make use of it.

Yours very truly,
J. E. MICHAUD,
Minzster.
J. 8. Tavior, Esq., M.P.,
House of Commons,
Ottawa.
RESOLUTON ON TRAPS

Whereas: The Dominion Government in 1937 passed legislation prohibiting
fish traps in British Columbia waters (with the exception of seven trap sites
located at Sooke, Vancouver Island) there is no guarantee that at some future
date trap interests may be successful in having this legislation revoked and traps
legalized in any part of B.C. coastal waters and

Whereas: We consider that Canada’s insistence on allowing seven traps at
Sooke after the State of Washington had removed 219, constitutes a convincing
argument for trap interests in that State to have them restored and

Whereas: Several bills are now before the Washington legislature drafted
with the express purpose of getting traps back again in Washington, where
previous to 1935 traps in that state took 70 per cent of Fraser river Sockeye,
therefore

Be it resolved: That we Victoria and District Trades and Labour Council
respectfully petition the Dominion Government to pass the necessary legislation
during the present session, prohibiting the taking of salmon by means of traps
in the waters of British Columbia and

Be it finally resolved: That we forward a copy of this resolution with our
official endorsation to the Honourable J. E. Michaud, M.P., Minister of Fish-
eries, Ottawa.

President, E. F. FOX

Secretary, E. BELTON



KYUQUOT TROLLERS CO-OPERATIVE ASSOCIATION

Bastion BuiLping, 1124 Government Street,
Victoria, B.C.

To the HoNOURABLE
MINISTER OF FISHERIES,
Ottawa, Ont.
Dear Sir,

Following resolutions were passed at the Fishermen’s Co-operative Con-
ference held at Vancouver, B.C., during January 23, 24 and 25, 1939, attended
by delegates from the Prince Rupert Fishermen’s Co-operative Association,
Prince Rupert, North Island Trollers Co-operative Association,  Vancouver,
Fishermen’s Co-operative Association, Inc., Seattle and Kyuquot Trollers Co-
operative Association, Victoria, representing 1,400 individual fishing boat owners;
and we submit these resolutions with the plea that you will give them your
earnest consideration:—

1. Resolved that this Co-operative Conference approves of the action
taken by the United States and Canadian Governments in regard to the
prevention of the Japanese high-sea fishing in waters contiguous to the
United States possessions and Canada and strongly recommend that both
governments shall continue their efforts in order to entirely eliminate the
encroachment on these fisheries which have been fostered and rightly
belong to the people of the United States and Canada.

2. Whereas there are but nine drag-seine licences issued to privi-
leged persons on the coast of British Columbia for personal and com-
mercial uses:

And whereas it is alleged that persons granted drag-seine licences
for personal use, misuse this privilege for commercial purposes;

And whereas it is also a fact that creeks and rivers in which drag-
seiners have been permitted, have suffered a serious depletion;

Therefore be it resolved that this conference do strongly petition the
Department of Fisheries to discontinue the issuance of drag-seine licences
in British Columbia.”

3. Whereas within the past few years the fishing for herring for
reduction purposes along the British Columbia coast has greatly increased
with the construction of many new reduction plants;

And whereas the fall and winter of 1938 have shown a great scarcity
of herring along the British Columbia coast as compared to the previous
season of 1937 and the spring of 1938;

And whereas the presence of herring on this coast is highly essential
for human consumption, bait and food for salmon purposes;

And whereas it has been the experience of other localities on the
Pacific coast that when the herring are seined extensively the salmon
tends to disappear;

And whereas this Co-operative Conference is convinced that if the
herring are allowed to be depleted to an appreciable extent, not only does
the reduction industry suffer but also the salmon industry and the acquir-
ing of bait for the halibut fishing industry;

Therefore be it resolved that this Co-operative Conference do strongly
protest the taking of herring for reduction purposes.

We particularly wish to recommend the resolution for abolition of the fish
traps attached hereto, as a movement is on foot in the State of Washington to
have fish traps reinstated in that state and one of the strongest arguments used
is that we are still permitting traps in British Columbia.

Yours very truly,
Kyuquot Trollers Co-operative Assn.,
per H. E. BEYER,
Secretary.
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KYUQUOT TROLLERS CO-OPERATIVE ASSOCIATION

BastioNn BuiLping, 1124 GOVERNMENT STREET
Vicroria, B.C.

Fishermen’s Co-operative Conference, held at Vancouver, B.C. attended

by representatives from the Prince Rupert Fishermen’s Co-operative Assn., the
North Island Trollers Co-operative Assn., the Kyuquot Trollers Co-operative
Assn., and the Fishermen’s Co-operative Assn., Seattle. :

Following resolution was passed:—

Whereas the Department of Fisheries of the Dominion of Canada
has promised the Fishermen of British Columbia to eliminate all Fish
Traps this coming year:

And Whereas the State of Washington is now considering the reinstate-
ment of such traps in order to obtain its share of the fish now being
caught by the traps in British Columbia Coast waters:

And Whereas the depletion of the salmon run calls for strong
conservation measures in order to preserve these resources:

And Whereas the fishing boats engaged in the trolling, purse seining
and gill-netting industry are in a position to create a livelihood for a
greater number of men than are at present employed by the trap owners
and at the same time provide for better escapement for the salmon to
the spawning grounds:

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that We, the Members of the
North Island Trollers Co-operative Assn., the Kyuquot Trollers Co-
operative Assn., the Prince Rupert Fishermen’s Co-operative Assn., Seattle,
in convention assembled this 23rd day of January, 1939, do strongly
recommend to the Fisheries Department that all Fish Traps shall be
completely removed from the waters of British Columbia.

KYUQUOT TROLLERS CO-OPERATIVE ASSN.,

per (Sgd.) H. E. BEYER,
Secretary.

February 13, 1939.
Dear Sir,—This is to acknowledge receipt of your favour of recent date

bringing to my attention Resolutions passed by the Fishermen’s Cooperative
Association at a Conference held recently with reference to fisheries.

These Resolutions will receive immediate and full consideration, and I beg

to remain

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Mamister of Fisheries.

H. E. Bever, Esq.,

Secretary,

Kyuquot Trollers Cooperative Association,
Bastion Building,

1124 Government Street,

Victoria, British Columbia.

February 27, 1939.
Dear Sir,—I beg to acknowledge receipt of a Resolution passed by the

'Vict»o?i_a & District Trades and Labour Council urging the abolition of fish traps
in British Columbia waters.

Yours truly,
J. E. MICHAUD,
‘Minister of Fisheries.
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E. F. Fox, Esq.,
President,

Victoria & District Trades
& Labour Council,
Victoria, B.C.

SOOKE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION,

Sookg, B.C., March 4, 1939.
Hon. J. E. MicaAup, M.P.,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ontario.

Dear Sir,—The Sooke Community Association, representing Merchants,
Business men, men who are employed by the Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing
Company, Ltd., Farmer’s and Carpenter’s who all benefit directly and indirectly
from the activities of The Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Company, Ltd.,
extend to you their deep appreciation for your earnest desire to be frank in your
endeavour to save this industry from being abolished, which would mean a very
sharp increase in unemployment and relief.

We are very grateful to you for coming to this coast, which afforded you to
procure first hand information which has enabled you to handle this problem on
its merits.

In closing we all once again extend to you our heartfelt thanks for your
fairness in preserving this industry.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(sgd.) A. F. BROWNSEY, Secretary,
Sooke Community Association.

VANCOUVER, NEW WESTMINSTER AND DISTRICT TRADES AND
LABOUR COUNCIL

Room 200, 529-531 Beatty St.
Vancouver, B.C.
February 27, 1939.

The Honourable MINISTER OF MARINE AND FISHERIES,
Parliament Buildings,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Sir,—At the last regular meeting of the above council, the attached
resolution was unanimously endorsed. 5
Trusting that you will extend this your favourable consideration.
Yours very truly,

(sgd.) PERCY R. BENGOUGH,
General Secretary-Treasurer.

February 27, 1939.

Whereas the Dominion Government in 1937 passed legislation prohibiting fish
traps in British Columbia waters (with the exception of seven trap sites located at
Sooke, Vancouver Island), there is no guarantee that at some future date, trap
interests may be successful in having this legislation revoked, and traps legalized
in any part of the B.C. Coastal waters, and

PR.B: MacD
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Whereas we consider that Canada’s insistence on allowing seven traps at
Sooke, after the State of Washington had removed 219, constitutes a convincing
argument for trap interests in that State to have them restored; and

Whereas several bills are now before the Washington legislature drafted
with the express purpose of getting traps back again in Washington, where
previous to 1934, traps in that State took 70 per cent of Fraser River sockeye;

Therefore be it resolved: that this Vancouver, New Westminster and Dis-
trict Trades and Labour Counecil, respectfully petition the Dominion Government
to pass the necessary legislation during the present session, prohibiting the
taking of salmon by means of traps in the waters of British Columbia.

(sgd.) PERCY R. BENGOUGH,
General Secretary-Treasurer,
Vancouver, New Westminster and District, Trades and Labour Council.

GIBSON’S LANDING, C.C.F. CLUB

March 6, 1939.
The Hon. J. E. MIcHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa.

Dear Sir,—The enclosed two resolutions were duly passed at a meeting
of the Gibson’s Landing C.C.F. Club with instructions that copies be sent
to you.

Yours truly,
(Signed) T. G. CLARK,
Sec.
REesorLuTIoN

Whereas we believe the operation of fish traps such as those near the
southern end of Vancouver Island, are not in the best interests of the fishing
industry, and

Whereas this method of fishing displaces a large number of men who would
otherwise be able to earn money in fishing, and

Whereas we believe this method of fishing results in much damage to
immature fish and fish of species not immediately required for canning, and

Whereas at the time the fish traps on the American side were abolished it
was generally understood by the public that the Canadian traps would be dis-
continued, and

Whereas cannery interests in the State of Washington are attempting to
gain permission to have traps reinstated and are using the fact of the continued
operation of the Canadian traps as an argument in their favour, and

Whereas records of catch show the operation of the American traps to be
a definite loss to Canadian fishermen, and

Whereas we believe trap fishing results in depletion of fish at a rate out
of proportion to any gain to the industry and we fear the continued operation
of the traps, especially if the American traps are restored, will result in the
extinction of the Fraser River as a salmon stream,

Therefore be it resolved: We, the Gibson’s Landing C.C.F. Club do hereby
recommend that the use of fish traps in British Columbia waters be abolished
and that copies of this resolution be forwarded to the Federal Department of
Fisheries, Ottawa, and to the federal member of Vancouver North, Mr. C. G.
MecNeil.

Dated this 2nd day of March, 1939
at Gibson’s Landing, B.C.
Signed, THOS. G. CLARK,
Secretary, Gibson’s Landing C.C.F. Club
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RESOLUTION

Whereas we view with alarm the continued and increasing use of herring
in fish reduction plants, and ’

Whereas herring are a valuable food fish for human consumption, especially
greatly used by persons and families in the lower income brackets, and

Whereas herring are a food fish for the larger and more valuable species,
such as salmon, halibut and cod, and

Whereas large areas of coastal waters, now almost totally barren of herring,
were formerly well supplied with these fish, and i

Whereas we believe this depletion is largely caused by the herring being
processed through fish reduction plants, where the returns to the public are
not commensurate with the loss in food fish, and

Whereas we believe the products of fish reduction plants could be obtained
from other raw supplies, such as more complete utilization of offal from salmon
canneries and particularly from more intensive fishing of dog fish,

Therefore be it resolved :We, the Gibsons Landing C.C.F. Club do hereby
recommend that the use of herring in fish reduction plants be not permitted,
that the use of other supplies, such as mentioned above, be fostered and that
the Dominion Government examine the feasibility of subsidizing the catching
of fish of prey, such as dog fish, sharks, etc.; and that copies of this resolution
be forwarded to the Federal Minister of Fisheries, Ottawa, and to the Federal
member for Vancouver North, Mr. C. G. McNeil.

Dated this 2nd day of March, 1939, at Gibsons Landing, B.C.

Signed THOS. G. CLARK,
Secretary, Gibsons Landing Club.
March 9, 1939.

Dear Sir: This is to acknowledge receipt of your favour of the 4th instant,
which is very much appreciated. Indeed it is a great satisfaction to have people
realize what is being done in their own interests.

Kindly convey my thanks to the members of your Association.

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries.
A. F. Brownsey, Esq.,
Secretary,
Sooke Community Associaton,

Sooke, B.C.
March 9, 1939.

Dear Sir: This is to acknowledge receipt of your favour of the 27th ultimo,
together with copy of a Resolution passed by your Association, which you had
directed to the Minister of Marine and Fisheries and which was received by
the Minister of Transport who now administers the Marine end of what was
formerly the Department of Marine and Fisheries.

For your own information I may state that since 1928 the Department of
Fisheries has been administered separately from the Marine section.

Yours very truly,
J. E. MICHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries.
Percy R. BencoucH, Esq.,
General Secretary-Treasurer,
Trades and Labour Council,
Vancouver, B.C.
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* PRINCE RUPERT TRADES & LABOUR COUNCIL
Sub P.O. No. 1, Prixce Rupert, B.C,,

March 10th, 1939.
Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.
Dear S1r: At a recent meeting of the above Trades Council the following
resolution was passed, and the hope expressed that you would see your way

clear to give it your undivided support.
Whereas: The Fishermen on the Pacific Coast have gone on record many

- times in favour of the abolition of fish traps and other destructive gear, and,

Whereas: Regardless of the fact that the Dominion Government in 1937
passed legislation prohibiting traps in B.C. waters (with the exception of
seven traps at Sooke, Vancouver Island.) there is no guarantee that at some
future date, trap interest may be successful in having this legislation revoked
and traps legalized in any part of B.C. waters, and,

Whereas: Several Bills are now before the Washington Legislation drafted
with the express purpose of getting traps back in Washington, where, previous
to 1934 (this was the year when Initiative No. 77 was passed, and they were
taken out) traps in that state took 70 per cent of Fraser River sockeye, and,

Whereas: We consider Canada’s insistance in allowing seven traps at
Sooke, after Washington had removed 219, constitutes a convincing argument
for trap interests in Washington te have them restored, now be it therefore,

Resolved: That we petition the Dominion Government, through the Hon.
Minister of Fisheries, to pass the necessary legislation during the present session
of Parliament, prohibiting the taking of salmon by means of traps in B.C. waters.

Dated at Prince Rupert, B.C., March 10th, 1939.

(Signed) J. J. GILLIS, President.
(Signed) T. H. ELLIOTT, Secretary.

March 13, 1939.

Dear Sir,—I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your favour of the
6th instant and have carefully noted the copies of resolutions which you had
attached to your letter.

It is to be regretted that you are labouring under erroneous conceptions and
the conclusions of your resolutions are, in my opinion, based on false premises.

Yours very truly,
J. E. MICHAUD,
Minzister.
T. G. Cuarg, Esq.,
Secretary,
Gibsons Landing C.C.F. Club,
R ERST
Gibsons Landing, B.C.

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING AND PACKING CO. LTD.

Vicroria, B.C., March 13, 1939.
Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Sik,—Enclosed herewith we hand you clipping from the Vancouver
Sun of March 11th containing a special news dispatch from Olympia dealing
with the matter of trap-nets on Puget Sound.

76186—4
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This dispateh effectively refutes Mr. Neill’s oft repeated statement, in
support of which, however, he has never offered a scintilla of evidence, that
one of the strongest arguments used in the State of Washington for the restora-
tion of their trap-nets was the fact that Canada licensed five such at Sooke.

We have consistently denied that statement and have challenged anyone
to show that the action of the State of Washington depended in the slightest
degree on the continuation of the four or five trap-nets at Sooke. We now
feel that our position has been amply vindicated.

Thanking you again for your loyal support we remain,

Yours very truly,
SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING AND PACKING CO. LTD.

by (Signed) Chas. F. GoobricH.
SUGGESTION TO REVIVE FISH-TRAPS ABANDONED

BILL FOR POINT ROBERTS SALMON CATCH LOSES IN WASHIi‘IGTON LEGISLATURE;
SPORTSMEN WIN OUT

Special to the Vancouver Sun

Olympia, Wash., March 11.—Washington legislature prorogued yesterday
without acting favourably on the Senate’s proposal to restore salmon traps
at Point Roberts near the Canadian boundary. The proposal to revive trap
fishing even in a small degree is therefore dead in this state for another two
years at least. :

Years ago, when Washington State canneries were able to gather in 75
per cent of all the salmon caught that were headed for the Fraser river, the
traps numbered in excess of 70. The recent proposal for restoration of the
trap idea would have provided sites for only eight traps, these all under the
lee of Point Roberts.

Canadian Policy

The question of Canadian policy regarding traps did not enter into the
recent discussion. The fact that five traps are maintained by Canadians at
Sooke, on Vancouver island, was not mentioned in discussion here and was not
a factor.

The former system of trap-fishing in this state was abolished because of the
fight made against it by sport fishermen and individual commereial fishermen.
They won out against the trap-fishing interests; and for the same reason this
week’s defeat of the proposal to re-establish traps in the Point Roberts area
was a victory for the individual fishermen.

Sooke Traps Provide Big Canning Industry

Victoria, March 11.—Two companies operating five traps at Sooke, on
the southwest corner of Vancouver island, are preparing for the season’s opera-
tions. For 30 years now the fish caught in these traps have provided the raw
product for the only salmon cannery in the vicinity of Victoria.

If it were not for the traps there would be no cannery industry here. The
area around Sooke is too rough and exposed to bad weather to justify fishing
by individual fishermen.

The gill-net men, as a matter of practice, give this district a wide berth.
Heavy currents and reefs make it unsuitable for boat-fishing with nets and
little of this has ever been done. The district is open to all fishermen, but none
will fish there.

The Victoria Colonist says that the Minister of Fisheries, Hon. J. E.
Michaud, visited Sooke a year ago intending then to cancel the licences for traps.
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. But when he looked over the situation he changed his mind. He found that if
~ the traps were abandoned there would be practically no other commercial fishing
of importance in waters around southern Vancouver island. Sooke would become
a ghost town if the traps were put out of business.

~ On the question of labour involved the minister found that trap fishermen
were employed nine months of the year. The traps have to be taken down every
autumn and erected again every spring.

Only one Method

. The Victoria Times recently pointed out that abolition of the Sooke traps
would not mean the employment of one additional fisherman.

The traps are not used to cut labour costs. They are used at Sooke because
there is no other method of taking fish in that area. The Sooke industry has
an especially strong case on the labour point. It employs 100 per cent of white
men.

CITY CLERK’S OFFICE
New WesTMmINsTER, B.C., March 15, 1939.

Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa.

Hon. Sir,—Please find enclosed herewith for your information copy of reso-
lution as passed by the Council at a meeting held on Monday evening last the
13th inst.

Your co-operation in this matter will be greatly appreciated both by the
Council and the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union.

Yours respectfully,

City Clerk.

Whereas: The Dominion ‘Government in 1937 passed legislation prohibiting
fish traps in British Columbia waters (with the exception of seven trap sites
located at Sooke, Vancouver island) there is no guarantee that at some future
date, trap interests may be successful in having this legislation revoked and traps
legalized in any part of B.C. coastal water, and

Whereas: We consider that Canada’s insistance on allowing seven traps at
Sooke, after the State of Washington had removed 219, constitutes a convinecing
argument for trap interests in that State to have them restored, and

Whereas: Several bills are before the Washington legislature drafted with the
express purpose of getting traps back again in Washington, where previous to 1935
traps in that State took 70 per cent of the Fraser river sockeye, therefore

Be it resolved: That we the City Council of New Westminster, B.C., respect-
fully petition the Dominion Government to pass the necessary legislation during
the present session, prohibiting the taking of salmon by means of traps in the
waters of British Columbia, and

Be it Finally Resolved: That we forward a copy of this resolution with our
c(»)ﬁ"lcial endorsation to the Honourable J. E. Michaud, Minister of Fisheries,

ttawa.

Certified a true and correct copy of resolution passed by the Council of the
City of New Westminster at a meeting held March 13, 1939.

(Signed) A. G. BRINE,
(Seal) City Clerk.
716-16-1
76186—43
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DEear Mr. GoobricH,—I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your
favour of the 13th instant, together with clipping from the Vancouver Sun of the
11th instant.

Thanking you for the same, I beg to remain

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,

Cuas. F. GoopricH, Esq., Minister of Fisheries.
President, «
Sooke Harbour Fishing & Packing Co., Ltd.,
504-5 Union Building,
Victoria, British Columbia.
716-16-1

March 18, 1939.

DEeAr Sir,—I have the honour to acknowledge receipt of your favour of the
10th instant, together with representations with regard to trap fishing in British
Columbia waters.

The matter will receive immediate attention and I beg to remain.

Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,

- et

March 17, 1939.

[

Minister of Fisheries.

J. J. Giuus, Esq.,

President,

Prince Rupert Trades and Labour Council,
Sub P.O. No. 1,

Prince Rupert, British Columbia.
March 20, 1939.

Drar Sir,—1I have the honour of acknowledge receipt of your favour of the
15th instant, together with copy of resolution passed by the Council with regard

to the licensing of traps at Sooke, Vancouver Island.
Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,

: Minister.
A. G. Bring, Esq,,
City Clerk,
New Westminster,
B.C.
Copy. SesstoNAL Papers No. 235 A

DEPARTMENT OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Monpay, April 3, 1939.
Supplementary return to an order of the House of Commons, dated 8th
March, 1939, showing:—

A copy of all correspondence, letters, telegrams and other documents
exchanged between the Minister or any official of the Department of
Fisheries and any other person or persons regarding the use of fish traps
in British Columbia, since April 29, 1938, to date.

FERNAND RINFRET,
Secretary of State.
Reference No. 127
Mover: Mr. Neill
Dated: April 1, 1939.
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Copy.

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
Otrawa, March 31, 1939.

Sir,—I desire to revert to this Department’s letter of the 25th instant en-
closing return of correspondence, etc., pursuant to the Order of the House of
Commons moved by Mr. Neill on March 8th, Reference Number 127, regarding
the use of fish traps in British Columbia.

It has been found that through inadvertence the return was not complete
and I attach a supplemental return covering correspondence, etc., that was not
included with that previously furnished. :

I am, Sir,

Your obedient servant,
o J. J. COWIE,
Acting Deputy Minister.

Under-Secretary of State, :

Ottawa.
Copy.
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
. Orrawa, March 31, 1939.
SUPPLEMENTARY RETURN

To an Order of the House of Commons moved by Mr. Neill on March 8th,
Reference No. 127, for a copy of all correspondence, letters, telegrams and other
documents exchanged between the Minister or any official of the Department of
Fisheries and any other person or persons regarding the use of fish traps in
British Columbia, since April 29th, 1938, to date.

By Order.

Copy

CANADIAN NATIONAL TELEGRAM
MOA 255 55 NL

Dr W A Founp

Deputy Minister Fisheries Dept Fisheries
Ottawa Ont

Vancouver B.C. Apr. 20 1938

Doctor Thompson anticipates utilizing salmon traps Sooke during week-
ends purpose catching and tagging salmon which would obviate amongst
other things purchase salmon from trap owner stop Also contemplates salmon
seining Fraser river by commission boat stop Writer assumes no objection
notwithstanding present regulations but would it not be desirable have regula-
tions altered permit these operations

J A MOTHERWELL

Copy
784-3-7
230 P.M. CN NL
OrTrawa April 21 1938
- J A MOTHERWELL
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries,
Vancouver, B.C.

Permit under section four Fisheries Act being obtained to authorize Thomp-
son utilize traps and do necessary seining

WM A FOUND
Charge Fisheries Account
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Copy :
April 25, 1938.

Dear Doctor THompsoN,—To authorize you to have a salmon trap, or traps,
in the Sooke area operated during any weekly close time, or close times, that
may be found necessary to capture sockeye salmon for the Commission’s tagging
purposes, I am attaching a Permit from the Minister in the premises. This
you will note, also covers such seining as may be found necessary for the above
purp%se in the Fraser and adjacent waters.

ne.

In operating any trap, or traps, during a weekly close time, or close times,
care will need to be taken to guard against embarrassment either to the oper-
ating company, or companies, or to this Department. I am not entirely clear
as to what extent operations are proposed. During the weekly close time the
traps must ordinarily be closed so that if fishing them were arranged by the
Commission and this resulted in a quantity of sockeye or other salmon being
taken that would remain in the trap, or traps, when the weekly close time ended,
it would likely give rise to criticism. You will please consult with the Chief
Supervisor of Fisheries before completing arrangements in the matter.

Yours truly,

WM. A. FOUND,
Deputy Minister.
Dr. W. F. THOMPSON,
Director of Investigations,
International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission,
New Westminster, B.C.

Copy
April 25, 1938.

Sir,—Adverting to your telegram of the 20th instant, I attach hereto a
copy of a Permit that has been issued to Doctor W. F. Thompson to authorize
needed trap and seine fishing for sockeye salmon tagging purposes during close
periods. I also attach a copy of a letter to him forwarding this Permit. As
this letter is self-explanatory, it is unnecessary to comment on it herein. You
will please see that the arrangements made will not give rise to criticism that
the companies owning the trap are benefiting by a practical infringement so
far as they are concerned on the weekly close time.

Enc. I am, Sir,

Your obedient servant,

WM. A. FOUND,
Deputy Minister.
Major J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries,
Winch Building,
Vancouver, B.C.
Copy

INTERNATIONAL PACIFIC SALMON FISHERIES COMMISSION

New WeSTMINSTER, B.C.,

May 7, 1938.
Ww. A. Founp,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Mr. Founp,—I wish to thank you for your letter enclosing a permit
for the capture of salmon for scientific purposes.
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I think this covers the situation adequately. I will have photostat copies
" made for the several field parties to carry.
Thank you for your attention to the matter.

Yours truly,

(Sgd.) W. F. THOMPSON,
Director of Investigations.
Copy

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING AND PACKING CO., LTD.

504-5 Union Building,
Victoria, B.C,,
May 9, 1938.
Dr. W. A. Founp, 1
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa.

Dear Doctor,—We have read with much interest the remarks of Mr. A. W.
Neill on the floor of the House as reported in Hansard of April 26 and the able
reply of the Minister who, we think, covered the points raised with much clearness.

Mr. Neill’s- arguments are always much more ingenious than ingenuous.
While it is now, we assume, more or less a closed incident, we feel that it may
be as well to place on file with your Department a denial of certain mis-
statements just as a matter of record.

1937 Carcu

Mr. Neill states “They caught three quarters of a million fish.”

The following is our total salmon catch:—
SEedr BpERs 0 e S R R e e T4 OTR
AL e Ty g AR PR Gt S S R A NG 4434
SRR e e s o e B L TR 449
MoaREMeREENEIE S I il e TR L O S Dt 81 90 606
AR S S ek L S OB TR Ve Bt 0 ) 1104 204
et e LT T A PR Ct SR oM e T G AR U S 1,642
AElOngeR 1l ats I O L S e R L G BB
311,858

Of the above, more than one-half are pinks which only run in alternate
years; a very different number than 750,000 as quoted by Mr. Neill. Mr. Neill
pleads guilty to exaggeration and no one will dispute that plea.

WHALES TO SHRIMP

As your Department is aware, this Company has been requested by both
Dominion and Provincial biologists to co-operate with them by saving all
unusual specimens of fish taken by our nets and forward the specimens to the
local museum. Our mode of fishing is no different from other modes in this
respect ; occasionally we do get an unusual specimen, and in such cases we save
it for the museum instead of returning it to the water. This was the case with
the whale, a Balaenoptera Davidsoni, the smallest and rarest species of finback
whales. The Assistant Biologist, Dr. Cowan, advises us that through our
co-operation the Provincial museum now has the only complete specimen of
that species in the world.

As for the wolf fish, rat fish, sharks and sea lions, the Department will
agree that these pestiferous and non-edible fish are taken by all forms of gear
and it is only to be regretted that they are not taken in larger numbers. In
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fact, the Department is engaged in the meritorious work of destroying the
sea lions because they are known to destroy and mutilate large numbers of
salmon.

A SPONTANEOUS PETITION

Petitions are never spontaneous. They are always sponsored by some-
body or some organization. In this case, we are reliably informed that Mr.
Neill assisted in drawing up the petition and certainly the wording of it would
indicate this to be true. It is also significant that he admits that he paid for
the printing because, to quote him, “ I thought it would look better if we had it
printed.”

INcrEASE IN LiceEnceE FErs

Mr. Neill appears to derive much satisfaction through having been instru-
mental in raising the licence fees of each trap from $50 to $500.

You will recall that this increase was made through the recommendations
of the Fishery Committee and that we had no opportunity to offer a protest.
The writer had appeared before the Committee at his own expense in good faith
and had taken with him all data which in his opinion would interest them.
After listening to all that Mr. Neill had to offer and to the witnesses which
Mr. Neill had requested brought to Ottawa at Government expense I think
you will agree that the large majority of the Committee were in accord with
the Department’s view that the case against the traps had fallen down and
that the Department should be left with a free hand.

Unfortunately, however, a sub-committee was appointed to draft the
report and from the composition of this sub-committee only a compromise
report could be expected. The sop of a 950 per cent raise in the licence fee
was given to Mr. Neill so that he could claim to his constituents that he had
won a partial victory.

Under the circumstances we had to submit with the best grace we could,
although we felt then and we feel now that it was most unfair. We know that
Governments require money and can only raise it through taxation. If it had
been found necessary, to meet the expenses of the fishery work, to increase
generally the licence fees on all forms of fishing gear we would have submitted
even more gracefully. We believe, however, that the Department would never,
unless forced to do so by a compromise committee recommendation inspired by
Mr. Neill, have levied a tax through vindictiveness or with a deliberate intent
to eripple or destroy an industry. We do feel that our licence fees are unduly
high and out of proportion to that collected from other forms of fishing gear.
If our silence is to be interpreted by Mr. Neill that we concur in the reasonable-
ness of the fee, then as a matter of record we must make our position clear.

Yours very truly,

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING CO., LTD.,
By (Sgd.) Cmas. F. GoobricH.

Copy
May 19, 1938.

Dear Mr. GoobricH,—I wish to acknowledge your letter of the 9th
instant, with regard to the remarks made on the trap situation by Mr. Neill,
M.P., when he recently discussed it in the House of Commons.

I have not the Hansard at the moment before me and I am not sure as to
how selective he was in dealing with the number of fish taken by the traps.
My impression is that he was not more specific than to use the word “fish” and
not “salmon”. My recollection also is that there was a considerable quantity
of herring taken so that with the use of the word “fish” it is possible that the
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number given would not be excessive, though from the standpoint of the traps
themselves, salmon was really the only fishery that was concerned.

So far as the raising of the licence fee goes, it should not be forgotten
that the Department a good many years ago arranged for even a much larger
fee than the present on trap-nets, as well as on purse-seines and to some extent
on drift-nets. The reduction was not made at the instance of the Department
but following a recommendation to that end by a Special Commission that was
appointed in 1922. While the fee may be out of line with that for purse-seines,
it really is not with the fee on traps in Alaska.

The Department trusts that the approaching season’s operations will be
successful from all standpoints. '

Yours truly,

Wm. A. FOUND,
. Deputy Mainister.
Chas. F. GoopricH, Esq.,
President,
Sooke Harbour Fishing & Packing Co., Ltd.,
504-5 Union Building,
Victoria, B.C.

Copy

ExtracT from report of Inspector Lloyd,
for week ending May 21, 1938.

“Two salmon traps operated at Sooke last week and I attended the lifting.”

Copy
May 26, 1938.

Dear Mr. REm,—Pursuant to telephone request therefor, I attach a state-
ment of the catch at the salmon traps in the Sooke area during 1937.

The following statement gives the pack of canned salmon derived from
fish caught in District No. 1 (Fraser River area) in 1937:—

Approximate

Cases  Number of Fish
Bockeye. b sl s LG 66,583 898,870
SBrings S S S HBER S & S 5,444 24498
Steclheadh o IR D s a4 15 150
Bluebaaks. 5t o bl Vil g L0 1,354 27,180
C_ohoe.. TR e R R o 11,242 112,420
Pirileal s o e v ST 87,897 1,406,352
B e [- el P e R N 20,934 167,472

The pack is shown in cases and the approximate number of fish involved.
It will be understood that the number of fish shown in this statement does not
represent the total catch in the Fraser River area. Substantial quantities of
certain of the varieties were marketed in other forms such as fresh, frozen,
drysalted, etc., the complete figurs for which are not yet available.

Yours vefy truly,

Wm. A. FOUND,

Deputy Minister.
T. Remw, Esq., M.P., g

House of Commons,
Ottawa.
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DEPARTMENT OF FISHERTES
VANCOUVER, B.C,,
May 23, 1938,

Sir,—In connection with the operation of salmon traps in the Sooke area,
I would advise that in the first lift made at Otter Point on the 16th instant,
the following catch was made:—

43 Red spring salmon
5 White spring salmon
21 Steelheads .
9 Sockeye
1 Chum salmon
8 Cohoe salmon.
415 pounds herring

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd.) J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries.

Dr. W. A. Found,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Department of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.
June 2, 1938.

Sir,—1I desire to acknowledge with thanks your letter of the 23rd instant
affording particulars of the catch secured in the first lift of the current season
at the salmon trap-net at Otter Point on the 16th instant.

To complete the record will you kindly advise the date from which the trap -
was in actual fishing operation this season.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

Wm. A. FOUND,

: Deputy Minister.
Major J. A. MOTHERWELL,

Chief Supervisor of Fisheries,
Vancouver, B.C.

June 3, 1938.

; SIR,—During the time that the Viectoria area is without the services of a
resident Fisheries Inspector, will you kindly arrange that either the Acting
Inspector or the local guardian includes in his weekly reports particulars of the
weekly cateh of fish at the Sooke traps and any other relevant data that would
be of interest to the department in connection with the fisheries of that area.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

Wm. A. FOUND,

Deputy Minister.
J. F. Tarmr, Esq.,

Supervisor of Fisheries,
Nanaimo, B.C.

‘W.‘VV.E!{'-H:“E;;_L""‘_‘.‘TV' R T T T R e
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DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

Nanaimo, B.C,,
June 14, 1938.
Dr. W. A. Found,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Department, of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.

Sir,—I would advise that in compliance with the request contained in your
letter of the 3rd instant, arrangements have been made to have one of the local
officers include in his weekly report particulars of the weekly catech of fish at the
Sooke Traps, together with any other relevant data that would be of interest to
the Department.

Particulars of fish taken in the lifting of three traps, on May 29, were
added to the report of Guardian D. S. McMeekin for the week ending June 4.
There were two previous lifts since commencement of trap operations, for
which resultant catches are given hereunder:—

Otter Point trap commenced fishing May 10 and first lift on May 16
produced: —

Sockeyed: bl th ik ien 9
SPTANgRT L v 48
@ahiged il R e e 8
(86 et R R, SR i
Steelherd & w0 SR HEEL 21
15 120 i Vrpd AN TR e 5 T 415 lbs.

The second trap, Beachy Head, commenced fishing on May 19, and the two

traps, lifted on May 23, produced:—

Sockeye.. .. .. 46
SpringsEsL R 84
(Cohoe, oy e 20
Chume s n st 4
Steelheads. . . 78
Sturgeoni & . oo ksl B s i 2
Ling (lodizi St s Ees 8
Grayfish.. ot 2y 10
Skate. ks 4
Herring o e it 3y e e e S S e S H OB I
Bags: v e e SRR R L I O 30

As canning operations have not yet commenced at Esquimalt, all of the
salmon taken to date, as well as other edible fish, have been disposed of to
wholesalers for the fresh markets. Grayfish, ratfish and odd sealions, which
are shown in subsequent reports, have been destroyed and dumped overboard.

Traps now in operation are Otter Point, Beachy Head and Gordon’s.
Rough weather has held back completion of Coal Creek trap, but it is expected
that this will be in operation in about a week’s time, after which the Sooke
trap will be completed as quickly as possible.

Yours faithfully,
(Sgd.) J. F. Tarr,
Supervisor of Fisheries.

ExTtrAcT from report of Inspector Lloyd, for week ending July 2, 1938.

“I attended the lifting of the Sooke traps on the weeks catch was considered
the best for the season, four traps operated.”
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Extract from report of Inspector A. F. Lloyd, Cowichan, No. 3, for week end-
ing Saturday, July 16, 1938.
Visited the Sooke traps on the 11th four traps were fishing and the
catches were considered light, the catches were mostly spring salmon and
some sockeye.

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING CO., LTD.
Vicroria, B.C., July 19, 1938.

Dr. W. A. Founb,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.

Dear Docror,—In case your office has any available, will you kindly mail
us copy of the 1937 Annual Report of the Department?

We note that on June 30th, Mr. T. Reid, M.P., made the statement that
the catch of Fraser River salmon averaged 745 fish per man.

Have you any figures that would bear out that statement?

Mr. Reid undertook to make a comparison of the number of salmon taken
(all species) at Sooke per man with the number taken per man by other modes
in the Fraser River area.

We cannot conceive that this ﬁgure represents the number correctly as it
would apparently require very many more fishermen on the Fraser to take
the number known to have been taken, all species, than we know are employed.
Also, the anual earnings per man would apparently be less than $300,

Thanking you for any light you can throw on the subject, we remain,

Very truly yours,
(Sgd.)
SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING CO., LTD.,

Chas. F. GoODRICH.
July 28, 1938.

Dear Mgr. GoobricH;—In Mr. Found’s absence I desire to say in response
to your request of the 19th instant that the 1937 report of the Department has
not up to the moment been published. I am sending herewith a copy of the
1936 report, and I believe it will be possible to furnish 1937 information for any
of the different statistical tables pertaining to the British Columbia salmon
fisheries if you desire it immediately and will indicate the particular tables in
which you are interested.

With reference to the statement of Mr. T. Reid, M.P., in the House of
Commons as reported in Hansard of June 30th that the average catch, presum-
ably of salmon per man, in the Fraser area in 1937 was 745 fish, it is not
immediately apparent to the Department on what basis Mr. Reid arrlved at
this figure.

Yours very truly,
Enel.

J. J. Cowig,
Acting Deputy Minister.

Charles F. GooporicH, Esq., President,
Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Co., Ltd.,
504 Union Building,
Victoria, B.C.
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- Extract FROM REPORT OF INsPECTOR Scotr For Week Expine Avcust 27, 1938.

“Five salmon traps at Sooke had very good catch of sockeye salmon during
week, comparing favourably with previous two cycle runs, and present indica-
tions point to good catch during next week. Sockeye pack follows:

- Cannery ‘Week ending  Week’sPack Total Pack Sockeye
; (cases) (cases)
Hmpive.. . LG LS T ARg 197488 1,920 2,939 A
Empire. . L oA A e 193730 376 1,085 2Cycle comparisons
Empire.. <. oo oo .. Ang. 256/34 2,541 5,395 Cycle comparisons

Note. Over ten thousand sockeye salmon left in traps on Friday as can-
nery unable to handle them this week. Cohoe pack for week 235 cases, total
pack 369 cs., lower than previous cycle runs, except 1935 when week pack
ending August 25th was 97 cases and total pack 286 cases. Salmon trolling
and trap fishing for spring salmon very good at present. No salmon gill-
nets or purse seines operated during week.”

EXTRACT FROM REPORT OF INSPECTOR SCOTT FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 3, 1938.

“Five salmon traps at Socke experienced a sudden falling off in the catch
of sockeye with poor indications for better catch next week as few sockeye are
showing in waters adjacent at present. The catch of cohoe salmon was higher
than both cycle runs of 1934 and 1935, both in weekly and total catch to date.
Indications good for cohoe catches this coming week.

Total Total

Comparisons Sockeye Pack Week ending Cohoe Pack
(cases) (cases) (cases) (cases)

Week ending Sept. 3/38 668 3,606 Sept. 3/38 222 591

Week ending Sept. 1/34 490 5,885 Sept. 1/35 173 364
‘Week ending Sept 3/30 1,988 3,833 Sept. 1/34 157 422”

EXTRACT FROM REPORT OF INSPECTOR SCOTT FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 10, 1938.

“ Five salmon traps at Sooke had poor catch of sockeye, with present showing
in waters adjacent, believe this run over. Cohoe salmon ecatch continues to
show improvement over 1934 cycle runs as below.

Total Total

Comparisons Sockeye Pack Week ending Cohoe Pack
(cases) (cases) (cases) (cases)

Week ending Sept. 10/38 45 3,652 Sept. 10/38 316 907

Week ending Sept. 8/34 22 5,907 Sept. 7/35 164 528
"Week ending Sept. 10/30 1,207 5,040 Sept. 8/34 252 6747

EXTRACT FROM REPORT OF INSPECTOR SCOTT FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 17, 1938.

“Five salmon traps at Sooke had fair catech of cohoes. The following cohoe
pack for this week include over 2,000 cohoes purchased from purse seiners
and trollers at Port Renfrew.

Comparisons Cohoe Total Pack
(cases) (cases)
Week ending Sapt: il T/8855 ¢ vbivadi oo sl sl oelan tsio st o b 08 2,080
Week: ending Bept. il47/85: 2 1a'a (o &0 5o ey Tt ol iad Ly s 381 1,025
Week ending ‘Sept. Q6784 Lniip.di i g Sy s SR g sl o 314 988*

* Including some Port Renfrew fish.

Sockeye run appears definitely over now, as usual at this period. Chum
salmon catch at traps small as usual, 46 cs. total 57 cs.”

EXTRACT FROM REPORT OF INSPECTOR SCOTT FOR WEEK ENDING SEPTEMBER 24, 1938.
“Five salmon traps at Sooke had fair catch of cohoes. One trap at Becher
Head ceased operations this week, leaving four traps operating.”

ExTracT from report of Inspector Scott for the week ending October 1, 1938.

“Four salmon traps at Sooke had good catch of cohoes. These fish are
exceptionally large for this period, and condition very good, possibly four
year fish.” .
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~ Extracr from report of Inspector Scott for the week ending October 8, 1938.
“ Four salmon traps at Sooke had poor catch of cohoes, due either to dry
weather conditions or to run being practically over. 903 cohoes taken. All
sold fresh.
“The Otter Point trap was dismantled on Friday, leaving only three traps
to operate during coming week.” ;

ExtracT from report of Inspector Scott for the week ending October 15, 1938.

“Three salmon traps at Sooke had beter catch of cohoe salmon than last
week, taking about 1,600 cohoes and 100 chums. Weather at beginning of
week wet and stormy probably caused faster movement of salmon toward
spawning grounds although salmon still in excellent condition for market. The
salmon trap at Coal Creek was dismantled on 15th leaving only two traps to -
operate next week, both of which have holes in web in diamonds which if not
repaired will allow fish to escape from traps. It is probable that trap fishing
will cease next week, this will correspond with last year’s final trap fishing
during week ending Oct. 23/37.”

ExtracT from report of Inspector Scott for the week ending October 22, 1938.

“Two salmon traps operating at Sooke had light catch of cohoe salmon,
341 fish, cohoe run evidently about over. Ome trap expected to be dismantled
this week end, leaving one trap to operate next week.”

Extract from report of Inspector J. C. Scott for the week ending October 29, 1938.
“One salmon trap at Sooke made final lift on October 24th, this trap was
dismantled 25th, completing fishing operations this year.”

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
40-3-9-1 Vancouver, B.C., November 25, 1938.

Sir,—For the information of the Department I attach hereto statement
showing in detail the catch of the traps at Sooke during the season 1938.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd) J. A. MOTHERWELL
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries
Dr. W. A. Founp,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Department of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.
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Miscellaneous Catch—Trout 1, Flounders 62, Shad 3, Hair Seals 1, Wolf-fish 1, Octopus 1.
* Taken from traps to replace fish tagged by Biological Board.
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CATCH AT SOOKE;TRAPS, 1038
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Grand Total.... 1 1,293 6 56 10 10 1 298

Miscellaneous Catch—Trout 1, Flounders 62, Shad 3, Hair Seals 1, Woli-fish 1, Octopus 1.
* Taken from traps to replace fish tagged by Biological Board.

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
) Vancouver, B.C., November 29, 1938.

40-39-1

Sir,—I beg to refer to my letter of the 25th instant, enclosing a statement
showing the catch of fish by the traps at Sooke during the current season. On
i re-checking this statement it is found that certain typographical errors have
occurred and I would appreciate your making the necessary corrections as
follow on the statement forwarded to you:—

(1) Sockeye—The statement forwarded showed the number taken was
41,732. Please correct this to read 41,372.

76186—5
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(2) Bass—Number shown on form 1,293 should be 1,305.
(8) Octopus—Shown on the statement, 1. Should -be. 3

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd.) J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries.
Dr. W. A. Founp,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Department of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

Vancouver, B.C., December 23, 1938.
10-5-1

Salmon Traps

Sir,—At a meeting of the B. C. Fish and Game Protective Association,
Lower Mainland Zone, held at Mission City on the 9th instant, the following
resolution was passed regarding the above subject:—

That whereas in the State of Washington they have seen fit to remove
all salmon traps from their waters, we hereby request the Dominion
Government to refuse any future licenses for salmon traps in British
Columbia waters. Carried.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd.) J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries.
Dr. W. A. Founp,
Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Department of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
Vancouver, B.C., January 5, 1939.
11-3-8-1 '

Sir,—Enclosed herewith please find the usual application for renewal of the
Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Company, Ltd., salmon trap licenses, on
Foreshore Leases Nos. 80 and 160, for the season 1939.

The usual Declaration is on file at this office and the fees will be paid as
soon as the licenses are made available.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd.) J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries.
J. J. Cowig, Esq.,
Acting Deputy Minister,
Department of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.
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CANADA
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

ApPLICATION FOR A FisHERY LiceENcE IN Brimisg CoLUMBIA
SeasoN or 1939

Name Sooke Harbour Fishing & Packing Co., Ltd.

Address 504-5 Union Building, Victoria, B.C.

Country of birth

Kind of licence desired Two Trap-net licences

Species of fish to be taken Salmon

Area for which licence required Sooke foreshore lease No. 80
Sooke foreshore lease No. 160

Kind of boat to be used in operations (gas, sail, ete.)

Value of boat .. Value of net or lines

. If you held similar licence preceding year, give number .......... 1-2

The undersigned, being a Canadian Company, resident in the Province of
British Columbia, hereby applies for the licence mentioned above.
Dated at Victoria, this day of YOB. A R President.

Signature,

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING
& PKG. CO., LTD.

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
Vancouver, B.C., January 14, 1939.

CD@'Q OO GO N =

11-3-T1

Sir,—Enclosed please find application from Messrs. J. H. Todd & Sons,
Ltd., Victoria, B.C., for three trap net licences to be operated on Foreshore
leases Nos. 25, 3 and 54, in the Sooke area.

The usual declaration in connection with this licence is on file in this office.

I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

(Sgd.) J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries.
J. J. Cowir, Esq.,
Acting Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
Department of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Ont.
CANADA

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

APPLICATION FOR A Fi1sHERY LiIcENCE IN BriTisH COLUMBIA
SEASON oF 1939

1. Name, J. H. Todd & Sons, Litd.

2. Address, P.O. Drawer 578, Victoria, B.C.

3. Country of birth.

4. Kind of licence desired, Three Trap-net licences.

5. Species of fish to be taken, Salmon.

6. Area for which licence required Foreshore No: 25—Muir Creek.
3—Gordon’s.
54—FEast Sooke.

7. Kind of boat to be used in operations (gas, sail, etc.).
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8. Value of boat, Value of net or lines.
9. If you held similar licence preceding year, give number.

The undersigned, being a British subject, resident in the Province of British
Columbia, hereby applies for the licence mentioned above.
Dated at Victoria, Jan. 9, 1939, this day of 193.

Signature

J. H. TODD & SONS, LTD.

March 9, 1939.
Air Mail.

Sir,~—=It has been decided that salmon trap-net fishing will be permitted
for 1939 in the Sooke area, i.e., that portion of the south-west coast of Vancouver
Island between Sombrio Point and Beechy Head.

You may arrange for the issue of licences accordingly.
I am, Sir,
Your obedient servant,

J. J. COWIE,
Acting Deputy Minister.
Major J. A. MOTHERWELL,
Chief Supervisor of Fisheries,
Vancouver, British Columbia.

APPENDIX 4
REPORT TO THE HOUSE
THIRD AND FINAL REPORT

Monpay, April 5, 1937.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries begs leave to present the
following as its

THIRD AND FINaL REPORT

Your Committee has had under consideration an Order of Reference dated
February 8, 1937, viz:—

That the question of the advisability of the Government issuing trap
fishing licences in British Columbia waters be referred to the Standing Com-
mittee on Marine and Fisheries for study and report.

The Committee has held fourteen sittings and has heard six witnesses,
including representatives of the Department of Fisheries, of the trap owners,
and of the fishermen. :

In considering this question the Committee has had in view the great
importance of the salmon fishing industry in British Columbia waters, and the
necessity for the conservation of the fish supply, the preservation of the quality
of the pack and the furnishing of the greatest measure of employment.

Further, being satisfied of the great need for conservation of the fish and the
avoiding of all wanton and useless destruction of this great food resource, your
Committee recommends that the Department of Fisheries continue to work in
co-operation with the authorities in the United States with such object
in view.
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We also submit the following recommendations:— .

1. That no more trap licences be granted in British Columbia waters except
in the so-called Sooke area, and concerning which we are unable to come to a
decision as to whether they should be continued or not, without the opportunity
of securing further information.

2. That, if the said traps are allowed in the so-called Sooke area, the licence
fee for each trap be $500 per annum for each trap licence, commencing with the
year 1937.

3. That an opening of suitable size be made in the lead of such traps in
order that the fish may have a better opportunity of passing on towards the
spawning grounds when the trap is closed.

4. That the Department should be careful to see that the regulations pro-
viding for the closing of traps in use, for forty-eight hours per week, be rigidly
enforced, and that the traps be subject to the same regulations as regards open-
ing and closing seasons as prescribed for all varieties of fishing under the
Fisheries Act and regulations. :

5. That all inspectors or guardians employed by the Department of
Fisheries be independent of all fishing companies or fishing plant owners.

6. That for the next year or two the check made in connection with the
catch, as well as the escapement of sockeye and other varieties of salmon in the
Sooke area be made with great care and detail so that the records expressed
in both cases and numbers may be as accurate as possible.

A copy of the evidence taken is submitted herewith.

All of which is respectfully submitted,.

A. E. MacLrav,
Chairman.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Monpay, April 17, 1939.
The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 a.m.

Members present: Mrs. Black and Messrs. Brasset, Cote, Farquhar, Hanson,
Lapointe (Matapedia-Matane), Mayhew, MacLean (Cape Breton North-Vic-
toria), MacNeil, McAvity, McCulloch, McDonald (Souris), Michaud, Neill,
Reid, Robichaud, Stirling, Taylor (Nanaimo) and Veniot.

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Depart-
ment of Fisheries, and Mr. Sylvestre, M.P.

'Witness: Mr. J. A. Rodd, Director of Fish Culture, Department of Fisheries.

In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. MacLean (Prince), on motion of Mr.
McAvity :(—
Resolved,—That Mr. Reid act as Chairman.

Mr. Reid took the Chair.

At the request of Mr. Taylor (Nanaimo), the following change was authorized
in the minutes of evidence of Monday, April 3.

Page 13, Line 19. Delete “around Mission” and substitute “Puget Sound.”

The Acting Chairman read to the committee a telegram sent by the Chair-
man in answer to the Pacific Coast Fishermens’ Union.

Mr. Mayhew protested against the wording of the telegram with respect
to the representations mentioned therein.

Discussion followed.

The Committee resumed its consideration of Bill No. 15 and of Mr. Neill’s
amendment thereto.

On motion of Mr. Mayhew:—

Resolved,—That the Committee complete its study of the Saguenay River
situation.

Mr. Rodd was called and examined.

By leave of the Committee, Mr. Sylvestre was allowed to question the
witness.

Mr. Rodd placed before the Committee a memorandum regarding decisions
gom 1882 to 1922 with respect to administration of fisheries in the Province of
uebec.

Discussion followed.
The witness retired.
Ordered,—That Mr. Rodd’s memorandum be printed in to-day’s evidence as

an appendix. (Printed in to-day’s evidence as appendiz 1.)
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On motlon of Mr Msyhew.—- i

Resolved,—That the discussion regardmg Mr. Rodd / mmnorandum be
- postponed until such time as the members have had an opportunity of reading it.

Mr. Hanson filed with the Committee a letter and two resolutions with
reference to fish traps, received from, -

(a) Charlotte City Fishermen.
(b) Prince Rupert Chamber of Commerce.
(c) Prince Rupert Trades and Labour Council.

Ordered,—That the above submissions be printed in to- days evidence as 7
an appendix. (Printed in to-day’s evidence as appendiz 2.)

The Committee ad]ourned at 12. 30 p.m. to meet again at the call of the
Chair. L

ANTONIO PLOUFFE, ‘ 8
Clerk of the Committee.



MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons, Room 429,
Orrawa, April 17, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 a.m. The
Acting Chairman, Mr. Thos. Reid, presided.

~ The CLerg: Gentlemen, I am sorry to have to inform you that the chair-
man, Mr. MacLean, is unavoidably absent. Would you be good enough to elect
an acting chairman?

Mr. McAvity: I nominate Mr. Thomas Reid.

Mr. Haxsox: I second the motion.

The Crerx: It has been moved by Mr. McAvity and seconded by Mr.
Hanson that Mr. Thomas Reid be elected acting chairman. Is that your
pleasure, gentlemen?

Some Hon. MEmBERS: Yes.

The CrLerk: Then I would ask Mr. Reid to take the chair.

The Actring CHAIRMAN: 1 wonder if we have a quorum this morning?

The CLerk: Yes.

The Acting CuAlrRMAN: There is one matter I should like to bring up, and
that is the matter of notices of meeting. We should probably have noted in the
votes and proceedings that the meeting of the fisheries committee was this
morning, but T only received my notice about an hour ago for the meeting. I
do not krow who is responsible for sending the notices out, but I think that
someone should have seen to it that the notices for the meeting were sent out
on Friday at the very least. I must confess that if I had not received my
notice I should have lost sight of the meeting this morning. I just mention
that by way of suggestion.

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Chairman, there is one matter that I should like to draw
to the attention of the committee. On page 13 of the minutes of proceedings
and evidence, No. 1, of the standing committee, I am reported as having
said:—

It is quite indispensable in so far as the Fraser river is concerned,
because there is also an international question involved. The interests
down around Mission would be very much concerned if fish could not
go up river and spawn.

As a matter of fact, I do not know Mission in the matter. What T said was:—

The interests down Puget Sound way would be very much concerned
if fish could not go up the river and spawn.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: Do you agree that that correction be made gentle-
men?
Some Hon. MEMBERs: Yes.

The Acring CHAIRMAN: I understand that a wire has been received from
Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union. You will remember that at one of our meet-
ings Mr. MacLean was authorized to send a wire in answer to the one received
from them. The wire received from the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union read:—

Request permission practical fishermen this association appear before
your committee re traps stop suggest government assume cost transporta-
tion and sustenance. '




STANDING COMMITTEE

66

The chairman sent a wire on behalf of the committee, in answer to the one ‘
recelved, as follows:—

No decision arrived at re hearing witnesses stop committee wish
know if all unions interested could combine in having not more than two
representatives appear before committee providing committee decide hear
evidence.stop meantime your union can file brief if desired.

That was the wire that was sent out by Mr, MacLean.
Mr. HaxsoN: Isthere any answer to that, Mr. Chairman?

The Acting CalRMAN: No, I do not see any answer. That went out on
April 3, and I do not see any answer. But I thought it just as well that the com-
mittee be kept posted and advised as to what had been done on behalf of the
committee by the chairman.

Mr. Mayaew: I should like to protest against the wording of that
telegram where it speaks of “two.” They can easily send two representatives
here, and probably you would have a representative of the gill net and the seine
net fishermen, but you would not have a representative of the trap fishermen;
or, on the other hand, they might send one who would represent the trap fisher-
men and one who would represent the gill net fishermen, while the seine net men
would be out of it. It should be either one or three representatives who should
be here. If one can come down and represent all three, that would be agreeable
to me. But to have two to come down, representing two of the three and
leaving the third one out, would not be a fair representation.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: Are there any other views to be expressed than
those expressed by Mr. Mayhew? I do not know if Mr. Mayhew was here when
the committee instructed the chairman to dictate the telegram. I think at that
time we were simply discussing, if I remember correctly, the wire received by
the chairman on behalf of the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union,

Mr. MayaeEw: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I was here; and I objected to the
“two” coming down. I think Mr. Neill brought up the matter of having two
come down, and I objected to two at that time.

Mr. Hanson: Since we have not heard anything from them, they may not
be interested at all. They have not sent a brief, have they?

The Acting CHAIRMAN: No, there is no brief here. I think, perhaps, for
the moment, my own viewpoint would be that we should leave this in abeyance
until we come to the point of deciding about witnesses; then we can discuss one,
two or three, if any.

Mr. Tayror: In any case, if witnesses come, I suggest that both sides be
adequately represented. There is no point in having representation from one
side only. We must have witnesses from both sides.

Mr. Hanson: I do not think anyone suggested we should have only one side.

Mr. Tayror: Oh, no. I just wanted to make the point clear.

The Acting CuARMAN: I think that could be left over until we come to the
time of deciding it. Your views are on record; and I think when we come to
decide it, we can take a motion then.

Mr. TavyLor: Yes.
The Acting CrHAIRMAN: If that is agreeable to the committee.

Some Hon. MemBERs: All right.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: What is the wish of the committee this morning?
Each and every one, I presume, has received all the information in connection
with Puget Sound and the Fraser river catch of salmon in the traps. Is it the
wish of the committee that we proceed with what we had been discussing, which
was in connection with the bill as affecting Quebec, so that we can clear up one
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matter? Or is it the viewpoint of the committee that we should go ahead with
the trap question? I shall leave it to the committee. I think someone expressed
the view that someone from Quebec should come before the committee and give
evidence. I understand that a gentleman is here this morning.

Mr. WaiTMore: Mr. Rodd is here.

The Acting CuAIRMAN: Mr. Rodd is here this morning to give us informa-
tion with regard to the Quebec situation. If it is the wish of the committee,
1 suggest we hear him now; but I leave that for the committee to decide.

Mr. Mayuew: I move that we complete the Saguenay river question.

The Acting CuAamrMAN: Will someone second that?

Mr. Hanson: I will second it.

The Acrine CHARMAN: It is moved and seconded that we complete the
Saguenay river discussion. Will all those in favour say Aye?

Some Hon. MEMBERS: Aye.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: I declare the motion carried. Is it the wish of the
committee to hear Mr. Rodd give us some information? Then anyone who
wishes to ask any further questions of Mr. Rodd may do so. If it is, T will
ask Mr. Rodd to explain the situation there.

J. A. Ropp, called.

The WirnEess: I think possibly T can explain this better from the map and
make it clearer to you in that way than by any explanation I could give in words.
I understand that what you are interested in is the possibility of fish getting
through or over the natural obstructions before the power development was
effected. Is that correct?

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Pardon me, but may I ask who Mr. Rodd is representing? Is he
representing the Quebec government?—A. No, sir. I am from the Fisheries
department. But I was down there on behalf of the Quebec government two
years ago.

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. May we have Mr. Rodd’s position?—A. Director of Fish Culture.

Q. Would you first indicate where the power developments are on the
Saguenay r_1ver?—A. This is a little larger scale map. The first power develop-
ment, that is the one higher up the river, is just here at the foot of Isle Maligne.
That is ‘about 74 miles from the outlet of the lake; and between the lake ‘and
Isle Maligne the river is full of islands.

Q. It is full of what?—A. Islands. The river is broken up into numerous
cha_npels, and those channels and those islands, of course, create eddies that
facilitate the ascent of fish. Isle Maligne where the power company had its
highest development—

Q. Which power company?—A. The Saguenay Power Company. Isle
Maligne divides the river at this point into two channels. I just mentioned the
grand discharge. Over here is the little discharge. The two join together about
12 miles—that is just a guess—below the outlet of the lake. That is not far
astray. The difference between low water level on the lake and high water level
is 175 feet. That, of course, creates different water levels and again would
facilitate the ascent of fish through those rapids. The second, the Alecoa Power,

is down !1ere; and that dam crosses the main river, the whole of the Saguenay,
below this channel.
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By the Acting Chairman:

Q. When would this rise of 173 feet take place?—A. That would be :
throughout the year. I think the low water period is in February and the high
water period is in May. Before the dams were put in, most of the water came ]
down—and still does—the grand discharge; and during the low water period in
the winter time the little discharge was practically dry. I have never heard
anyone suggest or express the opinion that fish did not get through or could not
get through, if they wanted to. We are speaking of salmon and ouonaniche.

By Hon. Mr. Michaud.:

Q. Would you show where the Saguenay river joins the St. Lawrence river?—
A. The Saguenay, down here joins the St. Lawrence at Tadoussac. This Lake,
St. John, has a drainage area of 30,000 square miles. The development is
simply enormous. When it was planned, it was the largest single power develop-
ment in the world. Since then, of course, there have been other developments
like that in Bonneville; but that was the largest single power development in
the world at that time. The dominion government has not had anything to do
with the Lake St. John fisheries since 1882. Since that year they have been
administered by the province, so that the officials of the dominion government
have not very much direct information or contact with that situation. The
provincial officers believe that, without any doubt, the fish did go through. The
officials of the power companies whom I met the fall before last had no doubt
in the matter, or at least, they expressed no doubt but that the salmon and the
ouananiche went through those channels, if they wished.

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. When was the power development completed?—A. It was started in
1925 and I am not sure in what year it was completed. I might say that the
figures I am giving you are from the reports of Mr. Lee, consulting engineer
in Montreal and Mr. Vogan, chief designing engineer of the Alecoa Power
Company.

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. You said the discharge was practically dry at one time. Would it be
dry in the spawning season?—A. The spawning season is in the Autumn. No,
it would not be dry in the spawning season. There is another point that might
be interesting. The discharge from the lake varies from 10,000 cubic feet per
second to 225,000 cubic feet per second, and the company now has the right,
under provincial charter, to use the storage in the lake between low water and
high water mark, 174 feet; so you see that there is an enormous surplus of
water being stored up for when they want it. I have searched the records as
far as I could, and I notice that in 1896, the late Mr. Chambers—he used to
fish for ouananiche and wrote a great deal about it—he says here in '96 that
the lowest point in the Saguenay at which there is a well-established record of
ouananiche having beeen seen in any considerable numbers is in the vicinity
of Chicoutimi, where many are annually taken at the foot of the lowest rapids
in the river; that is they come down through all these rapids and channels to,
we will say, below the head of tide near Chicoutimi. He also says at the same
time that he has taken the adult salmon in the Grand Discharge in September,
with ova well developed, and he has seen thousands of young fry in the pools
in the same area. That is below where both power plants are located at the
present time.

Mr. Catellier, who was in charge of the hatchery at Tadoussac—

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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By Mr. MacNeil: )

Q. Where is that? These names are unfamiliar to many of us—A. Tad-
oussac is at the mouth of the Saguenay. This gentleman was in charge of the
dominion government hatchery for many years, and he continued in charge
when the province took it over. He reported that, in his opinion, the Atlantic
salmon were going through to the lake. In 1906 he had a record of salmon,
9 pounds in weight, and one of 16 pounds in weight, having been taken in Lake

St. John. That is a very large fish. In fact, ouananiche run on an average
"of 4 pounds. The 16 pound fish undoubtedly were Atlantic salmon. That is

about all I have to say as to fish being able to go through.

Q. As far as you know the habits of the fish prior to the date of the

power development, they did ascend the river to spawn?—A. No one has ever
questioned that, and the general impression that I found everywhere, as I
mentioned, is that they did go through.

Q. They went as far as the lake?—A. They went as far as the lake. In
fact, the officials whom I met at the power plants, when I asked them the
question, did not express the slightest doubt in the matter. They were quite
satisfied that the ouananiche did go through.

Q. Do these salmon return to that river to spawn in cycles as they do on the
Fraser river?—A. They do not run in cyeles. They might be five or six year
fish; but there is no well defined cycle, like a four-year cycle, as there is on
the Fraser river where you have an enormous run once in four years and then
smaller runs. The number of salmon from year to year is about the same.

Q. If they ascended prior to the power development and the power develop-
ment has been under way since, is it reasonable to assume that there is no
longer any urge on the part of the fish to ascend the river to that point? The
cycles have been destroyed, in other words?—A. I do not think they have lost
their urge to ascend, but if they are not able to ascend the provincial depart-
ment believes that the ouananiche fishing has deteriorated. It also believes
that the deterioration is due to the dams. Their egg-collecting operations
would indicate a great falling off in the number of fish. They have attempted
to get fish on the Metabetchuan, and their collection of eggs in 1932—1I have
these figures here—was something like 600,000, and in four years it dropped to
200,000. They attribute that falling off to the dams.

Q. What importance do you attach to the Saguenay as a spawning ground
with relation to the fishing industry off the coast?—A. Very little. This region
in Quebec is the only place in the world where they find these game fish, the
ouananiche. You can appreciate the value that is placed on it from the game
fish point of view.

By Mr. Taylor:
Q. Historically, is the act of reproduction the last act in the life of the
fish?—A. No; the Atlantic salmon may reproduce several times.
Q. In this particular case?—A. This particular fish.

By Mr. MacNeil:
~ Q. I may be confused on two points, but are we dealing with the conserva-
tion of salmon that return to the sea or the conservation of game fish in the
streams tributary to the Lake St. John?—A. Well, the point of interest in this
particular region, the Lake St. John region..

Q. And the conservation of game fish, fresh-water fish?—A. Fresh-water
fish. The ouananiche does not go to sea. The Atlantic salmon, of couggse, does
go to sea, where it attains its growth and comes to the fresh water to spawn.
There are several tributaries below Chicoutimi where there are good spawning
grounds for Atlantic salmon.

The Acting CroaikMax: But they cannot get up?—A. They cannot get up
these streams here. ;
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By Mr. MacNeil: AN
Q. Do these streams enter the Saguenay above or below the power develop-
ment’—A. Below the power development.
Q. They are still good spawning grounds?—A. For the Atlantic salmon,
but the migration of the ouananiche is cut off.

By Hon. Mr. Michaud:

Q. Migration from where, the sea?—A. From the head of tide through the
river to the lake. : ;

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. What are the habits of these fish with regard to reproduction?—
A. The ouananiche will spawn in about five years. They pair and go through the
usual manoeuvres.

Q. Why is the migration to tide water important?—A. The best fishing
for the ouananiche was in the Grand and Little Discharge. While they are
the gamest of fish if they cannot get from the angling grounds, where they
were caught, back to where they spawn and have their growth, the run is
bound to.disappear. Does that make it clear, sir? :

Q. Then 1t is not a question of conservation, it is a question of catering
to sport fishing?—A. Oh, yes; conservation.

Q. Tourist traffic?—A. If the fish cannot move back to the spawning ground
they drop down in numbers.

Q. They drop down?—A. They used to drop down over the rapids, and
to prevent this or to get them back, is conservation.

By Hon. Mr. Michaud:

Q. They do not drop down as far as the St. Lawrence?—A. No, sir.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The Saguenay is quite a long river. They drop down
to these tributaries here.

The Witness: Yes,

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Lake St. John and the Saguenay run down to the
St. Lawrence.

Mr. Tavyror: About 100 miles, is it?

Mr. SyLvestrE: Over 150 miles.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: One dam is here and the other is here; the fish used
to go down here to these stretches where the fishing was good, especially that
stretch here.

The Wirness: Yes. .

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: From Lake St. John down to near Chicoutimi. That
is the stretch where the fishing used to be done, and that is where the dams are
built.

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. Where do these fish spawn?—A. They spawn in the tributaries of Lake
St. John. The best angling, according to Mr. Chambers and others, for the
ouananiche was within a few miles of Lake St. John below the lowest rapids.
Those who fished in the lake came down three or four miles and fished in
those pools below. That, of course, is now flooded. The head at Isle Maligne,
is 105 feet, and when the lake is at high level it is 1224 feet. The head down
here is 150 feet, and the turmoil is something terrific. -

Q. The point is that fish which are developed in Lake St. John are carried
over the spillways of these dams but cannot return, consequently, there is an
annual loss that is never replaced?—A. Never replaced.

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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The Acring CHARMAN: Do they just drop over the dam?—A. The total
population of ouananiche is limited. I have never heard anyone say he found
dead fish below; but if they went over 150 feet in the condition in which I
saw it I do not think any fish could live.

By Mr. Mayhew: .
Q. You do not furnish them with parachutes?>—A. Not there, sir.

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. Have the hatcheries hitherto been able to replace that loss?—A. No,
sir. There was a hatchery operating for a few years around ’97 by a gentleman
who ran a hotel, Mr. Bumer. He operated a hatchery for two or three years
and discontinued, and the provincial government started in 1932 and ran a
hatchery for four years. But they found a serious falling off in the numbers
of fish in that period.

The Acting CuARMAN: Can we assume from your remarks that the fish
are hatched in the lake and go over the falls and gradually year by year the
total number gets less and less?>—A. When they go over the falls they never

- get back. Another thing is that this dam here has flooded and-has destroyed

all this angling water above it. This dam here has destroyed all the angling
water up to where it reaches the natural level of the river.

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. Have you any information as to why these power companies refuse to
contribute toward the operation of hatcheries to replace the loss of fish?—
A. They just said that they could not make them. They just maintain that
the Act as it stands does not give the dominion government authority to make
them contribute.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. Even if they did have a hatchery above the dam and hatched out fish,
your explanation is that they go down to the sea but that they could not get
down over the dam alive and therefore it would not be of any benefit to have
a hatchery above the dam?—A. Not unless they provided facilities for them to
get down.

Q. To get down over the drop of 150 feet?—A. Yes, here. This shows
the power plant at Isle Maligne. That is the Saguenay Power Company. The
spillway is here, and the head at the power-house, is 100 feet. There is a spillway
here, another one here, also spillways number three and number four. They
have four spillways. The difference in elevation between this point and number
four is 45 feet. On the Little Discharge there are three spillways. I should
not like to venture a guess as to their ability to get the fish over here because
there are so many channels. I have seen salmon go over 240 feet and come
out alive at Concrete in the state of Washington.

By Mr. Taylor:
Q. Falling over the spillways?—A. Over the face of the dam.

By Mr. Hanson: :
Q. You say it is a drop of 240 feet?—A. Yes.

By Mr. Taylor:

Q. Was that general, was that usual; or was it just once in a number that
they could do that?—A. The officials at the plant told me that the fish that came
down in the water came down alive, but those that happened to get out of the
water and of course fell through the air and fell on the rocks were killed.
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By Mr. Neill:

Q. These spillways provide rather a rough drop, do they not?—A. These
spillways, Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4, have a fairly direct drop; but are not straight
- down; more in the nature of a sluice or curve. '

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. Did you say of the fish even if they did go down did not go to the
salt water, they stayed in the fresh water and developed there; is that right?—
A. They have their growth in the lake.

Q. In the lake, and when they go out they just go out part way, down to
the salt water?—A. The lowest record was as far as Chicoutimi.

Q. What would happen if you guarded your dam so that they could not go
down and you retained them all in the lake?—A. I think it is possible to
develop spawning grounds there. - :

Q. If you guarded the tops of your dams so they could not go over any of
these spillways and destroy themselves; wouldn’t that be the simplest plan to
follow?—A. I think that the best answer to that is that the fish spawn in the
Metabetchouan.

Q. Then a guard on the dam would be of assistance?—A. I think so, if

it were possible; but they have a flow there of 225,000 cubic feet per second, and
that is a terrific current.

By Mr. Taylor:

Q. The drop of the spillway would be what?—A. Well, even if you got
them over the spillway, a great deal of the angling ground is destroyed.

Q. Yes?—A. There is not much use getting them over the spillway,
because most of the area where they used to find them, when the fishing was best,
has been flooded out. This, from here, is absolutely flooded out. This, from
here up, is flooded out. I do not know how far up; certainly until the water
backs up to overcome a head of 150 feet.

By Mr. Taylor:

Q. There seem to be numerous rivers and creeks there. Is there no place
where the creeks below the dam and the creeks above the dam are close to
each other in their sources, or in any point of their flow?—A. Well, there are.
I don’t know what the scale on this map is, but here is one that comes in below
to the Little Discharge; and here is the Metabetchouan going into the lake;
but it is very rocky, hilly country.

Q. I see—A. The river at the upper power development was divided by
Isle Maligne into two rocky gorges. They have spent in the vieinity of
$7,000,000 on the Bonneville fishways, and there is an average head of about
50 feet; on this river there is an average head of 100 and 150 feet at the dams.

The Acring CHAIRMAN: To my mind it must be disastrous, because even
with the fish going over the Bonneville dam the supply of spring salmon and
other varieties is getting less and less each year. It is generally admitted that
the Columbia river is becoming ruined in spite of the expenditure of money;
even in spite of the expenditure on facilities for elevating the fish in glass lifts
and allowing them to sail out on their own power; in spite of all that the supply
of fish is going down.

By Mr. MacNeil:
Q. As I understand Mr. Rodd’s evidenee, this matter is one of no importance
whatever as to the supply of sea-salmon?—A. Very little.
[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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Q. It is in no way comparable with the conditions on the Fraser or the
Columbia?—A. That is right. To the sea-salmon the spawning grounds of
Lake St. John are of no importance.

The Wrrness: This is the Bonneville dam, Mr. Reid.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: It might be interesting to the committee for a
moment to see the Bonneville dam. They might be interested.

The Wirness: An extreme head of 66 feet. Low head 35 foot average head
at dam in the vicinity of 50 feet—here is the spillway of the dam, and here is

" the power-house; and right along the foot of the dams there are what they

call collecting chambers; there a fishway—here, again, another fishway. Then,
at the outlet of the power-house another collecting chamber running across
with a fishway—here (indicating). Also two elevators, one at either end; and
these elevators are in pairs, when one is operating the other is fishing. It takes
about fifteen minutes for an elevator to fill and empty and be ready to fish again.
Then the Tanner creek canal. Tanner creek is about a mile below the power-
house. This canal is 40 feet in width and 8,000 cubic feet per second of water
runs through—or 4% times the average flow of the Mersy river power develop-
ment in the maritimes. They have spent somewhere in the vicinity of $7,000,000
up to last year, and the last report I have seen the fish elevators were scarcely
successful, but the fish were going through the fishways in large numbers.
Hon. Mr. MicuauD: And through the canal.

The Wirness: Through this canal. Something like 20,000 went through in
one day, by actual count.

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. The immature fish swim through the ﬁshwaya‘?—A They have other
facilities for them getting through; there are the fishways and what they call
diverters which divert them from going through the turbines; and then the
lock—this is a navigation lock—they also expect that they will go through the
navigation lock. They are hoping that they have that over-come. At the
upper dam there is a head of 470 odd feet, and they are not trying to get them
over there, they are putting in hatcheries, fish cultural facilities—that is on the
Columbia.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: Are there any other questions you would like to
ask Mr. Rodd?

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. You told us that the dam was first put there in 1925?—A. That is when
the development started.

Q. That is over 13 years ago; why the long delay before taking any action
until now?—A. I could not venture a guess as to that.

Q. Would you define for the information of the committee what a spillway
i8; I do not think some of us understand just what it is?—A. In these develop-
ments at times they have far more water than they use and they have these
gates which they can regulate to let the surplus water down.

Q. Would not the surplus water run over the top of the dam?—A. They do
not wish to have it going over the top of the dam so they distribute it here.
They use what they need through the turbines and when I was there there was
none going over the top of this dam at all.

Q. They have gates which they open down below and let it through that
way?—A. Yes.

Q. They would only be opened at their convenience; and at their con-
venience would mean that it would not be a permanent opening for the fish to go
through?—A. When they need the water the spillways are not open, but in this

particular case I understand there has always been more water than they
could use.
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Q. There has always been a spillway open?—A. I believe there has always
been a spillway open. '

Q. Another question, Mr. Rodd; when it was proposed to have a hatchery
put in Lake St. John where would they turn them out, into the lake or below
the dam?—A. Into the tributaries to the lake.

Q. Above the dam?—A. Above the dam, and around the lake. Here is
the outlet, and the fry or whatever they produce—iry or fingerlings—would be
distributed in this area. :

Q. Yes?—A. And in the Metabetchouan coming in here.

Q. And then they would go down through the spillway over the top of the
dam or through the turbines when they reached a certain stage of maturity.
The natural instinct would be to stay how long in the lake before going down?—
A. Four years. '

Q. Four years; they would go down a certain distance, which you say
does not reach salt water, and linger around the river lower down and come up
again; is that the idea?—A. That was before the dams were there.

Q. Before the dams were built they did not go out to sea but stayed around
the lower regions of the river and when the season requires them to come back
to spawn?—A. Yes. :

Q. In this case then—?—A. Mr. Michaud remarks they are not in the
lower regions because they only went as far as Chicoutimi.

Q. Yes, they did not go down below to salt water?—A. Just to the head
of tide water.

Q. Here is a question I wanted to ask; if these fish never did and will not
go down to the salt water but stay in the river, or used to stay in the river, why
not forget about the dams and develop the same fishing in the lake through
hatcheries; have them put into the tributaries going into the lake, and then
this sport fishing will still be possible?—A. That is what they want to do.

Q. Is there any biological objection to that; wouldn’t that save a lot of

trouble?—A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. Micaaup: That is the purpose of this.

By Mr. Neill:

Q. Then there is this question, Mr. Rodd, if I understood you correctly;
you said that since 1882 these fisheries have been administered by the
province?—A. Yes.

Q. That is 57 years ago?—A. Why are they coming to us for legislation
now; is that what you mean?

Q. Yes?—A. Well, no matter what the province administers the dominion
government has to make the regulations, the laws and the regulations.

Q. They administered them for 57 years and now they come to you for
this legislation. In what way were these fisheries turned over to the province;
was it by legislation, by order-in-council, or what? My suggestion is they were
never legally turned over at all—A. I will read this, if you don’t mind.

Q. What is it?—A. It deals with the provinces administering these
fisheries.

Q. Is it an order-in-council? Or, what is it?—A. It is a memorandum.
I will just give you a little of it.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Give the history of it. Give the decisions.

The Wirness: I will read to you: The various appeals and decisions of the
Privy Council indicate that at confederation it was intended that the fisheries
of Canada should be administered by the dominion. Now, a reason, one of the
reasons, that would prove that would be that the dominion did administer all
the fisheries of Canada from 1867 up until 1882. In 1882 the Supreme Court of

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.] '
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" Canada in the Fisheries case determined that the fisheries in the non-tidal

" portions of streams belong to the riparian owners. Following this decision the

fishing privileges in the non-tidal waters of Quebec were administered by the
province. .

" By Mr. Neill:

Q. Is that non-tidal water?—A. That is non-tidal water.
Q. Yes?—A. That covers 1882.

By the Acting Chairman:

Q. It was always non-tidal?>—A. It was always non-tidal; Lake St. John
was always non-tidal. Do you wish me to follow it any further?

By Mr. Neull:

Q. That is a new thing to me. It is not quite what I was asking. Appar-
ently then the jurisdiction that the province now claims over these fisheries is
due to the fact, which I think everyone will recognize, that we have no control
over the non-tidal waters. That is O.K. I had always understood they had.
You indicated just now that the salmon did run, and I know there was a special
arrangement, made by which the dominion handed over, by arrangement with
the province, control over both the non-tidal and tidal fisheries in Quebec
province; isn’t that so?—A. Yes.

Q. That is what I want to get at. What were the conditions? Were there
any conditions mentioned under which the tidal waters in Quebec and the other
provinces came under the jurisdiction of the dominion?

The Acting CuAIRMAN: If that answer is completed now, would it not be
advisable to read the whole memorandum?

The Wirness: That was the agreement between the dominion and the prov-
ince. Under that agreement the dominion government ceased to issue fishing
licences in tidal waters, and the province issued them.

Mr. NemwL: They took over the whole control, did they not?

The Wrrness: That was, in fact, from 1882 until 1921, with the exception
of, well, the north shore from Point des Monts to Blanc Sablon, the north shore
of the St. Lawrence. From 1882 the province issued the fishing licences on the
south shore of the river St. Lawrence and the baie Chaleur, and the dominion
issued licences on the north shore and around Magdalen islands.

By Mvr. Neill:

Q. What happened in 1921?7—A. In 1921, following the Privy Council
decision, which left the tidal waters and coastal waters and the tidal waters
that are navigable from the sea with the dominion, the dominion issued licences
for all this shore and the provinece also issued permits; so anybody who wanted
to fish had to have a licence from the department and a permit from the
province. The decision of 1920—the same decision I am speaking of—said
that the soil was vested in the province.

By Hon. Mr. Michaud:

Q. Under the water?—A. Under the water. So the fisherman, if he had
a dominion licence to fish and wanted to tie his net to a stake, had to have a
provincial permit. It was a dual jurisdiction, and caused a great deal of trouble
and was very unsatisfactory, so to end that they said—
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By Mr. Neill:
Q. In what year was this agreement made?—A. 1922,
~ Q. Then just one more question now and I shall have the picture. You
sald an agreement was made. I want to know in what form it was, whether it
‘iV9a2S2 legislation, order in council, or what?>—A. Order in council, February 13,
Qi What is the number?—A. T would have to look that up.
Q. What is the date?—A. February 13, 1922, dominion order in council;
a provincial order in council was dated February 16 of the same year.
Q. Would it be possible to file that?
Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: Yes.
Mr. NEemwL: It could go into the record as an appendix.
Hon. Mr. Micanaup: We will file that. The decision of the Privy Council
is dated November 20, 1920.

By Mr. Neill:

Q. Did that agreement extend to other provinces as well?—A. Quebec alone,
the only agreement.

Q. Why, when decisions of the Privy Council apply to all of Canada, do
they not?—A. Oh, yes.

Q. Why was an agreement not made with all provinces if it was found
necessary to make one with Quebec in virtue of the decision of the Privy Council?
—A. That is quite a long story. I told you about 1882. Then there was
another Privy Council decision of 1898 and another one—

Mr. Hanson: Could we have the memorandum printed in the appendix?

The Acting CrHAIRMAN: Yes; I think it will be possible to have that memo-
randum placed in the record.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Do you want to hear it read?

The Acting CHAIRMAN: If it completes the inquiry.

Mr. Nemwwn: I think the witness ought to be able to tell me why, if as a
result of the decision of the Privy Council a certain arrangement was made with
the province of Quebec ecarrying out the decision of the Privy Council, it was
not done with other provinces. The Privy Council decision must have been
applicable to all Canada. Why was a subsequent arrangement by legislation
or order in council only applicable to Quebec? That is what I want to know.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: He just told us that it was because Quebec then
attempted to exercise its territorial jurisdiction, by insisting on the holders of
federal licences taking out a provincial permit to give them the right to attach
their gear to the soil in the waters. A person was liable to be prosecuted if he
did not secure two permits. He may be refused by the provinee or by the federal
government, or he might secure a permit from one jurisdiction. That was
creating difficulties and in order to get over that apparently they came to an
agreement whereby the federal government would withdraw and the province
would take the responsibility of administering the laws and paying for the
administration of the law and issuing permits.

Mr. NriLL: Why did not the same apply to other provinces?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Because the provinces did not ask for it, I suppose.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: In other words, Quebee was the only province that insisted
on its rights.

Mr. NemwL: These rights still exist so far as British Columbia is concerned.

Mr. RosicuauDp: I suppose B.C. never insisted on the new jurisdiction.

Mr. NemwL: Some day some man who doesn’t like it will take action and
upset the condition in British Columbia.

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]




MARINE AND FISHERIES

77

The Wrrness: The reason why Quebec differs from the other provinces is
~ this: the decision of the Privy Council was based on Magna Carta. Magna
Carta did not apply to Quebec; the French laws applied. That resulted in a
- gecond appeal to the Privy Council and the decision was that the fisheries in
the coastal and tidal waters and the waters that were navigable from the sea
were vested in the dominion government and all property rights or lands remained
~ with the province.

The Acring CHAIRMAN: There may be some difference in this respect:
British Columbia was a colony before confederation. :

: Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Magna Carta applied in all the other provinces at
confederation, but did not apply to Quebec.

Mr. NemL: Would it not be possible to raise the point some day that the
dominion is operating illegally in British Columbia?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: They have raised that point. There have been a
number of Privy Council decisions regarding the fisheries and the rights as
between the provinces and the federal government, and they are very interesting
to read.

The Wirness: The British Columbia situation was settled by the Privy

~ Council decision of 1913.

* By Mpr. Neill:

Q. Not affected by the decision of 1920?—A. No, sir.

Q. Of course, I have not got the decision before me; I do not know what.it
says—A. The decision of 1913 was based on Magna Carta. The decision of
1920 was based on the French laws.

Mr. Hanson: That being the case, would the dominion government have
jurisdiction at all in relation to this bill?

The Wirness: Yes.
Mr. Haxson: To turn over to the province—

The Wirness: The making of the regulations and the laws rests with the
dominion government.

By Mr. Neill:
Q. In spite of the decision?—A. In spite of the decision.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The right and duty to legislate regarding fisheries have
always been with the federal government, and have been continued with the
federal government; but the right to administer the laws that are made by the
federal parliament in non-tidal waters is in the province, and by the decision
of 1920 in non-navigable waters in Quebec within the provincial jurisdiction.

Mr. NemwL: But tidal waters?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: As to Quebec, the word “navigable” is used instead of
tidal; but it covers all tidal waters. Really by the decision of the Privy Council
of 1920 the jurisdiction of the federal government was extended rather than
restricted over fisheries in Quebec, because it extended to navigable waters
instead of tidal waters. That is what accentuated the difficulty because in
navigable waters which were not tidal the soil belonged to the riparian owners
in the province, crown lands or owners of lands on the banks of the river wanted
to preserve their rights, and that is why the province came to charge a fee for
the right to attach fishing gear to the soil under the water.

Mr. Nemws: In what way would you want to attach it to the soil unless it
is a set net?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: It was a set net.

Mr. NemL: Are there not tidal waters that are not navigable? The words
are not necessarily synonymous. '
76707—2
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think it is admitted that all tidal waters are navigable.

Mr. NemwL: The tide runs up some rivers that are navigable to nothing but
a canoe. ' ‘

Hon. Mr. MicuauD: It is navigable as far as you can reach from the ocean
with a canoe. That is a navigable water according to the legal definition of
navigation.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: I remember a case in British Columbia where it
was decided that if you could float up a river with a plank it was considered
navigable.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I should have used the word “dory” instead of
“canoe.” Dory is the correct word. h

Mr. Nemn: It is all mixed up.

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: It is very difficult.

Mr. NemL:  Geoffrion comes along and says we are both wrong; neither of
us has jurisdiction in the matter. '

The Acring CHATRMAN: I do not think the province of British Columbia
has ever attempted to speak in respect of riparian owners’ rights. They have
shied away from that for a number of years.

The Actineg CuHalRMAN: I know of certain cases where owners of farms
on the banks of the river are trying to claim it.

Mr. Hanson: Is it proper to ask this witness whether in his opinion this
bill should be granted as it is drawn up or not? d

The WrrnEess: 1 say decidedly it should be granted. The dominion govern-
ment should have the authority, or parliament, or whatever authority is needed,
to protect the fisheries, and this amendment is simply for that purpose.

Mr. Hansox: Is there anybody here on behalf of those who take objection
to the bill? Have we any witnesses opposing the bill?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: I do not know of anybody who is opposed to the
bill. X
Mr. Mayaew: Is there no objection to it?

Mr. NemL: In spite of what Mr. Geoffrion says? Mr. Geoffrion says, make
your law, and we will fight it.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: Exactly.

Mr. NemL: He says, make your decision and we will fight it.

Mr. Haxson: That is their worry.

Mr. NemwrL: Had we not better find out all about it before we come to
a decision? What Mr. Geoffrion says is this: he says, I think you are wrong;
make your decision and then we will fight it. Had we not better find out if
there are any objections and try to do what is right, instead of having to go to the
Privy Council eventually?

Hon. Mr. Micuatvp: Mr. Geoffrion was informed that this bill had been
referred to this committee and he replied that he had no objection to it.

Mr. Nemwn: If he can get into litigation and go to the Privy Council six
months or a year from now, it will be all right with him.

Hon. Mr. MrcuAuD: We have no power to compel him to come here and
oppose this bill. We tried in every way to inform him that the bill was before
the committee, and asked him if he had any objections.

Mr. NemL: The chairman has power to summon witnesses.

Hon. Mr. MicaauD: Oh, yes.

Mr. Nemr: To put him on oath and ask him what his objections are.

Mr. Mayuew: Has he been invited?

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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Hon. Mr. Micaaup: He says he has no objections to the bill.

Mr. MayaeEw: Has he been invited to attend?

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Yes.

Mr. NemwL: Not definitely.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: He was invited by me after the first meeting by tele-
gram, and I think by letter, also.

Mr. Haxsox: Have you had any legal advice from the department in con-
nection with the bill?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That was drafted, like all legislation, by the Depart-
ment of Justice. We do not attempt to decide upon the legality of any piece of
legislation. Everything is done through the Department of Justice. They
drafted this and submitted it to us.

Mr. Mayuew: Has any reply been received in writing to your invitation?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: I think so, yes.

Mr. MaysEW: Saying that he would not attend?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is my impression of the letter, that he had no
objection to this legislation.

Mr. NeiLL: He definitely stated in the letter to the proivncial man that
they had no power, and he says that the dominion have no power. Let them
go ahead and make their decision and we will fight it. That is what he says.
That is on record in this report No. 1.

The Wirness: He said that under the bill, under the Act before it was
amended.

Mr. SynvestRE: May I ask a question, Mr. Chairman, although I am not
a member of the committee?

The Acting CHATRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Synvestee: Do I understand by that bill that authority would be
granted to the provincial government to collect $5,000 from the two com-
panies?

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Yes.

Mr. SyuvesTrE: I strongly object to that.

Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: That is the purpose of the bill.

Mr. SynLvesTRE: You see the point? The provinces would say to these com-
panies, “The federal government gives us authority to force you—the two com-
panies, to pay us annually a sum of $5,000 for the purpose of maintaining
and operating a hatchery.” I am opposed to that. It is certainly a very serious
principle that we apply to any companies building dams on any rivers in the
province of Quebec.

Mr. NeLL: That is what the bill does.

Mr. SyLvesTRE: It is not only on the Saguenay river that you have dams
in the province of Quebee. You have dams elsewhere, on different rivers. The
moment the law gives authority to the province to collect a certain amount every
year from these companies they would be able to collect from them all. They
would have the principle by this amendment, and I think it is wrong.

Mr. NemwL: This bill does not apply to those two alone. It will apply to all
dams.

Mr. SyLvestrE: Certainly; and that makes it still worse.
Mr. Hanson: If this is passed, it would apply to all dams in Quebes.
Mr. NemwL: In Canada.

The Wirness: In Canada.
76707—2}
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Mr. Coré: Mr. Chairman, I should think it would be wise to ask the

Department of Justice for legal advice on the jurisdiction of the federal govern- - o

ment; if Mr. Geoffrion expresses a doubt, and if he suggests litigation, I believe
it is our duty to have legal advice from the Department of Justice in order to
avoid litigation. Suppose the Department of Justice says, “You have not the
authority to do that. If you do it, you will certainly have litigation and the
privy council will decide finally, according to our opinion, that you have no
authority to pass that law.” I think you should secure that legal advice from
the Department of Justice first, and avoid litigation.

Mr. NeiLL: Hear, hear.

The WirNess: This letter from the provinecial government has been before
the Department of Justice. I think Mr. Geoffrion’s objection, embodied in the
letter from the province, has been before the Department of Justice; and this
amendment is drawn up on the advice of the Department of Justice.

By Mr. Coté:

Q. Are they expressing the opinion, in their letter to the Department of
Fisheries, that the Department of Fisheries and the Dominion of Canada or
parliament has jurisdiction to pass this?—A. Yes.

Q. You have had legal opinion on that?—A. Yes. This amendment was
drawn up by the Department of Justice with all the facts before it.

Q. You know what I want?—A. Yes, I understand.

Q. Or what I want to know. I am satisfied the Department of Justice
drew a legal document according to the demand, but that is not what I am ask-
ing about. I want to know if they also said that we had authority to pass it.
I know they have given to it legal form. I am sure of that. But have we
jurisdiction to do that? As a matter of fact, are we saying that Mr. Geoffrion
is making a legal mistake when he said they are not going to obey the law?
That is what I want to know.

Mr. RosicHAUD: In other words, was attention particularly drawn to Mr.
Geoffrion’s objection?

Mr. Cote: Yes, that is it.

By Mr. Robichaud:

Q. Perhaps it was laid before them; perhaps they informed them.—A. Yes.

Q. Was it drawn to their attention particularly?—A. Yes.

Q. Particularly?—A. Yes.

Q. It was?—A. Yes; and they were asked for their view as to who should
give notice, the province or the dominion. They had the full facts; and the
Department of Justice felt that it was advisable to amend the Act before serv-
ing the notice, and that is what the amendment is for.

By the Acting Chairman:
Q. Who is going to serve notice?—A. The dominion government.
Mr. NemwL: May I quote from what Mr. Geoffrion wrote to Mr. Gagnon:—

I gave the opinion to my clients that the right which you wish to
exercise does not, in the circumstances, exist even at Ottawa. Conse-
quently, they invested me with the duty of suggesting that you have
the regular order given by the minister at Ottawa, should he find advis-
able to give it, and we shall refuse to submit to it, when you could take
a lawsuit for a decision on the question.

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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Q. Is that not the only way you are ever going to settle it definitely, by
- reference to the Privy Council?—A. No. Mr. Geoffrion really objected to
the bill as it stands now, to the Act as it stands now. The Department of
Justice had this letter, had the full facts; and the Department of Justice
felt that if the government wished to have the authority to protect the fisheries,
the Act had better be amended as they suggested, according to their draft.

Q. After all, that is merely an opinion. It does not settle it.  Mr. Geoffrion
has an opinion and your Department of Justice have expressed their opinion.
You are not going to get any definite settlement, as far as I can see, until it is
referred to the privy council—A. Well, in the meantim, why not agree to the
amendment? /

Q. If you agree to the amendment, will it not bring it to a head?

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. The only way you can bring it to a head is by agreeing to the amend-
ment and let it go.—A. Yes; agree to the amendment and let it go.

By Mr. Sylvestre:

Q. Since the dams were built, do you claim that there are less ouananiche
than before?—A. The province claims so. _

Q. It is in my riding and I know something about it. There are more
ouananiche in Lake St John than there ever were béfore because they do not
go away now.—A. They have discontinued netting; netting was permitted in
Lake St John until 1937.

Q. Yes?—A. And they discontinued the netting.

Q. Yes?—A. Because they were afraid the ouananiche were becoming scarce.

Q. But they had a hatchery operated for four or five years?—A. Yes.

Q. It closed last year?—A. Yes.

Q. The hatchery was on the Ashwapmuchuan at St. Felicien. According to
my information there are more ouananiche in Lake St John and the tributaries
now than ever before.

Mr. RosicHAauDp: Might I ask whether there was any question as to the
validity of section 57 as it now stands?

The Actinag CHAIRMAN: As it stands in the Act?

Mr. RoBicuaup: The section that we are seeking to amend by this bill,
as it stands now, section 57. TIs there any question as to its validity? If there
is not, why should we amend it from the way it is or make it a civil offence
instead of putting on a little heavier fine to force them to do it? Instead of
$4 a day, make it $100, $200, $500 a day, so they will be forced to build that
hatchery. :

The Wirness: The amendment provides for an annual contribution.

Mr. RoBicuAaup: Yes. It turns it into a civil action to ‘collect a certain
sum of money. Why not make it a eriminal action? Then I do not think there
would be any doubt as to the jurisdiction of parliament. Instead of making
it $4 a day, which will not force any company to do it, make it $400 or $500 or
$1,000 a day. Then they will be forced to build that hatchery.

Mr. TayLor: Am I right in assuming that the two charges are levied, Mr.
Chairman—the full amount of $5,000 or thereabouts, and the penalties per day?

Mr. Nemw: No. In that case there is no penalty. It is a civil action. The
proceedings go before the civil court.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: It is a civil action; while, as it is now, it is a criminal
action.

Mr. NemwwL: Sub-section 2 of the new bill, down at the foot of the page
provides that the court of suit shall be the exchequer court.



AN L 0P RS TV | N e \)\- pr-uncgn 1 .
o gl 'ff H ] m o \A".' i

82 STANDING COMMITTEE Bt e st o

Mr. RoBicHAUD: What I want to know is whether section 57 as it stands
now has ever been questioned as to its legahty, as to the power of this parlia-
ment to pass it?

The Wirness: Not to my knowledge.

Mr. NemL: Yes, Mr. Geoffrion did.

The Wirness: I believe that the first time it has ever been questioned was
when Mr. Geoffrion raised the point.

Mr. RosicHAUD: I do not mean the new bill. I do not mean section 57 as
we have it now, but section 57 as it is actually.

The Wirness: Not. to my knowledge.

Mr. NemL: And I understand when Mr. Geoffrion wrote that letter, he
was referring to the old bill, not to the new one.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: To the old bill?

Mr. NemL: To the old Act.

Mr. RosicHAUD: The old Act?

Mr. NemwL: Yes. This had not been introduced at that time. That is
clear from his letter.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I thought he was referring to the present bill.

Mr. Nemn: No. He was referring to section 57 as it used to be, before
this bill was introduced.

Mr. RosicHAUD: Oh, that is different. In that case, there would be a
difference.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: It is certainly a very difficult matter for this
committee to settle.

Mr. Nemn: The minister told us that this was referred to the Department
of Justice, which apparently admitted that section 57 did not accomplish the
purpose they had in mind. Then, in consequence of that, they introduced bill
No. 15 which is before us. The minister told us that the other day.

Mr. RoBicuaup: If section 57, as it stands now, was questioned, I think
57 (a) as we have it in this bill would be still more questioned.

Mr. MayuEw: You think it would be better to fight it out on the old bill
than or the new one?

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I should think so. Any $4 penalty a day is not enough.
Make it high enough so that they will be forced to do it or else they will be
liable to a big fine.

The Actineg CuHAlrMAN: Of course, it might be all right in some cases,
but not in other cases.

Mr. RoBicuHAUD: No, of course not.

Hon. Mr. StiruinGg: Has the government thought of submitting this clause
or suggested amendment to the supreme court for a decision?

The Acting CHAIRMAN: No, I have not heard that suggestion. The only
thing I heard the minister say was that the Department of Justice had given
us the ruling on the new amendment.

Hon. Mr. StirLiNG: Yes. But as has been pointed out, that is the opinion
of the lawyers of the Department of Justice as opposed, apparently, by Mr.
Geoffrion. My question is whether or not the government has considered sub-
mitting this contentious matter to the supreme court for a decision, as in another
matter they are submitting a draft bill for that purpose.

The Acting CuHAlRMAN: So far as I know they have not considered that
angle of it. It has got to be considered one of these days, because it is going
to come to a head some of these days.

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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Mr. HansoN: According to his letter, Mr. Geoffrion says if this amend-

ment passes he is going to fight it. That means that he intends to go to the
privy council for a final decision. Is that not the way it is? That is the way

' I interpret it, anyway.

The Wirness: He was referring to the bill as it stands.
Mr. NemwL: Yes, the old bill.
The Wirness: As it stands, the Act.

By Mr. Hanson:

Q. On any action being taken, I presume, to force them to do certain things, -
he is going to fight it, as far as I understood that letter that he wrote?—A. Well,
he refers to the Act as it stands.

Q. Yes?—A. But not to this; he does not know anything about the pro-
posed amendment.

The Actine CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, what is your wish? Do you want to
ask Mr. Rodd any further questions?

Mr. Core: Mr. Chairman, my colleague, Mr. Sylvestre, tells me that the
first dam was built in 1925 and that no fishway was provided at that time
because I understand it was impossible to build it as the height was too great.

Is it fair for these companies to be taxed now, in 1939, because when they
built they were not aware that they would have to allow for an overhead of
$5,000 a year as no fishways were required at that time? I do not think it is.
This is an overhead that was not considered at that time, and fourteen years
after the dam was built the Quebec government is calling upon the federal
government to give them power to collect $5,000 or $10,000 from these com-
panies. These companies, fourteen years ago, were never informed, when they
assumed the expense of building the dam, that they would have to meet an
expense of $5,000 or $10,000 a year. I do not think it is fair.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: I think Mr. Rodd has an answer to that question.

The Wirness: This was a condition that was embodied in the permission
that was given. The dominion government by order-in-council on August 25,
1923, granted the Quebec Development Company Limited, so far as the rights
and powers of that government were concerned, permission to dam the Saguenay
river between Lake St. John and the foot of the rapids. But one of the condi-
tions applied was as follows: An approved fishway shall be established on the
dams or spillways by the applicant company at its own expense if requested
by competent authority.

By Mr. Cote:

Q. They assumed that obligation?—A. They were ready to assume that.
The provincial order-in-council was subject to the federal and provincial laws
and regulations governing navigation and floating of wood, mines and fisheries.
When they received permission those conditions were implied in the permission.
A fishway would cost—

Q. It is impossible—A. Nothing is impossible.

Mr. SyrLvesTrE: They are expensive.

The Wrrness: It would be extremely expensive. It would be far more
expensive than dealing with the Columbia river. They have twice the height,
almost three times the height, that they have on the Columbia river. On the
the Columbia river they have just two channels to look after. In the Grand
Discharge they have one channel and four spillways. On the Little Discharge
they have three spillways. So that instead of having one fishway they prob-
ably would have eight.

Mr. SyLvesTtre: And there is another one below.

The Wirness: Yes; 150 feet.
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Mr. Core: Mr. Sylvestre says there are more fish in Lake St. John th
ever. They never had fishways then; it was impossible or too expensive tc
build any fishways. Fourteen years have elapsed and we are passing a new
law and saying, “We are going back fourteen years and, instead of the fishways
which we never asked you to build, we are going to fine you $5,000 a year.”
We might pass that amendment and say that in the future, where fishways
would be possible to build, the companies would be responsible for them.

Mr. SyLvesTrE: According to the order-in-council the company was obliged

to build a hatchery. They first should have asked the company to establish
a hatchery on Lake St. John. I think they never did. "

Mr. Core: They were not obliged to do that.
The Wirness: They could still ask them to build these fishways.
Mr. SyLvesTre: Yes, or a hatchery?

The WirnEss: Yes, or a hatchery. A hatchery would cost them a fraction
of what a fishway would cost.

Mr. SyLvesTrRe: But they are not obliged and they cannot be forced to
establish a hatchery on Lake St. John to replace the fishways.

Mr. Core: Noj; it means $5,000 a year to replace them.

Mr. Syrvestre: There is something in the order-in-council about a
hatchery.

The Wirness: No, not in the order-in-council.
Mr. SyrvesTrE: Only the question of fishways?
The Wirness: Yes, just fishways.

Mr. Nemwn: Section 57 of the old Act does talk about a hatchery. The
existing Act says:—

< Ay

(b) Where the minister determines that the provision of an
effective fishway or canal around the slide, dam or other obstruction is
not feasible, or that the spawning areas above such slide, dam or other
obstruction are destroyed, who after thirty days’ notice in writing,
neglects or refuses to pay the minister such sum or sums of money as
he may require to construct, operate and maintain such complete
hatchery. . .

They could ask them at that time for a lump sum of $100,000. Apparently lack-
ing this bill they cannot ask them for a yearly contribution, and the purpose
is to enable the government to ask them for a yearly contribution instead of one
lump sum. But they were a party to section 57 of the old Act.

Mr. Cori: That means the company will have to pay interest on a capital
sum of $200,000 at 5 per cent. It is simply asking the company to pay $200,000,
when nothing was required from them fourteen years ago.

Mr. NemL: The Quebec government have got themselves into a hole and
are asking us to get them out of it. They are muddling up the jurisdiction.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: What is the wish of the committee regarding the
amendment?

Mr. Mayaew: Inasmuch as this memorandum is going to be spread on
to-day’s proceedings, it will give us all a better chance to read the memorandum,
and I would suggest that the discussion be terminated now to be brought up
again after we have had a chance to read the memorandum.

The Acting CHamrMAN: Will someone second that?

Mr. Hanson: I will second that motion.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: You have heard the motion, gentlemen.

Hon. Mr. StiruinGg: What is the motion?
[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]



INE AND FISHERIES

85

 The Acting CuamrMAN: That the discussion be postponed until such time
as we have had an opportunity of reading the memorandum which has been
placed on the proceedings of to-day.

Are you ready for the question? I declare the motion carried.

Do you wish to proceed now with the amendment moved by Mr. Neill or
would you prefer to wait until our next meeting?

Mr. Hanson: I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, that we file the objections
to the amendment and have them ready for our next meeting.
The Acting CHAmRMAN: That is on Mr. Neill’s amendment?
Mr. Hanson: Yes.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: The amendment is:—

After the calendar year 1939, no one shall use a salmon trap net in
any of the Pacific waters of Canada off the southwesterly shore of Van-
couver Island.

That is the amendment which he moved in the house and which has been
referred to this committee.

Mr. Tayror: I do not see how we can get through that in half an hour.

Mr. Hanson: No, but we can get certain of the evidence put on the
record to-day and be able to read it over for the next meeting.

Mr. Tayror: I do not quite understand.

Mr. HansoN: I have certain protests which I should like to place on the
record so that the members of the committee will have an opportunity to
read them before the next meeting. For instance, I have one from the Prince
Rupert chamber of commerce absolutely opposed to fish traps in any of the
Pacific waters. I have one from the Fishermen’s Association, Queen Charlotte
City, to the same effect. I also have one from the Trades and Labour Council.

Mr. NemwL: Vancouver?

Mr. Hanson: Prince Rupert. And I have one from the Salmon Troller’s
Association, District No. 2. T should like to put those on the record so that
the rest of the committee will have a chance to look them over. I understand
that other members also have objections along the same line.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: s it agreeable to the committee that this evidence
be tabled and placed on the record for the next meeting?

Mr. Tavror: Yes, I think so.

Mr. Mayurew: I have no objection; you have similar ones. It is a repeti-
tion of what is already on file.

The Actine CHAIRMAN: Is there any other evidence to be submitted?

Mr. NemwL: Should we not ask these men out on the coast to send a brief
if they are not coming, or ask them to reply? Are they coming or are they going
to send a brief? We ought to get something definite from them. I would
suggest that the chairman or the clerk communicate with these men again and
ask them if they do not want to come will they send a brief; but tell them to
get a move on.

Mr. TayLor: Mr. Chairman, there is not a quorum here. I think we
should be careful of what we are doing. Is ten not a quorum?

The Acting CHAIRMAN: There are eight present now. If there is not a
quorum the committee will stand adjourned.

(At 12.30 p.m. the committee adjourned.)
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APPENDIX 1

721-8-2 Vol. 5
Page 129

FISHERIES ADMINISTRATION, PROVINCE OF QUEBEC

1. The various appeals and decisions of Privy Council would seem to indi-
cate that the founders of Confederation intended that the fisheries of Canada
should’ be administered by the Dominion Government. The Dominion Govern-
ment administered the fisheries from the time of Confederation until 1882.
1882 :

2. The decision of the Supreme Court of Canada in a fisheries case deter-
mined that the fisheries in the non-tidal portions of streams belonged to the
riparian owners. Following this decision, the fishing privileges in the non-
tidal waters of Quebec were administered by the Province.

1898

3. The decision of the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council in the
Fisheries Reference of 1898 determined that whatever property rights in the
fisheries were held by the provinces prior to Confederation remained their
property subsequent thereto, though the exclusive right to regulate the fisheries,
no matter where they might be, is vested in the Federal Government. Follow-
ing this decision, the different sea-washed provinces claimed the ownership of
not only the estuarial fisheries but those within the three mile limit along the
coast. The Dominion Government, on the other hand, contended that there
is a public right of fishery in tidal waters controllable by the Dominion Gov-
ernment only.

1898

4. Pending a settlement of the above mentioned question, arrangements
were made with the various provinces concerned, with the exception of Quebec,
whereby the Department of Marine and Fisheries continued to administer
the fisheries as previously. With Quebec it was arranged, pending such settle-
ment, that the Dominion Government would continue to administer the fisheries
on the north shore of the Gulf of St. Lawrence east of Point des Monts, and
around the Magdalen Islands as formerly, and that the administration of the
fisheries west of Point des Monts as well as most of those on the south shore of
the river and Gulf of St. Lawrence would, pending settlement, be administered
by the provincial authorities.

1913

5. Negotiations went on with the different provinces to settle this question
of ownership amicably but such was not found to be possible, and finally in
1913 a reference to the courts was agreed upon with British Columbia in which
the other provinces became intervenants. The decision of the Privy Council
in that reference maintained the contention of the Federal authorities.

This settled the question in all the sea-washed provinces with the exception
of Quebec which contended that as the decision was largely based on Magna
Charta, and that as Magna Charta did not apply to the Province of Quebec, the
decision did not affect the situation there.

6. It was finally agreed that a Reference should be submitted to the Court
of King’s Bench in Quebec under the authority of a provincial statute which
was obtained for that purpose;and that either party would be permitted to appeal
directly to the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council from the decision of the
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said Court of King’s Bench. The decision in the Provinecial Court was adverse i
to the Federal contention but this deeision was not upheld by that of the Judicial
Committee of the Privy Council which was given on November 30, 1920. .
1920

7. This decision, Privy Couneil, November 30, 1920, found that there is a
public right of ﬁshery in all the nav1gable waters of the Provinee of Quebec
that are accessible by way of navigation from the sea and that the Dominion
Government has in effect, exclusive jurisdiction to deal with this public right of
fishery.

8. Following the decision of the Privy Council, it was provided by Order
in Council of April 13, 1921, that fishing was prohlblted except under licence
from the Minister of Marine and Fisheries:—

1921
(a) in the tidal waters of the Province of Quebee, and

(b) in the non-tidal rivers and streams of the Province of Quebec which
are navigable and accessible by way of navigation from the sea.

9. While the Privy Council decision of November 30, 1920, found that
there was a public right of fishery in the coastal waters, it also found that the
Province had exclusive power to grant the right to fix engines to the soil where
the soil is vested in the Crown in the right of the Province.

The effect of this was that during 1921 fishermen in the waters of Quebee
needed to have a licence to fish from the Dominion Government and a licence
or permit to attach their nets to the soil from the Provincial Government.

1922

10. For the purpose of putting an end to such an unsatisfactory condition
of dual jurisdiction, an agreement was reached, confirmed by Dominion Order in
Council of February 13, 1922, and Provincial Order in Council of February
16, 1922, whereby the Provmce would administer all the fisheries of Quebee,
inland and coastal, with the exception of those about the Magdalen Islands.
The Magdalen Island fisheries remained with the Dominion Government.

Orrawa, April 11, 1939.
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QueeN Cuarvorte City, B.C,,

February 15, 1939.

Oror Hanson, M.P.,
Prince Rupert, B.C.

Dear Mr. HansoN,—At a meeting of Fishermen at Queen Charlotte City
on February 15, 1939, the following resolutions were passed. We hope you will
consider and support us in our demands.

ResorLutioNs oN FisH Trars

Whereas fishermen of the Pacific Coast have gone on record many times in
favour of ehmlnatmg traps and other destructive gear; and

Whereas, regardless of the fact that the Dominion Government in 1937
passed legislation prohibiting traps in B.C. waters, “with the exception of seven
trap site at Sooke Vancouver Island,” there is no guarantee that at some future
date, trap interests may be successful in having this legislation revoked, and
traps legalized in any part of the B.C. coastal waters; and

Whereas, several bills are now before the Washington legislature drafted
with the express purpose of getting traps back in Washington, where previous
to 1934, “this was the year when they were taken out when Initiative No. 77
was passed,” traps in that State took out 70 per cent of Fraser River sockeye;
and

Whereas, we consider that Canada’s insistence on allowing seven traps at
Sooke, after Washington removed 219, constitute a convincing argument for the
trap interests in Washington to have them restored; now therefore,

Be it resolved, that we petition the Dominion Government to pass the
necessary legislation during the present session, prohibiting the taking of salmon
by means of traps in B.C. coastal waters; and be it

Further resolved, that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Prime
Minister of Canada, the Dominion and Provincial Department of Fisheries,
the Department of Labour, Ottawa, the Department of Indian Affairs, Ottawa,

_A. W. Neil, M.P., Alberni, B.C., Grant McNeil, M.P., North Vancouver, B.C.,

the Board of Trade, Prince Rupert, B.C., the Trades and Labour Council,
Prince Rupert, B.C., the Native Brotherhood of B.C., the Salmon Purse Seiners
Union of B.C., Vancouver, B.C.

Dated at Queen Charlotte City, B.C., February 15, 1939.
Signed:

CHAS. VALLEY, Chairman.
BILL WALHOMULLY, Secretary.
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PRINCE RUPERT CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
“Develop the North”

Prince Rurpert, B.C,,

March 1, 1939.
Mr. CHas. VALLEY, '
Chairman, Fishermen’s Association,
Queen Charlotte City, B.C.

Dear Sir,—This will acknowledge receipt of a copy of your resolution
dated Feb. 15th dealing with the question of fish traps.

In regard to the matter, this Chamber of Commerce has on several occasions
placed itself on record with the Government that it is definitely opposed to
fish traps anywhere of any description. b

We will notify our member Olof Hanson, M.P., who has also fought for
thehcancellation of all fish trap licences, that you have taken this matter up
with us.

Yours very truly,

Secretary.

PRINCE RUPERT TRADES & LABOR COUNCIL

Prince Rupert, B.C., March 10th, 1939.

Orar Hanson. M.P.
Parliament Buildings,
Ottawa, Ont.

DEAr Sir,—At a recent meeting of the above Trades Council, the following
resolution was passed, and the hope expressed that you would see your way
clear to give it your undivided support.

Whereas: The Fishermen on the Pacific Coast have gone on record many
times in favour of the abolition of fish traps and other destructive gear; and,

Whereas: Regardless of the fact that the Dominion Government in 1937
passed legislation prohibiting traps in B.C. waters (with the exception of seven
traps at Sooke, Vancouver Island) there is no guarantee that at some future
date, trap interests may be successful in having this legislation revoked and
traps legalized in any part of B.C. waters; and,

Whereas: Several Bills are now before the Washington Legislature drafted
with the express purpose of getting traps back in Washington, where, previous
to 1934 (this was the year when Initiative No. 77 was passed, and they were
taken out) traps in that state took 70 per cent of Fraser River sockeye, and,

Whereas: We consider Canada’s insistence on allowing seven traps at
Sooke after Washington had removed 219, constitutes a convincing argument
for trap interests in Washington to have them restored; now be it therefore,

Resolved: That we petition the Dominion Government, through the Hon.
Minister of Fisheries, and our Federal Member at Ottawa, to pass the necessary
legislation during the present session of Parliament, prohibiting the taking of
salmon in B.C. waters, by means of traps.

Dated at Prince Rupert, B.C., March 10th, 1939.
J. J. GILLIS,

President.

T. H. ELLIOTT,
Secretary.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS ‘
Tumspay, April 25, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 a.m.
Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince) presided.

Members present: Messrs. Coté, Deslauriers, Ferron, Hanson, MacLean
(Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton North-Victoria), Mayhew, McAvity, McCul-
loch, McDonald (Souris), Michaud, Neill, Pottier, Reid, Robichaud, Taylor
(Nanaimo), Tustin and Veniot—(18).

Also present: Mr. A. Sylvestre, M.P.

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Depart-
ment of Fisheries.

The Committee resumed its consideration of Bill No. 15 and proceeded
with the Saguenay River situation.

The Honourable Mr. Michaud filed with the clerk of the Committee, for
printing in to-day’s minutes of evidence, the following documents which the
clerk read.

. P.C. 360, dated February 13, 1922.

. P.C. 307, approved February 18, 1922.

. Copy of a telegram sent to Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., of Montreal, dated
March 29, 1939.

: C(ngg()f a letter received from Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., dated March 30,

939.

. C({;g)ggof a letter addressed to Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., dated March 31,

Mr. Michaud also made a statement clarifying paragraph 4 of the memo-
randum printed as appendix 1 to the minutes of evidence of April 17.

—-— [VVI

(5]

Discussion followed.
Mr. Rodd was recalled and questioned.
The witness retired.

The Committee discussed the advisability of hearing Mr. Aimé Geoffrion,
K.C., of Montreal.

On motion of Mr. Pottier:—

Resolved,—That Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., of Montreal, be given an
opportunity to appear before the Committee, on behalf of the companies he
represents, at the next sitting and that he be asked to reply before that date.

Some discussion took place regarding the advisability of having witnesses
appear before the Committee with respect to trap, seine and gill net fishermen.

It was agreed that this question should be considered and decided at the
next meeting.

At 1 o’clock, the Committee adjourned until Friday, April 28, at 11 a.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,

& Clerk of the Commattee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commons, Room 268, April 25, 1939.

, The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CuarMAN: Gentlemen, let us proceed. I understand it is the wish of
the committee to discuss further this question of the Quebec situation.

Hon. Mr. Micuaaup: Mr. Chairman, at the last meeting of the committee I
gave an undertaking to file some documents which had been referred to by some
of the witnesses, and I have here a copy of an order-in-council dated the 13th of
February, 1922, and another dated the 18th of February, 1922. They are the
two orders-in-council which were referred to. I have also a copy of the cor-
respondence with Mr. Aime Geoffrion which was referred to and which I stated
I would file. I have also a copy of a telegram which I forwarded to Mr.
Geoffrion on the 29th of March, 1939, and a copy of a letter from Mr. Geoffrion
to me dated the 30th of March, 1939, and a copy of a letter which I forwarded
to him on the 31st of March, 1939. The committee decided at the last meeting
to print these documents in the record, and I understood they would be pro-
duced at the next meeting. I therefore produce them for the record.

Mr. Cotk: Could those documents be read to us?

The Cuarrman: Certainly, if it is the wish of the committee and if the
documents are not too lengthy.

(Clerk reads copy of order-in-council 360.)

P.C. 360

CerTiFiep copy of a Report of the Committee of the Privy Counecil, approved
by His Excellency the Governor General on the 13th February, 1922.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before them a report,
dated 13th February, 1922, from the Minister of Marine and Fisheries,
submitting as follows, with reference to a minute of council of April 13th,
1921 (P.C. 1246), authorizing the Minister of Marine and Fisheries to
undertake the administration of the fisheries in the tidal and navigable
waters of Quebec that are accessible by way of navigation from the sea:—

1. That following such authority, the Department of Marine and
Fisheries undertook the administration of the fisheries in all the
aforementioned waters, and allowed no one to fish therein, in a
fishery in which licenses were required, without first procuring a
license from it;

That as under the privy council decision of November 30th, 1920,
the province has the exclusive power to grant the right to fix engines
to the soil, where the soil is vested in the crown in the right of the
province, so far as such engines and the affixing of them do not
interfere with the right of the public to fish or prevent the regulation
of the right of fishing by private persons without the aid of such
engines, and as most of the licensed fishing in the province of Quebec
is done by means of engines that are attached to the soil, the
provincial authorities during the past season refused to allow anyone
to fish with appliances attached to the soil where it claimed the
ownership of the soil without first procuring a license from them
authorizing the use of such fishing engines.
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Thus the fishermen, through no fault of their own, were placed in the
position of having to proeure two licences and pay two sets of fees before
they could engage in fishing. Also under such conditions should it hap-
pen at any place that a fisherman who had procured a licence from the
federal authorities were refused one from the provincial authorities, or
v%ce versa, he would be unable to fish and no fishing could go on at that
place.

This dual jurisdiction also required dual expenditure in the adminis-
tration of the fisheries, as each authority found it necessary to maintain
a staff of fishery oﬂicers

The minister states that with a view to putting an end to such an
undesirable state of affairs, he arranged for a conference with representa-
tives of the provincial government, and to that end the Minister of
Colonization, Mines and Fisheries and the Deputy Attorney General
for the province of Quebec came to Ottawa, and on the 13th February
instant the minister discussed the whole matter with them. At this con-
ference it developed that the provincial authorities, in view of their
interest in the river fisheries, and of the necessity for their maintaining a
staff of officers for the proper administration and protection of these
fisheries, are prepared to undertake, under proper regulation by the
federal government as to conditions under which such fishing may be
carried on, the responsibility for the administration of all the coastal
fisheries of the province as well, with the exception of those about the
Magdalen Islands.

The provincial authorities are also prepared to undertake the opera-
tion of the two fish hatcheries that the Department of Marine and
Fisheries is maintaining in Quebec for the development of the salmon
fisheries there.

In view of the important saving that would be involved to the
Federal Exchequer, and of the eminent desirability of removing as far
as possible all dual control in the fisheries, the minister recommends that
the entire administration of the fisheries, under the Fisheries Act and
regulations passed thereunder, be handed over to the provinecial authorities,
and that the staff of federal fishery officers, as well as the fisheries patrol
steamer Loos be withdrawn, such to become effective on April 1, 1922.

The minister further recommends that the Gaspe and Tadoussac
fish hatcheries of the Department of Marine and Fisheries, together with
all their appurtenances, be transferred to the provincial government of
Quebec on the 1st July, 1922, when the present season’s operations will
have been completed.

It is understood that the administration of the Fish Inspection Act
and of the Meat and Canned Foods Act, in so far as it affects the fisheries,
will be continued in the province of Quebec by the Department of
Marine and Fisheries as heretofore, and that the said department will
undertake the administration in that province of all federal enactments
that, may become effective regarding the improvement of the handling,
packing and curing, ete., of fish.

The minister also recommends that a copy of this minute, if
approved, be forwarded to the Lieutenant-Governor of the province of
Quebec for the information of his government, and that he be requested
to state whether the arrangements recommended herein are acceptable to
his government.

The committee concur in the foregoing recommendations and submit
the same for Your Excellency’s approval.

(Sgd.) RODOLPHE BOUDREAU,
Clerk of the Privy Council.
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Mr. Rem: By that orcier in council the dominion government simply handed
over the rights?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, to the province.

(Clerk reads copy of report of Executive Council, dated the 16th February,
1922, No. 307.) :
No. 307

Concerning the administration of the Fisheries in the tidal and
navigable waters of Quebec that are accessible by way of navigation
from the seat.

The Honourable the Minister of Colonization, Mines and Fisheries,
in a report dated the 16th February (1922), sets forth: that an order
in council of the government of Canada, P.C. 360, was passed on the
13th February, 1922, reading as follows:—

P.C. No. 360

Certified copy of a report of the committee of the privy council
approved by His Excellency the Governor General on the 13th Feb-
ruary, 1922.

The committee of the privy council have had before them a
report dated 13th February, 1922, from the Minister of Marine and
Fisheries, submitting as follows, with reference to a minute of
council of April 13th, 1921 (P.C. 1246), authorizing the Minister
of Marine and Fisheries to undertake the administration of the
fisheries in the tidal and navigable water of Quebec that are accessible
by way of navigation from the sea;

1. That following such authority, the Department of Marine
and Fisheries undertook the administration of the fisheries in all
the aforementioned waters, and allowed no one to fish therein,
in a fishery in which licences were required, without first procuring a
licence from it;

2. That as under the privy council decision of November 30th,
1920, the province has the exclusive power to grant the right to fix
engines to the soil, where the soil is vested in the crown in the right
of the province, so far as such engines and the affixing of them do
not interfere with the right of the public to fish or prevent the
regulation of the right of fishing by private persons without the aid
of such engines and as most of the licensed fishing in the province
of Quebec is done by means of engines that are attached to the
soil, the provincial authorities during the past season refused to
allow any one to fish with appliances attached to the soil where it
claimed the ownership of the soil without first procuring a licence
from them authorizing the use of such fishing engines.

Thus, the fishermen, through no fault of their own, were placed
in the position of having to procure two licences and pay two sets
of fees before they could engage in fishing.

Also under such conditions should it happen at any place that
a fisherman who had procured a licence from the federal authorities
were refused one from the provincial authorities, or vice versa, he
would be unable to fish and no fishing could go on at that place.

This dual jurisdiction also required dual expenditure in the
administration of the fisheries, as each authority found it necessary
to maintain a staff of fishery officers.

The Minister states that with a view to putting an end to such
an undesirable state of affairs, he arranged for a conference with
representatives of the provincial government and to that end the
Minister of Colonization, Mines and Fisheries, and the Deputy
Attorney General for the province of Quebec came to Ottawa, and




94 STANDING COMMITTEE e e

on the 13th February instant the minister discussed the whole matter
with them. At this conference, it developed that the provineial
authorities, in view of their interest in the river fisheries, and of the
necessity for their maintaining a staff of officers for the proper
administration and protection of these fisheries, are prepared to
undertake, under proper regulation, by the federal government as
to conditions under which such fishing may be carried on, the
responsibility for the administration of all the coastal fisheries of
the p(Iiovince as well, with the exception of those about the Magdalen
Islands.

The provincial authorities are also prepared to undertake the
operation of the two fish hatcheries that the Department of Marine
and Fisheries is maintaining in Quebec for the development of the
salmon fisheries there.

In view of the important saving that would be involved to the
federal exchequer, and of the eminent desirability of removing as
far as possible all dual control in the fisheries, the minister recom-
mends that the entire administration of the fisheries, under the
Fisheries Act and regulations passed thereunder, be handed over
to the provincial authorities, and that the staff of federal fishery
officers, as well as the fisheries patrol steamer “ Loos ” be withdrawn,
such to become effective on April 1, 1922,

The minister further recommends that the Gaspe and Tadoussac
fish hatcheries of the Department of Marine and Fisheries, together
with all their appurtenances, be transferred to the provincial govern-
ment of Quebec on the 1st July, 1922, when the present season’s
operations will have been completed.

It is understood that the administration of the Fish Inspection
Act and of the Meat and Canned Foods Act, in so far as it affects
the fisheries, will be continued in the province of Quebec by the
Department of Marine and Fisheries as heretofore, and that the
said department will undertake the administration in that province
of all federal enactments that may become effective regarding the
improvement of the handling, packing and curing, ete., of fish.

The minister also recommends that a copy of this minute, if
approved, be forwarded to the Lieutenant Governor of the province
of Quebec for the information of his government, and that he be
requested to state whether the arrangements recommended herein
are acceptable to his government.

The committee concur in the foregoing recommendations and
submit the same for your excellency’s approval.

(sgd) RUDOLPHE BOUDREAU
Clerk of the Privy Council

That the arrangements set out in the said order-in-council are
satisfactory and in conformity with the views held by the government of
the province of Quebec.

The hon. the minister therefore recommends that the said arrange-
ments be accepted by this government and that a copy of this order-in-
council be forwarded to the Governor General of Canada for the
information of his government.

Certified

(Sgd.) A. J. MORISSET
Clerk, Ezecutive Council.
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o March 31, 1939.
Amve GrorrrioN, Esq., K.C,
112 St. James St. W., Montreal.

DEear Sir—I beg to acknowledge receipt of your letter of the 30th
instant with regard to bill No. 15 amending the Fisheries Act.

According to the wish already expressed, I shall take note of your
request and shall advise you before recommending the order in council
against the Saguenay Power Co., Ltd., or the Aluminum Co., Ltd.

For your personal information, I am sending you, herewith, the copy
of a document submitted to the department by the Hon. Minister of
Fisheries at Quebec with regard to this question.

I remain,
Yours very truly,

J. E. MICHAUD,
Minaster of Fishertes.

CANADIAN NATIONAL TELEGRAPHS

OrTawA, March 29, 1939.
Amve GeorrrioN, Esq., K.C,, !
Barrister, Solicitor,
Montreal.

Bill number fifteen amending fisheries act referred to committee of
marine and fisheries and may be up for consideration on Mondays and
Fridays. ¥

J. E. MICHAUD,

Minister of Fisheries.

March 30, 1939.
The Hon. J. E. MicHAUD,
Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa.

Honourable Sir—I thank you for your telegram with regard to
bill No. 15 amending the Fisheries Act.

I have no objection to the bill.

What I would like as I stated to you in my letter of the 1st instant,
is that no order in council authorized by the present Fishery Act as
well as by the bill be passed against the Saguenay Power Company, Ltd.,
or the Aluminum Power Company, Ltd., two companies which have dams
in the Upper Saguenay river, known as the “Grande Decharge,” as
requested by Mr. Gagnon, Minister of Fisheries at Quebec, before I have
given my evidence.

You are the judge. I have objections to offer to the request of Mr.
Gagnon and I would not like to be sentenced before being heard.

(Signed) AIME GEOFFRION.

Hon. Mr. MicaHAUD: Now, there is another little matter I would like to
bring to the attention of the committee. At the last meeting a memorandum
was read which appeared as an appendix at page 87 of the minutes of evidence
of April 17, and paragraph 4 reads as follows:—

4. Pending a settlement of the above mentioned question, arrange-
ments were made with the various provinces concerned, with the exception
of Quebee, whereby the Department of Marine and Fisheries continued to
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administer the fisheries as p/reviously. With Quebec it was arranged,
pending such settlement that the dominion government would continue to
administer the fisheries on the north shore of the Gulf of St. Lawrence east
of Point des Monts, and around the Magdalen Islands as formerly, and
that the administration of the fisheries west of Point des Monts as well as
most of those on the south shore of the river and Gulf of St. Lawrence
would, pending settlement, be administered by the provincial authorities.

Now, this paragraph as drafted might lead people to believe that at the
time the government of the dominion agreed to leave to the jurisdiction of the
federal authorities most of the fisheries on the south shore. For the sake of
clarity and precision I want to make this correction in the last part of this para-
graph. The line of demarcation I understand was established on the south
shore as well as on the north shore, and though the paragraph in the memorandum -
would lead one to believe that there was no real line of demarcation established
on the south shore of the St. Lawrence, a line was drawn, a point was established
west of the line drawn from Point des Monts on the north shore to Cap Chat
on the south shore to be administered by the province; the rest including the
Magdalen Islands was to be administered by the federal authorities. On the
south shore the point of demarcation between the federal and provincial authori-
ties was Cap Chat.

Mr. Corg: The term south shore means also the Bay de Chaleur and the
St. Lawrence and Gaspé and Bonaventure shores?

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Yes, that is my understanding. That is what I was
told.

The Cuamrman: Just looking at this document casually it appears that the
province has pretty nearly the full control. »

Mr. Rem: That has not been decided. I would ask the minister, has the
fact that the union government by order-in-council handed over to the province
separate rights— A

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I do not admit that the government did do that,
whatever the wording of the order-in-council may be. I understood when I
took charge of the administration of the department that the attitude of the
federal government was that they would agree to keep their hands oﬁ" certain
waters in the province of Quebec, and because the province had in 1922
undertaken to be responsible for the cost of administrating the fishery legisla-
tion over certain waters, that the federal government had been satisfied to
withdraw and keep away from those waters and that has been the attitude that
has been taken by my department.

Mr. CoT%: Under the judgment of the privy council when anybody wanted
a licence to fish he went to the federal authority and the province of Quebec
maintained that the province also had a right to issue a licence for salmon
because the fishermen were attaching their fishing gear to the bottom. That is
the reason the order-in-council was passed.

Hon. Mr. Miceaup: The province wanted to maintain their property rights
and their jurisdiction over property, and' the federal authority wanted to main-
tain its administrative jurisdiction which was confirmed by the privy council,
and there you had the two authorities which resulted in conflict: some people
who applied to the federal officers for licence to fish were given licences and
when they applied to the provincial authorities for the right to attach their gear
to the bottom they might be refused that authority and be brought to court.
There were difficulties for two years and a settlement was brought about by
an agreement which was recited in the order-in-council which we have just
heard read.
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Mr. Cork: With regard to that letter from Mr. Geoffrion to the minister, I
do not want to appear rude but I believe there is a trap in this letter—it may
be a legal trap. Here is what Mr. Geoffrion says: “I have no objection to
the bill”; but he adds in the third paragraph, “what I would like, as I stated
to you in my letter of the 1st instant, is that no order-in-council” and no law
should be passed “before I have given my evidence. You are the judge. I have
objections to offer to the request of Mr. Gagnon,”—the Minister of Fisheries
. in Quebec—“and I would not like to be sentenced before being heard.”

It appears clear from reading that that he had no objection to the bill, but
that he has an objection to offer. That is something I cannot understand. He
says he has no objection to the bill, but he says: Don’t condemn me, don’t
pass that bill before I have been heard.

Mr. NewL: He does not say, “don’t pass the bill”, he says don’t take action
against my clients under the bill. :

Mr. Cott: No, he says: - “What I would like, as I stated to you in my
letter of the 1st instant, is that no order-in-council authorized by the present
Fishery Act as well as by the bill be passed against the Saguenay Power Com-
pany, Ltd., or the Aluminum Power Company, Ltd., two companies which have
dams in the Upper Saguenay river, known as the ‘Grande Decharge’, as requested
by Mr. Gagnon, Minister of Fisheries at Quebec, before I have given my evidence.

You are the judge. I have objections to offer to the request of Mr. Gagnon
and I would not like to be sentenced before being heard.”

Mr. NemL: Before the minister gives an order. He does not object to
the legislation.

Mr. Coré: I do not exactly understand what he means; but he said he had
no objection to the bill but he wanted to be heard anyhow. If he wants to be
heard it must be absolutely on the legality of the bill. To the best of my
belief I think Mr. Geoffrion should be heard. I understand that the minister
wrote to him that he would be welcome to appear before the committee, but
I really believe that the committee through the chairman should notify Mr.
Geoffrion to come here if he wants to and be heard as he requests in his letter.

Mr. NemL: It is quite clear that he does not object to this bill; he wants
to be heard before the minister gives an order under the bill.

Mr. MaysEw: If necessary, I would make a motion to the effect that in
view of the fact that the validity of the present bill is in question, any amend-
ment to the bill must also be questioned, and I would, therefore, move that the
bill be referred to the supreme court for decision and that the matter be settled
before we start out making any other bills or amendments to it.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: I do not think it is correct to say that the jurisdiction
of the federal parliament to pass the present legislation is questioned in any
respect; I do not see how it could be stated that there is some question of the
jurisdiction of the dominion parliament to pass the bill which is now before
this committee. I do not think there is any question whatsoever that the
Fisheries Act, which it is sought to amend, has been questioned or is questioned.
I do not see what could be referred to the Supreme Court of Canada. I fail to
see what question could be referred to that body.

Mr. Cort: I wonder if the hon. member (Mr. Mayhew) would be satisfied
to amend his motion to state that Mr. Geoffrion should be heard first so that
after the committee have heard him we can decide to submit the matter to
the supreme court if necessary. We would get a opinion on that from Mr.
Geoffrion, and then we might decide afterwards whether it is worth while to
submit the case to the supreme court.

Mr. NemL: Mr. Geoffrion has been invited to come here.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes, by that telegram, by myself. The moment the bill
was referred to the committee I felt it my duty to notify Mr. Geoffrion as well
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as to notify the government of Quebec that this bill was before the committee,
and I did so, and anyone who wanted to oppose or support it was free to come
here and do so. I do not think it was my duty to invite them to be here or to
tell them that they should be here; it is for them to act as they feel justi-
fied to act. 5

Mr. SynvesTrE: But he did not say that he would not come.

Mr. MayaeEw: The motion has not been seconded and it is not necessary
to withdraw it. I was under the impression from what the minister said that
the bill was in question and that is why I made my motion. I am prepared to
forget it.

Mr. Hanson: Since there is no objection to the bill and since Mr.
Geoffrion has only asked the minister not to take any action under the bill
until such time as he has an opportunity to be heard, I think the only thing for
us is to accept the bill as drafted, or accept the amendment to the bill as drafted
by the department and let it go at that. We have really had no objections to
the bill from anywhere. The minister states his legal opinion on it, and we
have a right to accept the amendment for that reason, Mr. Chairman. There-
fore, I move that we accept the amendment which has been sent to the com-
mittee by the government; and whether the minister takes any action after the
bill is passed with regard to the objections that may be placed before him we
have nothing to do. I move, therefore, that the amendment be accepted as
presented.

Mr. Syvvestre: May I say a word, Mr. Chairman?
The CrHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Sywvestre: The position is this: the company wrote to me, and they
are opposed because they claim that since the dams have been built—the two
dams—there are more fish in the lake than there were before; and that is true.
These dams, as a matter of fact, do not do any harm to the fish in lake St.
John; they increase the number, especially because the fish cannot reach the sea
now. Furthermore, it has not been proven that these dams did any harm to
the fish in lake St. John. Now, according to this the companies are expected
to pay $10,000 a year for a hatchery. That is a lot of money to pay to keep
open a hatchery—it will not cost that much. There was a hatchery built a few
years ago on lake St. John and certainly they did not spend $10,000 there; they
spent just a few hundred dollars.

Mr. Coré: I believe that argument is serious. The salmon come from
the north shore of the Bay of Chaleur and from the sea, and they are supposed
to replenish the lakes and fresh water rivers; but as Mr. Sylvestre says, there are
more fish. If there are more fish than there were before it is impossible that
it would be justice to tax those two companies $10,000 a year, which represents
$200,000 at 5 per cent. I do not think that would be a just thing to do. When
the dams were built, had they cut off the way for the fish to get to the lake from
the sea it would be different—the province would have suffered damages—but
instead of suffering damages there are more fish in the lake and in the rivers
than there were before. Why impose a tax of $10,000 a year upon these two
companies when they have not done any harm by the improvements which they
have made with their dams?

Mr. SyLvesTrE: The best protection which the province gave to lake St.
John was to prohibit nets, and I think that caused a great increase in the
number of fish.

Mr. NeLL: Are the fish in the lake the same as- before—salmon?
Mr. Cori: There are no salmon. There cannot be any salmon if the fish

do not come from the salt water. In the Atlantic region the salmon come down

the rivers to the salt water in the fall. They go to the salt water and they
fatten themselves during the winter and they come back in the beginning of
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- June and go up the rivers to spawn. Then they come back afterwards in the
~fall. It does seem, however, that no salmon were going up that way because
the distance was too great, I suppose, and the sea trout did not either, it was
only the soft water fish.

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: It is not the salt water fish; it is an inland fresh
water fish—land-locked salmon or ouananiche. »

Mr. Coré: The ouananiche is supposed to be salmon that was a real
salmon thousands or millions of years ago but they were caught inland by an
earthquake, and they changed from a real standard salmon to a kind of salmon
that is called ouananiche. The flesh is red and it is a fighting fish, but it is not
a salmon any more.

Mr. NemLL: Are they good eating?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Very fine, so they say. The last ten years we have
not got any—the last fifteen years.

The Cuamrman: I would like to hear from Mr. Rodd on this question. We
had his evidence on the last day, and I should like to hear from him again.

Mr. McAvity: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Rodd gave evidence that if you did
build a hatchery above the falls it would not stop the fish going down. What
would be the use of building a hatchery if you cannot keep the fish in the
lake, because the fishing waters below, according to Mr, Rodd’s evidence, have
been destroyed. There is no fishing ground below, so if you cannot keep the
fish in the lake what is the good of building the hatchery?

Mr. SyLvesTRE: There are fish in the lake now.

Mr. Ropp: The ouananiche, according to the records and evidence that I
have—the best ouananiche fishing was in the water that is now flooded out by
these two dams, but in addition to that, as Mr. Sylvestre said this morning,
there is excellent fishing for ouananiche in some of the tributaries—the Peri-
bonka and the Metabetchowan—they are probably two of the best. The
hatchery that was operated made its distributions in the tributaries to the
lake and the object of another hatchery would be to supplement the natural
reproduteion in the lake itself and the tributaries to the lake, forgetting about
the part that has been destroyed by the dams.

Mr. McAviry: How would you keep the fish from going over the falls?
Mr. Ropp: I do not think that would be possible. They have a very
splendid habitat in the lake itself and in the tributaries. Now, Mr. Sylvestre
says that the fishing has improved. The information I have received from the
provincial government is that it has not improved, that it has deteriorated since
the dams were built, so there is one statement against another.

_Mr. Coré: Have you been given the species of fish that are supposed to
be in that lake? Have you been told by Quebec that salmon or sea trout were
going up there?

Mr. Roop: The game fish of the lake is the ouananiche. There are others
such as pike and whitefish.

Mr. Coré: Quebec does not say that ouananiche go to salt water?

Mr. Ropp: No, but I do not think there is any doubt but that some of the
best fishing for euananiche was between the outlet of the lake, say a couple of
miles below the outlet to the lowest rapids above Chicoutimi.

Mr. Syrvestre: For a eouple of months in the summer time.

Mr. Robp: The fishing in the rapid water has now been flooded out.

Mr. McAvity: That fishing ground has been destroyed, has it?

Mr. Roop: That fishing ground has been destroyed, that is true. The
Metabetchowan hatehery that 1 have referred to was not in the nature of a
permanent hatchery, I understand, and that it was more or less of a seasonal
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affair because they ran it only for about four years. It was not an establish-
ment like the one at Tadoussac which is of a permanent nature. Now, the cost
of construction of that hatchery would only be a fraction of the cost of putting
up a modern hatchery. Any kind of a fully equipped hatchery will run from
$15,000 to $40,000 in construction costs.

Mr. SyvvesTrRE: And how much does it cost to operate a year?

Mr. Ropp: Between $7,000 and $18,000 a year depending upon the extent
of the operations.

The CuammaN: Those hatcheries which are there now are operated by
the provincial government?

Mr. Ropp: Yes.

Mr. NewL: What did you say was the capital cost?

Mr. Ropp: I am speaking of the hatcheries in the east—$15,000 to $40,000.

Mr. Hanson: That is the cost to build them?

Mr. Robp: The cost to build them, including the rearing ponds that go

“with the Atlantic salmon and the trout hatcherv

Mr. Cork: According to what you just said, the only damage that was
suffered because of the building of the dams is the fact of a couple of miles—

Mr. Roop: It is more than that; it is twenty odd miles.

Mr. Cori: The fish had to go up the tributaries.

Mr. Roop: The principal fishing was in the Grande Decharge. I say this
subject to correction, but would it not be over twenty miles from where the good
fishing started to where it ended?

Mr. Corg: I am pointing that out because I understand that that part of
the bill which obliges the people to build fishways when they are erecting
dams is to facilitate the passing of the fish from the salt water to the soft water.

Mr. Robp: Yes, that is right.

Mr. Cor#: It does not exist in that case. The only thing the people are
suffering from covers about eighteen or twenty miles of river which is not fished,
but the dams do not prevent the fish going up. Instead of fishing in the lower
twenty miles, the people have to fish up the river and in the tributaries. So we
never lost any fish in the province; it is only a displacement of the fishing.

Mr. Ropp: There is the other section of the Act that is under consideration.
That is, in case a fishway is not practicable that the company be obliged to
contribute towards a fish hatchery.

Mr. CorE: Yes, but it is not for the same purpose for which the bill has
been passed—to provide for the fish to go up—not because the fishing grounds
were displaced, but to secure the number of fish coming from the salt water;
and it does not exist in that case.

Mr. Roop: That contention is scarcely correct, is it, Mr. Minister?

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: What?

Mr. Roop: That contention is not correct. There are two sections of the
bill; it is the other section that is under consideration.

Mr. Corg: I am not saying that is so; I am asking you if it is so.

Mr. Roop: I thought you did say so.

Mr. Corg: I was not telling you what it is; I was asking you what existed.

Mr. Mayuew: Would the passing of this b111 create a precedent that mlght
damage the Fraser river?

Mr. Roop: It would apply all over Canada.

Mr. Mavaew: I think British Columbia had better take a little time to
consider it before we pass it.
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" Mr. Tayror: I would like to ask the minister whether this bill is not
designed with the idea of covering the whole of Canada, and in the event of
large hydro work being undertaken on a river like the Fraser river the bill would
then be constituted so as to deal with the companies, assuming such works were
constructed? '

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Indeed.

Mr. Tayror: Then, it seems to me, Mr. Chairman, that this bill should be
considered in the light of its application to the whole of Canada. In that
case one can understand the message from Mr. Geoffrion in which he says that
he has no objection to the bill, but that he does not want to be convicted and
condemned before he has been heard. That, it appears to me, would be an
attempt to vindicate the position of his company when it comes to be declared
by the minister: Now, you have to pay $10,000 a year. He wants to say,
“well, the fishing up above the dam is better than it was before, and why
impose this on us; let the existing conditions remain.” That is the way the
picture appears to me, Mr. Chairman, and I would suggest that we are quite
correct in accepting the general tenor of this bill and leaving the matter of the
issue that will arise afterwards under the law to the minister to be determined
when he meets Mr. Geoffrion on account of his clients.

Mr. MavaEw: Would Mr. Taylor’s suggestion mean that each dam would
have to be thought out on its own basis rather than settled on a broad rate
before the dams are built? :

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That would be the effect of this legislation.

Mr. Rem: Am I right that under the present Act the only penalty clause is
in section “D” and these amendments put a $4 a day penalty as well as having
section “D”? It is provided where a sufficient flow of water is not going over
the spillway.

Hon. Mr. MicaauD: The penalty applies to all the sub-sections.

Mr. Rem: What is going through my mind is this: you are still leaving
section “D” in there and there you have a $4 per day penalty clause.

Hon. Mr. Micaauvp: The $4 penalty clause does not apply only to para-
graph “D”| it applies to all the provisions of all the four paragraphs, A, B, C, and
D; because if you read section 57 it says, “every owner or occupier of a slide,
dam or other obstruction across or in any stream” shall be liable to a penalty
pf not less than $4 and not more than $20: (A) where the minister determines
it to be necessary for the public interest, ete., etc., (B) where the minister
determines that the provision of an efficient fishway or a canal around a slide,
dam or other obstruction is not feasible, etc., etc.; and then there is (C) and (D)
but the last three lines of section 57 apply to all the provisions of all the four
paragraphs.

Mr. Rem: I thought that as the Act stands without any change whatsoever
you have one penalty, clause (D), apart from section 57 (a); and the minister
administers it in the public interest; and in clause (B) the minister says what
he determines is necessary, and in clause (C) it says, “where the minister requires
the installation and maintenance of such fish stops or diverters,” and then you
come to (D), “where the minister determines it to be necessary to provide a
sufficient flow of water over the spillway.” As the Act still stands you have the
final clause which states $4 per day and not more than $20 for each day as a
penalty, and the way I take it is that if these amendments go through you will
have two new sections, and the amount may be any amount which should be
de’germlned by the minister in the case of obstructions and in the case of
building of hatcheries. When you come down to clause (D), “where the
minister determines it to be necessary to provide a sufficient flow of water over
the spillway,” the penalty will be $4 and not over $20.
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Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: It remains as it is. The effect of the bill which is
now before the committee is to take out paragraph (B) of section 57, as it stands
in the original line and to make a new section to provide for the conditions
which are not provided for in section 57 (B).

Mr. Reip: It may be any sum set by yourself as minister.

The CuamrMAN: There are one or two questions I would like to be clear
about, and possibly the minister could give us some information with regard
to them. As the matter stands now, the jurisdietion over these waters is in
the provincial government.

Hon. Mr. MicuHAaup: No, I did not say that; I did not admit that, and
nobody ever claimed it. The situation is simply this: the administration of the
regulations which are made applicable to these waters is undertaken by the
provincial authority; that is the extent to which I admitted.

Mr. NemL: I take the position you have handed over the administration
of the fisheries; you did not hand over the ownership of the fisheries.

Hon. Mr. MicaAaup: No, we could not do that.

Mr. NemwL: You only handed over the administration.

The CratrmaN: We simply allow them to spend their money and take the
responsibility.

Mr. TayrLor: As a matter of fact, I assume, we did not hand over anything.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: No.

Mr. Tavror: We allowed them to go ahead.

Mr. Core: They are just managers for us.

The CHAlRMAN: I can hardly see that, because in this appendix 1 the last
clause reads:—

For the purpose of putting an end to such an unsatisfactory eondi-
tion of dual jurisdiction, an agreement was reached, confirmed by
dominion order-in-council of February 13, 1922, and provincial order-in-
council of February 18, 1922, whereby the province would administer
all the fisheries of Quebee, inland and coastal, with the exception of those
about the Magdalen Islands. The Magdalen Island fisheries remained
with the dominion government.

Now, if the government here passed an order-in-council giving them that
power and the Quebee local authority passed an order-in-council accepting the
responsibility, I cannot for the life of me see how until those orders-in-council
are cancelled or revoked—how the jurisdiction is not in the provincial govern-
ment.

Hon. Mr. MicrAuD: If you read them again, Mr. Chairman, you will see
that it is only the administration that has handed over—the administration of
the regulations.

Mr. COtE: Let me illustrate that. I was the provineial member for my
riding for twenty years, and I believe until 1936, for about four or five years,
through the Fisheries department I always asked in January and February
to have an extension of the smelt fishing for four or five or six or seven or eight
days and it was always referred from Quebec to the department here at Ottawa
and it was always refused, and we had to comply with the orders. It means that
Quebec manages but Ottawa rules.

The CuAmRMAN: Yes.

Mr. CotE: Ottawa always refuses.

Mr. NemwL: Don’t you always grant those requests?
Hon. Mr. Micaaup: When they are reasonable.




g ~ Mr. Rem: I am wondering if this would actually work out in a practical
 way, and I am taking the new amendment 57 (a): “Where the minister de-
termines it to be necessary”; and then in (b) you say where the minister
determines it is not feasible. You say it is not feasible to build a slide, or a
canal around a slide.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The first thing that has to be done is: the minister
has to determine; the minister is given the power to determine that the fishway
is not feasible.

Mr. Rem: Here is the point I am coming to: all the spawning areas above
such slide, dam, are destroyed.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is the second point.

Mr. Rem: What are you going to assess them for? For the purposes of
constructing, operating or maintaining such complete hatchery establishment
as will in the opinion of the minister meet the requirements? If the fish can .
neither go up nor down and it is not feasible to build a canal around the slide
or dam what good would the hatchery be?

Hon. Mr. MicuaAaup: You must apply this to the case which is actually
before us.

Mr. Rem: Take the case which is actually before us. No fish can go up
at all and yet they have a hatchery above. Now, this amendment you are
putting through is to compel the establishment of hatcheries to meet the require-
ments for maintaining the annual run of migratory fish. I cannot see, if it is
not feasible in your opinion to build something around an obstruction, what
use there will be for a hatchery. You could not simply take the eggs from
the obstruction above, you have to get the fry to go up.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The young fry does not have to do down to go to
salt water. You are speaking with the picture of the Fraser river in your
mind and the protection of the salmon which have to resort to salt water and
go to sea, but that is not a case that will apply to this class of fish which does
.not have to go to sea once in a lifetime.

Mr. Cort: As I said before, this is the reason why the bill should not be
passed. If the fish do not go to salt water there is no harm done.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The only harm that is done—and the only thing
that the Quebec government wants to correct—is that the hatching or annual
propagation and angling has been destroyed in the tributaries south or below
the dams down to Chicoutimi. I might say that is the point we have in mind.

Mr. Corg: Mr. Rodd, have you any evidence that the spawning grounds
have been destroyed by the dam?

Mr. Ropp: No.

Mr. Corg: The bill was just passed to boost the spawning of the fish.

Mr. Roop: You mention spawning grounds. We have definite proof that
all the lower area is flooded out, and we have Mr. Chambers’ report written in
1896 that he has found salmon in a spawning condition just in the rapids above
Chicoutimi; and he has also seen in September large numbers of small fry. The

two together would certainly indicate that there must have been spawning there.
The two would indicate that, would it not?

Mr. CorE: When was that?
Mr. Robp: That was in 1896.
Mr. Cort: 1906?

Mr. Robp: 1896.

Mr. CoTé: 18967

Mr. Robp: Yes.



Mr Coré: But that is not in 1924.

Mr. Roop: I have nothing about that in 1924.

Mr. Corg: I had people tell me that around Montmorency falls they do
not get any. You have not seen them there for fifty years. They do not go in
there any more. 3

Mr. Roop: There is certainly some confusion in regard to migration, or
migratory fish. Migratory, as we understand it, does not mean that the fish
has to go to sea—that it necessarily has to go to sea. :

Mr. Rem: This Act, if it applies to the province of British Columbia, does
not go far enough. .

Mr. Ropp: This applies to the province of British Columbia.

Mr. Rem: Then I say it does not go far enough.

Mr. Ropp: A migratory fish is a fish that may go to sea or it may go from
a lake to a river or back again. This will apply to British Columbia.

Mr. Rem: I understand that it does. But I say that I do not think it
goes far enough, now that we are amending the act.

Mr. Roop: I do not know anything about that.

The CuamrMAN: When I asked the minister the question about jurisdic-
tion, he said that it was only the administration of the act that was handed
over to the provincial government.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is right, yes.

The CuARMAN: Then in administering the act, the provincial government
built a hatchery above the dam; is that right?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

The CuAmrMAN: Has the provincial government made any complaints
against these companies with regard to destroying the fisheries there?

Mr. Core: This is the first we have had.

Mr. SyLvestrReE: The first time.

Mr. Core: Tt is fourteen or fifteen since they built these dams. They
were never called on to build fishways or pay a fine. Fifteen years after every-
thing is done, they are called on to pay a fine; and they cannot see that they
have done any harm, because the fish do not go up there.

The CuamMmAN: If the provincial government has made no complaint, has
the public generally in that community made any complaint?

Mr. SynLvestRE: No. :

The CuamrmaN: There has been no complaint from either the provineial
government or from the people?

Mr. SyLvesTre: I have never heard of any, except maybe a few sportsmen
who used to go, in the summer time, to fish in the rapids in the Grand Discharge.
Now they are going up in the rivers and they get the same amount of fish.
They had to change their location.

The CuamrMAN: If there is no complaint from the provinecial government,
and lif? there is no complaint from the public generally, why the amendment
at all?

Mr. Porrier: I think there was a letter from some lawyer. I think we
had some correspondence.

Mr. Ropp: There was a complaint inasmuch as the provincial government
has requested this notice to be served on the companies.

Mr. Porrier: When?
Mr. Robp: Last year.
The CHamrMmAN: Has the provineial government asked for this?
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Mr. Roop: The provincial government requested the dominion government
to serve notice on the company.

Mr. Corg: To do what?

Mr. Ropp: To serve notice on the company to contribute towards hatcheries
~ as provided in the act.

Mr. CotE: That was nineteen years after the dams were built.

Mr. Roop: The dams started about 1925. There is one point that has not
been brought up in regard to administration. I will quote from the Order in
Council that was given to you this morning—“Are prepare to undertake under
proper regulation by the federal government.” That is provided in the Order
in Council.

Mr. NemL: P.C. 360?

Mr. Roop: The Order in Council of February 13, 1922.

Mr. NeiLL: What paragraph?

Mr. Roop: Page 2, paragraph 2. J

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Chairman, I should like to observe that, in the minutes
of evidence on the 3rd of April, at page 1, there is a long letter to the minister
signed by O. Gagnon, and after reciting the case he says:—

Mr. Geoffrion is therefore legally applying the statute.

I would like to know in the circumstances, if you would be disposed to
send the notice provided at paragraph (b) of section 57, to the following
gentlemen, with a view to obtaining from each of the said companies a
yearly contribution of $5,000 for the construction, operation and main-
tenance of an entire hatchery.

In case the said companies should refuse to comply with your notice,
I would appreciate that you let me know if you would agree to take
procedures against them, after the 30-day period had expired, by exacting
the maximum fine provided in section 57.

I think it is obvious from that letter that the whole of this reference has come
to this committee. »

Mr. Core: That was last year.

Mr. Tayror: The date of Mr. Gagnon’s letter is September 13, 1938.

Mr. Core: Yes. That means that Mr. Gagnon, fourteen years after the
dams were built, called upon the federal government to take action against the
two companies for $10,000 which would be paid to the province of Quebec.

The CHARMAN: Is the committee in favour of having Mr. Geoffrion come
here and give evidence?

Mr. NemwL: He does not want to come.

Mr. Porrier: I think so. I understand there is a question of jurisdiction
between Quebec and the federal government, and we had better go cautiously
. before we step into any definite stand that we cannot withdraw from. I think
. 1f we can get any light on it, we should do so.

‘ The Cuamrman: I think we are more or less in the dark unless we hear from
an authority such as Mr. Geoffrion who is acting for the company.

Mr. Porrier: I think so.

The CrHARMAN: What is the wish of the committee?

.. Mr. Newn: I would refer the committee to section 20 of the act. It is the

identical thing which we are now being asked to pass, with this difference, that

we are going to ask them to put up an annual sum. This is what section 20

reads, after reciting exactly the same thing, if it be determined by the minister

that it is not feasible to build a fishway or provided the spawning areas above
77356—2}



such are destroyed, “The minister may require the owner or occupier of such
slide, dam or other obstruction, to pay to him, from time to time. . . ” That
is the whole difference. “To pay from time to time such sum or sums of money
as he may require to construct, operate and maintain such complete fish hatchery
establishment. .’ The only difference is that as it is now they will pay
from time to time and they want to make it an annual payment. If we throw
out this bill, we still have section 20 where it clearly says exactly what I have
read. The only difference is they would come upon them for the whole cost of
the dam—that is $40,000 or whatever it is—whereas now they are asked to provide
an annual sum. That is the whole difference between section 20 which is still in
the act and section 57 as it is proposed. i

Mr. Rem: I am sorry the minister is not present, because I should like to
have told him what prominent lawyers have said about this Fisheries Act. They
have said that the whole thing should be serapped and rewritten because any time
they have endeavoured to take any action in law, they have had to amend it.
A very prominent K.C. told me it was the most loosely written act in the whole
dominion. That point was just up a minute ago. .

Mr. NemwL: A worse one is the Indian Act.

Mr. Rem: They had to amend it twice last year.

Mr. Haxson: You had better make that recommendation.

Mr. Remp: Speaking about an amendment, I should like to see one to that
section, because we are making it an indefinable amount in the first section of
the act and in section (d) we are leaving it as it is, $4 per day, which would not
be adequate in a river like the Fraser. .

Mr. Tavror: If a dam is erected there, the chances are it would destroy
all your fish

Mr. Rem: I should like to see that change made in the act, if it is deemed
advisable so to do.

Mr. McCurrocu: I think the companies are having a hard enough time
to get along without any other penalty being put on them. Most of those com-
panies are just struggling along now.

The CuamrMAN: In the absence of the minister, I do not know whether
or not we can do very much more with this bill'today. What is your opinion?

Mr. Pormier: Are you going to get Mr, Geoffrion? Are you going to wait
for his views or opinions?

The CuHamRMAN: I am going to wait for the views of the committee.

Mr. NemLn: Perhaps Mr. Pottier was not here earlier when a letter was
read, or a wire, from the minister to Mr. Geoffrion inviting him to come, or tell-
ing him the thing was coming up. He did not indicate that he wanted to come.
It was read today, I think.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Mr. Nemmn: That might be read again, that telegram from the minister to
Mr. Geoffrion.  The clerk might read it again. By the way, what is the date of '
it?

The Crerk: It is dated March 29, to Mr. Geoffrion, and reads:— ,

Bill No. 15 amending Fisheries Act referred to Committee of Marine ;
and Fisheries and may be up for consideration on Mondays and Fridays.

On March 30, Mr. Geoffrion answered:—

I thank you for your telegram with regard to Bill No. 15 amending
the Fisheries Act. I have no objection to the bill.

What I would like, as I said to you in my letter of the first instant, is
that no order in councii authorized by the present Fisheries Act as well
as by the bill be passed against the Saguenay Power Company Limited or
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the Aluminum Power Company Limited, two companies which have dams
in the upper Saguenay river known as the “Grande Decharge,” as request-
ed by Mr. Gagnon, Minister of Fisheries at Quebec, before I have given
my evidence. i

You are the judge. I have objections to offer to the request of Mr.
Gagnon and I would not like to be sentenced before being heard.

Mr. McCuLrocH: I would give him a chance to be heard.
The CuammaN: He says he wants to give evidence. Where does he want

~ to give evidence? Here? ~

Mr. Cors: That is what I was wondering.
Mr. NeiL: He wants to give evidence before the minister as against the

. order in council. He is not kicking against the bill. He is kicking against any
- possible order in council.

Mr. Hanson: Action the minister may take after the bill is passed. That

is what he means.

Mr. NemLL: Yes.
Mr. Cote: It would be too late to kick afterwards.
Mr. Ropp: His protest is not against the bill but it is against the act. Is

 that not right?

Mr. Nemwn: No; it is against any possible action taken under the bill.
Mr. Robp: Yes, the act.
Mr. NemiLL: An order in council.

Mr. Cork: He says he offers no objection to the bill. He wants to be
heard afterwards, before an order in council is applied to this company. I think

- he would be too late. The law would be the law.

Mr. Hanson: I would send him a wire from the committee referring to
the wire he sent to the minister that he wants to be here, and let him know.
Tuae CuarMAN: We could notify him right away if we could agree on the
date of our next meeting—if it is to be this week or next Monday or whatever
date it would be—and say that we were not clear whether he wished to give
evidence before the committee, that we would sit on such and such a day, and
if he wished to be here and present any argument, we would give him a chance

~ to do so.

Mr. Nemn: And ask him to be here at that time.

Mr. Roop: Might I correct my last statement? What I intended to convey
was that Mr. Geoffrion is protesting against the act as it stands; his protest

' that he submitted is against the act.

Mr. NemwwL: I do not agree with you.

Mr. Ropp: He is protesting against the legislation as it stands.

Mr. Nemwwn: No. All he says is that he wants to be heard against the
present act.

Mr. Roop: Yes. That is what I say.

Mr. NemL: He says they have not power under the present act to sue
his company.

Mr. Roop: That is what I wanted to make clear, that he protests against
the present act.

Mr. NeiLL: No. He is also saying if the act is amended to give you power
of putting teeth into the bill, then he wants to be here. ¥

Mr. Rem: I would take it from his letter that he is not agreeing. Even
though he says “I have no objection to the bill”, we know how lawyers speak.
They say, “I have no objection, but I do not agree with it; go ahead and do
what you like but you are all wrong.” That is not saying for one moment that
he is agreeing with the bill or the act at all. :
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Mr. Tayror: You had better see what tools he has in his work box. Some-
body had better write a letter and see if he is ready to come. i

The Cuammax: Ask him for a reply?

Mr. NeiLn: If you are going to do that, why not get the company here?

Mr. TaviLor: He is the company.

Mzr. Haxson: He represents the company.

Mr. Porrier: We should get the two sides of this thing.

Mr. Ropp: This matter applies to the whole of Canada, not to these two
companies only.

Mr. Rem: I was going to suggest that, after we hear Mr. Geoffrion, the
thing be referred for further consideration. My view is that if it was dra.wn
up, it was drawn up at the instigation of Quebec or some interest in Quebec;
and now when we come before the committee it is evident that it applies to the
whole of Canada, the whole nine provinces. In view of that, we must view
the amendment as it applies to a river like the Fraser.

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask what Mr. Reid has in his
mind about the Fraser river in connection with this bill.

Mr. Rem: It will only take me a minute to tell you. It is well known
that the Fraser river has been charted, plotted and planned by engineers of the
provincial government; and it has been so well done that any company desiring
so to do could make application to the provincial government for the right to
manufacture power above Hope. Some of the dams that would have to be
constructed would be exceedingly high; and I can foresee a difficulty arising
there should they proceed with their application and in the event of the appli-
cation being granted. I have stated publicly and stated before the authorities
in Victoria that the civil servants and those having to do with Victoria are
very keen to grant those rights to some provincial company to make power.
lI)Ilaving that information, I must say I regard this bill as being a very serious

ill.

Mr. Tavror: Of course I am at one with you in recognizing the importance
of the Fraser river. But would the passing of this bill be against any correct
action that might be taken on the Fraser river?

Mr. NemL: No.

Mr. Rem: Let us take section (d) in the act as it is now:—

Where the minister determines it to be necessary to provide a
sufficient flow of water over the spillway or crest with connecting sluices
into the river below, to permit the safe and unimpeded descent of fish,
who after three days’ notice in writing, neglects or refuses to provide
such shall be liable to a penalty of not less than four dollars and not
more than twenty dollars for éach day or part of a day during which
such notice is not complied with.

That means that any company doing that, ignoring the demand made by the
Minister of Fisheries, could very well afford to pay that $4.00 per day, some-
thing like $1,460 per year; or at $20.00 per day, if the fine was the maximum,
it would only be $7,300; because in the constructing of sluices it might take

$2,000,000.

Mr. TayrLor: Then there is a good reason why this bill should be passed.

Mr. Rem: Not be passed. I am objecting to section (d) as not going
far enough.

Mr. Tavror: Not going far enough? .

Mr. WarrMmore: Not going far enough. It goes part way.

Mr. Rem: It does not go far enough; and I say that now it has been
opened up, this is the time to consider it.
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Mr. Tayror: I see. - :

g Mr. Nemw: I have a suggestion to make, Mr. Chairman. I feel inclined
~ to agree with Mr. Hanson and Mr. Taylor that we pass this bill as it is. 1
think it will do us good in British Columbia, because any power plant coming
along will face this situation: They have got to take care of the hatcheries,
as the case may be. There is a different situation down here where, as Mr.
Sylvestre points out, they have waited ten or twelve years before they have
asked for this. He also points out with a good deal of truth, apparently, that
it has not affected the fish going up and down—that there is plenty of fish
in the lake. I should not like to see British Columbia, who have no personal
interest in the Quebec situation, overrule our friends from Quebec. How
would it be if we adjourned and let the Quebec members meet the minister
and discuss with them what his position would be when an application came
up to deal with these two particular features? Then, perhaps, it might be
agreeable to pass the bill as is.

The CrarrMAN: I think that is a good suggestion.

Mr. NemwL: Because he has the whole say; and he might say, “I consider
$5,000 is ridiculous. I will cut it down.” A little compromise discussion might
meet the situation. As far as British Columbia is concerned, I do not see
much wrong with it. I think it is a good thing.

Mr. Porrier: I think that would be putting the minister on the spot, to
go and ask him what he is going to do if a certain thing is done.

~ Mr. Nemi: It would not be putting him on the spot. Those things are
not done,

Mr. Porrier: I agree with you. But I suggest that going to the minister
and asking, “What will you do if we do so-and-so?” is putting him on the spot.

Mr. Nemwn: No. That is putting it coarsely.

Mr. Porrier: I think we are going a little too far. I think we should
pass it on its merits ourselves and discharge our responsibility, without depend-
ing on what the minister is going to do about it. It is either good or bad.
Suppose this minister passes out. We do not know what is going to happen
to another minister, and we are just as badly off as ever. He might have
different views. The thing is either good or bad in itself.

Mr. Mavuew: I think there is a doubt in the mind of most of us yet
whether it is good or bad. That is the reason that I think we should go slowly
until we have definitely cleared it up in our minds.

The Caamman: I feel very strongly that we should hear Mr. Geoffrion.

Mr. Porrier: To bring this thing to a head, I will make a motion that
Mr. Geoffrion be asked to appear before this committee at the next meeting.

Mr. Coré: I second that.

~ Mr. Nemwn: Mr. Geoffrion is a high-priced man. If you send to have
him in any capacity, he will want $200.

Mr. Porrier: We pay nothing. He is representing his company.

Mr. NemwL: Ask him if he wants to come.

The Cuamrman: I think it would be well to communicate with him and

tell him that if he wants to appear on behalf of his company, he has an
opportunity of doing so.

Mr. NemL: Do not tell him to come at $200 a day.
Mr. Porrier: I did not have that in mind.
The Cuamman: That is the only reason I hesitated to have a motion

passed by the committee at all. If we pass a motion here asking him to
appear, then we commit ourselves.

Mr. Porrier: No, I do not want to do that. .I will put it this way, that
we give him an opportunity on behalf of his company of appearing.
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The CuarMaN: To make representations. ‘
Mr. Porrier: Yes. ' 48
Mr. Rem: Before you put the motion, might I ask Mr. Rodd what the
definition of a migratory fish is. It is new term being used. :

Mr. Ropop: It is not defined in the act, Mr. Reid. It is a general term.
Any of the salmon that go from the sea to fresh water to spawn are migratory.
Also other fish as well to the extent to which they migrate—speckled trout
from lakes to the tributary streams, or vice versa.

Mr. Rem: It covers all varieties?

Mr. Robp: Yes; so long as they have a well defined migration.

Mr. Tavror: I wonder if the British Columbia members would agree to
asking the minister to put heavier molars into this act so as to suit the
B.C. Case?

Mr. Rem: Heavier what?

Mr. Tayror: Molars—grinders—teeth.

Mr. Rem: I should like to see that done.

Mr. Nemwrn: While we are dealing with that invitation to Mr. Geoffrion,

I would add to that that he be asked to reply, so that we will know when we
meet again. Ask him to send a reply. He can sent it collect if he likes.

Mr. McAvrry: I should like to ask Mr. Rodd if a hatchery is a suitable
substitute for a slide for migratory fish. It does not seem to me that it is
practical. You take the eggs from the fish below the dam and hatch them
above, and then the fish tumble down over the dam or else they cannot go
back again.

In some cases it is not practical for them to tumble over the dam. They
would be killed going over. It does not seem to me that a hatchery is a suitable
substitute for a slide. '

Mr. NeiLn: In a lake forty miles long, there would not be many going
over the dam.

Mr. McAviry: Then they are not migratory.

Mr. NemL: Is that lake forty miles long?

Mr. SyLvesTrE: Twenty-five.

Mr. CoTE: Morevoer, the fish never go over.

Mr. McAviry: I was not speaking of that particular case, I was speaking
of all Canada. Is a hatchery at a dam a suitable substitute for a fish slide?

Mr. Rem: No.

Mr. Roop: You are bringing up the question of the small or young salmon
getting through, are you? j

Mr. Rem: It brings up the whole question, I think.

Mr. McAviry: Yes.

Mr. Roop: Yes, but it is getting them down. I do not know. In the
Columbia river they have spent $7,000,000 in fishways, in fish passes. They
maintain that they are going through satisfactorily. Mr. Reid has other advice.

Mr. Rem: I have advice to the contrary.

Mr. Roop: Yes.

Mr. Rem: To the effect that various varieties are going down year by year.

Mr. Ropp: In our experiments, fish that go through turbines are killed,
to a very large extent. As opposed to that, we have reports from Scotland,
that they are going through turbines there under a head of 100 feet.

Mr. Rem: That is the hard-headed Scotch.

Mr. Roop: Yes, that is the hard-headed Scotech. We have had coqﬂicting
evidence and the department is planning to earry on further investigations on
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~ that point. I was at a plant and they assured me that there was no trouble
in getting fish over the dam in Washington state, at Baker lake outlet. That
was 240 feet. They maintained that the fish that were going down in the
water were going down alright and it was those that worked toward the edges
and the surface. ..

Mr. NeiL: They came through the spillway?

Mr. Robp: They came over the spillway; at that point the fish were not
going through the turbines. The entrance to the turbines was down low and
the fish were swimming high; and the turbine draw had no effect because they
were swimming high. They were affected by the drag over the spillway. The
matter is so complicated that each situation is a problem in itself.

Mr. Rem: Yes. But what would be your view if I should ask your opinion
in the event of a dam being constructed across the Fraser river, in the light
of the knowledge of the Columbia, realizing that the fish even from Hope
ascend 500 miles up, after they leave Hope, into the interior rivers and lakes
of British. Columbia? You are leaving a loophole, in my opinion, for the
company to get away from paying something and putting up sluices or something
in the way of taking care of your fish now. I do not believe any amount of
money would compensate for the loss in the Fraser river. That is my own
view, subject to correction.

Mr. Roop: What would be the value of the Fraser river fishery?

Mr. Rem: I beg your pardon?

Mr. Roop: What is the possible value or probable value of the Fraser
river fishery?

Mr. Rem: That is hard to estimate.

Mr. Roop: That is what T mean. It is hard to estimate; so when you ask
me questions like that, I find it very difficult an answer. T can see that if that
happens in the Fraser a very difficult situation would be created.

Mr. Rem: I reckon that the fish are worth $20,000,000.

Mr. Ropp: $20,000,000 or $30,000,000?

Mr. Rem: That is a lot of money.

The CuamrmaN: There is a motion before the committee now, and I will
read it. It is that Mr. Geoffrion be given an opportunity to appear before the
committee on behalf of the companies he represents at the next meeting and to
let us have a reply before that date. Are you ready for that motion?

Some Hon. MemBErs: Carried.

The Cuamrmax: That is agreed. I suppose it is almost too late to take up
the British Columbia matter, but there is one thing to which I wish to direct
the attention of the committee. We did invite the Pacific coast fishermen to
appear here, and we have had no reply.

Mr. Rem: I do not think they want to appear.
The CuAmRMAN: The wire read: —

“

]

No decision arrived at re hearing witnesses stop committee wish to
know if all unions interested could combine in having not more than two
representatives appear before committee providing committee decide hear
evidence stop meantime your union can file brief if desired.

Mr. NemwLL: Who did you send that to?

The CuamrMaN: The Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union, 164 Hastings Street,
Vancouver, B.C.

Mr. NemnL: On what date?
The CaamrMaAN: The date on which it was sent is April 3rd.
Mr. NemL: You received no answer?



The CuamrMAN: No answer.

Mr. Rem: We really did not invite them. We merely asked them in that
wire in the event that the committee decided to hear witnesses, if they would
try to amalgamate and send two representatives.

.The CuarMAN: Yes.

Mr. Rem: That is why I raised objection when you mentioned that.

Mr. Hanson: I can see reason for delay because they cannot do it in one
day. They want to get in touch with the different organizations and the differ-
ent organizations would have to hold meetings and decide on this; and it is
only two or three weeks since they were communicated with.

Mr. Nemwn: Did you write?

The CrarRMAN: No, it is a telegram.

Mr. Hanson: But they have to have communication with the opposite
side of Vancouver island, Vancouver north, New Westminster. It takes a
couple of weeks. g

Mr. Rem: I do not think they took very long last time to notify them
when it was decided.

Mr. Mayuew: That is the wire I objected to at the last meeting. You
were not here, Mr. Chairman, but I objected to the part where you said “not
more than two.” You are not going to get the trap interests, the seine net
interests and the gill net interests to combine. If they send down two, you are
going to have one of each, which means that one would be left out. You had
better have three.

Mr. Nemww: I think the idea was that we would ask them separately. We
would not ask them to combine.

Mr. Mayaew: We could do that.

Mr. Nemwn: We have to do that now.

Mr. MayHEW: As long as the trap nets are on the same basis as the others,
it is all right.

The Cuamrman: That wire was practically in reply to this wire to the
chairman dated March 11th:

Request permission practical fishermen this association appear before
your committee re traps stop suggest government assume cost transporta-
tion and sustenance.

Mr. Nemwn: When did you get that?

The Cramrman: That was one they sent us on March 11th.
Mr. NemwL: They have exhibited a desire to come.

The Cuamman: This was the reply:—

No decision arrived at re hearing witnesses stop committee wish
know if unions interested could combine in having not more than two
representatives appear before committee providing committee decide
hear evidence stop meantime your union can file brief if desired.

Mr. Nemwn: Perhaps they are trying to get the various bodies to unite.
That may be.

Mr. Mayuew: All I want is the door left open so that if the trap net
interests try to send someone down to represent them, they may do so on the
same basis as the others.

Mr. NemwL: Oh, yes. There is no exclusion of them.

Mr. Rem: If we had a quorum—

Mr, NemL: Why does Mr. Mayhew not move that they be asked if they
would like to send a representative? Why do you not move that the trap
netters be asked if they would like to send one?
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Mr. Rem: I was going to suggest that if we had a quorum we could have
discussed the question of the advisability of witnesses, because that matter
should come up at our next meeting, when we get into this,—whether the com-
mittee is going to have witnesses or not. These telegrams have left the matter
on the table just to be decided. ' :

The CuamrMaN: We can wire them again if it is the wish of the com-
mittee and ask them if they wish to appear; we can ask them for a reply.

Mr. NpiLL: Or will they submit a brief.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. :

Mr. Hansox: I think myself we cannot go any further on this trap situa-
tion unless we have some witnesses or briefs from them. :

Mr. NemL: Yes. They are apparently keenly interested. I got a petition
yesterday and another to-day—I have added them up and I should think there
would be about 2,700 names on them—which they have asked me to present
to the house. They said they were going to send some more later on; so
apparently they are actively prosecuting the matter.

Mr. Tavror: There is an industry out there of making institutions.

Mr. Rem: We do not know what is going to happen with reference to the
session. No one can forecast that.

The CuamrMAN: No.

Mr. Rem: We have not so many more meetings left.

The CramrMAN: No.

Mr. Rem: Here we are at this late date undecided as to witnesses, and it
takes time to negotiate with them.

The CuHamrMAN: It is largely in the hands of the British Columbia men.
They are all here. If you want to wire them to send their witnesses, all right.

Mr. NemwL: Ask them if they would be willing to appear.

Mr. Mayuew: We have given them an invitation and have not heard from
them. I would suggest that we carry on with our business, taking it for granted
that their silence meant that they were not interested.

Mr. Nemws: We did not do that with Mr. Geoffrion. When Mr. Geoffrion
did not reply, we sent another wire to him. Why not to these people?

Mr. Porrier: Well, Mr. Geoffrion did reply.

Mr. Nemwu: Yes, he did; and we are going back to him again.

Mr. Tayror: That is what we appear to have done about the fishermen.
They asked for the privilege of being heard and we wrote them and told them.

Mr. NemwL: Yes.

Mr. Tavror: We have dealt fairly with them, and I want to deal absolutely
fairly with every one. Whatever fairness is extended to them must be extended
to all others.

Mr. NeiLL: Surely. There is no need to set up straw men and knock them
iilowra. No one is trying to interfere with the right of the trap interests to be

eard.

Mr. Tayror: I am glad to hear that.

~ Mr. Nemwn: I think we should invite them. If we invite one, we should
invite the others. This should not be going down on the record, should it, if we
have not got a quorum?

Mr. Mayaew: That is quite all right; but we should not have had to
fight to have the door left open for them. It was brought up at the first meeting
when you first proposed it. I objected to two coming down then; yet the wire
was sent which definitely asked for two.



- Mr. Nens: Pardon me.” T thmk the chalrman addxenaed Hm!elf’
~ fishermen, not to the trap netters. 7
Mr. TavLor: Do I understand that this is going down when there is no
quorum? »

: Mr. Hanson: There is a quorum here. We have eight.

‘Mr. Tavror: What is the quorum?
The Crerx: Ten.

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps it should not be taken down

_ After further discussion, the committee adjourned at 12.45 p.m., to ‘meet
again on Friday, April 28, at 11 a.m.

’
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Fripay, April 28, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 a.m.,
- Mr. A. E. McLeAN (Prince) presiding.

Members present: Messrs. COté, Hanson, MacLean (Prince), MacLean
(Cape Breton North-Victoria), Mayhew, MecAvity, McCulloch, MeDonald
. (Sowris), Michaud, Neill, Pottier, Reid, Robichaud, Taylor (Nanaimo) and
. Veniot. (15). Y i

Also present: Mr. A. Sylvestre, M.P.

In attendance: Mr. J. A. Rodd, Director of Fish Culture, Department of
Fisheries; Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Department of
Fisheries; Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., Montreal, Que.

The CuammAN read to the Committee:—

1. Telegram sent to the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union, dated April 26.

2. Telegram received from the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union, dated

April 26.

3. Letter sent to Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., of Montreal, dated April 26.

4. Telegram from Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., dated April 27.

5. Telegram in reply to Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., dated April 27.

The clerk read a letter received from Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, dated April 27,
in which he makes a suggested amendment to Bill No. 15.

The Committee resumed its consideration of Bill No. 15.
Discussion followed with respect to the question of migratory fish.
Mr. Rodd was recalled and further examined.

On motion of Mr. Hanson:—

Resolved,—That Section 57A (1) be amended by adding, after the word

“obstruction,” in line 3, the words “which he deems necessary for the public
interest.”

On motion of Mr. Hanson:—
Resolved,—That Sections 1 and 2, as amended, be passed.

Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., of Montreal was called and examined.

The Committee considered the amendment of Mr. Neill contained in the

Order of Reference dated March 2, 1939, viz:—That the following be inserted
as a new section.

Section 32 is hereby amended by inserting the following subsection
2 thereof: “After the calendar year 1939, no one shall use a salmon trap

net in any of the Pacific waters of Canada off the South-Westerly shores
of Vancouver Island.”

Mr. Neill filed with the clerk particulars respecting gill-netting in the Sooke
Area and it was agreed to print them in to-day’s minutes of evidence.
T1575—1} i




In respect to the proposed amendment of Mr Nelll and on motlon of ‘
Mr. Hanson:— '

Resolved,—That all words after the word “Canada” be deleted.

On motion of Mr. Hanson, the amendment of Mr. Neill, as amended, was
adopted.

By unanimous consent, Mr. Pottier moved, and the Committee agreed, that .'
Mr. Neill’s amendment contained in the Order of Reference, as amended by the
Committee, be reconsidered. -

Following discussion on the advisability of hearing further witnesses regard-
ing trap fishing, it was moved by Mr. Taylor that the Committee hear no further
witnesses and it was agreed that the Chairman telegraph the Pacific Coast
Fish%rlxélen’s Union and the trap owners asking them to submit briefs as soon as
possible.

At 1 o’clock, the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.



MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

Housk or Commons, Room 268,
April 28, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 o’clock.
The Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CHalrMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum; let us proceed. Before
we go on with the question we were discussing at our last meeting I shall tell
you what has been done in the meantime. I wired the Pacific Coast Fisher-
men’s Union on April 26th the following wire:—

Wired you April ‘third suggesting unions interested could combine
to have representatives appear before committee if we decide to hear
same or if they wish file a brief Stop Up to present have had no reply
Stop Wire your suggestions as have further meeting twentyeighth
instant.

Mr. Rem: When did you send that telegram?
The CuamrMAN: The day of our last meeting, the 26th of April. We got
this reply:—
Received all your telegrams can send witness to committee provided
government meet expenses.

A. V. HILL,
Secretary.

So that they are still waiting to hear from us whether they are going
to come or not. Now, that deals with the British Columbia situation.

After you left the last meeting, Mr. Minister, it was suggested that I
should write to Mr. Aime Geoffrion and ask him whether he wished to appear
before the committee. 1 wrote him on April 26th as follows:—

A GeorrrioN, Esq., K.C.,
Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud’homme,
Barristers and Solicitors,

112 St. James St. W., Montreal.

Dear SirR,—As chairman .of the Marine and Fisheries committee
in the House of Commons, T have been requested to write you in con-
nection with the power dams on the Saguenay river, as I understand that
you represent the two companies interested in the power situation there
and, therefore, are also interested in the amendments to the Fisheries
Act which are now before the committee.

. My purpose in writing you now is to advise you that the committee
will meet on Friday, the 28th instant, at 11 o’clock, House of Commons,
for further discussion to the amendments to the Act, and if you wish to
make any representations on behalf of the companies which you repre-
zegt the committee would be pleased to give you the opportunity of

oing so. :

Would you kindly reply either by letter or by wire, letting us know
if it is your wish to appear before the committee.

Yours very truly,

A. E. MacLEAN,
Chairman, Fisheries Committee.



Now the first document we received from Mr. Geo
dated Montreal, April 27th, which read as follows:—

STANDING COMMITTE!

[T

ffrion was a telegram

A. E. MAcLEAN,
Chairman, Fisheries Committee, Ottawa.

Cannot reach Ottawa before twelve Stop 1 am writing you my
criticism in case that is too late.

AIME GEOFFRION.

I received a letter from Mr. Geoffrion and I have the letter here.
- Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Would you have that letter read?

(Clerk reads letter.)

GEOFFRION AND PRUD’'HOMME
Advocates and Barristers

112 St. James St. W.,
Montreal, April 27, 1939.
Mr. A. E. MAcLEAN,
Chairman, Fisheries Committee,
House of Commons, Ottawa.

DraR S1R,—I confirm this morning’s telegram reading as follows:—

Cannot reach Ottawa before twelve. I am writing you my
criticism in case that is too late: :

The point I wish to make may probably be stated fully in a letter.
I do so in view of the possibility of my not reaching the committee in
time.

I represent the companies owning dams on the Grande Decharge
which connects Lake St. John with the Saguenay at Isle Maligne and
at Alcoa or Racine.

I do not understand the legislation to be aimed at my companies
because, as stated in the explanatory notes, it is only intended to provide
for payment of an annual sum instead of “a sum or sums of money ”;

the amendment also apparently provides for an action to recover instead

of a penalty.

We have no objections to these two alterations.

The point I wish to raise is a different one.

I construe the existing section 57 paragraph (b) as well as the
proposed section 57A as applying only to the case where a fish way
would be necessary; in other words, to a case where previously to the
building of the obstruction, the stream was used annually by migratory
fish. In other words, it is not intended to apply to a stream where there
was at the time no migration of fish, particularly when that condition
has existed since time immemorial.

I always thought that was the proper construction of the statute
because it is the only equitable construction; the only reason for the
payment by the builder of the obstruction of the cost of maintaining
a hatchery must be the damage he causes to spawning beds above it.
That view is supported by the statement in the fourth and fifth lines
that the destruction of the latter is by reason of the obstruction as
well as by the last lines of paragraph 1 where the requirements to be
met are those for maintaining the annual return of migratory fish.
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There is another confirmation of the view in section 20, paragraph
1 with which this new section as well as the existing section 57, para-
graph (b) are obviously connected. There, it seems that the whole
paragraph including the end requiring the owner of the obstruction to
pay for the hatchery is governed by the opening words that the minister
must determine that it is necessary for the public interest that a fish
pass should exist.

However, the wording is not overwhelmingly clear. I would suggest
to make the new section correspond to section 20 without doubt, that
there be added in the third line after the words “ other obstruction ” the
words “ which he deems necessary for the public interest.” They are the
words of section 20, paragraph 1. The doubt would be eliminated; of
course, other words would do but I would suggest these are probably
the best since they are those of the other section of the Act on the same
question.

Yours truly,
AIME GEOFFRION.

Mr. TayLor: In other words, they deny there were migratory fish.
Mr. NemwL: Is Mr. Geoffrion coming?

The CaamrMAx: Well, I wired him on receipt of the telegram as follows:—
Re telegram twelve satisfactory room four twenty-nine’
So he may be on the noon train.

Mr. NemwL: Would you mind reading the amendment again. He wants
to add something to 57(a); what is it he wants to add?

Mr. Rem: Might I ask the minister a question? I should like to know
if the amendment we have been offered took out of the Act the present sub-
section A?

Hon. Mr. MicuHAuD: The what?

Mr. Rem: Section 57.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Oh, no.

Mr. Rem: That is still left in the Act?

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: Oh, yes, the amendment proposed is in the third
line of section 57(a). After the word “obstruction” he suggests adding the
words, “which he deems necessary for the public interest.”

Mr. NemwL: There is no objection to putting that in, is there?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: No, it is simply to make it conform with the direct
provision of the Act, section 20,

Mr. Nemwwn: If that is going to make him happy, why not put it in?

The Cramrman: It gives the minister more control too—full control.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Oh, no. This is the penalty clause. The minister
is controlled by section 20.

Mr. Tavyror: It is merely structural embellishment, is it not?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

The CuAlrMAN: Painting the lily.

Mr. Vextor: Might T ask Mr. Rodd to give us a clear definition of the

term “migratory fish”? Does that mean fish that simply move up and down
the river or fish that move out to the sea?

Mr. Roop: The migratory term is pretty wide in its application. It is
sometimes apphegi to fish that move from salt water into and up rivers and
also when there is a case of a defined migration from a lake to a tributary

and back again. Migration simply means moving from one point to another
in the well defined manner.
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By M. Véniot:
Q. It is a very broad term?—A. Yes, it is a very broad term..

By Mr. Cété

Q. Would that principle apply in the present case?—A. Yes, it would
apply in the present case.

Q. How?—A. To the extent to which the fish moved from the lake to
the rapids and back again.

Q. Have you evidence of that—that the fish left the tributaries to go
down the lake and spawn?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: It is the other way about; they left the lake to go
to the tributaries to spawn.

By Mr. Cété

Q. Is there anything to prevent the fish from going up now?—A. The
fish that are below those dams are unable to get above; the fish that are below
are unable to get above the dams now.

Q. What I am asking is whether you have evidence that before the dams
were built fish were going up the raplds above where the dam is actually?—
A. The only evidence we have is published and I gave it the other day.

Q. That was in 1866.—A. 1896 and along about 1906. I think those are
the years, and the condition between 1906 and 1925 in the Grande Decharge had
not changed between 1906 and 1925.

Q. And in that report of 1896 do they say that fish coming from salt water
were going up—there were no salmon or sea trout, were there?—A. In the
1906 report, or in one of the reports from which I quoted, a 7-pound salmon
and a 16-pound salmon were caught in lake St. John. Now, they could not be
land-locked fish.

Q. No, it is impossible, because land-locked salmon do not go over three
or four pounds —A. Yes, a 6 pounder is a large one. Those fish, provided they
were salmon, and the report says that they were salmon and must have been
salmon—

Q. They must have been; but since that time no real salmon have been
seen above the rapids.—A. I have no knowledge of any.

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. Does not the usage of the word quite often determine the meaning of it?
—A. Yes. -

Q. I am inclined to think when this was drafted they used the word
“migratory ” in the sense that it was from sea to fresh water—A. I think
that is so.

Q. If that is right his letter is also correct; it should be correct.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. Is that word “ migratory ” put in any other part of the Fisheries Act
or just in this? Is it a new word used in the Fisheries Act in this connection to
define fish that move from fresh to salt water or from salt water to fresh water?
I do not remember having seen it before.—A. I do not remember having seen it.
I could not say unless I went over the Act. In its general application it refers
to sea fish. I am saying that subject to an examination of the Act. I do not
remember any other condition when it was used except in regard to salmon.

The Cramman: With regard to the word “migratory,” in the Migratory
Birds Act it refers purely to birds that go down south for the winter and return
here the following summer.
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: Mr. Ventor: The reason I ask for a definition of the word “ migratory ”
as applied to fish is that in my opinion the whole amendment revolves around
the definition of that term. If migratory fish applies only to fish that go out to
- salt water then this word “migratory ” here, this definition will change the
entire aspect of this Act, because there would be no question of migratory fish
~ involved by the construction of these dams. ,

Mr. Tayror: I think it was brought out, Mr. Chairman, that the fish went
down to some streams or quiet waters below the present site of the dams.

Mr. Vexior: The point I am trying to bring out is the difference between a
clear definition of “migratory ”; if it applies only to fish going down to salt
. water then this Act has no reason for existence, because there is no question of
~ migratory fish; if “ migratory ” is a broad definition, including fish that go to
salt water as well as fish that migrate from the lake down to a certain portion of
the river which is not salt water, then this Act may be applied, otherwise it
may not. A

Mr. Ropp: Under this section fishways have been installed in streams in
the prairie provinces where the most plentiful species of fish was the sucker.
I think “ migratory ” is very broad in its application.

By Mr. Neill (to Mr. Rodd) :

Q. Mr. Geoffrion says that before the dams were put there the fish never
went up into the lake and back again; is that so or not?—A. The evidence I
gave the first morning was all that I could find, and it was to the effect that the
fish not only came down but went up.

Q. Before the dam was constructed?—A. Before the dam was constructed.

Q. He says very definitely to the contrary.—A. I think everyone agrees that
the best fishing or best angling for the ouananiche was in the stretch in the
Grande Decharge approximately three miles below the lake and just above
Chicoutimi.

Mr. SyrLvestre: That is true. There must have been a movement of fish.

By Mr. Cété:

Q. How far from the dam is that?—A. Twenty odd miles from the
lower dam.

Mr. SyLvestre: From the lake itself it is more than that?

Mr. Roop: It is more than thirty miles, yes.

Mr. CoTé: I mean the piece where they used to fish for ouananiche.

Mr. Ropp: Thirty miles.

Mr. Coré: How far is it from the dam?

_é\’[r. SyrLvestreE: There were many places—everywhere where they had
rapids.

Mr. Roop: Everywhere where they had rapid water.

Mr. SyLvestre: And there was a long sweep of rapids.

Mr. Roop: I would say there was between twenty and thirty miles at
the least.
Mr. SyLvestre: Oh, yes.

Mr. Rem: Have you any record which would indicate or show the extent
of the fishing previously and afterwards?

. Mr. Roop: No, I have not, except that the best fishing has completely
disappeared since the dam was built; the best fishing water has been com-
pletely flooded out.
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The CaamrvaN: The department must have considerable evidence in other-
streams about salmon and sea trout going up over certain rapids. Could you

give the committee a little general idea of the height of rapids they will go
over and so forth?

Mr. Ropp: A good deal depends on the general condition, the turbulency

of the water and if the fall or decline or rapid is broken up by rocks and

obstructions that form eddies. Such fish as the Atlantic salmon can climb a

most surprising height. In the Mersy we had a fishway that overcame a height
of fifty-nine feet. Salmon went through the fishway and other fish as well.

Mr. Cort: Not in one bound?

Mr. Ropp: No, in a series of jumps.

Mr. Cote: Because I understand that the maximum height which a salmon
can climp in a straight fall is thirty feet. That is what I have heard.

Mr. Ropp: Yes. I think that would be the extreme height unless it is
broken up.

Mr Porrier: Generally speaking, fishways have not been very successful,

have they—not the type you have on the Tusket river, for example, with the
height they have there? I was just wondering.

Mr. Roop: As a rule, fishways for getting the fish up, in this department’s
experience, have been generally successful.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Provided there are fish to go up.

Mr. Roop: Provided there are fish to go up and that there is water to
come down.

Mr. NeiLL: We are discussing legislation which is proposed or has been
introduced into this house by the minister. We are now drifting into a dis-
cussion of how the minister will exercise his discretion under it, and I think
it is beside the point. Mr. Geoffrion is coming here in half an hour and
he is going to take up our time arguing that the minister should not use his
discretion under the Act as regards the two dams. But the minister is not on
trial here nor are his actions. It is this legislation. Mr. Geoffrion himself
said it is all right, with the exception of a little trivial amendment. Why
can we not pass this legislation? We are not responsible for the diseretion with
which the minister exercises his powers under it. That seems to me is between
him and possibly the provincial government and the dam owners. The dam
owner’s case is not before us, but this legislation is. Mr. Geoffrion is going
to take up our time arguing that the Act as amended or otherwise does not
apply to the dams. That is the case to discuss with the minister before he
makes up his mind about an order under the Act. It seems to me that all
we have to do to-day is to deal with this legislation. Is it good or is it not?

Mr. Rem: Speaking to the legislation, Mr. Chairman, I am just wondering
if it goes far enough at the present time. I take the last two lines of sub-
section (b) of section 57 which reads:—

As will in the opinion of the minister meet the requirements for
maintaining the annual return of migratory fish.

Mr. Robp: Yes.

Mr. Rem: If you were visualizing a dam being built across the Fraser
river, there is nothing in here to say what the annual return will be, as to
the amount.

Mr. Roop: No. It will be in the discretion of the minister.

Mr. Rem: We do not say what the annual return is, or the extent of it.
It just says “for maintaining the annual return of migratory fish.” If fifty go
up, it could be very well argued there was an annual return.

I
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: You are thinking of figures and money, in terms of
inecrease. The annual return does not mean the number of fish that can be
ascertained that go over that water. It is the return annually of the migratory
fish.

Mr. Rem: 1 see.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUuD: Annual return is the return annually of the fish back
and forth. '

Mr. Rem: I see that now.

The Cuamrvan: The minister seems to be prepared to accept the sugges-
tion of Mr. Geoffrion and add the words “which he deems necessary for the
public interest.”

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I should have no objection whatever to that. As
a matter of fact, it makes it conform with the direct stipulation of section 20.

Mr. Tayror: It may also be found in a test that.it will have an additional
value to you.

Hon. Mr. MicuHAUD: Yes.

Mr. TavLor: Where there is an attempt to increase the return of fish by
artificial propagation or otherwise.

Mr. Hanson: If the minister is prepared to accept those changes that Mr.
Geoffrion has suggested, and if there is no other objection, what is the use of
taking up any further time of the committee with the witness?

The CuamrMaNn: It might be well to have a motion. Does anyone wish
to move that amendment as suggested by Mr. Geoffrion and accepted by the
minister?

Mr. Hanson: I move that we accept it, if the minister has no objection.
I move that we accept the amendment that is presented, with the changes that
Mr. Geoffrion has asked for in the amendment.

Mr. Porrier: What does “public interest” mean? Does that mean the
interest of the power companies or the interests of the fish?

Mr. Nemn: Of the public.

Mr. Porrier: I am just wondering if there is something there that we are
letting ourselves in for.

The CramMan: It is leaving it, I would judge, more to the discretion of
the minister as to what he deems in the public interest.

Mr. Porrier: I think we are narrowing the thing rather than broadening
it. That is what I am afraid of. I am just wondering.

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: No, I do not think so. If you read section 20 of the
Act, paragraph 1, you will find this:

Every slide, dam or other obstruction across or in any stream where
the minister determines it to be necessary for the public interest that a
fish-pass should exist, shall be provided by the owner or occupier with a
durable and efficient fishway, or canal around the slide, dam or other
obstruction. . . .

and so on. The suggestion that Mr. Geoffrion makes is that section 57 (a),
which we are seeking to enact, being the penalty clause for the violation of the
provisions of section 40, should conform in terms and phraseology to the enact-
ment of section 20, paragraph 1. That is ail that suggestion means.

Mr. Rosicuaup: Where would the words come in?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: After the word “obstruction” in the third line.

.The CHA;RMAN: If we knew for sure if our friend Mr. Geoffrion was
coming, we might bide our time until twelve o’clock; but we are not definitely
sure.
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Mr. MavueEw: Would it not be wise to put in the definite meaning of
migratory? In other streams where they would be running from lakes down
the river, someone might come along and put a dam across that river and claim
they were not migratory.

Mr. MacLeax (Cape Breton): What about a definition in the general
Act? :

Mr. MayaEw: That is what I mean. If it was in the general Act, it would
be covered then.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Migratory fish is a fish that migrates, that moves
from one place. It is a transient fish.

Mr. NemLL: A member of parliament might be qald to be migratory.
Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Sure.
Mr. RoBicHAaUD: Unemployed.

Mr. Mayuew: That has been used with the idea that it was to the sea
for a long time.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: A member of parliament is a migratory poor fish.

Mr. NemL: Sometimes there is a dam that blocks his further return, is
there not?

Mr. Porrier: Has not “migratory” to do with the propagation of the species?
It migrates for the purpose of propagating.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: It is pretty hard to find out the intentions of these fish.

Mr. Porrier: It is plain when you consider this migratory question. They
change for the purpose of breeding from one place to the other. Your birds
migrate from one place to the other and breed during the course of migration. I
think that migration has to do with propagation. For example, fish that just
came from one lake to another in a playful manner or from whim I do mot think
would come under the category of migratory fish.

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: Such fish are liable to get caught on their way.
Mr. Porrier: I am sincere about that.
Mr. Mayaew: That would be migratowy

Mr. Porrier: If they spawned in one lake and went from one place to the
other, I think it would be migratory.

Mr. CorE: I believe that the real definition of migratory will be found in
the reason that the bill was passed. It was to protect the spawning grounds of
the fish. So when the fish just migrate, passing from one place to the other, just
enjoying themselves, I do not believe that is the reason why the bill was passed.
The bill was passed to protect the fish migrating for spawning purposes, mean-
ing that if you were erecting a dam which was preventing fish from migrating
from one place to another where it is supposed to spawn, the companies erecting
it were to be fined or provide for a fishway. But as Mr. Pottier says, I do not
believe the reason that the bill was passed was just to direct somebody to pay for
a fishway or the equivalent in a fine when the fish are only passing from omne
place to another during the course of the summer. I do not believe they will
say it is for that.

Mr. RosicHAUD: In other words, it is not passed for tourist fish. It is passed
for the purpose of protecting spawning.

Mr. Cort: Yes. Would it be just for the committee to consider fining a
company or a private individual $5,000 or $10,000 just because it or he deprived
the public of two or three miles of fishing places? I do not think so.

Mr. Mayuew: From the very fact that we cannot agree among ourselves
upon the meaning of the word “migratory” I think it is evident that we should
have an explanation of it.
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Mr. RoBicHAUD: It seems to me that the words suggested by Mr. Geoffrion
would set the matter right. If we passed this section 57 (a) with those words
added, then it would give the minister discretion. It does not mean that every
time a dam is built, you have to have a hatchery. It does not mean that at all.
It gives the minister discretion; if a dam is built and the dam obstructs the
necessary migration for spawning purposes, then he can apply the section. I think
those words will put the whole thing right.

Mr. MayHEw: Question.

The CramrMAN: Do you second Mr. Hanson’s motion that the words be
added?

Mr. RosicuAUD: Yes, I do.

The CrarrMAN: It has been moved by Mr. Hanson and seconded by M.
Robichaud that the words “which he deems necessary for the public interest”
be added after the word “obstruction” in section 57 (a), line 3. Is the committee
ready for the motion? If so, will all those in favour so signify by saying Aye?
Contrary? I declare the motion carried. Can we do any more with this bill?
It is just doubtful from Mr. Geoffrion’s letter whether he is going to come
to-day or not. I suppose the minister would like to get it disposed of.

Mr. Porrier: It says here in the last part of this section “The annual
return of migratory fish.” It is an annual thing.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Oh, yes. Read the other section. The first part gives
the purpose.

Mr. Portier: Yes.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: It reads:—

Where the minister determines that the provision of an efficient fish-
way or canal around the slide, dam or other obstruction which he deems
necessary for the public interest is not feasible, or that the spawning areas
about such slide, dam or other obstruction are destroyed. . . .

The CHAaRMAN: Yes. That defines it that it is in regard to fish that move
back and forth for spawning purposes.

Mr. -Portier: That is it.
The CuarmaN: Mr. Neill has the law and gospel there.
Mr. Rem: Would this be retroactive if it were passed?

Mr. RosicHAUD: Coming back to what the minister just read, it strikes me
that after the word “feasible” instead of “or” it should be “and.” You must find
that the thing is not feasible and that the spawning grounds are destroyed, both.
The way it is now, where we have “or”, he may find just one, that the dam is
not feasible. Well, is it necessary in the first place? So I think you should have
both, that the dam is not feasible—the fishway is not feasible, and moreover
that it would destroy the spawning grounds. I think we should have “and”
there instead of “or.”

Mr. Porrier: “And” for “or.”

Mr. Rosicuaup: I think both should be there. I think the minister has to
find both things. Suppose he finds only the first part, that the fishway is not
feasible. He will not have to decide that they must build a hatchery, because
there might be no fish to come up. He must find it is not feasible and that it
destroys the fish, both.

Mr. POTTIER If the fish cannot come up, they cannot spawn.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Yes; that is what T say. A fishway may not be feasible
but I say it may not be needed at all. There may be no fish to come up. So I
should think you would have to have the two conditions, that they are inter-
fering with the spawning grounds and that the fishw ay is not feasible.
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: There are two different situations that may arise. I
think the Act, as provided, both in its positive enactment in section 20 and in
its penalty clause, is correct. The word “or” has been employed in both cases
tﬁ meet different conditions that may arise. I would not suggest making any -
change. , : :

Mr. Hanson: It is a technicality of the legal fraternity. The layman does
not understand whether you mean “or” or “and” or if you want them both.

The CraRMAN: Do you want to read the definition of migratory, Mr. Neill?

Mr. Nemwwn: Under “migratory,” it simply refers to it as connected with
migration. Under migration is given the explanation that it is the act of
migrating; removal from one region or habitat to another, and especially in
large bodies; change of abode. Birds are the most marked migrants; mammals
are less so. Then they mention a number of mammals such as the reindeer
and the Arctic fox; polar and other seals. Then among the periodically migrant
animals are the lemmings and so on. With many species of fish, the migrations
are as regular in their periodicity as those of birds. Among the reptiles the
turtle is the only known migrant. The definition of migration is a removal from
one region or habitat to another.

Mr. Portier: On a sort of regular scheme.

Mr. Nemr: It diseriminates between those that move every year like polar
foxes and those like lemmings which only do it each certain number of years.
That is all.

Mr. Rem: With all due deference to the minister’s opinion of a minute
ago, I come back to that “maintaining.” The thought went through my mind
that in the line before that you are going to operate and maintain such complete
hatchery. I would take it that the maintaining and operating of a complete
hatchery would be one sufficiently large and adequate to take care of the fish
which would be lost in the event of a dam being constructed, so that it really
relates to numbers. You are going to compel them to build such a complete
hatchery as will maintain not just so many fish coming up and down annually
but maintain, as I would interpret it, a sufficiently large number of fish as
would otherwise have spawned naturally if the dam had not been built. So that
it really pertain to numbers and there is nothing in the very last two lines to
indicate what the annual return would be. :

Mr. Nemyn: Put in the word “usual” before “annual,” if you like.

Mr. Rem: Yes, the word “usual” would help. But something should be
put in there.

Mr. Tavior: I would suggest “ maintain or improve.”

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: You would have to establish the quantities of fish
or the numbers of fish that went there before and so on.

Mr. McAvrry: Would “ normally return” be better?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: What would “normally ” mean? We would have
to establish what the conditions were before we went to establish that hatchery.

Mr. Nemwn: Make it,“ adequate.”

Mr. Tavror: How about using the word “improving” after the word
“ maintaining "—“ maintaining and improving ”’?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Section 20 of the Act uses those terms. We would
have to amend them all.

Mr. TavrLor: I have not the Act with me.

The CuARMAN: Mr. Geoffrion is here now. Will you come up here Mr.
Geoffrion? We have been rather waiting for you.
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Mr. Arve Grorrrion, K.C, called.

 Mr. Georrrion: Thank you very much. I hope I did not hold you up.
1 think I gave you in the letter pretty well what I have to say in the matter.
~ The CuamrMan: We read the letter this morning.
Hon. Mr. Micuaup: We accepted the suggestion as to the amendment.
~ Mr. GeorrrionN: The only purpose is this: If we can demonstrate that
‘probably for a million years there have not been any fish passing through, I
do not see why we should pay money to the Quebec government which desires to
" build a hatchery because somewhere else the fish are not propagating. That is
the whole explanation in a nut shell. Landlocked salmon are called land-
locked in lake St. John because they have not gone back to the sea for, I sup-
pose, a few million years. Why should we, because we built a plant across that
' river, without harming the fish in any way whatever, be called upon to pay the
Quebee government for a hatehery? I do not exactly see the reason for it.
Otherwise, I think the section is very fair.
‘ Hon. Mr. Micaaup: That does not affect at .all the nature of the amend-
ment that we are suggesting?
| Mr. GrorrrioN: Except it does in a way, because the minister then has
. to determine when it would be in the public interest that we should build the
. fishway if it could be built.
Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: Yes.
; Mr. GrorrrioN: And then if it would be in the public interest that it should
be built, it would be built. It would be to the public interest if the obstruction
destroys the fish. In other words, as I understand the legislation as it exists now,
the province can make the obstructor—if T can use that word—the man who
. builds g dam across a river, pay for the hatchery if either of two things happens,
namely, if the obstruction has destroyed the spawning beds above; or if they
are not yet destroyed, since a fishway cannot be built, they will be destroyed by
the obstruction. But if there was never any fish there, I do not .see why we
should pay for the hatchery.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Exactly.

Mr. GrorrrioN: The minister is the judge as to whether or not our obstruc-
tion has damaged the fish. If it has, we must pay, quite clearly. If it has not,
I do not see why we ‘should. '

Mr. Rem: If it was left to the discretion of the minister to decide whether
damage has been done, would this amendment in any way affect you?

Mr. GeorrrioN: Somebody must decide the issue, and the minister is
chosen by the statute. I have not any objections. It may be the court. Some-
body must decide whether or not we have already damaged the fishing by our
dam or will damage it. That somebody was the minister under the old statute.
I have no objection to it being the minister. Somebody must be the judge.
Sometimes we lose good cases, but we must have a judge. It is not really a
matter for the court and it is a matter for either the minister or the court.
Under the Fisheries Act it has never been made a matter for the court. The
minister is the judge who is to decide on the question of fact. I do not see
any other way out. I could not suggest that the courts should decide whether
we destroy the fish or not. The natural judge for that sort of thing must be

the minister. I do not see how it could be otherwise. That is the policy of
the whole statute. You have to decide this question.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

Mr. Coté: If the judge decided that you should pay $5,000 a year, what
recourse would you have afterwards?

Mr. GeorrrioN: None, if I got that judgment.
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Mr. Cork: There is no appeal? ) j
Mr. GrorrrioN: No, there is no appeal from the minister. The statute

has always made the minister the final judge as to whether or not my obstrue-
tion has so damaged the fisheries that I must replace the fish I am destroying
by a hatchery. But I must either accept that or say, let the courts decide it;
and the policy of this Act has always been until now to leave the minister
the judge. There has never been any provision for appeal to the Exchequer
Court. In some cases there is an appeal from the minister to the Exchequer
Court, but there has never been that in the Act. I am not asking that the
policy of the Act generally be changed. As I understand it, the only change
is that you want the owner of the dam to pay an annual sum; you want him
to be liable to be sued and have to pay a penalty of so much per year. I do
not care about that change. I think it is quite logical. But I want it very
clearly stated that the first condition for my liability is that some judge after
hearing me should say that I have damaged the fish; that is all. *Then if I
lose my case, I have lost it. That is all there is to it. I hope to win it, but
if T lose, that is all there is to it. I think the reason for the landlocked salmon
being called landlocked is that they have not been going down tothe sea
for many years.

Mr. Tayror: There does appear to be some slight evidence of the fact
that sea salmon have come up into lake St. John; and there also appears to
be evidence to the effect that a certain migration of fish from the lake to the
river below the present site of the dams or between the present dams has taken
place from year to year, and that it has been definitely interfered with.

Mr. Grorrrion: That is a question to be argued before the minister. All
I am asking is that the statute limits the jurisdiction. The minister may decide
that the interference is so insignificant that I should not pay for the hatchery

Mr. Tavror: That is right.

Mr. GeorrrioN: There is the big question.

Mr. NemwL: That is not in issue here.

Mr. GeorrrioN: The minister may say there is a little interference. Then
you will have to take that into consideration when you assess my contribu-
tion to the hatchery.

Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: That is right. It goes to the merit of the thing.

Mr. GeorrrionN: That is the merit of the question. I am not asking you
to change, but I must have a judge. The case against me must be that I have
damaged the fishing. The question of what compensation I should pay for
it is with the minister. It will be in the form of a contribution to the hatchery.
It may be a whole hatchery or it may be less. If I have done very little damage,
it may be a small contribution. That is the question which the judge has to
decide. The statute has already chosen the minister and I will accept the
minister, because I quite appreciate that. All I want is that his jurisdiction
be limited by the necessity for him to say that he has evidence before him
that we have damaged the fish.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

The CuairmaN: These dams have been there for quite a number of years?

Mr. GeorrrioN: Yes. Isle Maligne dam has been there for fifteen years,
I suppose, or sixteen years.

Mr. CoTé: Since 1925; that was when the first dam at Isle Maligne was
built.

Mr. GeorrriON: 1925?

Mr. Coté: Yes.

[Mr. Aimé Geoffrion.]
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Mr. Georrrion: That is what I thought, about fourteen years; and the
other one has been there for five or six years.

The CHARMAN: And the Quebec government never raised any issue until
recently. They do raise the issue now?

Mr. GeorrrioN: Now they are doing so. They want us to pay. I say
there might be some slight evidence against the government, but I take the
stand that when we built they never asked us to put up a fishway. Of course,
I do not say they were bound to, but generally they do. There is evidence
that before my company were allowed to build, our plans were approved in
Ottawa and in Quebec, as they had to be. We built according to plans. We
were never asked to build a fishway.

The Cuarman: Or to build a hatchery?

Mr. GeorrrioN: I must be fair. The statute did not permit the building
of hatcheries then. The statute in itself then simply said that we should be
compelled to build a fishway, but it did not say if we could not do so we might
be called upon to pay for a hatchery. They could not do that. Then there is
the question whether this law is retroactive. If this law is not retroactive, then
I could go before the courts and say the minister has no jurisdiction; but I am
not asking you to decide if the law does not apply to me because I built earlier.
I have not considered that question; that would be a matter for the courts.
If the Act applies to dams already built, then it is before the minister. But as
I say, in those days they never asked or never suggested that. That is a matter
of individual cases. But I suggest it was incidental and very limited if there
was any use of that for the propagation of fish. I am told that the raising of
the level of lake St. John and the maintaining of it has improved fishing in lake
St. John rather than damaged it. I am told that.

Mr. Rem: If the discretion lay with the minister, the present Minister of
Fisheries, and he decided that no damage had been done, would the province of
Quebec go after you?

Mr. GeorrrioN: That ends it.
Mr. Remp: That ends the case?

Mr. Grorrrion: That ends the matter. My judge is the minister. As I
told the minister at Quebec—I have never met you by yourself—I would not
say I would not have succeeded there, because it seems to me my claim is very
equitable; but I think I will be able to show that these dams by changing the
level have done more good than harm to fish. That is a matter for the minister,
not for me.

Mr. Porrier: You said you obtained the approval of the provincial govern-
ment for those dams back in 1925. I was wondering what your opinion was,
legally, as to whether that was necessary.

Mr. Grorrrion: Oh, yes.

Mr. Porrier: Why?

Mr. GrorrrioN: Because these rivers belong to the provinces. We build
into the river and we alter the level of the lake, so we need for all these works
to have approval. If the river was navigable we must come here. If it was
not, we would not. The only justification for federal interference is navigation
and fishing. Otherwise, under the present statute, it does not require approval
on account of fishing. The dominion parliament might pass a statute requiring
approval on account of fishing. But the only statute now in force requires
approval on account of navigation; so in an unnavigable river we would not
need to come. But parliament might pass a statute saying we would have to
come, even in unnavigable rivers or even on account of fishing. They have not
done that. But we must go to the province everywhere because the province

owns the bed, the water and the advantage of the water flowing through it.
T7575—2 :
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Mr. NemwL: In your opinion, was this P.C. 360, I think it was, turning over
the fisheries at Quebec to the province by the dominion, constitutional? I will
give you lots of time to answer.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is free legal advice.

Mr. GeorrrioN: At all events, it cannot alter the statute. Under part of
the statute, the Minister of Fisheries in Ottawa is my judge. No order in council
can make somebody else the judge. I am sure of that.

Mr. Nemww: I told them that a week ago. I want it on the record.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: It has never been disputed. Your legal opinion has
never been disputed on that point, Mr. Neill.

Mr. NemwwL: That is why I asked the question. I thought perhaps you were
bothered as to whether the province had power or not.

Mr. Georrrion: No. We must go on account of ownership. They are the
owners of the land covered by water. I must go to them just as I must go to
my neighbours to go over their land.

Mr. Nemwrn: The B.N.A. Act fisheries regulation was in effect; and that
order in council has not changed that, in your opinion?

Mr. GeorrrioN: It cannot. You cannot amend the British North America
Act by order in council. I give that opinion without thinking.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Thank you very much.

The CHAIRMAN: You have no objection to the amendment as suggested by
the minister being passed?

Mr. Georrrion: How does it read?

The CuarrMAN: We just added your words.

Mr. Georrrion: That is all right.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The words suggested by you.

Mr. GeorrrioN: I took those words because they are in the other section.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Yes, in the enactment.

Mr. Grorrrion: Corresponding to section 20 which has the same words.
I want to thank you gentlemen again for hearing me.

The CuamrMAN: Thank you very much. It has been splendid for you
to be able to come, Mr. Geoffrion, and help us to clear up this matter.

Mr. GeorrrioN: I honestly believe the Act would have meant the same
thing before, but it is better this way.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Thank you very much.

The CuAlRMAN: Do we pass the amendment for further consideration of
the house?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: There is another amendment that has not been
considered yet.

Mr. NewL: It was not moved. It was dropped, was it not?

The CuAlRMAN: There is a motion by Mr. Neill that the following be
inserted as a new section: “That section 32 is hereby amended by inserting
the following sub-section 2.”

Mr. NemwL: Have we finished this Quebec thing yet? Have we agreed
on these two sections?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

Mr. NemL: We had better settle that.

Mr. Rem: It has not been settled yet. We agreed to a little change, but
we have not agreed to the section.

The CuARMAN: No, not to the section as a whole.

[Mr. Aimé Geoffrion.]
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Mr. Rem: No.

Mr. NemwL: We had better settle it.

The CuamrMAN: Where does your amendment come in, Mr. Nelll? At
. the last? i

Mr. NemL: Yes. But those two must be passed first, at any rate. I
think Mr. Hanson had a motion.

Mr. HaxsoN: Do you want to pass it by paragraphs?

The CuairMAN: In fact, they were passed in the house, were they not,
before we came here at all? Does anyone wish to make a motion that the
different sections as amended now be adopted by the committee?

Mr. Hanson: I so move.

The CuAalrRMAN: It is moved by Mr. Hanson and seconded by Mr. Mayhew
that the different sections as amended be passed.

Agreed. ;
Now, gentlemen, that brmgs us to Mr. Neill’s amendment of another section
by adding:—

After the calendar year 1939 no one shall use a salmon trap net in
any of the Pacific waters of Canada off the southwesterly shores of Van-
couver island.

That brings up the whole question of salmon traps on the Paclﬁc coast.
Mr. Mayaew: Who wants to add that on?

The CrARMAN: Mr. Neill’s amendment was to add that section.

Mr. Rem: May I ask before we begin discussion if this is properly num-
bered. If we adopt Mr. Neill’s amendment would not this be sub-section 1? I
notice the amendment says, “section 32 amended by the following sub-section
2 thereof.”

Mr. RosicHAUD: Has section 57 (a) been adopted?

The CuamrMAN: Yes. They have all been adopted; everything is adopted
right down to this one now.

Mr. RosicHAUD: I was going to say that if T had the drafting of that section
I would change it from the way it is to read something like this: “Where the
minister determines that the spawning areas above a dam are destroyed and a
fishway around the obstruction cannot be built, the owner shall bulld hatcheries.”
Mr. Rem: That is correctly numbered.

Mr. NemwL: If any member wants to reconsider the former matter I do not
think he should be blocked in doing so. I move that we reconsider 57 (a).

The CuAmMAN: The difficulty is that the minister has gone away.

Mr. NemiLL: I would not like anyone to have the idea that he is being pre-
vented from expressing his opinion.

The CuamMman: I say that since the minister has gone out perhaps we
can leave that until the minister is here again if anybody wants to bring it up.
Mr. RoBicHAUD: It looks to me as being loosely drawn.

Mr. Tavror: Yes, I think so. I think the right must be established first,
and if it does exist then if the fishway cannot be built you have to deal with
it afterwards. In that case we would not need the amendment put in this
morning.

Mr. Nemn: How would you phrase it?

Mr. RoBicHAUD: “Where the minister determines that the spawning areas
above any slide, dam or other obstruction are destroyed by reason of such
structures, and that a fishway or canal around any such slide or obstruction
is not feasible, then the owner or occupier shall be called upon to build a
hatchery.”

TIST5—2%
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The clause should start first by determining whether there are spawning
grounds, and when that is determined by the minister and it is decided that a
fishway cannot be built then the owner is called upon to build a hatchery.

Mr. Rem: There is a lot in what you say.

Mr. Tavror: I agree that that is a better drafting of the clause.

Mr. NemiLL: The objection is that it says that the fishing and spawning
grounds are destroyed, whereas the case generally arises that they are liable
to be destroyed; they take action before they are destroyed.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I think the minister has to make a decision whether
there is a dam there or mot or whether there is a hatchery there or not. If
there were no fish at all on the river he would not bother with the fact whether
a fishway could be built around the dam. He would have to determine first
whether there are spawning beds there and whether they are used. When he
has determined that he must determine whether a fishway is feasible; but
before he has determined those things he does not have to bother whether a
fishway is feasible or not. There is the penalty in section 20. It does not say
anything about destroying.

Mr. Tayror: Yes, it does.

Mr. WaiTMORE: It is in the latter part.

Mr. RosicHAUD: It is drafted in such a loose way.

The CuARMAN: That is a question of fact that Mr. Geoffrion said would
have to be determined by the minister when he was dealing with the case.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I say he must determine first whether there are spawning
grounds. Before he determines that he does not have to bother his head about
building a fishway or whether it is feasible or not. It is only after he has deter-
mined the first thing that he has to determine the second, whether it is feasible
or not feasible, and then he has to determine the third point.

The CuArrRMAN: Gentlemen, I believe we are short of a quorum now. We
shall have to have a motion if we want to go on.

Mr. Tayror: I think, Mr. Chairman, that we should have a representative
meeting, because, basing it on a mere quorum is not a sufficiently fair way to
proceed with this matter. Naturally, it is a very important question.

Mr. NemL: Here is something that can be handled without a quorum. I
have something that I wish to get in the record; it is a statement from a man—
it is a summary of the signed statements of nine fishermen who actually fished
near the traps at Sooke last summer. They all seemed quite satisfied with the
fishing there and consider going back there next summer where they will have
runs of fish if all the rumours are correct. Here is a statement giving the
names of the nine men, the time they fished—the first week in August and the
first week in July and so on—and the amount of fish they took, the price they
got for the fish, comments on the conditions, and some of the comments are
as follows:—

Main difficulty was the sharks encountered.
Gillnetters would benefit greatly by the removal of the fish traps.
It is a fine gillnet area.

And so on. I was going to put that into the record. The members will
have an opportunity to see it.

Mr. Rem: May I ask what type?

Mr. NemwL: 1938.

Mr. Rem: No, what type?

Mr. NermL: Gillnetting in the Sooke area in 1938. The man who sent it is
a man named A. V. Hill, Secretary of the Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union,
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 and he also encloses the nine letters from these men. I do not think we need
- cumber up the record by putting the letters in; they are just a duplicate of the
statement made here. .
" Mr. Rem: That should be placed in the record.

Mr. TavyrLor: I am inclined to think the other letters should also be
put in.

Mr. Mayaew: The names of the people writing those letters should be put
in—the names of the nine people who are on that statement should be put in.

Mr. NemwL: If you want to I will put it all in, but the statement I have
summarized is really the record. :

PARTICULARS RE—GILLNETTING SOOKE AREA

August 1938
Name Time Fish Price Conditions .
cents

8. Malvik....... 1 week middle 300 65 |Main difficulty was the sharks encoun-
of August. approx. tered.

M. Johnson......|1 week middle 300 65 |Encountered no difficulty not common to
of August. approx. other open water fishing.

BuBerE. . . sih it 1 week during| 500 65 |Encountered no other difficulties than may
August. approx. be expected in any open water.

J. Jacobson...... Early part of 400 65 |Conditions there are no worse than en-
August. Approx. countered in any open waters.

A. Halvarson. ...|First part of 50 65 |Too many sharks and dogfish.

. August. per night aver.

A. Remmen..... 2 weeks in 450 65 |Gillnetters would benefit greatly by re-
August. moval of figsh traps.

N. Johnson...... About first part, 400 65 |Gillnetters would benefit greatly by the
August. one night. removal of fish traps.

Lo Al . su0 Around middle 300 65 |It is a fine gillnet area.
of August. approx.

H. Remmen.....|During middle 400 65 |[Major drawback was the number of shark
of August. and dogfish, but these would disappear

if more gillnetters fished there.

Mr. Mayaew: You have the government record of what is caught there
anyway. .

Mr. NemwL: These are mot the fish taken in the traps, but the fish taken by
individual fishermen. You have not got the record of that.

Mr. Mayaew: We have the statement, I think. Is it not in our records?

Mr. NemLL: Of the traps. .

Mr. Mayuew: Of the fish that were caught by all gear in that area.

The CuarRMAN: I see we have a quorum again. To bring the matter to a
head I will move that Mr. Neill’s amendment be adopted by the committee.

Mr. NemwL: I may say that while it is couched in the language indicated,
that was done for technical reasons, to make it in order in the house. The real
issue is fish traps in British Columbia, and if we were making an announcement
it would be better to couch it in the appropriate language applying to the whole
of the Pacific coast. The effect is the same. We should make a motion on it
unless it is going through unanimously, and we have to decide whether we
are going to call witnesses or not.

The CaARMAN: Yes, that is a question that will have to be dealt with this
morning. Now, do you want to re-write the amendment?

Mr. NemwL: Yes, I would be glad to do it.
Mr. Haxson: I will move an amendment that instead of saying the shores

of Vancouver island, it should say the Pacific coast of British Columbia. With
that change I move the adoption of the amendment.
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Mr. TayrLor: What is the precise sub-amendment?

Mr. NemwwL: “After the calendar year 1939 no one shall use a salmon trap
net in any of the Pacific waters of Canada.”

Mr. TavrLor: It merely means eliminating off the southwesterly shores of
Vancouver island.

Mr. Nemn: It does not eliminate it; it makes it all-inclusive.

Mr. Tayror: I am referring to your amendment.
~ Mr. MaysEw: Is this another time we are dealing with this? How many
times are we going to put this thing in?

Mr. Nemww: This is Mr. Hanson who is doing this. I cannot control him; he
is that type. There is mo collusion between us at all.

Mr. Mavaew: Did Mr. Hanson write this amendment?

Mr. Haxson: No, I cut out the last line.

Mr. MayaEW: There is evidently no seconder to the motion.

The CrammaN: Mr. Hanson’s motion is seconded by Mr. Reid.

Mr. Rem: Is this amendment agreeable to Mr. Neill?

Mr. NemL: Oh, absolutely.

The Cmamman: Well, it is understood that the original motion is with-
drawn and that the motion as moved by Mr. Hanson is substituted in its place.

Mr. TavLor: The original améndment of Mr. Neill is withdrawn? I have
not heard that.

The CHARMAN: Is mot that the idea?

Mr. NemL: It was the amendment to it. If we are going to be technical,
Mr. Hanson’s motion was an amendment to mine.

Mr. Tayror: It is not a question of being technical; it is a question of know-
ing where we are at.

Mr. Haxsox: Do you want me to rise and move it again?

Mr. Mayaew: We want to know how often we are going to go over it.

Mr. Rem: Personally, although I seconded it I hardly think it is necessary
to go about it that way. There are no traps operating anywhere else in British
Columbia, unless it is at Sooke, and Mr. Neill’s first amendment is to eliminate
the traps at Sooke. I think rather than confuse the matter—

Mr. NELL: Someone might propose to run traps in the north as they did in
1929. If we are going to do away with traps, we might as well do it on the
whole coast.

Mr. Tayror: Why did you bring in your amendment?

Mr. Nemr: I changed the amendment in order to comply with the
technicalities of the house; otherwise, I would not be able to move it as an
amendment to the minister’s bill, because I had a bill of that kind; so I changed
my amendment to make it technically apply with the absurd rules of the house,
and now we are in committee where truth, justice, peace and happiness must
prevail.

Mr. MayHEw: As far as I am concerned, I do not care which one we are
going to debate in connection with this matter, but I do not want to do it three
or four times. I am going to oppose—

The CuarMAN: Both of them?

Mr. Mayuew: Both of them.

Mr. Rem: I think it would clarify matters if Mr. Neill would agree to
withdraw his amendment rather than keep his amendment before the committee;
then we would have this subamendment which is suggested.
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Mr. Nenn: I am qulte agreeable to do that.

Mr. Rem: The issue is the same so far as those of us who are supporting
this are concerned.

Mr. Nemwr: Absolutely. The only thing I thought of was that my subtle
friend might say that having withdrawn my motion there the thing ended.

Mr. Tayror: I do not do that kind of thing.

Mr. Nemn: I will withdraw my amendment and let Mr. Hanson’s take
precedence.

Mr. Mayuew: That is satisfactory as far as I am concerned.

Mr. Rem: I second the amendment.

Mr. Mayaew: Now, seeing that the amendment is moved and seconded
I am going to oppose it, "but I prefer not to oppose it until we decide on the
question of whether we are going to have witnesses or not. I do not see any
necessity for debating this question two or three times. If we are going to have
witnesses I will reserve what I have to say until that time; if we are not going
to have witnesses, why it is different.

The CuamrMan: To get this matter straight on the record, the motion
which has been moved by Mr. Hanson and seconded by Mr. Reid is as follows:—

That after the calendar year 1939 no one shall use a salmon trap net
in any of the Pacific waters of Canada.

Mr. Nemwn: I will withdraw my motion.

The CuairMaN: Is the committee ready for the motion, or do you want to
discuss the question of witnesses?

Mr. Portier: What about witnesses? Have we heard any or are we to
hear any more?

The CuarMAN: Yes, I have already read the messages from the people we
wired to.

Mr. Hanson: Personally, I do not think it is necessary to call any more
witnesses; we had them before us at our last committee. Mr. Neill filed a
petition in the house the other day, and I have petitions signed by hundreds and
hundreds of fishermen of all classes.

Mr. McCurrocu: Be careful of the number—hundreds and hundreds and
thousands and thousands.

Mr. Hanson: Yes, we have that too.

Mr. NemLL: There were ten thousand last year and more this year.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Are these petitions general or do they just represent a
certain viewpoint?

Mr. NemL: Oh, no, they are divided among fishermen, sport fishermen and
business men.

Mr. Mayuew: I can get every opposition you have got to put me out of
business too.

Mr. Tayror: There are seven British Columbia members interested in this
matter, and five of them are opposed to the traps and two are in favour of the
status quo.

The CuamMan: For the benefit of the maritime members who came in
late, I might say that I read telegrams from the British Columbia fishermen and
they are willing to send witnesses here if we pay their expenses.

Mr. RosicuAUD: Have they been heard before?

The Cramrman: Yes. Both sides were heard. The point that was raised
at our last meeting was that if we heard the fishermen who are against the traps
we would also have to hear the owners of the traps.
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Mr. RosicHAUD: Did not this question come up before in this committee
the year before last?

The CuAaRMAN: Yes, the year before last.

Mr. RoBicuAUD: I was not on the committee the year before last but most
of you gentlemen were. In any event, if we got these witnesses here they would
say the same thing and repeat the same evidence.

The CHAIRMAN: Practically the same, I would say.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I do not think we should do that.

Mr. Nemn: They have asked to be heard, and the minister, when he
referred the matter to the committee—it was not my suggestion—said: I suggest
that it be referred to the committee where it can be looked into thoroughly
and every member have an opportunity to find out the facts with which to come
to a decision. Then we asked the fishermen if they would be able to send
someone, and there was some hitch about the telegram, it was delayed. Now,
we have an answer saying that they want to send someone. I do not know
whether we can refuse; to refuse them a hearing goes against the idea of giving
a man a chance to be heard in his own defense, and that applies to the trap
owners also. If the motion is going to carry the fishermen are not necessary.

Mr. Ropicuaup: Will they come themselves?

Mr, NemL: They want their expenses paid by the government. They are
poor men and cannot afford to come.

Mr. Porrier: It seems to me we should bring this matter up to date.

The CHAlRMAN: The committee’s report has been published; they simply
reported that they had made a study of the situation.

Mr. Porrier: It was not yes or no?

Mr. NemwL: No, we did not come to a decision. We raised the licence of
the traps from $50 to $500, and we put on certain restrictions about the hours,
and suggested certain other things.

Mr. Mavaew: The minister investigated your request first.

Mr. NemL: Yes.

Mr. Rem: The difficulty is that we are getting on in the session and the
disposition of many members is to close the house by the twelfth.

Mr. Porrier: We should bring the matter up to date; since two years ago
conditions have changed.

Mr. NemL: For instance, I have evidence that they were gillnetting in that
area that we did not have two years ago; but by the time these men get here
the house will be sitting at 11 o’clock in the morning.

Mr. Rem: You can hardly bring witnesses unless you bring all the witnesses.

Mr. NeL: We were proposing to bring two representative witnesses of the
fishermen, and we would invite the trap owners to send one.

The CualrMAN: Is that the same gentleman who gave evidence before on
the same question?

Mr. NemL: Yes, Mr. Goodrich; by all means have him.

Mr. Tavror: Unless we can have the assistance of the maritime members
in this committee I do not consider that the committee is representative of the
fishing industry in order to make a decision here, because we definitely have
five of the seven B.C. members intent on removing the traps and only two
intent on retaining the traps.

Mr. Nemww: That is very significant. The members from British Columbia
presumably know the conditions best, and if there are five against two I
suggest—
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Mr. Tavror: The argument does not stand with me.
Mr. Hanson: How many of those British Columbia members are engaged
" in fishing and know something about it? I know one.

Mr. Tavror: Yourself?

Mr. Hanson: Yes. I know every angle, canning and everything else.

Mr. Tayror: Yes.

Mr. HansoN: And not only from what information I have, but from inform-
ation and petitions from others, I am convinced that trap fishing in British
Columbia is detrimental to the fishing industry.

Mr. TayLor: I am not considering trap fishing in British Columbia; this is
an attempt to destroy the Sooke traps, and they have been in existence since
1904.

Mr. NerL: The motion is to do away with trap fishing in British Columbia.

Mr., Tavror: It centres around the business which is conducted in Sooke.
Whatever tricks you may perform in your attack on the Sooke traps, the issue
has to be decided around the Sooke traps and the Sooke traps only. I am quite
prepared to support a definite resolution brought in for the prevention or elimin-
ation of traps in any other portion of British Columbia, but I do contend that
the Sooke traps are in an internationally strategic position; they were placed
there with that idea in mind; and they have performed their duties satis-
factorily to the country since they were first introduced.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: What sort of traps do you call them?

Mr. Tavror: Sooke is the name of the area in which the traps are located.

Mr. RosicaAUD: Could you not exempt that point?

Mr. NemwwL: No, that is the whole point.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Have the fish to pass that point?

Mr. NemwL: The conditions that existed when the licences were first granted
have totally passed away, and that condition no longer justifies itself. That
is the point.

Mr. MayaEw: Mr. Chairman, in the original bill this is what Mr. Neill
said in his explanation: “The use and kind of net is unjustifiably destructive
to the Pacific coast fisheries and accentuates the unemployment situation
amongst the fishermen of British Columbia.” Now, if that is really the basis
on which the opposition to the fish traps exist at Sooke, I maintain that the
basis is wrong. If the basis is wrong, and we can prove it is wrong, then
neither this one nor the other one can exist. The figures over a number of
years prove quite conclusively that fish traps are not destructive, and further
they prove that it costs more per case of salmon to catch them with the traps
than it does with the gillnets, or with the seine nets. I do not intend to argue
it out, but I want to give you enough to look into it.

Mr. Rosicaaup: We will have to get some enlightenment. How about
referring to the report of two years ago?

The CuarmAN: Yes, we can get you the report.
Mr. RosicaAauDp: If it is not too voluminous I would like to read it.
Mr. NemL: There were fifteen numbers; we sat fifteen days.

Mr. Rosicaaup: Have we got everything in those fifteen numbers or can
I find it in five or six of them? ;

tIE\:Ir. NemL: It is all pregnant with statements, not always correct state-
ments.

Mr. RosicHAUD: I want to vote on this matter intelligently or not at all.
Mr. Mayaew: I would like to point out the situation to you on this map.
Mr. Rosicaaup: I am looking for enlightenment.
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(Mr. Mayhew indicated geographical features of the present situation.)

Mr. Nemwn: Now, it is my turn to enlighten you.

(Mr. Neill makes an explanation by reference to the map.)

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Chairman, I might emphasize the fact that nothing
that has been said has been placed on the record. It was impossible to
record it.

The CuamrMAN: Both sides have had their innings. In order to keep the
record clear, with the leave of the committee Mr. Neill begs to withdraw his
amendment to the Act?

(Agreed.)

Now, the amendment we are discussing is the one moved by Mr. Hanson
and seconded by Mr. Reid.

Mr. Tavror: Before this amendment is moved by Mr. Hanson and before
it is accepted, may I say that Mr. Hanson’s amendment is virtually the bill
of Mr. Neill which is before the house.

Mr. Nemwn: It is not; it is an amendment to Mr. Michaud’s bill. Mr.
Michaud’s bill is amended, not mine.

y Mr. Tavror: It is in the terms of the bill which Mr. Neill has before the
ouse.

Mr. Nemn: You said you were not going to quibble if I withdrew my
gpﬁendment. This does not refer to my bill at all; it refers to Mr. Michaud’s

ill.

Mr. Tayror: It is in the terms of the bill.

Mr. Nemn: I do not know what “terms” mean, but I know fact and truth.
It is Mr. Michaud’s bill we are referring to, and my bill has not been referred to.

Mr. Mavaew: If this was approved, you would withdraw your bill, would
you not?

Mr. Nemwrn: I will deal with that situation when it arises, but it is not
withdrawn; it is not being amended by Mr. Hanson’s amendment at the moment.
He is amending Mr. Michaud’s bill.

Mr. Tavror: What are the terms of the bill?

Mr. NemwL: What are the terms of the reference?

The Cuamrman: We were considering Mr. Michaud’s bill and along with
Mr. Michaud’s bill, Mr. Neill’s amendment; that is what was referred to the
committee.

Mr. TavrLor: Exactly. Are we privileged to deal with that amendment in
the terms of a bill not referred to us?

The CaarmaN: It may be a legal question.

Mr. NemwL: If that is not quibbling—

The CuamrMAN: Do you object to the different wording?

Mr. Tavror: I do not object, but I want the point made clear. We are not
going to fight this issue here and then fight it again in the house on Mr. Neill’s
bill if he fails here.

Mr. NerLn: Oh, that is the idea.  He is making terms.

Mr. TayLor: No terms at all.

Mr. NemwL: I was not taking any threats.

Mr. Rem: May I ask for Mr. Hanson’s information how the bill for
second reading compares with the amendment in your hand?

Mr. NemwL: Mr. Hanson’s conveys substantially the same principles.

The CrarMAN: Clause 12 reads: “ Notwithstanding anything to the con-
trary in this Act or regulations thereunder, no person shall use, for the taking
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of salmon, any salmon trap nets in any Canadian tidal waters off the coast
of British Columbia.”

Mr. RosicaauD: What is before the committee?

Mr. NemLL: An amendment of mine to Mr. Michaud’s bill.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: What is our reference?

The CrAtRMAN: Mr. Michaud’s bill. ;

Mr. RosicHAUD: We have just discussed section 57 (a).

The CuAlRMAN: Yes; and also this amendment moved by Mr. Neill at
the time and referred to this committee: “After the calendar year 1939 no one
shall use a salmon trap net in any of the Pacific waters of Canada off the
southwesterly shores of Vancouver island.”

All we are doing now is striking out the words, “off the southwesterly
shores of Vancouver island” and we are in other words embracing the whole
Pacific coast. ‘

Mr. RoBicHAUD: That was on an amendment of Mr. Hanson’s?

The CrAlRMAN: Yes.

Mr. RosicaAUD: But Mr. Neill’s amendment is what is before us.

The CuARMAN: Yes, Mr. Neill’s amendment is before us.

Mr. Rem: It is practically Mr. Neill's amendment being amended by
Mr. Hanson which we are discussing. You could not throw out Mr. Neill’s
amendment and substitute something else for it. The basis of our amendment
is Mr. Neill’'s amendment referred to this committee and amended this morning
by Mr. Hanson’s amendment. '

Mr. Mayuaew: I may be stupid, but here is the way I regard this: suppose
we go ahead on this amendment to-day and it is defeated, as it should be—
we will say it is defeated—then Mr. Neill can come back and bring in his bill
in the house and have it argued again in the house. I am asking for informa-
tion; I am not quibbling; I am quite prepared to debate the matter on any
terms; but I do not see the necessity of debating it in committee and then
having to turn around and debate it again in the house.

Mr. Nemww: It does not make any difference, I could debate it on the
report of the committee anyway.

Mr. Rosrcaaup: We had something similar the other day in the Electoral
Matters committee where Mr. Church had a bill before the house to permit of
a referendum and it was referred to the committee on electoral matters and
that committee rejected it. Well, he accepted that when it came to the second
reading, and he withdrew it; but I do not suppose he would be precluded from
discussing it if he liked.

Mr. Nemwn: He did speak on it.

Mr. Portier: I thought the last thing we decided on was a withdrawal.

Mr. Nemwn: That was because of these two gentlemen; they said it would
be clearer—

Mr. Tavror: It was not at my request.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: It does not matter at whose request, it cannot be done.

_ Mr. Rem: Mr. Neill moved an amendment when Mr. Michaud had his
bill before the house, but his bill is still on the order paper.

Mr. Porrier: As I understand it, the last thing that was suggested to the
committee was that Mr. Neill have consent to withdraw his amendment.

The CuarMaN: And they all agreed to it, but now I see where there is
an objection.

_ Mr. TavrLor: No, we have not objected. I am not objecting. I am merely
pointing out the fact that Mr. Hanson’s motion is in the terms of the bill
which Mr. Neill has before the house.
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The CuamrMaN: If T were asked, gentlemen, to give a ruling on this I
would suggest that we stick to the first amendment—to your amendment,
Mr. Neill.

Mr. NeLL: And Mr. Hanson’s amendment with it.

The CramrMAN: I do not know whether we can; it is a question whether
we can amend the reference that has been made to us.

Mr. NEmwL: Yes, we amended Mr. Michaud’s bill by putting in certain
words.

The CuamrmAN: Yes, that is correct.

Mr. NemwL: Oh, yes, you can amend any matter referred to you, because
it would be absolutely no use if we could not.

Mr. Porrier: We might as well try to get this matter straightened out. I
do not think Mr. Neill should withdraw this; it has been referred from the house
through your instrumentality, and I do not think this committee can consent
that you withdraw that; you will have to go to the house.

Mr. NemwL: It was purely to make it more clear and plain to those gentle-
men over there who promised they would not take advantage of the quibbling
that I foresaw.

Mr. Tayror: No.

Mr. NemwL: All right, I will not withdraw my amendment.

Mr. Haxson: I second Mr. Neill’'s amendment as it is.

Mr. NewwL: The chairman has not yet ruled.

Mr. Rem: If we are going to proceed this way, and so that the record may
be clear, I think we should go through the proper channels. If we are going
back to Mr. Neill’s amendment something should be done to do away with the
motion we had a few minutes ago.

The Cuamrrman: What we need now is a motion to reconsider.

Mr. Rem: Would it be all right for you to declare it out of order, Mr.
Chairman?

The CuamrMAN: My suggestion would be that the other was out of order,
and that we should adhere to Mr. Neill’s original motion.

Mr. MayHEW: Should we delete everything up to this point?

The CuarrMAN: No, we cannot do that.

Mr. Porrier: I suggest that Mr. Neill could not withdraw his amendment,
and you should so rule, and that Mr. Hanson’s amendment is already withdrawn,
so it leaves us as we were.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Is it necessary? Mr. Hanson, I should think, could make

a motion without changing this.

The CuATRMAN: It is on the record that the committee agreed to this sub-
stitution of Mr. Neill’s motion by one of Mr. Hanson’s. Now, in order to open
it up we should have a motion from someone asking that the question of Mr.
Neill’s original amendment to the Fisheries Act and Mr. Hanson’s amendment
be reconsidered by the committee.

Mr. Portier: I move that the question of the order of these two resolutions
be reconsidered.

Mr. Rem: I second that.

The CuamrMAN: It has been moved and seconded that the order of the
amendment moved by Mr. Neill and the sub-amendment by Mr. Hanson be
reconsidered by the committee.

(Agreed.)

The CuarMAN: What is now before the committee is the reference made to
us by the house of Mr. Neill’s original amendment to the Fisheries Act.

A
i
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o Mr. Nemn: I submit that Mr. Hanson is in order in moving an amendment.
We moved an amendment to Mr. Michaud’s bill, and I cannot see why we should

not go on. It makes it clearer.

The CuamrMAN: How would it be to leave the matter as it stands for now;
definitely Mr. Neill’'s amendment is before the committee.

Now, are we going to discuss the question and decide whether we are to call
witnesses? We may have time to get men here if we decide to-day.

Mr. Mayaew: Yes. We are open for a motion either to have witnesses
come or to decide not to hear them.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Are you going to have witnesses who will give the same
evidence that was given two years ago?
Mr. NeiuL: No, different men.

Mr. Rosicaaup: Will they be giving the same evidence?
Mr. NemwL: Yes.

Mr. RosicHAUD: In the Electoral Matters committee we have been going
from year to year, but we have not called back the same witnesses to give
evidence over again—the same evidence—we simply considered the report of
two years ago as part of the report of this year; therefore, I think if you will
point out to us the evidence which you have taken in the past we will read it.
I do not think we should go to the extent of bringing men here to give us a re-hash
of what was given on the committee two years ago.

Mr. Tavror: I think that clarifies the situation very well. The evidence
given two years ago can be reviewed by the fishermen and they can supply
immediately a brief in extension, and the same thing can be ‘done by the trap
owners, and those briefs can be sent to us properly identified and we can consider
them at our meetings.

Mr. RosicuAUD: I think we can get more information out of a brief than
out of witnesses.

Mr. Tayror: It will save expense and it will give them every opportunity
to say what'they have to say.

Mr. RoBicEAUD: Yes, that is so.

Mr. TavLor: I so move, Mr. Chairman, “that inasmuch as the fishermen
are in possession of the records of the committee of two years ago, they are
privileged to introduce a brief before this committee in extension of what they
then said before the committee, and that the same privilege is hereby extended
to the trap owners.” And we will give them a certain time to do it.

Mr. NemwL: One brief being drawn up by a semi-illiterate fisherman and
the other by a clever lawyer in Vancouver!

Mr. RoBicHAUD: The fishermen can get somebody to do it.

Mr. Porrier: That seems fair. That brings it up to date. Mr. Robichaud
says he wants time to read the evidence, and so do I.

Mr. Mayaew: If Mr. Neill wants to bring the fishermen down here I am
prepared to support him as far as that is concerned. '

Mr. Nemn: I am thinking that the fishermen will believe they have been
discriminated against because they have not the money to come here.

Mr. Mayaew: We do not want to do that.

Mr. Nemn: Does anyone know what the cost was of bringing them here

two years ago? We ought to decide whether we are going to call witnesses or
ask them to submit a brief.

The CuamrMAN: I have here a motion moved by Mr. Taylor.
Mr. RosicHAUD: Calling for briefs only. I think that is enough.
The CramrMmaN: It is seconded by Mr. Pottier.




Mr. RoBicHAUD: It does not have to be seconded in committee.

The CramrMAN: We have heard the motion that we ask both’ si
this question to submit briefs and that we give them a certain time to
All those in favour signify; against.

Mr. NemwL: No.

The CrArRMAN: I would like to have it unanimous.

Mr. NemwL: Not necessarily.

Mr. TayLor: I am not submitting this motion to prevent the fishermen .
from coming here, but we gave them that opportunity the last time and they
sent one man who had never been near the traps for nineteen years and they
also sent the secretary of a union. Now, if you are gomg to have that same
thing again then we are spending money for nothing.

The committee adjourned to the call of the chair.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS
TaURSDAY, May 4, 1939.

: The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 a.m.
Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince) presided. ;

Members present: Messrs. MacLean (Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton
North Victoria), Mayhew, McDonald (Souris), Michaud, Neill, Reid, Robi-
chaud, Taylor (Nanatmo), Tustin and Veniot. (11). :

In attendance:

Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Department of
Figheries;

Mr. J. A. Rodd, Director of Fish Culture, Department of Fisheries.

The Chairman filed the following briefs with the clerk:—
1. Brief received from Mr. C. F. Goodrich, of Victoria, B.C., on behalf of:
(a) J. H. Todd & Sons Limited, and
(b) The Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Co., Ltd.
2. Brief received from Mr. John Stanton, N.P., of Vancouver, B.C., on
behalf of:
(@) North Island Troller’'s Co-operative;
(b) Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union;
(¢) Salmon Purse Seiners’ Union, Local 141;
(d) United Fishermen’s Union, Local 44.

Mr. Neill also filed the following letters with the clerk:
1. S. Malvik, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 5, 1939;
2. M. Johnson, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 5, 1939;
3. A. Berg, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 5, 1939;
4. John Jacobson, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 5, 1939;
5. Arthur Halvarson, Whonnock, B.C., dated January 20, 1939;
6. A. Remmen, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 1, 1939;
7. N. Johnson, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 1, 1939;
8. L. Aunli, New Westminster, B.C.;
9. H. Remmen, New Westminster, B.C., dated February 1, 1939.

On motion of Mr. Mayhew:—

Ordered,—That the said briefs and letters be printed in to-day’s minutes of
evidence. (See appendices 1, 2 and 3 of to-day’s minutes of evidence.)

Mr. Whitmore was called and examined.
The witness retired.
Mr. Rodd was recalled, further examined and retired.

S On motion of Mr. Mayhew, the Committee adjourned to the call of the
- Chair.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,

Clerk of the Committee.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE
~ Housk oF Commons, Room 429, May 4, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 o’clock. The
- chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CuamMaN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. Since our last meeting
~ we have received briefs from the different parties interested in the question that
. is before the committee, namely the fish traps at Sooke, B.C. We have received
a brief and a letter from Mr. John Stanton, notary public, Vancouver, B.C., on
behalf of the fishermen, and ‘we have received a brief from Mr. Charles F.
- Goodrich, president of the Sooke Trap Fisheries on behalf of Messrs. J. H. Todd
- & Sons, Ltd., defending the trap situation. Now, we have with us to-day Mr.
Whitmore of the department who is fully acquainted with the situation in the
- western part of the dominion, and we will ask him to appear as a witness so that
- any questions which are in dispute may be referred to him for reply.

Mr. Rem: Would it not be better to have the briefs submitted and have
argument on them and then we can submit any questions we wish to Mr.
Whitmore? ,

The CuamrMAN: That is the intention. Either Mr. Mayhew or Mr, Taylor
- will take charge of the brief from Mr. Goodrich.

Mr. Mayaew: Mr. Taylor will do that. The fish traps are in Mr. Taylor’s
district.

The CuAaRMAN: I think if that is the wish of the committee we will hear
that brief first. s

Mr. NemL: Shall we have these briefs read?

The CuarmaN: They are lengthy and the material is practically along the
the same lines as the evidence given and embodied in the report two years ago.

Mr. Tavror: The only question in my mind is how the information can be
made available to the members who are not familiar with the facts.

Mr. Mayaew: Mr. Chairman, I think that as a matter of fairness the
opponents of the traps who are trying to prevent the traps from being there
. should present their case first. After all, the traps are on the defence and those
who are attacking generally make the first presentation.

Mr. Tayror: That is my point, too, Mr. Chairman.

; The CrairMAN: It is immaterial to me. What do Mr. Neill and Mr. Reid
| say?

Mr. NemL: This brief which has been put in my hands and which has been
prepared by Mr. Goodrich consists of eleven closely typewritten pages, and it
would be unfair to expect me to reply to it right off. I have glanced at it and
I have seen some obvious misstatements, but I would like some time to go into it.

Mr. Rem: I would suggest that if we have the brief sent in by Mr. Stanton
on behalf of the fishermen and the brief sent in by Mr. Goodrich—if we have
the two briefs before us—argument could be proceeded with by the members of
- the committee; but as Mr. Neill has said we have not had time to peruse either
brief. I have not seen them.

Mr. Nemn: Your name is mentioned here too.

Mr. Mayaew: Mr. Chairman, may I suggest something else, something that
Mr. Neill brought up at the last meeting to the effect that these men were men
- who did not have very much money and would be unable to get proper
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assistance in preparing their brief. Now, probably that is evidenced in the brief;
I have not seen it; but if it is going to suit our purpose better I would move
that we ask the government for, say, $100 to enable those men to present a
proper brief. I do not think anybody wants to take advantage of the situation
at all. Let them present another brief if Mr. Neill thinks this does not suit the
case. We have lots of evidence.

Hon. Mr. MicgAUD: I undestand the fishermen have forwarded their brief
through Mr. John Stanton, barrister and notary public, East Hastings street,
Vancouver, B.C. Unless you dispute the qualifications of Mr. Stanton why
‘should we assume that they have not prepared a proper brief or did not have
the means to employ proper legal talent. -

Mr. Mayuaew: I was basing my assumption on the fact that they did
prepare a brief themselves and that Mr. Neill thought it was not right. If the
brief is prepared by a solicitor, there is nothing to what I have said.

Mr. TavrLor: Mr. Stanton acts for the various unions. He acted in the
case of the Blubber bay strike and is, apparently, a man who attends to the
legal affairs of these labouring men, working men and others. ]

Mr. Mayaew: That is quite satisfactory.

Mr. Tavior: There is one matter to which I should like to draw the
attention of the committee and that is that at our last meeting we had a precis
of some letters sent to Mr. Neill. I cannot accept the value of that precis
unless I see the original documents, and I think for all the purposes of our
research and search we should have those filed to support the precis.

Mr. Nein: What do you call that? A precis?

Mr. Tavror: A precis of the various letters.

Mr. Nems: You said something about a precis; put it in English.

Mr. Tavror: If you will look up a dictionary you will find the word in
the English language. ;

Mr. Neinn: You mean a summary, don’t you? Who prepared the sum-
mary? Who prepared the precis?

Mr. Tavror: I do not know who prepared it; you submitted it.

Mr. Rem: The word precis is the word used by the pension authorities
in making up a man’s history, and in plain language it is a summary—

Mr. TayLor: No, I submit it is not a summary.

Mr. NeiLi: I have the man’s letter here; would you like to have it read?

Mr. Tavror: I have made my statement.

Mr. Nemn: If the committee would like to have Mr. Hill’s letter read I
have the letter here and I would be glad and happy to read it.

Mr. Mayaew: Mr. Chairman, would it not be fair to all the members if
these two briefs were put into the printed record.

Mr. RosicHAUD: Precis is a French word.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: It must be a good word then.

Mr. Tavror: Yes, that is the word; certainly it is good.

Mr. MayuEw: We could have the meeting adjourned and give all the
members a chance to read both briefs.

Mr. NeiLL: Here is what this man wrote me:—

Enclosed you will find a summary taken from the signed state-
ments of nine fishermen who actually fished near the traps at Sooke
last summer. They all seem quite satisfied with the fishing there and
consider going back there next summer. They will have lots of com-
pany if all the rumours are correct.



- "I‘hen he enclosed the summary which was put upon the file. Now, if the letter
accompanying the file makes Mr. Taylor happy, there it is. He also says in
the letter later that he has nine letters from these individual men.

Mr. Tavror: Those are the letters I would like to have on the file.
Mr. NemL: It is only cluttering up the record.
Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Let us have them.

Mr. Nem: I will turn them in to the clerk to be printed; or does Mr.
Taylor wish to have them read now?

Mr. Tavror: I am satisfied if they go on the record.
Mr. Mavuew: I move that the two briefs be incorporated in the record.

The Caamrman: You have heard the motion that these two briefs be filed
with the clerk and printed in our next report; is the committee agreed?

(Carried.) _ :
X The letters submitted by Mr. Neill at the last meeting and which have

been asked for by Mr. Taylor will also be included in the record.

(Brief submitted to the Fisheries committee, House of Commons,
on behalf of J. H. Todd & Sons, Ltd., and Sooke Harbour Fishing &
Packing Co., Ltd., dated May 1, 1939, appears as Appendix No. 1.)

(Brief submitted by John Stanton, Barrister and Solicitor, Notary
Public, 16 East Hastings street, Vancouver, British Columbia, “In the
Matter of Fish Traps at Sooke, B.C.,” dated April 29, 1939, appears as
Appendix No. 2.) ; -

(Nine letters from B.C. fishermen put in by Mr. Neill, appear as
Appendix No. 3.)

Mr. MayaEW: I move that the meeting adjourn so that the members may
make a proper study of the reports and be ready to discuss them at our next
meeting.

Mr. Nemwn: I should like to ask Mr. Whitmore a few questions, and it
would save time later on if I could do it now.

The Cuamman: You have the opportunity now.

A. J. Warrmore, Head of Western Division, Department of Fisheries,
called.

Mr. NrmL: These are not controversial things; they are a matter of
governmental procedure.
Mr. Rem: Did we get the exact meaning of precis?

Mr. NueiLL: How is the word pronounced? The word “summary” was used
by the man I was quoting.

Mr. Tavror: I am not using your words.

Mr. Rem: This committee is getting in an elevated position when we have
to have a dictionary here.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Perhaps it will help the committee to learn good
English.

Mr. Remm: We have not been given the meaning of the word yet. You have
the dictionary there.

Hon Mr. MicaAuD: The dictionary is there for you to see if you wish.

Mr. NemLn: It means summary, does it not?

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: Oh, yes.

Mr. NemwwL: After glancing through this brief—it is a matter of fact and
not a matter of opinion—I would like to ask one or two questions.

The CHARMAN: Go ahead, Mr. Neill.
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By Mr. Neill: ; ;
Q. Mr. Whitmore, how many licences are there issued yearly in that area

to those two companies regularly?—A. The last three years there have been
five licences issued.

Q. Five? That is the total number issued?—A. Five salmon trap net
licences.

Q. How many were operated in 1937?—A. There may have been four in
1937 and five last year.

Q. I thought the number was four in 1937, but somebody said five. And
19387—A. Five traps operated last year.

Q. And this year?—A. There have been five licences issued. I do not know
how many will be operated.

Q. And were there not more than five issued at one time? It seems to me
that it was recorded in 1937 that they had seven licences. I am sure that was
put in evidence.

Mr. Tayror: No, Mr. Neill used the word “seven.”

Mr. Nemn: I got it from somebody.

Mr. Tayror: But the actual facts are in the report.

Mr. Nemn: In what report?

Mr. Tavror: In the Department of Fisheries report for 1937-38 where it
shows the number of licences issued for the various years running from 1927
to 1937.

Mr. Rem: What page is that?

Mr. TavLor: Page 79. ;

Mr. NemwL: What were,they in 1937?

Mr. TayLor: In 1937 there were five.

Mr. Nemn: Mr. Whitmore says there were four.

The Wrirness: Five licences were issued. I will check on the number that
were actually operated.

Mr. NemLL: Were there at no time more than five licences issued in that
list you have got?

Mr. Tayror: Oh, yes; five was the smallest number.

Mr. NemwL: What was the greatest number issued?

Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: Nineteen.

Mr. NewL: In the last ten years?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Eight in 1933, 1934, and 1935.

By Mr. Neill:

Q. Mr. Whitmore, were those eight licences all issued in the Sooke area?—
A. All for the Sooke area.

Q. Eight licences in what year?—A. In 1933, 1934 and 1935.

Q. And the number was afterwards reduced to five, and there are five now;
and how many have been operated?—A. In 1933 and 1934—I have not the
information with me.

Q. Have you got the information since then? How many were operated
in 1937, 1938 and 1939?—A. In 1937 five were operated.

Q. In 1938 the same and in 1939. Could you tell me, Mr. Whitmore, what
they do with licences for which they pay $500 apiece? Do they not use them?
What do they do with them? Why do they take licences which they do not
operate—eight at one time and they only used five. What do they pay that
money for? Was it to keep somebody else out of the area?

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]

I
h
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Mr TAYLOR It has not been estabhshed that they have done that.
Mr. NemL: Yes.
Mr. TavLor: Where?
Mr. NemL: By Mr. Whitmore and yourself.
Mr, Tavror: I did not establish it. I am not in a position to know. I
know that the report says that in 1925 there were nineteen licences. They
scaled down to seven since that time—eight three times and seven in 1936 and
five in 1937. What they do with the licences or who possesses those licences X%
is not in the report.

Mr. Nemwn: I am asking Mr. Whitmore, and he is qualified to answer
whether people take out licences costing up to $500 in places where they do not
operate.

Mr. Tayror: The fact that they do that must be established.

Mr. Nemn: If Mr. Whitmore could be allowed to answer we would get
somewhere.

Mr. Mavyuew: They were not paying $500 in 1937. They were paying $50.

The WirNess: Since 1937 the cost has been $500, and that fee has prevailed,
and the information I gave was that they have operated all licences since that
time. Prior to that, it is true, they took licences which they did not operate, but
the fee was much less than it is now. It may be that when they applied for the
licences they had intentions of operating them and later on did not proceed.

Mr. RosicuAuD: That was explained in 1937 by Mr. Goodrich. He admits
that they did not use them all in some years, but that they might have.

Mr. NemL: They took them all out to prevent anyone else from getting in.

Mr. MayHEW: I object to that because, after all, they have to get their
shore rights from the provincial government before they can operate, and the
fact that they took the licences from here does not mean that they were simply
holding up, because they have to get their shore licences from the provincial
government.

Mr. NeiLL: They did the same thing with the province; they took the licence
out, the object being to keep that area for themselves.
Mr. MAayHEW: I require that to be proved.

Mr. NemL: What is the reason if that is not it?

By Mr. Neill:

Q. Mr. Whitmore, what does the Act say with regard to the distances
between traps—I think it is 800 yards—I have not got the section in my hand,
but I think you will agree with me that that is what the Act says?—A. Section
13 of the Fisheries Act reads:—

All stationary nets or other stationary appliances for the capture of
salmon, shall be placed at distances of not less than 250 yards apart, with-
out intermediate fishing nets or appliances of any kind being set or used.

Q. That is not the section I am referring to, that is a generic one. I am
talking of salmon trap nets, and you will find that the distance is 800 yards.
Mr. Found gave that evidence, very reluctantly—A. That is section 18 of the
regulations—the British Columbia Fishery regulations—sub-section 5 (a):—

(a) A salmon trapnet shall be located on a definite site, certified by
the licence, and shall be at least 400 fathoms distance from the nearest
adjacent trapnet. The mesh of such trapnets shall not be less than 6
inches, extension measure, in the leader or lead, nor more than 2 inches,
extension measure, in the heart, crib or pot.



Q. I have only one more question to ask. If someone who is supposedly =
familiar with this thing puts it on evidence that the distance is only 250 yards
he is endeavouring to mislead the committee, is he not?—A. The section of the
regulations I just read dealt with the location of one trapnet to another trapnet.
The section of the Act I read previously— X

Q. I suppose that anyone who has been operating traps for a number of
years must be familiar with the Act and the regulations?—A. T would think so.

Q. That is all.

Mr. RosicuAaup: He did not answer the previous question—

The Wirness: The section of the Act which was previously—

Mr. RoBicHAUD: —that anyone who put a brief in and said the distance was
250 yvards was not telling the truth. He was going to explain that, was he not?
Mr. NemL: He cannot explain that. ;

Hon. Mr. MicuHaup: Give him time to explain it.
The Wirtness: Section 13 of the Act which I previously read states:—
All stationary nets, or other stationary appliances for the capture
of salmon, shall be placed at distances of not less than 250 yards apart,
without intermediate fishing nets or appliances of any kind being set or -
used.

By Mr. Neill:

Q. That is the generic section; but the clause which covers salmon trapnets
and which the witness just read specifically states 400 fathoms.

Mr. Rosicuaup: That is trapnets. There may be other nets, but those
other nets cannot come closer than 250 yards, and these trapnets have to be
400 fathoms apart. .

Mr. Mayuew: Mr. Neill, you are opposed to any additional licences for
trapnets in the Sooke area being issued; is that the idea?

Mr. Nemwn: I am not giving evidence, but I am opposed to any licences
being issued.

Mr. Mayaew: You think that more licences would not be in the best
interests of anybody?

Mr. Nemn: I think any licences are not in the best interest.

Mr. Mayvaew: I would like to point out that the number of traps in 1925
was nineteen traps and you caught 1,720 cases. You come down the list here
to 1933, 1934, 1935 and 1936 and you caught 1,265,000. Last year they had
only five traps and they caught 1,500,000 cases. Now, that would be in favour
of more traps because, apparently, it only increases the labour cost and gives
more labour and that is what we are after—a better investment—so if they
want to include more traps in there it is not going to take any more fish, but
is going to give a lot more employment, and it is employment that I am fighting
for.

By Mr. Neill:
Q. Mr. Whitmore, with regard to those nineteen traps in 1925, were they
in the Sooke area?—A. Not all. :
Q. Not all; they were scattered about, some up north and they were finally
abandoned as being on public pressure or for other reasons?

By Mr. Mayhew:
Q. Were not those traps in 1932, 1933, 1934 and 1935 and 1936—were they
not in the Sooke area?—A. Yes.
Q. The same thing applies there.
[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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By Mr. Neill: A
Q. There were traps all over the province at one time, were there not?
And there was an attempt to introduce them up north in 1929, was there not?
A. Traps were never generally permitted throughout the province. The first
traps that were allowed were in this Sooke area and two or three in the
Boundary bay area adjacent to Point Roberts at the southern boundary line.
During the war vears traps were permitted at several points along the coast in
the interests of speeding up production at points where it was concluded they
would do least harm to other types of fishing. They were not generally successful
and they were gradually dropped, and later several trap licences were issued
at the northern boundary of the province where it was suggested conditions
very largely similar to the Sooke area in the south existed—fish that were
moving through the international waters, possibly going to American waters
to spawn or to Canadian waters to spawn. The licences were issued for several
years and they were discontinued for a few years after that and they were later
reissued again, being abandoned and discontinued in the year 1925.

Q. And in 1929 an attempt was made to revive them by sending a commis-
sioner up north who reported, and the matter was debated in the House of
Commons and the feeling was so strongly against traps that the minister made
a statement on the floor of the house, I think, or shortly afterwards there would
be no more traps allowed. Is that substantially correct according to your
recollection, Mr. Whitmore?—A. Yes, no further licences were issued after 1925.

Q. There was a commission went up there that year and it reported favour-
ably, by the way, but the feeling in the House of Commons was so intense that
the matter was dropped there and then.

By Mr. Reud:

Q. Did you say 1923 or 1929?—A. In 1925 the last licences were issued up
there, but the commission—the royal commissioner was appointed in 1929 to
go into that.

By Mr. Neill:
Q. He was Mr. Ellis?—A. Yes, now a judge—J. M, Ellis.

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. Mr. Whitmore, how many trapnets have they operating on the American
side in the north, in the Alaska area?—A. I have not got the last figures for
you, but I have them up to 1935. In 1935 there was a total of 164 driven traps
or pile traps and 283 floating traps.

By Mr. Neill:
Q. In Alaska?—A. Yes, or a total of 447. The total number is not quite
so large since then.

By Mr. Reid:

& Q. None of those are in Bristol bay?—A. No, none of them are in Bristol
ay. '

o

By Mr. Neill :
Q. They have been substantially reduced from time to time—the numbers?
—A. Yes, the total in 1935 I said was 447; in 1928, for instance, it was 730.
Q. In 1925 there were 546?—A. That is right.
Q. In 1927 there were 779?—A. Yes.
Q. They have been reduced substantially from time to time?—A. 1935—
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By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. There are 700 operating there anyway just north of the Canadian
boundary?—A. The percentage of take of salmon in 1935 of the total catch by
traps was 52 per cent.

Q. Fifty-two per cent of the total catch was from traps in the Alaskan
waters?—A. Yes.

Mr. Newr: It was 55 per cent in 1932.

By the Chairman:

Q. Why were they reduced? Was it by legislation of the American gov-
ernment or were they withdrawn by the fishery interests themselves?—A. I
believe the fisheries administration took steps to reduce the number at certain
points in the interests of conservation, very likely.

Mr. RosicHAUD: Now, with regard to Canadian traps, there were nineteen
in 1925 and there were six in 1936. Were they restricted by the department
or did the people give them up? g

The Wrirness: In 1925 the figure you are looking at embraces a number of
trap licences issued for the northern boundary of the province, and they were
discontinued by the department after that year.

By Mr. Robichaud.:

Q. Was it because of restrictions made by the department that you refused
to issue the licences?—A. Because of restrictions of the department there were
no further licences issued for that point.

Q. Do you know how many there were in the Sooke district—the highest
number there ever was in the Sooke district?—I suppose after 1925 they were all
restricted to that district?—A. That is correct.

Mr. Tayror: I notice in the brief that it says under the heading “historical”
in the second paragraph “Pound nets now familiarly known as trapnets were
first established in the Sooke district in 1904 by J. H. Todd. His success
encouraged others and in the years immediately following several canning
companies built traps in the same area. At one time there were some twenty
to twenty-five trap licences issued for that district.”

Mr. RoBicHAUD: In the year 1925 when there were nineteen in all, do you
know how many there were in the Sooke district?

Mr. Tayror: It is not indicated here. They should not be called trapnets.
The word trap is too sinister in the minds of these people who are willing to
sign petitions all the time.

i Mr. NemLL: A rose by any other name would smell as sweet.

Mr. Tayror: The smell is all right.

Mr. NeL: I do not know; I suggest that the situation is fishy.

By Mr. Neill: :

Q. I would like to call the attention of this committee to an item—I do
not know whether it is very important. Here is this brief which we are going
to pursue at great length and which puts forward plausible statements, very -
ably presented, and I would call attention to the fact that these traps were
first put out in 1905; they were o.k.’d in 1904, but I think they came in 1905;
is that right?—A. Yes. The order in council was May 2, 1904, which
authorized them. s

Q. And for thirty-three years these traps have been operating illegally. .
It was only when the matter was brought up here before the committee in
1937 that it suddenly dawned on them that they had better come down and
not trust to their influence and pull and so on and comply with the law, and

[Mr. A, J. Whitmore.]
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~ they then put through the usual procedure—I have it here—of advertising
for their licences under the Navigable Waters Protection Act. Here it is
taken out of the Gazette. The law says that these people or any other people
shall not construct, use or operate any building or structure in the run of the
water without getting consent under the Navigable Waters Protection Act
from the Department of Public Works; and all those years they operated
without that consent and their actions were totally illegal. The department
could have come along at any time and removed or blown up those traps,
because they were being operated illegally. This gives me an idea—I only
give it for what it is worth—that those people who come here pleading poverty
and long vested rights—those are the kind of vested rights they had; this is
the first time they ever applied. I know it is the first time because I got it
from the department. During all those years they operated without getting
the necessary permit which any lawyer must have known was necessary,
anybody would. We all know that you cannot put up a wharf 10 by 12
without getting a certificate under this Act that it does not interfere—

Mr. RosicHAUD: I do not think that was generally known before the last
couple of years. I know that in my own town they have booms and all sorts
of obstructions in the bay and they were never asked to do anything about
them before two years ago.

Mr. Rem: It was illegal just the same.

Mr. RosicHAUD: It may have been, but it was never asked for by the
officials.

Mr. Mavaew: I should like to remind Mr. Neill of a statement of the
Hon. Mr. Bowser when he was being heckled at a political meeting about
making promises, and he was asked: Why didn’t you do it when you were
there? He said, “forget my past; my future is blameless.”

Mr. Nemwn: I appreciate the point that it is the best the trap owners can
offer, but the proper thing to do is to forget the past and be a good boy in the
future. There is an illustration for what it is worth. It costs money to print
- these things. They have to be printed in the Gazette and in the newspapers
too. I think you have to apply to the Department of Public Works to get the
certificate, and they did not do that during all those years, and they were
operating illegally. I have not got an Act here, but any lawyer will tell you
that the department has the authority to come along and remove your obstrue-
tion by any method they care to adopt if you have not got a certificate; and as
a case in point, some ten years ago—

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: What is the reason for that?

Mr. NemwL: For the safety of navigation—not to interfere with navigation.

Hon, Mr. MicuAaUD: Apparently there was not much interference with
navigation during those thirty years since nobody noticed it or took any action
about it.

Mr. RosicHAUD: It is not a harbour. I think the department has first to
declare that to be a public harbour.

Mr. Nemn: No. It is under the Navigable Waters Protection Act. It is
not a harbour at all. The Act says The Navigable Waters Protection Act.

Mr. RoBicaHAUD: They have to declare first that it is a harbour for the use
of the public.

Mr. NemL: Pardon me, it is The Navigable Waters Protection Act. Let us
get the Act, if necessary.

‘Mr. Rem: Mr. Neill is right. I recall a case along the same line on a
navigable stream where a company built five bridges which diverted the fisher-
men from the use of that stream, and the matter came to court and the case
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was thrown out because the company had no right to do that. They had do.ne‘“
the same thing as the trap owners have done—in this case they had built the
bridges over a navigable stream without permission. '

. MI". Tavror: The waters of the Juan de Fuca straits are 15 miles wide at
this point, and I do not think that interference comes into the matter.

Mr. NemLL: Some ten years ago there was a well-known fishing company in
British Columbia which ran up against this after they had built a large wharf
and had not got permission to do so. I went to the department and the answer
I got was, “they will have to tear it down and get permission to begin again.”

~ So they are quite touchy. These people must first get the permit while the

structure is being built.
Mr. Maysew: Did they tear the wharf down?

Mr. Nemn: No. Wise counsels prevailed. I gave them sound advice, and I
advised them that, perhaps, the wharf was not completed.

The CrHARMAN: I know that even to build a building alongside a public
wharf you have got to get permission from the Department of Public Works.

Mr. Rem: The trouble is, as in the case of these traps, that once a company
or a person goes ahead with a thing it is difficult to have it removed afterwards.

Mr. NemLL: The Act dates back to 1908 at least.

Mr. Tayror: I would. like to ask Mr. Rodd a question concerning the effect
upon the salmon of the biological urge. I was laughed at two years ago when I
introduced certain facts before this committee, but inasmuch as we are going to
discuss this in the near future it might be well to have Mr. Rodd give us an idea
of the change which the fish undergo as they approach the final stages of their
urge—the final changes.

Mr. Ropp (Director of Fish Culture, Department of Fisheries) called:

The Wirness: I will confine myself to the sockeye, but the same changes
occeur in the other species to a more or less extent. The male sockeye becomes
deformed, as it were. They develop a hooked nose and take on a much deeper
colour; the female becomes more distended. The scales of both when they first
come into fresh water are easily disturbed or removed. The fish are fat. As
development towards the spawning season progresses the scales become more
firmly attached. We use the term being imbedded.

By Mr. Taylor:
Q. And that imbedding is all over the fish?—A. The imbedding is all over
the fish.

By Mr. Reid:
Q. What relation has that to the biological urge?—A. That is a biological

change. A
Q. It is a biological change but not a biological urge; one is the cause

and the other is the effect?—A. Of course, I understood it was the physical
appearance we are interested in.

By Mr. Taylor:

Q. I want to know of the change which the fish undergoes as it approaches
its biological urge, and the appearance is part of the indication that it is
undergoing that. The period of adolescence in a youth, for instance.

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.] :




. By Mr. Reid: ;
Q. I know that a biological urge may start out in the straits of Juan de

Fuca when the fish are headed in. That may be the biological urge, but it is
a long way from the start of that urge until they reach the upper reaches of the

~ Fraser river.

By Mr. Taylor: :

Q. At what point, Mr: Rodd, do they change in appearance?—A. The
sockeye do not change much in appearance until they are fairly well up the
river, that is those that enter early; those that enter in the fall change in
colouration before they go very far,

Q. Exactly; but is it not a fact that they change at the mouth of the
Fraser river?>—A. I have not seen them at the mouth of the Fraser river, but
up at Cultus lake salmon are sometimes highly coloured when they reach the

fences. 3

By Mr. Reid:

Q. And is it not a fact that sockeye salmon, particularly, have been taken
away. beyond Shuswap in first class condition as well as others that were
taken in not as good condition?—A. I do not know. I would not dispute that
for a moment.

Q. That is evidence I can produce—A. I would not dispute that for a

moment.

By the Chairman:

Q. Are they fit for human consumption in that condition?—A. Generally
speaking, no. When they get well up the river, as I have seen them, covered
with fungus and sores they are rather horrid looking things. I understand
the Indians do eat them,

By Mr. Reid:

Q. In case there is any misrepresentation of the statement, I take issue
with Mr. Rodd’s statement. Sockeye salmon in the Fraser river are in the
finest condition for canning, although there may be other varieties of fish
that are not, but when he speaks particularly of sockeye he is getting into
deep water and I take issue. He will have to be definite on that point.
I can bring you any number of sockeye salmon above Hells Gate which are
in good condition, and until they get up the Fraser river 400 miles there
is very little deterioration in the sockeye. I want that clear—A. I can only
tell you what I have seen myself, and I have never seen a salmon that I
considered fit to eat at Shuswap lake and Adams river, and beyond, and
above that point I have not seen a salmon that was not highly coloured.

Q. What time of the year are you speaking of?—A. The autumn.

Q. What month?—A. Well, will you let me off if I correct myself.
I think it was late October.

Q. Well, the run is in July.—A. My observations in the Fraser river
have always been in the late season.

Q. That might clear you, because the month of the year has a lot to do,
and not the place—A. Yes, I am speaking of my own observations. You
must remember that.

Q. I do not want any implications.

Mr. Mayuew: Your point is that the fresh water has nothing to do
with the change.

Mr. Rem: No. It is the length of time it may be delayed in going 'up.




The Wirness: Would you not say, sir, that it is the né&mess 1048
spawning conditions—that causes the biological change. i .

Mr. Rem: I would say yes; but the location would not have a great deal

to do with it in so far as sockeye salmon are concerned. They may be well up
the river beyond Hells Gate in the month of August, shall I say, in first-class
condition on their way to spawn.

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Reid is probably aware that the statements of the depart-
ment are somewhat contrary to that.

Mr. Rem: Oh, no, they are not.

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Reid should look up Dr. Found's report before the
select standing committee of the House of Commons in 1935.

Mr. Rem: Speaking on pink salmon.

Mr. Tayror: The late run of sockeyes.

Mr. Rem: Mr. Rodd said sockeye salmon. They are two different things.

By Mr. Taylor:

Q. Do you include the late run?—A. 1 was referring to the biological change,
and I confined myself to my own observations. I repeat that I have never seen
sockeye in the Fraser river at the times I have been there that I considered fit
to eat.

By Mr. Reid:

Q. Whereabouts in the Fraser river?>—A. Adams river, Stuart lake, Cultus
lake. ;

Q. The reason I ask is this; I want no misunderstanding to arise. When
you speak of the Fraser river in referring to the spawning of sockeye salmon
and other salmon I think in fairness you should speak about the upper reaches
of the Fraser river in case some argument arose from your statement concerning
the Fraser river generally. It is the Fraser river at New Westminster and it
is the Fraser river at Chilliwack, and still it is the Fraser river many miles
up.—A. And it is the Fraser river also at Cultus lake.

Q. But we consider from Cultus lake up as the upper reaches of the Fraser
river.—A. I can repeat what I said before that in October and later at Cultus
lake I have seen thousands of salmon and they were of a deep red colour. It
was the spawning time, and they were late fish.

Q. I accept that.

By Mr. Neill:

Q. I shall direct my questions to Mr. Whitmore. Mr. Whitmore, you know
the area of Sooke. About how many miles is the area within which these
licences operate? I do not want to put words into your mouth, but I think it is
about eleven miles?—A. I had in mind seven or eight miles.

Q. How far apart would you suggest the traps were?—A. Well, there are
two or three which are close together—I would say within a mile of each other
and another one is two or three miles away from the group.

Q. Then, you would not say it was a fair statement to say that they average
four miles apart?>—A. No, it would not be four miles. Average four miles
apart?

Q. Average four miles apart.—A. That would be tantamount to saying
you would multiply five traps by four miles—that would be a twenty mile
stretch of the coast line.

Mr. Tayror: Sixteen miles.

Mr. WarTMORE: I do not think there is that distance between the two
extremes.

[Mr. J. A. Rodd.]
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By Mr. Reid: ¢

Q. How far out from shore would they be?—A. Mr. Goodrich gave evidence
on that. I think the longest lead was 2,000 feet.

Mr. TavLor: Mr. Neill suggested there might be 6,000 feet. That is quite
incorrect?

Mr. NeiLL: When did he suggest that?

Mr. TavLor: In the house.

Mr. NemwL: When?

Mr. TavLor: In describing the traps.

Mr. NemwL: I do not think so. It is quite right they might be 6,000.

By Mr. Neill:
Q. Mr. Whitmore, there is no limit to the lead they can use?—A. There is
no limit preseribed by the regulations.
Mr. Mayuew: I knew you would convey the wrong impression.

Mr. NeioL: The ones at Sooke—the most of them would be 2,000, but
they can go out as far as they like.

Mr. MayHEW: Quite; but you knew they did not go out that far.
Mr. Rosicuaup: The depth of the water is the limit.

Mr. Tavror: Yes; and the bed into which the poles are driven.
Mr. Warrmore: Deep water and penetration.

Mr. Tayror: “They come along the shore lines and they come up to a
iead which may be 600 feet or 6,000 feet long”; that is Mr. Neill speaking on
the 2nd of March.

Mr. NeiLL: What is that?

Mr. Tavror: “They come along the shore lines and they come up to a
lead which may be 600 feet or 6,000 feet long.”

Mr. NemwL: Yes I kept well within the limits.

Mr. Mayaew: You were modest in saying 6,000 feet; you might have added
another nought.

Mr. RosicaAaUD: Under the regulations it could be 6,000 miles.
The CuamrMmaN: I notice, gentlemen, that we have not a quorum now.

Mr. Tayror: I should like to impress upon our maritime friends that this is a
very serious issue for the people of British Columbia, and we would like their
assistance in settling the matter.

The CramrmaN: Yes, we would like to have as full a meeting as possible at
the next sitting which will possibly be Monday if we can get the record printed
in time and have it before the committee by Monday.

Mzr. Tustin: I suggest that the meeting be not called for Monday because
Monday is a very bad day. It is all right for the members who are here from very
long distances and are here all the time.

Mr. NemL: The trouble is that a number of members are on the Public
Accounts committee and that committee always meets on Tuesday and we can
never get members to attend our meeting although they are keenly interested in
this subject. |

The CuAmrMAN: The trouble is if we call our meeting for Tuesday or
Thursday there are so many committees sitting that we have not a chance to get
the members here.

Mr. NemwwL: The trap owners’ brief stated that the traps were an average of
four miles apart, and I asked Mr. Whitmore for an answer.

The CaarMAN: The committee will stand adjourned to the call of the chair.

The committee adjourned at 12.15 to meet at the call of the chair.
78157—2




A. E. MacLean, Esq., M.P.,

APPENDIX 1

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING AND PACKING CO., LTD.
504-5 Union Building, ]
|
Vicroria, B.C.,, May 1, 1939.

Chairman, Fisheries Committee,
Ottawa, Ont. :

DEear Sir,—Complying with your telegram of the 28th ultimo, we transmit
herewith, on behalf of Messrs. J. H. Todd & Sons, Ltd., and ourselves, our brief
in the matter of the proposed amendment to the Fisheries Act, relative to the
trap nets at Sooke, B.C.

We trust that the same will receive your careful and favourable con-

sideration.
Very truly yours,

SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING CO., LTD.

CHAS. F. GOODRICH,
President.

BRIEF SUBMITTED TO THE FISHERIES COMMITTEE, HOUSE OF 3
COMMONS, ON BEHALF OF J. H. TODD & SONS, LTD., AND
SOOKE HARBOUR FISHING & PACKING CO., LTD.

May 1, 1939.

MEeMORANDUM RELATIVE To TrRAP NETS NEAR SOOKE, VANCOUVER ISLAND
PART ONE

1. Course of Salmon Run

The main run of salmon heading for the spawning grounds of the Fraser
River system enters Puget Sound through the Straits of Juan de Fuca. Head-
ing in from the Pacific in a south-easterly direction, these fish continue on down
into American waters and following a fairly well defined course proceed north
and east, almost entirely on the American side of the International boundary
until they pass Point Roberts and debouch into the mouth of the Fraser. Those
which escape being caught arrive eventually at the Fraser River and ascend
to the spawning grounds.

2. Historical

Pound nets now familiarly known as trap nets were first established in the
Sooke district in 1904 by J. H. Todd. His success encouraged others and in
the years immediately following several canning companies built traps in the
same area. At one time there were some twenty to twenty-five trap licences
issued for this district.

Due to losses sustained through the hazards common to the fishing business,
including variations in the run and the changing habits of the fish, and the fact
that fish could be caught in the Fraser River cheaper than they could be obtained
by trap fishing, the majority of the licensees found their traps uneconomical
and one after another withdrew. Finally the only ones left in the field were
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~ J. H. Todd & Sons, Ltd., and Sooke Harbour Fishing & Packing Co., Ltd. In
1922 these two Companies found that in order to operate with any hope of success
it was necessary to eliminate overlapping and to divide the work, with the result
that the Sooke Harbour Fishing & Packing Co., Ltd., with its home plant at
Sooke, B.C., superintends and operates the fishing and handles the fish sold on
the market as fresh fish, and delivers its entire catch of sockeyes and other
varieties suitable for canning to the Empire Cannery at Esquimalt, operated by
J. H. Todd & Sons, Ltd.

It is important to note that the traps which ceased to operate in this area
were not legislated out, but were taken out voluntarily by the operators because
they did not pay.

In the northern waters of British Columbia, where different conditions pre-
vailed, agitation on the part of other fishermen did succeed in effecting the
removal of the traps. That, however, was not the case in the Sooke area.

3. A “Gear Fight”

In the past ten years or so, the number of men engaged in fishing in British
Columbia has doubled. Purse seine licences have remained about the same,
but the number of licences issued to salmon trollers has increased from 1,821
in 1925 to 3,453 in 1938 and licences to gillnetters from 4,225 to 7,125 in the same
period. The size of trolling boats has been increased and with more lines,
more hooks and automatic reels their efficiency has been greatly multiplied.
The result has been to intensify competition between groups using different
types of gear. Trollers, gillnetters and seiners, at odds with each other, have
been led through unwise counsel to combine officially in opposition to the traps,
largely for publicity purposes, though individually these fishermen privately
admit, as the facts show, that the traps as they exist cannot in fact affect
them to any appreciable degree whatever. In essence, the anti-trap agitation
so far as the fishermen are concerned, is an off-shoot of their own “gear fight.”

4. Monopoly?

This agitation has, it must be admitted, assumed a political aspect. It is
claimed that the licences granted in the Sooke area constitute a monopoly or
special privilege extended to one group to the exclusion of others. Actually,
as far as we know, any person or company who wishes may secure a trap licence
for the Sooke area but for reasons already given no person or company has

L for many years considered it profitable to do so. The risk is great. To operate

a trap requires a large annual capital outlay and as in all forms of fishing the
catch is a gamble.

It has also been urged that to permit traps at Sooke but not in other waters
in British Columbia constitutes an unwarranted diserimination. The answer
is that conditions at Sooke are unique in two particulars: (1) That no other
form of commercial fishing is practicable there; and (2) That here is the only
opportunity to intercept fish bound for Canadian spawning grounds before
they enter American waters and encounter American gear.

These points are dealt with more fully below.

5. Cost—Licence Fees and Rentals

At Sooke the two companies operate under their joint arrangement from
four to six traps each year. The Dominion Government licence fee for each
trap, formerly $50.00, was raised in 1937 to $500.00. These companies
hold foreshore leases from the Provincial Government for nine trap locations
altogether, the object being in part to provide for the possible necessity of
altering trap locations, and in part to avoid the delays and expense of re-obtain-
ing foreshore rights should it become necessary to do so. For each location the
Provincial Government receives $100.00 to $200.00 foreshore rental and in addi-

tion there is a $100.00 Provincial licence tax for each location operated.
7815724
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6. Construction of Trap Net _
For those unfamiliar with them, a fish trap consists of a “lead” of wire-
netting stretched on piles from the shore, at the outer end of which are the
enclosures known as the “hearts,” “pot” and “Spiller.” Fish coming in with the
flood tide follow along the lead and enter the enclosures, from which they are
“brailed” into boats or scows. '
Obviously with the wide expanse of water, the Straits at this point being
approximately fifteen miles wide, only a portion of the fringe of the run can
possibly be intercepted. In this connection the statement frequently made that
the main run hugs the headlands and follows close to shore on rounding
Vancouver Island is not correct.

7. Operating Costs

The annual net cost of constructing and operating a trap net at Sooke
varies from approximately $14,000.00 to $20,000.00. This represents only
labour and replacement costs. These costs are based on depreciated costs of
materials salvaged from the previous year, and not on the value of new material
where salvage materials are used.

The traps are constructed and dismantled in their entirety each year. Wire
netting lasts but one season; piles, lines (ropes) and cotton web (the last of which
requires to be changed frequently during the season) for the most part last
two or three seasons and are salvaged at the end of each season, thus reducing
the net cost of operation. Cost of new material alone totals approximately
$25,000.00 per annum, purchases for the most part being made through Victoria
and Vancouver merchants.

Costs noted do not include any charge for depreciation of fixed equipment.
Fixed equipment includes buildings, wharves, Diesel-powered boats, pile driver,
pile puller, scows and dories.

8. Men Employed

The Sooke companies employ a total of about forty men, averaging some
nine months each per year. While usually only three men—two watchmen and
a cook—are employed on each trap during the actual fishing season, the others
are employed in brailing, manning the boats, and in other necessary operations.

These men, most of them married and owning their own homes, form the °
nucleus of the thriving community of Sooke, which has a population of about
three hundred persons. The fish traps constitute its only industry.

Every season a considerable sum is disbursed in wages for persons employed
at the Empire Cannery at Esquimalt near Victoria in can-making and the
canning branches of this operation.

9. Would Abolition of Traps Increase Employment?

A primary contention of the trollers, seiners and gill-netters, as urged in
Parliament, and before the Committee, is that the abolition of the traps would
give employment to a greater number of fishermen. Instead of forty men they
claim that two hundred or even three hundred and fifty floating gear fishermen
could be given work.

This conclusion is not sound and is not supported by any evidence what-
soever. In the first place the strong tides which sweep through the Juan de Fuca
Straits, and the stormy weather which prevails there make other forms of
fishing impracticable. The clear water in the Straits lessens the chances of
gillnetters, who do best in the muddier waters of the Fraser area; (1.n) and the

(1n.) cf. A. W. Neill, M.P., in Hansard, March 28, 1939, p. 2547: “The %l]net catches
any variety of fish but it cannot operate in clear water. The water must be muddy or

discoloured because, if it is clear, the fish can see the net and readily dive under it and so |

escape.”
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~ high degree of phosphorescense in the Sooke waters likewise is disadvantageous
to gillnetters, for the simple reason that at nights the nets appear literally
“walls of fire” and fish will not go near them.

While these arguments are advanced by us, it must be emphasized that
~ their truth is confirmed by government fisheries experts.

' It is agreed by all, fishermen and technical experts alike, that trollers could
- operate if they wished and found it practicable in the Sooke waters. But
sockeye, pinks and chums, the principal catch of the Sooke traps, do not take
the hook. The fish when found here are travelling by day and not feeding or
in schools and therefore cannot be taken by purse seines readily. All types of
gear have been tried at different times with exceedingly disappointing results.
The plain fact of the matter is that with no law to prevent them floating gear
 fishermen do not operate off Sooke in any numbers.

True, it is alleged that government regulations prohibit fishing too near
- the traps, and that the traps themselves interfere with other kinds of fishing.
. These objections do not hold water. To prevent damage to gear, either stationary
- or floating, as a result of swift tides, the Dominion Fisheries Act provides that
- other fishing shall not be carried on within two hundred and fifty (250) yards
of fixed equipment, but as Dr. W. A. Found, Deputy Minister of Fisheries,
~explained when giving evidence before the Standing Committee, which investi-
- gated the question in 1937, this section of the Act was intended to apply only
" on the Atlantic Coast and had never been considered applicable to the Pacific
Coast. It does not appear, in fact, in the official regulations governing fishing
. in British Columbia.

‘ In any case, anyone who has been at Sooke realizes that, even if the section
. were to be made applicable, it could not interfere in any material way with
other forms of fishing as there are, on the average, four miles between the traps,
leaving plenty of room for all who wish to fish.

It has been claimed also that whether or not floating gear is practicable
off Sooke, if the traps were abolished the fish now caught there would be
caught by gillnetters operating in the Fraser River. Again this argument does
- not carry much weight, The Sooke traps take on an average only two per
cent of the entire Canadian and American catch of the Fraser River pack of
. sockeye (1-2 per cent in 1938), and correspondingly small percentages of
other types of fish. Should the traps be taken out, a certain part of the two
per cent of sockeye—possibly half—would be taken by American fishermen,
and a certain part would escape. The remainder if taken and divided up
. among the 2,300 Canadian fishermen in the Fraser River area would increase
their individual catches by negligible amounts.

Employment Compared

: With reference to the employment of labour, the attention of the Standing
Committee may be drawn to the evidence of Mr. C. F. Goodrich, President of
the Sooke Harbour Fishing & Packing Co. Ltd., given before the Committee
. on February 15, 1937, report of which appears in the Minutes of Proceedings
- and Evidence, No. 2; on pages 50 and 51.

. By this evidence it was shown that in the year 1935 264 man-days of
- employment were required to produce sufficient fish for 1,000 cases of canned
~ salmon, as against 76 man-days to produce the same quantity of salmon by
| purse seines in Alaska. Actually 1935 being a pink salmon run year, the number
| of man-days labour employed was even lower than would have been the case in
an “ off ” year,



g 4 Sl Y S RIOTE AT LRI A
e SRR T L s

¥

B et 5 o

EOR STANDING COMMITTEE

For that reason the following computation, compiled on the same basis
should be of interest:—

Payroll for 1938 Catch for 1938

Month Man days ; Number or Required = Cases
ST o s SRR AR T~ 3 o 62 Species weight per case if canned
Hebmiary: oL i), .o ohis s 692 Springs .. .. .. 305845 lbs. 80 lbs. 3,823
Marehiii" LG v PR R R AR Steelheads .. .. 6,184 1bs. 80 lbs. 77
AR R VA R Bockeyes.. .. .. 40,925 fish 12-1 3,653
I E R AT AR, T 1,269 Pindas . ol 1,472 5% 16-5 90
i i £ PR e A Gl R 1 RN ChumsiL 8 S 9h3- 8-64 110
< LR TR CRREITES 8 S B (Nl W 21 Cohoes !, JL AL =17, 24708 9-1 2,715
5 05 1T TNICRE R N SO (NG i 1
Beptemberd . 1.5 F i L SRR 01 256 10,468
@Betoler. i sl usla s e 228 Man days per 1,000 cs., 1,125.
Novermber i, Sy T e (i 726 /
Decenmber. . Ly L LS 87

Rataksa el T s 1Y

The above table shows that from the standpoint of employment of labour,
the trap-net mode of fishing compares most favourably with any other commerecial
mode of fishing.

PART TWO
10. Conservation.

Conservation is a word which enters largely into every discussion of fish
traps, as of fishing generally. It does so rightly, for the preservation of a natural
resource such as fisheries is a matter in which every citizen has a deep and real
- interest. Nevertheless, in the controversy between those who defend fish traps
and those who condemn them, there is a good deal of confusion regarding what
actually constitutes conservation.

Government officials and technical experts—those charged with the duty of
seeing that the fish are conserved—point out that they do not champion any one
type of gear as opposed to other types. They do point out, however, that a fish
killed in any way is dead, and for propagation purposes useless. In that sense
all types of gear are destructive.

Some, though not all, opponents of traps claim that they are the most destrue-
tive type of gear; that they catch all kinds of fish, large and small, including many
immature fish. They claim further that salmon caught in traps mutilate each
other and are mutilated by dogfish. They affirm also that the dumping of scrap-
fish (those classed as non-edible) in the neighbourhood of the Sooke traps attracts
numerous dogfish and sharks and thereby discourages fishing with other types of
gear. It is also claimed that trap nets fish continuously night and day. These
charges have no foundation in fact. Admittedly the Sooke traps catch a good
many varieties of fish in addition to the sockeye. They ecatch certain amounts of
spring salmon, pinks and cohoes, and smaller amounts of chums, steelheads,
herring, cod, dogfish, ratfish and other varieties, but trap fishing is not unique in
this. Purse seines, for example, scoop up many kinds of fish. Indeed many
fishermen agree with those who hold that purse seining is one of the most
destructive forms of fishing in that seiners follow the schools of fish, and have
any number of chances at them, whereas stationary nets have only one chance.
(1.n)

As for traps catching immature fish, it may be pointed out that almost no
immature salmon are with the main spawning runs, as the fish do not return

(1.n.) Cf. Thomas Reid, M.P., Hansard, March 28, 1939, p. 2545." ;

“But I point out that the seine boats in the estuary of the Fraser River can be more
destructive than traps, because, while it is true that while the fish meet the traps, follow the
lead into the heart of the trap and are thereby caught, the seiners watch, just like hawks, and
when the fish gather together in schools preparatory to heading up the Fraser River, the
seine boats swoop into the midst of them, encircle their nets around them, pull tight the stgmg
at the bottom and bring the fish up. A catch of 10,000 salmon in one haul is not unusual.

“The fish gather in schools or in masses preparatory to spawning; if they are split up or
interfered with, as happens when a seine boat goes in amongst them, the fish are thrown

considerably off their course, and the action of the seines to quite an extent interferes with
their migration.”
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to the rivers until they are mature. A negligible number of what are called
“grilse” are caught by traps, and other forms of gear as well, but while grilse
are sexually mature, they are not mature from the standpoint of growth and
do not propagate a high type of salmon. In the entire season of 1938 the traps
caught only seventy (70) undersized salmon. Trollers, incidentally, catch
large numbers of immature blueback (young cohoes) in the feeding grounds
of the Gulf of Georgia. Indeed for the first six months of the season practically
all blueback caught by them are immature.

The charges of mutilation are equally fictitious. Possibly forty per cent
of salmon caught on power troll boats jerk away and are never landed, their
jaws or gills torn off by the pull of the automatic reels. In all the years the
traps have been operating at Sooke, almost the only mutilated fish seen in
them are ones either hooked in this fashion by trolls or bitten by seals or sea
lions.

As for dumped scrap fish attracting dogfish and sharks, what little is
thrown away is dumped en route from one trap to another in deep water and is
immediately scattered and carried off by the swift tides.

During the past two years, on instructions from the Chief Supervisor of
Fisheries, at least one representative of the Department has been on board the
trap tender every time a trap has been lifted and has made careful note of the
number of scrap fish of all kinds which have been dumped. These have all been
set forth in the reports of the Sooke catches submitted to the Standing Com-
mittee on Fisheries and printed on pp. 25 and 26 of the Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence, No. 1, dated April 3, 1939. The Government representative has
no doubt corroborated, to the satisfaction of the Department, the above
observations concerning the mutilation of fish.

So far from traps fishing night and day, the fact is that no traps in the
Sooke area or elsewhere ever fish at night. The Sooke traps are so constructed
that they fish only on the flood tide. Consequently the maximum period of
effective fishing never exceeds more than six hours out of the twenty-four.

11. Traps Most Easily Controlled

All forms of fishing are controlled by government regulations in the
interests of conservation. Traps must remain closed for 48 hours each week
to ensure an adequate escapement of fish to the spawning grounds. The recom-
mendations of the Standing Committee relative to an opening in the lead have
been more than complied with, the opening being much larger than that
suggested.

There is general agreement that in the interests of conservation traps are
the most easily controlled type of gear. They are fixed and can be inspected
at any time, whereas an army of guardians would be needed to follow the
thousands of individual fishing boats.

12. The Sports Angle

It may be noted that certain sports fishing organizations have passed
resolutions favouring abolition of the traps. These resolutions plead the general
grievance—depletion, but the Sooke traps, catching a very minor proportion
of the sport salmon—springs and cohoes—can no more be held responsible for
the depletion than can any other type of gear. In other words, to suit the
sportsmen, all types of commercial fishing would have to go.

13. Quality

Trap-caught fish, which are handled relatively little and are canned
immediately, are unquestionably the highest quality obtainable. At Sooke they
are caught in prime condition, fresh from the cold waters of the ocean. Salmon
deteriorate steadily in quality as they encounter the fresh water of the Fraser
and approach the spawning grounds. .
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Quality, it should be pointed out, is a matter of the utmost importance
to-day, when Canadian salmon must be sold on the world market in competition
with the product put up by canneries in the United States, Siberia and Japan.

The Empire Cannery at Esquimalt, which depends entirely on the Sooke
catch for its supply, has, on account of the quality of its product, maintained
a much deserved popularity owing to the freshness and high colour of the fish.
This cannery would have to close down if the traps were abolished.

It has been shown that fishing with other types of gear in the Sooke area is
impracticable. Nor could the cannery depend on fish brought by boat from
a remote distance, as such fish would not come up to the present superior standard
of the Empire Cannery product. -

14. Summary ;
To sum up, abolition of the traps would not give employment to one single
fisherman more in the Sooke area, nor would it increase by any appreciable
amount the individual catches of Canadian fishermen operating in the Fraser
River area. It would destroy the livelihood of a thriving community at Sooke,
and do out of a job those employed during the canning season at Esquimalt.

15. Scientific Value

From the scientific standpoint to abolish the traps would mean a distinet
loss. Numerous salmon are tagged for scientific purposes each year at Sooke
and for the past twenty-three years much of the valuable data on the runs of
sockeye to the Fraser has been collected there. The Sooke companies have
co-operated in every way with Dominion Government biological experts, nor
have they ever made any charge for the fish used in this way.

It is important to note that salmon caught near the mouth of the Fraser
river cannot be used for scientific purposes as their scales have become so
absorbed that they are useless for accurate age-determination.

The International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission is at present engaged
in studying methods of rehabilitating the sockeye runs of the Fraser. This
research requires large numbers of fish for tagging. At present the best of these
are obtained at Sooke. If the traps were taken out the Commission would in
all probability find it necessary to operate a trap itself at Sooke, or cateh fish
by other methods there; in any case it would mean added and unnecessary
expense.

PArT THREE—THE INTERNATIONAL ASPECT

1. Washington’s Attitude

Repeated attempts have been made to stampede Parliament into abolish-
ing the Sooke fish traps, on the grounds that unless Canada did so immediately,
the legislature of the State of Washington would in retaliation restore an alleged
219 traps voted out of Washington waters by an initiative in 1934.

Further efforts to becloud the issue have been made by alleging that there
was an agreement, either express or implied, that if Washington took out its
traps British Columbia would do likewise. Neither contention has any founda-
tion in fact. Since the argument was first advanced in the Canadian House
of Commons, two legislatures have adjourned at Olympia, Washington, without
taking the threatened action and with practically no mention of the Canadian
traps, either on the floor of the legislature or in the fisheries committees.

To refresh the memory of this committee, to whom this matter was
explained before, Initiative 77—known as the Fish Trap Bill—was a measure’
sponsored by the wealthy and powerfully-organized sport fishermen’s organiza-
tions in the State of Washington. Their bill, in its original form, was .almed
not only at the trap nets but at all forms of commercial fishing. Owing to
strong opposition the bill was withdrawn. The sport fishermen then enlisted
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the support of the trollers and seiners for a new measure known as Initiative
. 77, aimed at trap nets only. Purse seiners in particular had long sought a .
~ monopoly of the catch of cannery fish. An intensive campaign of propaganda
was then instituted and in November, 1934, the Initiative was passed.

It has been frequently asserted that there were 219 traps in Puget Sound
waters. Actually, figures furnished by B. M. Brennan, Director of Fisheries
for the State of Washington, show that in 1934 only 96 traps were operating.

Prior to the abolition of the traps American fishermen took some seventy
(70) per cent of the total catch of Fraser River salmon, and Canadians about
thirty (30) per cent. During the past four years the American proportion has
dropped to about forty (40) per cent. The number of canneries operating in
Puget Sound has fallen from 24 in 1934 to 14 in 1938. As a result the revenues
of the State of Washington Fisheries Department have dropped heavily.

Faced with this situation, Governor Clarence D. Martin in a recent session
of the legislature, introduced a bill restoring in part trap-net fishing, the object
being to secure a larger proportion of Fraser-bound fish. This bill which had
the support of Mr. Brennan never reached the floor of the house but died in
committee.

To what extent did the Canadian traps enter the picture? Mr. Brennan,
Mr. John N. Sylvester, Speaker of the Legislature, and Mr. Harry D. Austin,
Vice-Chairman of the House Fisheries Committee, frankly declare that Wash-
ington’s legislators paid practically no attention whatever to the fact that
British Columbia still keeps a few fish traps. “Those Sooke traps have no
weight with us whatever. They don’t take enough fish to worry us.” Mr.
Brennan commented recently.

In other words, it is an unquestionable fact that the presence of the traps
at Sooke has neither influenced Washington’s policy in the past nor is it likely
to in the future.

Conclusion

Taking into consideration the fact that the traps at Sooke enable a valuable
industry to survive which would otherwise be lost to British Columbia, and
that Washington’s policy admittedly is not governed in the slightest by their
existence, the injustice of wantonly destroying this industry is apparent to all.
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APPENDIX 2

JOHN STANTON

BARRISTER AND SOLICITOR
Norary PusLic
16 East Hastings Street
Vancouver, British Columbia :
April 29, 1939.
CHAIRMAN STANDING COMMITTEE OF FISHERMEN, ‘
Ottawa, Canada.

Re: Fish Traps at Sooke, B.C.
Dear Sir:

I am instructed by the various associations, whose names appear at the
head of the enclosed brief, to submit the same to you for your consideration.

My clients desire to hear from you specifically as to whether or not you
propose to support their views in the above captioned matter.

Yours very truly,
JOHN STANTON.

IN THE MATTER OF FISH TRAPS AT SOOKE, B.C.

: Brier
Submitted to:—

The Hon., The Minister of Fisheries.
The Chairman, Standing Committee on Fisheries.
A. W. Neill, Esq., M.P.

By:—
1. North Island Trollers’ Cooperative.
2. Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union.
3. Salmon Purse Seiners’ Union, Local 141.
4. United Fishermen’s Union, Local 44.

(Having a total membership together of 2,100 fishermen.)

For some considerable time the officers of the Fishermen’s organizations
above named have sought abolition of the fish traps at Sooke, B.C., which have
been licensed from year to year by the Department of Fisheries. This opposi-
tion to the traps has been voiced at the unanimous insistence of the member-
ship. It will continue until the Department finally refuses to renew the licences,
because the membership of these organizations is fully satisfied that it is
adversely affected by operation of the traps both immediately (through diversion
of an unreasonably large number of fish to the traps) and from the long range
viewpoint (because of repercussions in the State of Washington and because
conservation of fish must be seriously undertaken).

These organizations deplore the fact that licences were again granted in
1939 permitting operation of the traps.

I. They desire to refute what is apparently the basis of the Minister’s
decision, to permit renewal of the said licences.

On March 2, 1939, at page 1632 of Hansard, the Minister states, that, in
1936 he made a complete check up of the situation and “inquired from people in
Victoria and Vancouver who he thought were capable of giving advice on the
matter . . . visited that village which depends entirely upon the fish traps at
Sooke . . . interviewed the fishermen . . . received a delegation from the returned
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men . . . another from their wives and daughters . . . interviewed the clergy-
men . . . and came back convinced that if the industry were interfered with the
village of Sooke would have to go on relief.” '

It will be noted that the Minister conferred with (@) unspecified persons
in Vancouver and Victoria, (b) a variety of residents of the Sooke area. Had
he instead conferred with those people who are most capable of advising him,
namely the organized fishermen of British Columbia, whether trollers, gill-
netters or seiners, he would have come to a precisely opposite conclusion from
the one he drew.

It is much regretted that the Minister made no apparent effort even so
much as to contact the last-mentioned groups, far less to ask their advice or
co-operation.

II. It has further been alleged in defence of the traps that fishermen with
nets cannot operate in the Sooke area because of treacherous currents and other
bad natural conditions. To show that this view is inaccurate a summarized
statement of the reports received from 9 responsible fishermen who operated in
the area in 1938, follows:—

Name Time Fish Conditions
S. Malvik—1 week middle of August. 300 approx. Main difficulty was sharks encountered.
M. Johnson—1 week middle of August. 300 approx. Encountered no difficulty not common to
other open water fishing.

A. Berg—1 week August. 500 approx. Encountered no other difficulties than may
be expected in any open water.

J. Jacobson—Early August. 400 approx. Conditions there are no worse than en-
countered in any open waters,

A, Halvarson—Beg. of August. 50 per night Conditigus no worse than any open water
conditions.

A. Remmen—2 weeks. 450 Gillnetters would benefit greatly by re-
moval of fish traps, sharks there.

N. Johnson—Beg. of August. 400 one night Gillnetters would benefit greatly by re-
moval of fish traps.

L. Aunli—Middle August. 300 It is a fine gillnet area.

H. Remmen—Middle August. 400 Major drawback was the number of sharp

and dogfish, but these would disappear
if more gillnetters fished there.

II1. Ample evidence is available for any interested party that the trap
owners have in the past not complied with the law and particularly that they
have tended to ignore close periods. This situation is the more serious because
of the apparent failure of the Department of Fisheries to enforce the regulations
which is tantamount in granting still further concessions to those which own
the traps.

At the same time the attitude of the Department towards individual fisher-
men who are guilty of infractions of the regulations is so notorious as to
require little comment beyond stating that the most severe measures are
frequently taken and fishermen in some cases deprived, by the Department,
of their equipment which is tantamount to depriving them of their means of
livelihood.

It is submitted that the regulations should at least be enforced with equal
severity on those who are guilty of infractions.

The following statement from a fisherman who is highly respected by his
associates and which substantiates the view above expressed:—

Dgear Hivn,—Thanks for your letter of 11th instant. The informa-
@ion I require is for Mr. Neill, M.P., he considers it would be of assistance
in view of the fact that Mr. Goodriel when giving evidence at Ottawa
last February stated that traps were the only means of catching salmon
off Sooke! T think it would be as well for me to give you some of the
information I have obtained regarding the Sooke traps. You may be
able to use it to advantage.

I came to Vancouver Island 1921 and settled at Rocky Point,
took up salmon fishing with a row boat and used to make about $600 a
year, about 30 more men were doing the same.
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After about 5 years the fish began to get scarcer and I was asked
by the fishermen in my district if something could be done to compel
the Sooke traps to close for the 48 hours a week as called for by the
Dominion Government.

In order to ascertain whether the Sooke traps were really fishing
illegally I went on one of their tenders in July leaving Sooke at 3 a.m.

It should be remembered that during the summer the tide ebbs at
night and traps can only fish on a flood tide. Therefore the traps which
should have been closed at 6 p.m. Friday till Sunday 6 p.m. should not
have been able to catch fish till late Monday morning. We lifted three
traps, loaded a scow and the tender with spring salmon!

I at once saw the Fishing Inspector in Victoria, not the present one,
and reported the matter. He refused to inspect any of the traps and
asked whether I wanted him to lose his job! I then wrote to Major
Motherwell, Vancouver who replied that steps would be taken to insure
the traps complied with the regulations. I waited about 6 weeks and
as the fishing didn't improve wrote again asking what steps had been
taken, but received no reply. I then saw Mr. Babcock, Dominion
representative, and reported the matter to him. He informed me that
he had already had several complaints that the Sooke traps were not
complying with the regulations but had been unable to have anything
done. I asked him why and he replied, “The financial interests are too
strong.”

I let the matter drop as it appeared hopeless. About 5 years ago I
was again approached by the fishermen and asked whether I could agree
to be made Hon. Guardian. I consented and was notified by Ottawa of
my appointment. On inspecting the traps I found that the Dominion
Fisheries Guardian was one of Mr. Todd’s men! He worked for the
Government seven months and most of the rest of the year for Mr. Todd.
I reported this to the Deputy Minister of Fisheries, Ottawa, who replied
that this man was most honest and conscientious and had to obtain extra
work to support his wife and family and refused to have him dismissed.

A Mr. Westwood who worked for Messrs. Todd & Son for 9 years
informed me that they used to lift the traps every day including Sunday.

The only way to insure the traps are not fishing is to make them
leave the spillar out of the water, I suggested this to Ottawa but they con-
sidered an opening in the lead would allow the salmon to pass.

I found that the trap companies had left only a 12 foot opening
in the lead whereas the opening to the trap is 30 feet, and I was informed
by an employee that if the opening was smaller the salmon couldn’t enter
the trap.

You probably know that last year we forwarded a petition to have
the traps removed, signed by nearly 10,000 but Mr. Mitchard was
determined to give the traps their licence. In my opinion we shall be
unable to have the traps removed as long as party funds benefit.

I have had several conversations with Senator Green, who supported .
us last February, but he now does. not appear to know what to do in the
matter, neither does Mr. Neill. The only hope seems to be that Mr.
Mitchard may go to the Senate. I have 15 copies of Hansard on the
enquiry into the Sooke traps, perhaps you have read them, if not I
should be very pleased to lend them to you. I trust the information I
have given may be of some assistance.

Yours truly,

G. T. WHITLER.

P.S—All the fishermen have now had to find work or go on relief
in my district. T[t’s the same story along the whole coast. The only
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fishermen who now appear to be able to make a living fishing are those
who have large gas boats and able to go north.

IV. Finally it is submitted that the Department of Fisheries does not
use proper or satisfactory methods in attempting to obtain evidence relating to
the feasibility of gillnetter’s fishing in the vicinity of Sooke. In this regard a
letter sent to the Supervisor of Fisheries of New Westminster, January 5, 1939,
is pertinent:—“It is understood that during a portion of last season you with
others from the Lower Mainland operated gill-nets in the Juan de Fuca Strait
in the vicinity of the Sooke traps. It is understood fishing in the Sooke area
was fairly good at times, but notwithstanding the substantial catches of sockeye
which rewarded your efforts, you did not remain there long at one time.

I would appreciate being advised by return mail on the back of this letter,
the reason you did not continue fishing in the Sooke vicinity for longer periods.
Your reply will be of considerable interest.

I wish you a prosperous fishing season in 1939.
Yours truly,

R. W. MacLEOD,
Supervisor of Fisheries.

The Associations above named believe that only by securing the fullest
evidence from all points of view can the Minister reach a satisfactory conclusion
in the matter of fishing traps.

In order to enable all interested parties to present their views fairly, openly,
and in a straightforward manner, it is now proposed that public enquiries be
instituted by the Department, with hearings in Vancouver, Victoria, New West-
minster and such other fishing communities as are agreed upon by the Depart-
ment in consultation with Fishermen’s Associations.

Adequate advance notice should of course be given of these hearings and
the minutes should be recorded and made available to the public.

Only by adopting this procedure can the Department of Fisheries obtain
a true and unbiased picture of the situation and thus be enabled to recommend
the necessary legislation to the next session of Parliament.

- It is finally proposed that the public enquiry urged above should be held :
throughout the fishing season of 1939 and should extend until such time as all
parties desiring to be heard have presented their views.

All of which is respectfully submitted by:
A. I. HILL, Secretary Pacific Coast Fishermen’s Union.
W. T. BURGESS, Secretary United Fishermen’s Union, Local /.

NORTH ISLAND TROLLERS’ CO-OPERATIVE, SALMON
PURSE SEINERS’ UNION, per JOHN STANTON, Solicitor.




i

 STANDING COMMITTEE

APPENDIX 3
New Wastminster, February 5, 1039.

I was fishing off of Sooke during the middle of August of last year for a
week, I caught about three hundred (300) sockeye which were sold to the

Todd Fish Company for sixty-five (65) cents each. My main difficulty was
that there were too many sharks around.
S. MALVIK.

I was gillnetting off of Sooke for a week during the middle of August. I
caught about three hundred (300) sockeye which I sold to the Sooke Harbour
Canning Company for sixty-five (65) cents apiece. I encounter no difficulty
not common to other open water fishing. : '

M. JOHNSON,

New Westminster.

February 5, 1939,
NEw: WESTMINSTER.

Was gillnetting off of Sooke for a week during August, 1938, and caught
approximately 5.00 sockeye which I sold to Sooke Harbour Canning Co., at the
price of 65 cents each. And encountered no other difficulty’s than may be

expected in any open water’s.
A. BERG,
R.R. No. 1, New Westminster, B.C.

February 5, 1939,
New WestMminsTER, B.C.

In the first part of August I was gillnetting in the area from Jordon River
to Race Rocks and caught about 400 Sockeye. Some of these fish were sold
to Nelson Bros. Fisheries Ltd., for 58 cents each and some to Sooke Harbour
Canning Co. for 65 cents each. The fishing conditions there are no worse

than encountered in any open waters. ,
JOHN JACOBSON,

New Westminster.

Waonnock, B.C,,
January 20, 1939

To whom 1t may concern.

This is to certify that I, the undersigned fished between Sooke traps and
Jordon River for six nights in the first part of August, 1938, and averaged fifty
(50) sockeye per night.

Witness: A. GILSTEAD. .

(Signed) ;
ARTHUR HALVORSON.




February 1, 1939,
- NEw WESTMINSTER.

I fished around Sooke for two weeeks in August this year and caught four
hundred and fifty sockeye (450). I sold these to the Todd Fish Company for
sixty-five cents (65 cents). The only thing wrong was that there were too
many sharks and dogfish.

A. REMMEM.

¢

February 1, 1939,
NEw WESTMINISTER.

Started fishing about August first 1938 between Sooke and San Juan
harbour. Found it excellent place for gill-netting and fish were in number one
condition. Caught as high as 400 sockeyes—some cohoe and springs in one
night’s fishing. Fish were sold to Nelson Bros., for sixty-five cents (65c). Gill-
netters would benefit greatly by the removal of fish-traps.

N. JOHNSON,
R.R. No. 1, New Westminster, B.C.

Started fishing around middle of August 1938 fishing area between Sooke
and San Juan, and after my opinion is a fine gill-net area. Abandoned the
area because run had passed by into Gulf of Georgia. I caught around three
hundred sockeye which I sold to Todd & Sons and Nelson Bros., for sixty-five
cents each.

LARS AUNLI,

New Westmanster.

February 1, 1939,
NEw WESTMINSTER.

I fished between San Juan and Sooke during the middle of August. During
this time I caught four hundred (400) sockeye which sold for sixty-five
cents (65¢) to Todd and Sons fish company. The major drawback was the
number of sharks and dogfish, which however would be driven away when more
gillnetters start fishing there.

H. REMMEN.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

: Moxbay, May 8, 1939.
The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11
o’clock. The Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince), presided.

Members present: Messrs. Coté, Green Hanson, Kinley, MacLean (Prince), i
MacLean (Cape Breton North-Victoria), MacNeil Mayhew, Michaud, Neill, 7
Reid, Taylor (Nanaimo), Veniot and White. (14). =

In attendance:

Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Department of
Fisheries.

Mr. J. A. Rodd, Director of Fish Culture, Department of Fisheries.
The Committee resumed its consideration of Mr. Neill's amendment to
Bill No. 15 and proceeded with the study of the briefs submitted by the trap
owners and the Fishermen of British Columbia, which are printed in the minutes
of evidence of Thursday, May 4, 1939.

Mr. Neill, commenting on the above submissions, voiced his objections
to continuing the use of trap nets in British Columbia.

Discussion followed.

Mr. Whitmore was recalled and further examined.

Discussion took place in connection with the catch of fish in the Fraser
River and the Sooke area. Messrs. Mayhew, Green and Neill quoted figures
in relation thereto.

The witness retired.

At 1 o’clock, the Committee adjourned to meet again on Wednesday,
May 10, 1939, at 11 a.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Committee.

78430—13






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or Commoxns, Room 429,
] Monpay, May 8, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 o’clock. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CuAlRMAN: Gentlemen, we now have a quorum. The minister will be
here in a few minutes, Mr. Whitmore states. Perhaps we had better decide
on our line of procedure, as to who is to go ahead to-day. Did you take the
ground, Mr. Mayhew, that Mr. Neill should present his case first?

Mr. Mayuew: He is the attacker.

Mr. NemwL: Why?

Mr. Mayuew: We are quite happy that the thing should be left the way
it is. Is that right, Mr. Taylor?

Mr. Tayror: Quite right, obviously.
"Mr. KinLey: Have we a quorum?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, we have a quorum. It is up to you gentlemen to
decide. Mr. Taylor and Mr. Mayhew are representing, as I understand it,
the salmon traps at Sooke, B.C., and the other British Columbia members are
representing the fishermen.

Mr. NemwL: I do not think Mr. Hanson would care to be taken as repre-
senting the traps. Did you say Mr. Hanson?

The CuAmRMAN: No, I just said Mr. Taylor and Mr. Mayhew.
Mr. Nemwn: All right.

Mr. Hanson: I suppose everybody has read these briefs that they have
sent to us. As far as I am concerned, I know the whole history from beginning
to end so I do not need any information one way or another. I think it is
nothing but fair that those who are representing the traps and those who are
representing the fishermen—both sides—should present their case for the benefit
of those who have not followed the committee fully.

The CaAmRMAN: Would you care to go ahead, Mr. Neill?

Mr. Rem: Speaking for myself, before Mr. Neill speaks, I wish to say that
I have read over the briefs submitted in favour of the traps by the trap
interests; and I am, first of all, going to take objection to their using my
remarks in the House of Commons as in any way being in favour of traps.

Mr. NerwL: What page is that?

Mr. Rem: Page 158, at the foot of the page. They quote me as saying
there:—

But I point out that the seine boats in the estuary of the Fraser
river can be more destructive than traps, because, while it is true that
while the fish meet the traps, follow the lead in to the heart of the trap
and are thereby caught, the seiners watch, just like hawks, and when
the fish gather together in schools preparatory to heading up the Fraser
river, the seine boats swoop into the midst of them, encircle their nets
around them, pull tight the string at the bottom and bring the fish up.
A cateh of 10,000 salmon in one haul is not unusual.

If that is meant in any way to bring out as a point in their behalf that I
am supporting traps, I want to repudiate that right away. I say that both
traps and the seines are destructive; and I was using the argument there that
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the seines were more destructive than the traps. But that has no bearing at
all, and I do not think any inference should be drawn that I am there saying
that traps should be maintained and that they are not destructive. I wish
to maintain my former argument, as put forward on former occasions, that the
traps are destructive; and I want to correct any impression that may be
drawn from that quotation.

Mr. Tayror: Of course, you will admit saying all those things?

Mr. Rem: Oh, yes; I am not disputing that for one moment, and I stand
by that statement. But I do not want any inference drawn by those in favour
of traps from my saying that that I am in favour of traps. I do not want
that inference to be drawn.

Mr. MayaEw: I do not think that was intended.
Mr. Rem: It would not have been put in there if it had not been.

Mr. Mayaew: I do not think it was put in there for that purpose. If you
will read the whole thing there, I think you will see it was a matter of com-
parison between the traps. I think it shows the consistency of Mr. Neill’s
argument when he wanted the traps out; he wanted the seine nets out.

Mr. Rem: You mean Mr. Reid’s argument.

Mr. MayaeEw: I mean Mr. Reid’s argument. He wanted the seine nets
put away from the estuaries of the Fraser river because they were destructive.
He merely says that.

Mr. Rem: The second point is on page 159, 13, at the foot of the page. In
their argument they say:—

Trap-caught fish, which are handled relatively little and are canned
immediately, are unquestionably the highest quality obtainable. At
Sooke they are caught in prime condition, fresh from the cold waters
of the ocean. Salmon deteriorate steadily in quality as they encounter
the fresh water of the Fraser and approach the spawning grounds.

I am disputing that statement because, first of all, the Sooke traps are quite a
distance away from the salt water. The fish have to travel a considerable dis-
tance after passing the Sooke traps before they encounter the fresh water of
the Fraser river. They have to go into the Gulf of Georgia. Secondly, it does
not mean that fish are of the best quality because they were caught in salt
water. The information that I have—and the officials can dispute it if I am
wrong—is that the fish keep feeding until such time as they do reach the fresh
water; and as long as there is food in their stomachs, I claim there is a chance
for those fish to deteriorate and not be as good fish or at least not any better
than the sock-eye salmon caught in the Fraser river. I dispute the statement
made by them that the salmon caught by the traps is of better quality. I
think I could produce figures to show that the trap interests do not get better
prices for their fish; and, after all, that should be some criterion as to the
quality. They do not get better prices than those obtained for the sock-eye
salmon caught in the Fraser river. So 1 dispute that statement of their on page
159.

Mr. Tavror: I think that statement is a very important one in the light
of all the evidence we have received. I should like the minister and his deputies
here to state whether that is appreciated as a faet by the department. I think
if it were, it would come well within their knowledge.

Mr. Rem: I would be pleased to leave it to them; but that is my opinion,
and I am willing to bring forward data to show it.

Mr. TavyrLor: Is it not a fact that only prime fish are put up by the Empire
Cannery Company?
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Mr. Rem: But not better. I was saying they are not better. They are
contending in this argument that their fish are of a better quality, and I am
disputing that.

Mr. Warrmore: We really have no control over the exact quality of the
fish when they are put in the cans. The statement that was read under item
No. 13, that “trap-caught fish are unquestionably the highest quality obtainable”
I think possibly should be expained a little. It is generally regarded that the
trap-caught fish when canned are of a high quality; but it can be equally stated
that there are very high quality fish put up from fish caught by other types of
gear. Trap-caught fish, of course, can be handled in such a way, if the packers
s0 wish to exercise the care, that the canned product should be a very, very high
quality; that is, they can regulate the quantity they take out of the pot every
day and they can see that the fish get into the cans in the shortest possible
time. In other words, they can regulate their production to meet the size of
their equipment and the capacity of their plant. But I do not think there is
any monopoly by the trap operators in having the best quality fish in the
province. :

Mr. Hansox: It does not command any better price on the market, does it?

Mr. WaitMoRE: 1 have no information on that. I think it would be very
doubtful if one could get information. It is, of course, a sale between the pro-
ducer and the buyer and it is information that I do not think would be gen-
erally available.

Mr. Rem: I am making the statement that, in my opinion, if the canners
of British Columbia were asked if there was accepted an inferior or lesser price
than that obtained for the fish being canned from the Sooke traps, I think
their answer would be that their price was equal to that of the Sooke traps;
and the buyers, after all, set the price. They know quality.

Mr. Tayror: I would suggest that we had better not go into the realm of
thinking; because if we are going to attack this business, we had better be quite
sure of what we are saying.

Mr. Rem: Yes. And I trust the speaker who said that will keep that in
mind during his argument.

Mr. Tavror: I shall try to. I had my experience two years ago and I
certainly know what I did then and it has not been refuted.

Mr. Rem: I have made a statement now that Mr. Taylor disputed.

Mr. Tayror: No, I did not.

Mr. Rem: With regard to fish buying and with regard to quality.

Mr. Tavror: I did not dispute it. I want you to be quite sure that any-
thing you say can be capable of proof.

Mr. Rem: I am also sure of that.

Mr. TavLor: For the purpose of settlement of this question in the minds
of the maritime members.

Mr. Rem: I will take care of that. The statements I made on previous
occasions I think I can produce sufficient evidence to prove.

Mr. KinLey: Did I understand the official who just spoke to say that the
firm which operated the traps were better able to control the production of their
fish so as to have them fresher in the cans or something of that sort?

Mr. WaiT™MORE: Yes. ;

Mr. Kinvey: That is another advantage that corporation claims they have
over the fishermen, is it?

Mr. WHiTMORE: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes.
Mr. WairMore: Yes, that is an advantage.
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Mr. KinLey: I see.

Mr. HansoN: The same as the troller.

The CrarmAN: Just to keep the record straight, may I say for the benefit
of the reporter that I neglected to say that both Mr. Whitmore and Mr. Rodd
from the department are here before the committee to-day to answer any questions
they can in connection with this question.

Mr. Kivtey: What do you say about that, Mr. Neill? What do you say
about this company being able to market better fish?

Mr. NemwL: He made a general statement that this cannery put up the finest
kind of fish, which is pure bunk. This fish is not of any better quality than
many others. No official should be asked to make such a statement. The fish
put up in the Fraser river were of the finest quality many years before these
traps at Sooke.

Mr. Rem: That is not thinking; that is according to the records that can
be obtained. That is not a matter of my opinion; that is a matter of record.

Mr. Mayuew: If it is a matter of record, I would require that the record
be produced to show if it is the case.

Mr. Tavror: Hear, hear.

Mr. MayHEW: I do not know. I could not say anything about it. I have
always been under the impression that the brand of salmon that was put up
by J. H. Todd always found a ready market, that they never had any left-
overs where others did have. I do not say that it is better; but I was always
under the impression that it was a very high type of canned salmon.

Mr. Rem: There are some points we can clear up here, and there are others
which will have to take time.

Mr. Green: As I understand Mr. Kinley, his suggestion was that it is
unfair that the company should have the advantage of being able to put up this
fish under better conditions than the ordinary fishermen?

Mr. MayuEw: Now, now; that is a very thin argument.

Mr. KinLey: Not exactly that, except that this is put forward as the reason
why they should have traps. I assume that the other fishermen are efficiently
putting up fish, and that this is just an argument to bolster up the case.

Mr. Tavior: I do not want it as an argument to bolster up any case;
just try to show what the conditions are.

Mr. KinLey: I am against that in the east.

Mr. Hanson: As far as sock-eye are concerned, in the last ten or fifteen
years nobody had any sock-eye left over, because sock-eye were practically
sold before they were ever canned.

Mr. TayrLor: What was that?

Mr. Hanson: They were sold before they were ever canned. I had a little
experience in that, and as far as sock-eye were concerned, we had no trouble to
find ‘a market for them; in fact, they were sold before they were canned. So
it is really no argument at all to say that Todd always sold or the traps always
sold their sock-eye cateh; because we never had any trouble with that at any
time.

Mr. Rem: If some members are disputing that, I think it can easily
be settled by a wire going out to the firms and asking what was the best price
they received for the last four or five years.

Mr. Mayuew: I think if we are going to sit in here as a committee and
try to build up an argument for one method against the other—in other words,
if we are going to try to destroy one section of this industry for the sake of the
other section of the industry, then we had better abandon the committee.

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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Mr. Taylor: Exactly.
B Mr. Mayuew: But if the trap nets will not stand on their own feet, I am
not going to take them up. They have been there for a long time, and I am
quite satisfied—and I think I know the trap netting area, and the men who
are working it probably better than anyone in this house—and am quite pre-
pared to take it up on their own grounds, not to destroy the gill net men’s
operations or say a word that would in any way discourage them or discourage
their production or the seine nets either. We have got enough destruction
going on in the country to-day against operations that are trying to make an
honest living without trying to destroy these fellows or to destroy any of the
other sections of the fishing industry.

Mr. Hansox: The best evidence that was given here was given two years
ago by Senator Green.

Mr. NemwL: Yes.

Mr. Hanxsonx: He lived up there before the traps were ever put in and
saw the destruction as far as the fishing industry is concerned and as far as
the fishermen are concerned. If any one who was not here at the time, would
read Senator Green's evidence, I think he would be satisfied that this came
from one whose evidence is indisputable.

Mr. NemwL: One who said he lived there for twenty years right on the
ground.

The CuAIRMAN: I know that you all wish to approach this subject in the
fairest and best way possible. There seems to be a little question as to which
is on the defensive, whether it is the traps or whether it is the fishermen, and
which brief should be presented first. I think we came here this morning
with the purpose of going ahead and hearing the brief from both sides.

Mr. Rem: I do not think Mr. Neill is objecting to going ahead.

Mr. NemL: Noj; let Mr. Reid finish what he has to say and do not interrupt
him. Let him put his statement on the record, and the same with me.

Mr. Rem: I will stop for the moment.

Mr. NemwL: If Mr. Reid wishes to go on—

Mr. Rem: After you are through.

Mr. Nemwn: All right; if that is agreeable to the other members of the
committee.

The Cuamman: If T had a ruling to give, I would be of the opinion that
the traps really are on the defensive, because they are in the minority, as far as
the numbers fishing and fishing equipment is concerned, and that the general
fishermen are the opponents of the traps. But it is immaterial to me. If you
men would decide between yourselves which brief will be heard first, then we
will proceed with that brief; then each member of the committee can make his
comments on the brief as we proceed. I think that would be the better way.

Mr. NemwL: All right.

5 ter. Rem: I think we are prepared to-day to put up our case—Mr Neill
rst.

Mr. NemwL: All right.

The Cramrman: If it is your wish, we shall ask Mr. Neill to proceed.

Mr. Rem: That is agreeable to me, if it is agreeable to Mr. Taylor.

Mr. Tavror: Yes. It is obviously his place.
~ Mr. Neww: Mr. Chairman, I in no sense hold a brief for these fishermen
in the sense that I have been instructed by them, because I have not been.
They put in their own brief. But I should like to put before the committee
my views on the matter. I am sorry that I shall not be able to do it in a
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proper manner, although I spent nearly all yesterday on it, because I have
got it in a more or less incoherent state as I did not have time to prepare
it properly. A

I should like to make this suggestion before I begin. It will facilitate the
progress of the committee, and that is what we all want. I suggest that I be
allowed to make my statement, be it good or bad, and finish it; let anyone who
wants to ask any questions not interrupt at the time but wait until T am finished.
You will quite see that if, when I was talking about something, Mr. Taylor
introduced something else more or less as a side line, then we go off on that
side line, and before we get back to the thread of my argument we have lost it
and it is not so easy to follow by those who are trying to get the facts. I might
give a very good illustration of that, which is before me, and which cost me
a good half hour’s work yesterday. Mr. Taylor made a statement. He produced
a blue book and discovered some error where I said there were 219 traps on
_the American side one year. He introduced a blue book according to which
there were only 203. And when I said I did not think I would likely have used
that odd number without knowing what I was talking about, that I must have
got it from somewhere, he suggested that I was more or less romancing. I had
to dig around and go down to the library; and I finally discovered that the
language he was referring to was used by me two years ago in the House of
Commons. I have got that here, and what I had said there was that the average
over the years 1933 and 1934 of American traps was 219, and the facts are these.
I finally got back to the very book that was in Mr. Taylor’s hand; he was
challenging the accuracy of my statement, and he could not have helped know-
ing, if he had looked back, at what I said in the house. It says in that blue
book that he threw at me that the traps in 1934 were 203 and he said that I
had said they were 219. But what I said in the house was that the average over
the years 1933 and 1934 was 219. That same blue book says that the traps
in 1934 were 203 and in 1933 were 235; and if you add those two together and
divide by two, you will find the answer is 219. We would have taken up half
an hour here on an utter side line—an utterly needless waste of time. I suggest
that we drop that sort of thing and try to make a case for or against keeping
traps at Sooke. Apart from that, I shall try to adhere strictly to the matter
before us. '

I want to divide my remarks into three parts, and I shall try to be as
brief as I can. First, I shall deal with some of the statements that have been
put on Hansard by the minister as to letters he had received during the recess.
Then I shall deal with some of the brief put up by Mr. Goodrich recently; and
then I shall make some remarks of my own.

I want to make some corrections in some of the statements made in these
letters or in the correspondence presented by the minister; because any of the
gentlemen who have not been here this session or before this session, or some
of those who were here last year might, when reading this, suppose that the
line I was taking was wholly improper. Here is an illustration. The Victoria
Chamber of Commerce sent a letter to the minister dated June 28, 1938 in
which they make the statement that at a meeting of the associated boards of
trade of Vancouver held at Port Alberni in June, 1937—at the convention -
of the boards of trade of Vancouver Island a resolution had been introduced
there against fish traps. I shall give you their comment upon it; then I shall 3
tell vou what took place. They say:—

At the 1937 convention, there was no proper resolution before the
convention when it opened, but in the last hour of the convention, Mr.
A. W. Neill M.P., proposed a resolution from the floor without any |
notice whatever. That resolution, of course, was in accord with his
arguments in the House of Commons, and in view of the manner mm =
which it was brought before the convention the delegates were taken

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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by surprise and were, of course, not prepared to argue the question as to
whether the trap net system of fishing is good or bad although our Victoria
Board has for some time been on record as favouring the continuance of
the traps the Victoria delegates had insufficient information to debate the
subject. The result was that the resolution of Mr. Neill was carried with-
out any contrary arguments, because of this lack of information on the
parts of the delegates.

Mr. Rem: Where do you find that?

Mr. NemrL: At page 29 of No. 1 of this year’s report of the committee.
This is exactly what took place. I can not only produce evidence on it; I can
take my oath on it. It was not introduced on the floor of the convention at the
last minute. It was on the agenda, for' I had read it there. Moreover, anything
on the agenda has to pass through the credentials committee; and the very
fact that it was approved unanimously by the credentials committee gave it
the o.k. for the floor of the convention even if it had not been on the type-
written agenda; but it was there. It was reached in the ordinary course. My
recollection is that it was not the last item, but it might have been; that makes
no difference. There were two delegates there from the Victoria Chamber of
Commerce; there might have been three, but I think there were two. One of
them said, when the resolution was reached:—

I would like some further information on that point because I am
not fully informed.

That was on some particular item that he asked, and the chairman said, “Mr.
Neill is in the room; he no doubt would be glad to tell you.” I went to the
front of the table and spoke for perhaps ten minutes, not more; and before I
could get back to my seat again, the gentleman who had interrupted or asked
that question from the Vietoria Chamber of Commerce said, “Carried.” That
was the way it was railroaded through by Mr. Neill on that occasion. Then
the board of trade got busy at home, because it was largely dominated by Mr.
Todd, to tell the truth; and they took it up with the executive and they wanted
it upset. Finally they agreed to have it brought up again next year, which
was in 1938, at a convention held at Courtenay. What took place there?
Mr. Remip: What page is that?

Mr. NemL: Page 30. Here is their explanation of what took place there.
They give a long description of how the meeting was held there, this second
meeting, and that there were not enough there to make up the two-thirds vote
as there should have been to upset the previous resolution. This is what they
say. I am quoting:—

The number of communities who are interested in trollers is such

that a two-thirds vote was not secured, though the vote was about evenly
divided.

What would that suggest to you gentlemen? Would it not suggest that it was
eight to nine or eight to ten, or something like that? The vote was seven to
twenty-three. Yet this is what they say:—

The vote was about evenly divided.
When they say that, someone. is plainly and simply lying, because the

record was sent in here that that had been sustained, and the Hon. George
Pearson, Minister of Fisheries, submitted it. To say that the vote was about
evenly divided was an absolute misstatement of fact.

It is not a question of opinion, but of fact. This gives the whole gist of the
statement—the letter, not his brief, sent to the minister of January 30, 1939;
to Mr. Taylor, and by him transmitted to the minister. He alleges two things.

S S el RS
B e e




176 STANDING COMMITTEE

He refers to my statement in the house about there being 219 traps and states,
that our catch had dropped from 80 per cent to 30 per cent, and then he proceeds
to offset that to show how erroneous it is (on page 34) he put in the statement
of the Puget Sound and Fraser river sockeye packs; and that is on page 34,
under date of January 30. On page 37, only four days later, on February 4,
he found it necessary to correct his positive statement and to say that it was
all wrong and suggested to Mr. Taylor, “ We suggest that you use those figures
in this letter which cannot be challenged by anyone.” He had already discovered
on February 4 that his first statement was all wrong. Then we will get on
down later to where he brings it out, where I said that there were 219 traps.
I will show you later on, I will give you the exact quotation, where Mr. Found
said what it was, that when the American traps were in our catch ran from
twenty-two to thirty per cent, and the U.S. catch was 70 to 73 per cent, and
when the U.S. traps were taken out our catch went up to 86 per cent. I quote
that from his evidence of two years ago; but Mr. Goodrich gets around it by
using the words, sockeye, sockeye catch. Even at that Mr. Found said it was
the sockeye catch which was seventy to seventy-two per cent in U.S. traps.
Now, Mr. Found, as you all know, those of you who were listening to him,
was very prejudiced in favour of traps. I don’t think that is an unfair statement
to make.

Hon. Mr. MicaAuDp: I think it is unfair.

Mr. NemwwL: I maintain that anyone who reads his evidence must be bound
to conclude that he was in favour of the traps.

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: No.

Mr. NemL: What he said about them must in that respect be true, and he
said the catch went up as high as eighty-six per cent—I only said eighty per cent,
Mr. Found said eighty-six per cent.

Mr. Rem: Have you his quotations there?

Mr. NemwL: I will quote it later. Then we had a letter—I am just calling
attention to it—from the Victoria Trades and Labour Council supporting the
position of traps, sent to the minister I suppose, by—it doesn’t say who—yes,
it was sent to the Hon. Mr. Michaud, Minister of Fisheries, I am merely
mentioning it. There is the resolution of the Victoria District Trades and
Labour Council. Then I come to another one. There were a number of other
ones, the Vancouver city council, the New Westminster city council, the board
of trade of New Westminster, and the Prince Rupert board of trade and ecity
council were also in favour of it. Then on page 29—oh yes, here is another of
these quibbling sort of things Mr. Goodrich indulges in. It says, this is his
letter of May 9, 1938, “ Mr. Neill's arguments are always much more ingenius
than ingenuous ”; and he goes on to say, “ We feel that it may be as well to place
on file with your department a denial of certain misstatements just as a matter
of record”—“Mr. Neill states we caught three-quarters of a million fish.” “The
following is our total salmon catch ”—and he brings out that his total salmon
catch for 1937 was 311,858 fish. And he goes on, “of the above, more than
one-half are pinks which only run in alternate years ”; and so on. And he adds,
“ a very different number than 750,000 as quoted by Mr. Neill. Mr. Neill pleads
guilty to exaggeration and no one will dispute that plea.” That will affect you
gentlemen from the maritimes, it will lead you to think that I am given to
grossly exaggerating when I make statements. Tt

The only difference is that I was talking about fish and Mr. Goodrich is
talking about salmon. He says that I am using a very different number from
his when I place it at 750,000 and some odd—I can give you the complete
details to that figure. : b

This is the sort of tricky way he goes through my statements to diseredit
me in a general way.

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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Now, you will find at page 150, I think it is, of this year’s minutes—
this is the condition I am talking about, that Mr. Goodrich puts up. Mr.
Goodrich is in the position to employ a clever lawyer, one of the best in Victoria.
I am neither the one nor the other. I look at his brief, I glance through it on
page 3 to section 4. His system is to make a statement of something that is not
a fact and then two paragraphs later on he says, ¢ having already proved this,”
and then he builds up his case. Now, my opinion may be wrong, by inference
it may be all wrong, but when it extends to something of fact which is not and
should not be disputable; if I were to assert that this is Sunday, when as a
matter of fact it isn’t so, you would say that the man who said that was either
lying or a fool to make statements that were not true. Later on he says,
“having proved "—here is a case in point; ¢ Individually these fishermen
privately admit as the facts show, that the traps as they exist cannot in fact
affect them to any depreciable degree whatever.” Now, that sounds fine.
According to him the fishermen behind their hands admit that this is all wet,
and yet it is the fishermen who are making out a case against traps.

Now, we find the Deputy Minister of Fisheries stating under oath that our
catch has gone up from 28 per cent to 86 per cent; and Mr. Goodrich says that
these traps do not in fact affect it. Later on he builds up on that assertion,
which he had got wrong to start with. Now we come to No. 5 at the bottom of the
page. He says, these two companies, that is a truth—he speaks for himself
and for Mr. Todd’s company—hold foreshore leases from the provincial gov-
ernment for nine trap locations alotgether—of course, the Dominion government
must give them the right to run the traps, but they cannot operate on the
foreshore itself—that is the place between high water and low water and out
beyond there—because the bottom of the ocean belongs to the province and
they have to get a lease from the province for which they pay a sum every year,
and they cannot operate without it because naturally the trap runs from the
land right out into the water. They lease a few acres. This man says they
have nine trap locations. In other words, as I said the other day, they dis-
covered by experience where in this distance which I can prove from Mr.
Goodrich’s own evidence as being ten miles, they have discovered all the avail-
able sites which are invariably at the head lands around which the fish go.
They coralled the whole area by getting nine trap locations from the province,
and sometimes as high as eight licences from the Dominion government. Since
they have been paying $500 a year for them, for these last two years, they have
not bought so many. I think they have cut it down as to the number they
actually use. Before that they used to take seven or eight licences from the
Dominion and nine leases from the province, simply to hog the area and keep
anybody else from getting a lease. Mr. Goodrich said in his evidence when he
was sworn here, anybody could go and fish there that liked to. They could,
theoretically but there was no place they could fish, because these people grabbed
all the available sites. There used to be twenty-seven, or some number like that,
but they all had to quit because they were not in the right places. These are
the strategic points, and they took them; wherever there is a headland around
which they are going, and the fish eomes around a corner just as you driving
your car round a corner, if you are going to the right when you are on the right
side of the road naturally you would not go away out; and that is what they
have got there.

Now then, we find, page 157, he says, “it is impossible and very difficult to
seine that area for the simple reason that at night nets appear literally as
‘walls of fire’ and fish will not go near them.” That is true at Sooke at times,
and equally true at other places at times. They may run up against the
phosphorescence on certain conditions of tide or wind. I don’t know what causes
it, but however that may be there is in that zone a certain amount of phos-
phorescence, and it runs quite a ways up Barkley Sound; I have seen it myself,

and it continues up further north. He is trying to make out it is only at Sooke
and always there.
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Then we come to his next point: “While these arguments are advanced by 4
us, it must be emphasized that their truth is confirmed by government official
experts;” (and let me add, denied by practical fishermen). Then, “their argu-
ment here is not sound, that trollers could operate if they wished and found it
practicable in the Sooke waters.”” Of course they could not fish there, because
they have to keep away from the area between the traps, and these people have
mrlxﬁ leases; but they claim they cannot catch them because of natural diffi-
culties.

Then, in the same paragraph, a little lower down he says: “All types of
gear have been tried at different times with exceedingly disappointing results.”
Now, here is one of his defective statements: “The plain fact of the matter
is that with no law to prevent them floating gear fishermen do not operate off
Sooke in any numbers.” No law to prevent them! and Mr. Whitmore read
us section 13 the other day, which says they can’t do any fishing or use any gear
within 250 yards; and later on he read section 18, sub-section 5, of the regulations
which states that there shall not be another trap within 400 fathoms—3,200 feet
of another trap—and that there must not be anything in between the two.

Mr. Kinrey: How far did you say?
Mr. NemL: 400 fathoms, eight hundred yards.
Mr. Kizvey: Eight hundred yards would be twenty-four hundred feet.

Mr. NemwwL: Yes, it is nearly half a mile; but section 13 goes further than
that, section 13 says, that there is to be nothing between the two traps. So
that if the traps were more than 800 yards apart the area still would not be
available for fishing. It may be that the section is worded ambiguously. They
distinctly say, if you put one trap here and another trap there they must not
be at a distance of less than 800 yards. There shall be no gear in between,
and it does not say between the 800 yards or a mile; it says, there shall be no
gear in between; and that means that here at Sooke there can be nothing in
between the traps, the way this section applies. Again Mr. Gooderich says:—
“In giving his evidence with respect to the distance between traps, 250 yards,
Mr. Found, the Deputy Minister of Fisheries, explained that that section of the
Act was intended to apply only on the Atlantic coast and had never been con-
sidered applicable to the Pacific coast; and further, that it does not appear,
in fact, in the official regulations governing fishing in British Columbia.” And
I have just read the rule as to 800 yards. Then he goes on to say; “in any case,
anyone who has been at Sooke realizes that, even if the section were to be
made applicable, it could not interfere in any material way with the other
forms of fishing as there are, on the average, four miles between the traps, leav-
ing plenty of room for all who wish to fish.” I will produce the statement of
Mr. Goodrich a little later and give you the exact page of Hansard, in which
he swore that the distance covered is 10 miles, and he has five traps; and figure
up five traps with your five fingers and give them a four-mile average between,
and you cannot possibly get it all into 10 miles; or, if you can, you are a great
deal smarter than I am. That is what he gives out here, that they are on an
average of four miles apart. As a matter of fact, there are three here, all within
three miles; and to get your five, you have two that are over at the other end
of the five miles. It is a mathematical absurdity to say that you can divide
10 miles and have four traps with an average of 4 miles in between; yet he
makes that statement thinking he can get away with it. It is 10 miles. I will
produce his sworn statement to that effect.

“The Sooke traps take on an average only 2 per cent of the entire Cana-
dian and American catch of the Fraser river pack”; and that sounds dreadful;
and it says, only 2 per cent, what are you making all this fuss about? Yes,
2 per cent; but you will notice two little words put in there, 2 per cent is the
sockeye catch, sockeye only; but he does not make his living only out of sockeye,

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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~ he makes a lot 6f money in other ways. Here is the statement prepared by the
Minister of Fisheries of the fish caught by trap nets in the year 1938 and the
sockeye are 41372 fish; and if you add the springs, bluebacks, steelheads,
cohoes, pinks and chums they add up to 41,000 and a little more, just a little
more than the sockeye catch; and that is leaving out the large quantity of
herring that they also caught because herring are sold by the pound and not
put down here, so we cannot trace them. But they caught more other kinds of
fish—the very valuable springs, fish which are worth 15 cents a pound, and
they sell them fresh in the fresh market, the best market in the world. But he
says his sockeye catch came to 2 per cent of the catch caught somewhere else—
I won’t go into that now, but I have here the previous year’s catch which is
even worse than that, it shows a bigger amount of fish, other than sockeye,
and they make their big money out of the springs which are the valuable fish
sent to the market to Seattle, mild-cured, and sent on from there to the Jews
in New York with whom they are considered a great luxury. He forgets all
that. He takes 2 per cent. It is just 2 per cent, he tells you. It is not 2 per
cent, it is 2 per cent of one particular variety, not of the total catch.

Then, I come down to page 158. He is talking about people claiming that
traps are the most destructive type of gear; and he goes on to say that really
they are not, they are the most innocuous, harmless type of thing that can be
used. Let me give you a comparison. A trap is to fishing exactly what a
pump-gun would be—and I presume you are not allowed to use a pump-gun—
to shooting ducks. When you go duck-shooting you are not allowed to use
a pump-gun; and you are forbidden to use salmon roe for trout as it would
wipe out the entire trout, just in the same way, when you go out to fish why
should you be allowed to use a trap by the use of which one man can clean
up the whole industry? There is a lot of agitation now going on against the use
of sole for cod., Why? For the same reason, it would clear out the good banks.
It is a similar propostion. Then they say, “there is the claim that they are a
most destructive form”—and so the persistent effort to prevent the use of any
form of killing device that is inimical and would mean the extermination of the
fish pursued. For instance, you could go out and shoot deer with a machine gun,
but you are not allowed to do it.

Now, we come to page 159. He says, “the Sooke traps are so constructed
that they fish only on the one flood tide, consequently the maximum period of
effective fishing never’—note that word, “never”—“never exceeds six hours out
of the twenty-four.”

Well, T believe, there are some places down in Nova Scotia where they
have four tides a day under a condition which is phenomenal, just the same as
on some rivers the falls are reversible. In British Columbia there are a few
places where there might only be one tide for a few days, but those places are
not shown in the tide tables. There is always a movement up and down, and
I presume that by flood is meant up, and that ebb means down. In 99 per cent
of the areas there are always two flood tides a day. He says it can only be used
on one flood tide. He says they do not fish at night. I never knew of a trap
or of any other device that could fish at night that would not do it if there was
nothing to prevent them from doing it. All they have to do is to leave the open-
ing up and then they would come in. And some people are mean enough to
suggest that they do not always shut down for the 48 hours at the end of the
week. Even if they had only fished in daylight in the months which they fish,
May to October, it is daylight from 3 o’clock in the morning until 9.30 o’clock at
night, and they might easily make two hauls on the flood tides out of the twenty-
four hours. He says, “the period of effective fishing never exceeds more than
6 hours out of the 24.” That is absolutely false.

And now I come to page 160 where he calls attention to the wonderful
quality of the Empire Cannery products, and says: “This cannery would have to
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close down if traps were abolished.” That is an argument as old as can be.
I heard that same thing in this committee room 15 years ago. So have you.
Every time it is said that if you don’t do so and so we will close down our
factory—why, that is an old story; and you all know they never do it. It is
the old gag, if we don’t do exactly what they want us to do—you have heard it
again and again with factories—they would close down. But, did they close
down? No, they did not. Here we have them saying they would close down
if the traps were abolished.

And he goes on to say: “it has been shown that fishing with other types
of gear in the Sooke area is impracticable. Nor could the cannery depend
on fish brought by boat from a remote distance, as such fish would not come
up to the present superior standard of the Empire Cannery product.” No?
Yet that same Mr. Goodrich who draws this thing up—at least he signed it—
stated in his evidence here under oath two years ago that on one occasion
he did bring fish back from the Fraser river, back from a distance of 80 miles
to this cannery, fish which had gone right by there when they came from the
ocean, went by his traps, went right around Puget Sound, went into the Fraser
and up the Fraser to where they were caught; and he said he bought some of
them to can them in his cannery because there seemed to be a surplus on the
Fraser at that time. And then he said that he also got them from an almost
similar distance in the other direction, from about Nitinat, which is 78 miles
from his cannery in the other direction. He got a supply there; and he also
got them for his cannery from the Fraser river which is 80 miles the other way.
Couldn’t he buy in that market? Of course he could. And he has done it
before. The man swore here two years ago that he did. Yet here he is saying
that if the traps were abolished his cannery would have to close down. And
then he goes on to say how much money the Dominion Government has got
from him and the Todd people—that they have made money from them. Then
he goes on to say that the government have got fish for tagging purposes; “The
Sooke companies have co-operated in every way with the Dominion govern-
ment biological experts, nor have they ever made any charge for the fish used
in this way.” Perhaps not, per fish. I haven’t any record as to whether or not
there was any correspondence between the minister or the deputy with the men
out there; but Mr. Motherwell was the man who was told to let these people
run their traps, said there ought to be consideration given to them to operate
their traps at the week-end sometimes to compensate for the fish taken for
tagging purposes. In other words, they did not charge for the service, but they
were allowed to catch fish in the weekly close season to compensate for the
two or three or four or six hundred fish that had been taken for tagging pur-
poses, and that would be a very profitable arrangement for them. Although
they did not charge, per fish, they got it in another way.

Then he goes on to a reference to the 219 traps alleged to be operated in
Puget Sound—and I have proved my figure by the bluebook, that that was
the average in 1933 and 1934, the two years—but he goes on to say that the
figures furnished to him concerning the trap fishermen in Washington show that
in 1934 only 96 traps were operated. I don’t know about that. No one else
knows about it. That is simply the assertion of an American fishery official,
and I prefer to take our own fishery statistics which show, according to the
bluebook, there were 219 licences issued. We don’t know how many operated.
We have no means of finding that out. That is a bald statement. It cannot
be proved. It was put in there for a purpose. Supposing there were 96, that is
their statement. They have to allow for 219 traps because they paid for that
many licences, and people do not as a rule pay for a licence without intending
to use it. Whether or not those were all fishing in the Puget Sound area I have
no means of finding out, and I could not say; but I do know that according to
our bluebook there were 219 traps issued on an average there during those two

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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. years. And that, I may say, is something which can be substantiated by
unquestionable proof, and for that reason there is nothing more to be said
about it. Of course, that is the business of the traps, and their influence on
Washington’s policy in the past, and from that we may guage what it is likely
to be in the future. Yet they take that figure and it is used in their argument.
But the fact is that we did not take out our traps. The action got in the U.S.

.~ was based on the initiative; this taking out of the traps in Washington was

based on the initiative of the people, having the people sign, and then going
to the legislature. They had not been able to get action in the direction they
wanted by other means so they took it up by initiative, or referendum, and the
thing went through flyingly. Now the U.S. trap-owners are getting busy at
the end of each two years, and the argument they are using is that their catch
has fallen off and that it is down to .14 per cent now, and they have been trying
to get the traps back again. They didn’t get away with that in 1936, but they
very nearly did it in 1938, they got it through the upper house—they used the
machinery in the State of Washington of getting it through the higher house
through the influence of the governor and influential people, but the lower house
turned it down. Their argument was to the effect that we had these traps; it
has been argued that that would not have any influence at all upon their views
there. I will later quote, when I come to it in my brief, that that is a fact
which was taken into consideration.

He ends up by saying: “Taking into consideration that the traps at Sooke
enable a valuable industry to survive which would otherwise be lost to British
Columbia, and that Washington’s policy admittedly is not governed in the
slightest by their existence, the injustice of wantonly destroying this industry
is apparent to all.” Well, it is a question of destroying these two men, or at
least diverting their enterprise into a different form of activity. It is certainly
- destroying the whole fishing industry, because, remember, these traps there
mean traps all over. Don’t forget that. I want more than anything else to
impress that upon you; traps there from now on mean traps all over British
Columbia. For 15 or 18 years I have known these traps were there and I
have never been much opposed to them. Their argument at that time was
more or less sound, that the traps in the American waters were taking a huge
toll, up to 80 per cent. On that ground I did not make any kick about them
being there. The only justification for these Sooke traps was that which
arose through the fact that they had them on the American side, but when
the traps on the American side are taken out we have no justification at all
for continuing ours. The argument will be put forward which has already
been put forward by some of the cannery owners out there, that we should
not object to the traps because they are a cheap form of fishing, and so on.
Mr. Hanson here said two years ago—I could turn up the page if you like.

As T said in the house I think it is about time that there should be
uniformity in this respect; either let everyone have it or take this privilege
away from the few who have had it so long. T am interested in canneries
myself as you all know, and quite naturally I would like to have a trap.
If T could have a trap right at my cannery I could catch all the fish T
needed with which to operate my plant through the employment of 12 or
15 men, as things are it takes between 300 and 400 men to get the same
amount of fish to my plant; and yet we have to compete with these privi-
leged people who have traps.

Now, remember this, unless you do away with these traps at Sooke there is
no logical argument against their not being allowed all over, and if we were
to have them all over in British Columbia you would do away with the fishermen
and there would only be a few labourers required around the traps; another

reason against traps is that the fishermen form the backbone of our defences
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out there in this case. We have just started to build up a naval reserve, one -
cf the best things we ever did, of some 200 of these fishermen, and in January or
February they were brought in for training for some 30 days so that they would
know how to act if they were called upon to co-operate for the defence of our
- western coast. One of the reasons which made them valuable was their knowledge
of the coast, of all the bays and inlets and harbours which they know by virtue
of their vocation, so that if a foreign power on the Pacific inimical to us had large -
boats in there they would know where to look for them. The nationals of any
such potential aggressor have a very complete knowledge of the whole coastline;
and in just the same way our fishermen know the coast and they would be very
useful to Canada in defence work, but if we allow these traps to continue these
men are going to have to go out of business and seek employment somewhere
else. If you are going to allow the traps to remain there the other canneries
will be after you right away and they will demand traps all over and that will
be the finish of it.

And now, I come to my own notes on the subjects which I have more or
less touched on. The traps were first established in 1904, these particular traps
were put in in 1918. You will recall that a royal commission went out in 1904
and they inspected the situation and they said they would allow the Sooke
traps from Beachy Head to Sherringham Point, which was regarded “as the com-
petitive area with the traps on the United States side.” Mr. Found states,
at page 501 of the 1937 evidence, “These traps were first allowed under investi-
gation by the royal commission because it was regarded as a competitive area
with the traps of the United States side”’; and that is the gravamen of the whole
situation; and there was pressure of public opinion to do away with them else-
where in the Province but the Sooke ones were allowed for the reason just
given: In 1929 it was represented before another royal commission that traps
should be allowed all over, and one of the witnesses Mr. Hager said; “certainly
if you have traps up there you would have to have them all over.” You see
what the idea was. They brought in the report and there was so much fuss
made in the House about the report that the government dropped it and we
heard no more of it; and the reason they were allowed at Socke was because of
the abuses of the United States having their traps in Puget Sound. Time went
on. Then our fishermen and fishermen from the United States were all fishing
out in the same water, outside the territorial waters, our fishermen met the
fishermen of the States; they said if we don’t get the traps out it will ruin the
fishing for us all, and if you will get your traps taken out we will have ours
taken out. That is what they told each other; if you do away with your traps
we will do the same. Finally they did it, but we didn’t do it. The United
States started it, they went after it through this system of initiative and got it
through their legislature in Washington. They got that through their legislature
in Washington. They got that through in 1934 and the traps went out as from
1935. Then, as I said, they tried to upset that in 1936 and 1938, and last year
they got it through the State Senate, but they failed to get it through the lower
house.

The Cuamman: Were they entirely wiped out, the American traps?

Mr. NewL: There were 219, at least, that was the average for the last two
years (1933 and 1934) but they took them all out, there is no question
about that. That is in Puget Sound. That is what I am talking about—the
salmon that come around into our area. They may have other traps in the
Washington area in the Columbia river, but that has nothing to do with this.
It is just Puget Sound that we are talking about.

Hon. Mr. MicuauD: Might it not be fair to state that they were replaced
by purse seines?

Mr. NewL: No, they were not.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.
[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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- Mr. NewL: They were purse seining long before that. ;
Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: I did not use the word “substituted.” I said “replaced.”
- Purse seining was going on before and is still going on on a larger scale.
'~ Mr. NemwL: Maybe. But purse seining had been going on.
Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: And according to the member from New Westminster

it is a more destructive method of fishing than trap fishing.
Mr. Rem: Yes.

Mr. NeiLL: He can deal with that when he comes to it.
Mr..Rem: In the Gulf of Georgia.

Mr. NemL: One of the best arguments, of course, that the Americans used
was this. The trap owners said, “Look at the loss of fish on our side. The
Canadians are getting all the fish.” But here is the point. It would pay us to
pension off those forty-one employees at Sooke. That is all there are. They
have signed a petition. There are forty-one employees at the traps. Pension
them off and drop this thing for this reason, if for nothing else. I have talked
about defence. Here is another strong argument. We have arranged a treaty

the Fraser river. Mr. Reid is one of the members representing the Canadians
on it and it is surely important—desperately important that we should maintain
friendly relations with the Americans. It is largely framed on friendly relations.
This was done in a treaty, but you know how you can make a treaty operate or
not operate, as you like. Mr. Reid and Mr. Whitmore who are our delegates
will find it ever so much more difficult if you go to these American com-
missioners in a spirit of antagonism and have them say, “You have not played
the game with us in this matter and why should we play with you?” It is well
worthwhile for that reason alone.

It has been alleged that there is nothing to it, that there is no such under-
standing and that it would have no effect if we did not do it. I should like to
quote an authority that we must all recognize, and that is the minister himself.
Here is what the minister said on April 28, speaking in the house. He was writ-
ing to Mr. Goodrich or was explaining why he, at that time, had decided to
take out the traps, because at that time he had so decided:—

Last Fall the department had practically come to the conclusion
that we should meet the request—

I beg your pardon. I do not think this was Mr. Michaud writing. I think it
was in Hansard. He was making a speech in the house, and this appeared in
Hansard: —

Last Fall the department had practically come to the conclusion
that we should meet the request of the United States and stop trap fishing
in certain waters off Vancouver island, near Victoria, I believe. It was a

, gentlemen’s agreement, arranged. at the instance of the fishermen on both
sides of the border. I believe the State of Washington as a result of a
plebiscite had already passed a regulation prohibiting trap fishing, and
they were demanding that we prohibit it on our side.

Mr. Tayror: Where is that to be found?

Mr. Nemw: It is found in Hansard of April 28, 1936. Then again on page
112 of the committee report of 1937, Mr. Michaud is again on record; Mr.
Michaud is writing to Todd. This is the oceasion I thought he was writing to
Todd. This is the purpose of his letter, explaining why he had at that time
decided to stop traps. He says:—

There is a wvery strong argument that the continuance of traps on
our side will operate as an incentive for rescinding the prohibition of
traps in Washington state. '

78430—2}
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Then he goes on to say that he thought they should shut them off, but they
would allow them for one year longer.

Now we will deal with some of the arguments used by the trap people—
as regards taking out, United States traps making very little difference—I dealt
with that before but I refer again to where Mr. Goodrich inferred that I lied when
talking about 80 per cent. That I have proved by Mr. Found’s evidence. I
will quote Mr. Found, at page 9 of the report of the committee of 1937 because
it is better to quote a thing than just to say it, because you might think I was
exaggerating. Here is what Mr. Found stated at page 9:

; in which traps were out on the United States side.
“Out” means fishing.

458 we were getting from 28 to 30 per cent of the catch of sock-
eyes that was made. So that from 68 to 70 per cent of the run was taken
on the United States side.

That ought to be 70 to 72 per cent, of course. Further on he says:—

When the traps went out the picture changed. There is no question
about that. The picture changed in these two years from 28 to 30 per
cent to 536 per cent in 1935. In 1936 we got slightly over 80 per cent.

I have another place where he says it was 86 per cent. On page 9, lower down,
he says in 1934 we got 23-31 per cent of the total; that was the last year before
the traps were taken out. In 1935 we got 53:43 per cent; in 1936 we got
86 per cent. He even worked it out to a decimal point, so he must have been
talking, not from memory, but from figures. That is what he said.

Now, Mr. Chairman, which shall we believe? Shall we believe Mr.
Goodrich who comes here with an axe to grind—a very gilded axe at that? Or
shall we believe Mr. Found, an official of the department with forty-years service
behind him, who is not going to upset that reputation he has built up by making
such a false statement under oath? Which shall we believe? Shall we believe
Mr. Goodrich who fixes his figures in a careful letter to the minister of January
30th and four days later he has to change that on his own initiative; or shall we
take Mr. Found who, although he was pretty much in favour of the traps, as
deputy minister made that statement?

With regard to the men losing their jobs, forty-one men signed a petition
that they were employed and would lose their jobs. Yes, they probably would
lose their jobs but two hundred more men would get jobs in their places, because
it does take more men to catch fish by purse seining or gill netting or trolling
than it does by traps. Mr. Goodrich in a statement—I can look it up if you
dispute it—says that at each trap there are two workmen and a cook. That
has been operating practice. Of course, there are a few men used in brailing
out fish and conveying them to the cannery; you would have to have that no
matter what type of fishing you were doing. Then he goes on to say that these
waters cannot be fished. I would refer to page 157. Here is Mr. Goodrich
again on oath. He produced a wire from his firm which he substantiates. This
is part of the wire:—

Martinolich Brothers, Norman Gunderson, Charlie Clark, the best
of Canadian purse seiners have made several attempts purse seine this
area and do state account tides and fact fish do not school in quantities
seining would not pay.

I remember when that statement was made it made quite an impression on the

committee, as it was then. Now we will quote from page 225. The men them-

selves got wind of this and they rather objected to having their names taken in
[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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vain. This is what they come back with. I may say that I know two of these
men and they are very reliable, reputable men. On page 225, Mr. Martinolich
wires this in to me on March 8, 1937:— ‘

I never made a statement as indicated in wire dated February 20
and read by Goodrich before fisheries committee Stop with no traps in
Sooke area I am convinced that seiners and gill netters could fish this
area. V. Martinolich.

Then on page 251, the other men came along. They had got wind of it and did
not like this thing. Here is another wire from Norman Gunderson—I do not
know him—addressed to me, which reads as follows:—

We did not make a statement as indicated by Mr. Goodrich testifying
before fisheries committee February 22 Stop The Sooke area provides
excellent fishing grounds for seiners and we believe area could be made
profitable for seining.

Then there is Clark’s, on page 251. Clark I do know personally; I have known
him nearly all his life. When Clark says a thing you can rely upon it. I do not
seem to be able to put my hand on it, but it is here, at any rate. He sent me
a wire to the same effect, only it was rather stronger.

Hon. Mr. Micuaaup: That is a joint telegram.

Mr. NemL: Yes, I have it. Both men signed the same wire. It is signed
“ Charley Clark, Norman Gunderson.” They both signed the same wire. As I
say, I can vouch for those men.

Then on page 199 there is a wire to me dated February 24 from A. Pedersen,
which reads as follows:——

The undersigned with twenty years seining experience in B.C. waters,
can testify that the trap locations at Sooke have less tidal streams than
Johnson Strait where seining is sucecessfully conducted STOP Regarding
phosphor in water this does not affeet salmon seining as it is all daylight
fishing.

Then there was a man named Chamberlain. I do not want to detain the
committee. You can take my word for it, it is on record. I think I will give it
to you, after all. It will not take very long. It is on page 200.

Mr. Mayuaew: What is the date of Mr. Goodrich’s statement in the house
that you are disproving before the committee?

Mr. NemwL: The date?

Mr. Mayaew: What date was he talking before the committee?

Mr. NemwL: The exact date?

Mr. MayHEW: Yes.

Mr. NeLL: He was giving evidence two years ago.

Mr. ReEm: March, 1936.

Mr. Nemwr: I quoted it. Tt is all in that period. Here is this man
Chamberlain. He was at one time the president of the B.C. Trollers Association.
He says:—

The American traps were largely abolished by a co-operation of
tourists agencies owing to the depletion of sporting fish. This stands for
us as the traps at Sooke catch large number of spring salmon and cohoes
that could and would be caught by sporting means in Canadian Gulf Is.

There are present thirty or forty trolling boats that work around
Beechey bay and Race Rocks. If the Sooke traps are abolished, Sooke
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itself would be the base for another fifty boats as the fish that are now
caught in traps would be caught to a great extent between Sooke and
Active pass. s

Then Mr. Coverdale says the same thing. Then we have Senator Green at
page 219. I might quote you that because Mr. Mayhew said there was no one
in this house—and I suppose the senate is included in this house—knows anything
more about it than he does.

Mr. Mayuew: I did not say that.

Mr. NemwL: You knew as much as anyone else.

Mr. Mayuew: I said I knew that district as well as anybody.
Mr. NemwL: Yes. Here is what Senator Green says:—

Twenty-odd years ago I purchased a summer house, or rather
purchased a place and built a summer house at Becher Bay, and have
my summers there and part of the winters, as a matter of faet, since
that time. When I went there there were fishermen, trollers, particularly,
with the sportsmen on whose behalf I am not speaking at all, there in
great numbers. Their operations, as I understand it, extended from
Quatsino around perhaps to Brentwood. . .

That must be Cowichan. It means Cowichan.
Mr. Greex: There were some corrections made the next day.
Mr. NemwL: Yes. Continuing:—

..and from there up, of course, towards Cowichan. They were there,
as I say, in large numbers. In Becher Bay proper they occupied a dozen
holdings. There was on an average probably from fifteen to twenty
fishing boats, trollers the year round. Of course, in the off-season they
would probably pile into Vietoria or something of that kind and come
back, but that was their home; that is where they made their living.
A lot of them fished out of Sooke harbour, Peddar Bay, and theyv were
all making fair money. From that time to this, they have simply
gradually become depleted. This last winter there was one boat that
stayed in Peddar Bay as its home port, as it were, and there is another
one in and out. This has been caused, they tell me, by the traps which
they claim hurt their fishing in two ways; the first one is they say they
break up the schools and cateh the greater proportion of the spring salmon
that run in the vieinity. The second is, as far as the cohoes are concerned,
that the cohoes instead of coming in along the line elose to Becher Bay
as they have in the past, that the traps are in such a way that they
break up the school there and the greater proportion of the school goes
across to the other side, twelve miles across Becher bay, to the American
shore. 1 do not know that there is anything more I can say. That is the
situation as I see it; and as I have found it day in and day out for the
last twenty years, which has ‘gradually cut them down from a large
number of boats in that particular area to one or two. Their contention
is that it is caused by their impossibility of their catching spring salmon
and cohoes in sufficient quantities to pay them.

Senator Green certainly has no axe to grind, and we all know his reputation.

Then this year—and I am nearly finished I am glad to say—we alluded to a

letter T turned in the other day from Mr. Hill. I turned in nine letters from

men who had gill netted in that area this last year. They gave catches, dates

and facts. It is all in number 5. I need not go into that.
[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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Then as regards profits: Mr. Goodrich swore—and he insisted on swearing—
although I tried to modify it, he insisted on swearing that he paid income tax
in eighteen years amounting to $111,293; not on an income of $111,293, but he
paid income tax of that amount. It comes to about $7,500, or something like
that per year. That is only for himself alone, as the other partner was much
better off because he had the cannery profits as well. This man had the trap
part of it.

Mr. Mayuaew: There is a great deal more in the cannery.

Mr. NeiL: He was asked, “ How much capital did you put into this thing?”
He said, “ $24,000.” Somebody said, “Be careful; Neill is trying to get you
into a trap of his own. Do you swear you paid all this income tax?”

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Mr. Neill does not operate traps. Anyway, he has
not a licence to do so. ‘

Mr. NeiLL: He was asked, “ You swear you paid all this income tax?” He
gaid, “ Yes; I think it is rather more than that.” He was asked, “ You swear
that your whole investment in this company was $24,800?” and he said, “ Yes.”

The agitation against traps has increased. These things generally die out after
a while. The péople get wrought up and excited for a time, but then it dies out.
But in this case that is not so; the opposition has increased. Considering that
it is a comparatively small matter, it is remarkable the public sentiment in
British Columbia. People other than fishermen are taking it up. 1 presented
a petition the other day signed by business men, another one by sportsmen, and
another one by fishermen.

Mr. MayHEW: You are making a good job of it.

Mr. NemL: I will take my oath I was not the instigator of the petitions
I presented the other day. They were totally unknown to me when they were
sent in to me; but even if that had been so, even if T had been at the bottom
of it, I would say I was only doing my duty. Last year I put in a petition with
practically ten thousand names on and this year I think there are about 2,500
and I was advised that there were more to come. Last year’s stand was
endorsed again by the associated boards of trade of Vancouver island—really
a parliament on this thing, men coming from all over the island and they
represent the people more than we do, perhaps. Twice running they have endorsed
it. There was a most desperate attempt made #his year at Courtenay. I think
Todd was there; Goodrich was there; their lawyer was there, their banker was
there and they brought every possible artifice to bear to try to swing the thing.
A letter was sent to the minister, by a gentleman I shall not name, saying,
“You do not need to worry about your traps this year because it is going to
be rescinded.” But it was not rescinded. After three hour’s debate on that
one item alone—and you know boards of trade are always in a hurry—they
voted and the question carried against them seven to twenty-seven; yet they
blandly say it was fairly even.

Mr. Mayaew: Would you mind my making a statement there? You say
seven to twenty-seven. There were twenty-nine accredited delegates at the
meeting.

Mr. NeiL: But I am talking about the votes.

Mr. Haxson: Seven to twenty-two, he said.

Mr. NemLL: Possibly some avent away; but, at any rate, the votes that were
recorded were seven to twenty-seven.

Mr. MayHeEw: There are only twenty-nine accredited delegates.

Mr. NemwL: I do not know. That is what was reported.

Mr, MayaeEw: Your information is inaccurate.

Mr. NemwL: I will produce the information. ‘That was about 16 per cent;
but they said it was fairly evenly divided. You had before you the petition
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of the Kyuquot Trollers, which was passed in 1939 and in 1938; the Victoria
Trades and Labour Council; the Vancouver and District of New Westminster
Trade and Labour Council; the city councils of Vancouver and New West-
minister—I have not got the ones from Vancouver; I have been told there was
one in New Westminster—Gobson Landing C.C.F. Club; Prince Rupert Trades
and Labour Couneil.

Mr. Tuaompson: Prince Rupert Board of Trade. :

Mr. NeiLL: Yes. Then Mr. Goodrich stated that I was wrong about
three-quarters of a million fish but I was right. When I was asking what
Mr. Goodrich made in profits, he only spoke for his own company in that
regard. He emphasized that. Todd’s profits was an entirely separate thing.

The assertion is made that that curtails employment. There is no doubt
about that as regards these forty-one men; but they were fishermen before
and they will go back to fishing again. They will gain many times that
amount of fishermen. Mr. Hanson’s evidence I have already referred to. I
have already told you about the need of sustaining our fishing population;
otherwise we will have no fishing and no naval defence. You do not get much
loyalty out of wire nets and piles. You cannot do much for defence with
them. They will not rustle around when the Empire or Canada needs them
and tell us what is going on in the remote corners. You do not get much
support for your government out of wire nets and a few piles. These licences
are annual; they can be renewed and taken away at any time. Every fisher-
man who takes his licence out knows that only can it be stopped next year
but it can be stopped in the middle of the year. These purse seiners are often
told in the middle of the season, “We have closed such and such an inlet. You
have got your licence but you cannot go in and fish there, although the licence
said you could.”

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: Pardon me; they have not done that on many
occasions since 1936.

Mr. NeLnL: 19367

Hon. Mr. MicuHAUD: Yes.

Mr. NeLL: That is two and a half years ago. But they are liable to
lose their licence at a moment’s notice. These cannery men were warned in
1936 by the deputy minister in writing that 1936 was the last year they would
get that; and after that, it was changed .and it was allowed later. So they
have had four years now of ‘warning, and I do not think it will be a very great
hardship, after waiting this year as well, if it was closed off.

I have only a few words more to say. I might say to our maritime friends
that the situation is analogous in British Columbia, with the trawling situation
on the Atlantic; and as regards the Quebec members, I would suggest that
they have been very decent with us in the past and they have always recog-
nized that British Columbia members should have the say about British
Columbia matters. Mr. Taylor himself stated that of seven members from
British Columbia—five were against and two were for. But the people of
British Columbia are demanding this. It is not a question of the monopoly
of two people against other people; it is the whole situation of whether we
are going to have traps all over British Columbia. Let me quote one more
sentence, from page 377 of the committee of 1937. I do not know that I could
sum it up much better or in a more appropriate way.

Hon. Mr. Micuaaup: Mr. Neill, that argument applies just as well for
purse seines as for traps, because purse seineing is not permitted all along the
coast of British Columbia. Nevertheless, no one has ever advanced the idea
that because it was forbidden there, it should be forbidden all over the coast.

Mr. NemwL: No. They are allowed in certain waters because you cannot
fish by any other means there. But here you can fish.

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]




MARINE AND FISHERIES 189

 Hon. Mr. MicaAaup: You admit that and some other people dispute it. It
is a difference of opinion, that is all.

Mr. NemL: It does not apply to traps. Sooke area can be- fished, on the
evidence of people who fished it, with seines, gill nets and trolls. Is Senator
Green wrong?

Mr. Mayuew: That is not a fair question.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Would you disagree to substituting purse seining in
that area for trap netting?

Mr. NemwrL: I would wipe out the traps and leave the operation of fishing
in that area to those who wish to go into it, by seiners, gill netters or trollers,
according to the class of fish they are catching and the conditions of the water.

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: We had the statement, you will remember, Mr. Neill,
that purse seining is the most damaging, the most destructive form of fishing in
the industry.

Mr. NemLL: That statement was not made in this committee.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Why should it be more destructive than any other
form of fishing?

Mr. Rem: There is a little difference in your own waters.

Mr. Mayuew: What about the Alberni canal; I understand you had purse
seining taken away from there.

Mr. Nemn: I would like to read you this. Here the situation has been
well expressed by a member of this committee, speaking in 1937—or, was it
1936; it was 1937 or 1936—I think it was 1937. At that time it had been
decided to take the traps out, and here is what was said:—

You see, therefore that the anomaly of the trap situation at Sooke
must be grappled with from the general public interest. If the Sooke
traps are allowed to remain, an excellent excuse can be advanced by the
United States fishermen for the re-establishment of American traps. The
Sooke workers appear to be falling between two stools and I say, in all
kindness, that there is no commercial justification for my advancing any
arguments to destroy the position taken by the fisheries department.

And then a little further down:—

They are manifestly doing their plain duty when they protect the
larger interest in the community, and it would appear that the economic
necessity of 40 men at Sooke cannot rate against the economic necessity
of 5,000 fishermen definitely affected by the elimination of the trap
system.

Mr. Tayror: Hear, hear.

Mr. Nern: I am glad to hear him say, “hear, hear”; and I agree with
Mr. Taylor’s argument that the economic necessity of 40 men at Sooke cannot
rate against the economic necessity of 5,000 fishermen definitely affected by
the elimination of the trap system. He voices my sentiments entirely. As I
thought then, and as I think now, the economic necessity of 40 men at the
Sooke, who can be absorbed otherwise and elsewhere in the industry, should not
be rated against the economic necessity of not 5,000, but of 15,000 fishermen
whose livelihood is supplied through this industry, because that is what it will
amount to, because once we open the doors to these traps we cannot logically
close them to other parts of British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: The door I am told has been open since 1904.

Mr. NemL: To what?
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: To traps in British Columbia. The door has been open
to traps since 1904 and traps have been operated since 1905.

Mr. NemL: Well, yes; but the answer to the minister is this; when I said
we were opening the door to traps all over British Columbia, because we cannot
logically refuse them. Hitherto we have always said when other people wanted
it, that in the Sooke trap area competition arose with the United States. Now
that the American traps have gone that argument no longer applies; and we can
no longer logically refuse them. That will be the next demand. If we have
them at Sooke why not all over. That is the point of view we have to consider.
What did you say about Alberni canal, Mr, Mayhew?

Mr. Mayuew: Have you not prohibited the operation of purse seiners up
in the Alberni canal distriet from the early part of this year?

Mr. NemL: No. Your information is muddled. Those reports about purse
seining being forbidden, it was changed six years ago; before the present minister
was in charge. :

Mr. Warrmore: It was all of six years ago.

Mr. NemL: Yes, six years ago, and the reason was because it was an area
which could be adequately and profitably fished by gill nets and trollers.

Mr. MayrEw: I don’t want to say anything about all that Mr. Neill has said
now. I don’t know what Mr. Taylor wishes, but personally I would like to
have an opportunity to read it over. I will have to read it over very carefully.
At the moment I could not say anything about what he has said, but he made
certain insinuations and statements that were wholly lacking in proof.

Mr. Hanson: I would not say, insinuations.

Mr. Mayaew: For instance, I would like to bring this out at the present
time. He referred to Senator Green, whose word I am sure we are all ready to
take. I would like to point out that while Senator Green made the statement
that Beachy Head is 20 miles from Sooke, the Senator lives at the far end of
the fishing ground and it is quite easy to be up at that end and not know very
much of what is actually going on at the other end. I would like also, and I
think I am right in this, that while Mr. Neill said the area was 10 miles, I think
from Beachy Bay point to the point where it starts is a matter of 20 miles.

Mr. Nemwn: I can produce where Goodrich swore it was 10 miles. I will
look it up.

Mr. Mayuaew: Well, the maps will show you.

Mr. NeLL: Mr. Goodrich is the man who made the statement.

Mr. Mayuew: What is the distance?

Mr. Wurrmore: The official trap area is from Sombrio Point to Beachy
Head—in recent years the traps have been operated only from Sherringham
Point, to Beachy Head, but licences would be granted for the area from Sombrio
Point to Beachy Head.

Mr. NemL: What is the distance, what mileage do you make it?

Mr. WairMore: The mileage—my impression is that it would be, from
Sombrio Point to Beachy Head, somewhere about 24 miles; but the total area
in which trap licences are issued, from Sherringham Point to the other end of
the location would be between 10 and 11 miles.

Mr. NeiLL: Page 43, Mr. Goodrich’s evidence in 1937, Mr. Kinley asked:—

Q. What is the distance between them?—A. Oh, from a matter of
miles distance, possibly ten miles. »

Q. Between traps?—A. Oh, no, between the first one and the last.

Q. There are five traps in ten miles?—A. Yes.

Q. Are they all at right angles to the shore?—A. Presumably, yes.

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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Mr. Mavyuew: Well, T have figures here and I want to point out one thing
which you said in which I think you may be wrong. You objected to the 2 per
cent and said it was only a matter of sockeye, and that Mr. Goodrich was only
drawing a smoke-screen across the statement and that if he had figured it on
all salmon it would have been an entirely. different story.
Mr. NemL: Yes.

Mr. Mavyuew: The statement I have here is a statement given to the com-
mittee of the total fish, and this is only the salmon, and the total catch is given
in this statement here as 19,000,000, while on the sockeye—that is, taken from
Sooke in the traps—includes everything even the wolf fish and pilchards, and
sharks and sole; the whole thing is included in this figure.

Mr. NeiL: Here it is, here is the statement—

Mr. MayHEW: Just a minute, until I am through. It reads that they actually
caught 327,929 fish, or less than 2 per cent of the salmon catch that was caught
in other districts, Now, in the Sooke trap area all fish are included, while
in the statement here, by the department, they have only included the chums,
pinks, cohoes, steelheads, bluebacks, springs and sockeyes, and there are 19,-
000,000.

Mr. NeiLn: Might I answer that. I had the thing in my hand, I think
it must be the same thing; no, it is another year. This is what it reads:—

Statement of numbers of different species of salmon and method of
capture reported by operations of salmon purse seines, drag seines, and
trap nets, and by salmon canning, curing and cold-storage establishment,
of gill nets and troll caught fish, British Columbia, 1938.

And then it divides the fish into seven different principal varieties, and then
down on the side it gives the numbers caught by troll, gill-net, purse seine, drag
seine, and trap nets. This is for the year 1938, and it shows with respect to
fish caught by trap nets, sockeye 41,372, springs to the number of 12,677; steel-
heads, 873; cohoes, 25,223 ; pinks, 1,472; chums, 953; or a total of 82,570. And
the amount of sockeye caught by the traps was 41,372,

Mr. Micuaup: And the total number of fish caught was 19,703,685.

Mr. NemwL: I am not talking about the total, in British Columbia. I am
not interested in the fish caught by troll, ete.

Mr. Rem: I think, if I might interject, we are at cross purposes. I think
this 2 per cent figure is related to the catch of a particular section and not with
respect to the total cateh of British Columbia. Mr. Neill is arguing with respect
to the percentages caught by the Sooke traps as compared with the total catch
of the Puget Sound waters only, and I think that is where the cross purpose
comes in. In relation to the figures quoted by Mr. Mayhew, that Sooke catch
would not be 2 per cent, but a much smaller fraction.

Mr. NemLL: Not 2 per cent of the sockeye, it should be 2 per cent of the
Fraser river sockeye. That is not the point—

Mr. MayuEw: I don’t care.

Mr. NemwL: You have missed my point.

Mr. MayHEw: No, I did not miss your point, Mr. Neill.

Mr. Nemwrn: The point I wanted to make was that it was not 2 per cent
even of the Fraser river catch, whereas the eomparison made just now was with
respect to the total catch from British Columbia. All I wanted to get was the
proportion of the sockeye catch at Sooke in its relation to the total catch of
the Sooke traps.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: They caught 12,677 springs, he could not have made
any very large profits on 12,000 fish.
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Mr. Nemn: What ? At 15 cents a pound in the fresh market on an average
of 24 pounds to a fish?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: They do average 24 pounds I suppose?

Mr. NemwL: Yes, about that; they go as high as 60 pounds.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: 82,570 fish altogether taken in trap nets last year.

Mr. NemwL: Yes.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: And the total catch for the province was 19,703,685
fish, which would mean that the percentage caught in the trap nets would be
about one-half of one per cent of the total.

Mr. NemwL: That is bringing in the Skeena river which has nothing what-
ever to do with it.

Hon. Mr. MicuHAaup: Oh yes, it has a bearing on the whole catch of
British Columbia.

Mr. NemwL: It has a bearing on something which is not comparable.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Why not? _

Mr. NemwL: Because the fishing up in the north and at all these other points
is altogether different from the run of fish in this particular area, they would
have no bearing on this at all. ;

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: They are sold in the market as sockeye.

Mr. NemwL: You may as well take the percentage of the whole world catch
and you would get a smaller figure.

Mr. MayrEw: The actual figure would be four-fifths of one per cent.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: When they wanted to determine what quantity of fish
‘caught in the Sooke traps is as compared to British Columbia, let us say, that
is the only basis on which you can make such a comparison.

Mr. NemL: And it is not comparison, it is not comparable.

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: Why?

Mr. NemwwL: It is no comparison on Sooke traps any more than if you took
the catch of salmon in all of Canada.

Hon. Mr. MicuauDp: You want to establish it as a general principle that
we should prohibit trap netting, because when considered in relation to other
methods of fishing in vogue all over the province it is a method which confers
discrimination?

Mr. NemwL: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: And then when we want to compare the quantity of
fish that is being caught there in relation to the total cateh of British Colum-
bia—and of course, that is the only basis on which to make such a comparison
of the different kinds of fish in different waters, you use another method of
reasoning. I have never disputed that. But that is what you are doing, you are
comparing the sockeye catch on the Fraser river with the total catch for the
province.

Mr. GreeN: I think in the 1937 committee we had statements and maps and
so on showing the percentage of catch at Sooke of the Fraser river run. I may
be wrong, but as I remember it that was the basis then for the percentages. I
presume Mr. Neill is using the same basis of percentages now.

Mr. NemwL: As a matter of fact, I don’t think percentage has a very great
deal of bearing on the greater question of whether or not we want our, whole
fishing population and naval reserve wiped out and the United States’ traps
restored. That is a consideration far superior to figures.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: We have that evidence on record this year, Mr. Green,
at page 24 of report No. 1.

Mr. Green: This year?
[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: This year, I think.

Mr. Tavror: It is a standard statement in the report.
Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, at page 24.

Mr. Green: Yes, I see it now.

Mr. Mayuew: If you go back, Mr. Neill, to the whole statement, if your
argument is sound, if you are right, and I am sure you don’t want to do anything
that is not right, neither do any of the rest of us; there would be a diminution
of fish, there would be a slackening up of the number of fish caught in both the
Sooke area and the Fraser river area.

Mr. NewL: That may be the result of conservation efforts, work the com-
mission were trying to do.

Mr. Mayuaew: I know, but the fact of the matter is salmon in the Sooke
area have been increasing rather than diminishing.

Mr. NemL: Yes, they are taking more perhaps than a few years ago.
Mr. TayrLor: Yes, perhaps.

Mr. MayueEw: There are more fish being caught to-day, the run is greater.
If you want to go back to 1918 you have the figures there in front of you, and
you will see where it has increased right in the Sooke area alone, in 1918 there
was only 2,048, and then 6,000, 3,000, 3,000, and in 1924, 3,000, 1935—then you
go right down to 1933 when there was 8,000, 1934 there was 6,000—I am only
giving round numbers—in 1935, 5,600, in 1936, 8,000, in 1937, 6,000. Then, if
you follow those percentages down and look over on the other side you will see
the total catch in both the Fraser river and in the Sooke area has also increased
with the exception of the time in 1917 right after the Hell Gate disaster where
the whole thing took a drop—you go back to 1918, over 20 years, and there has
been an almost steady increase until last year we had the largest catch we ever
had in British Columbia.

Mr. NEmL: Yes.

Mr. Mayuew: With the result that the total catch for 20 years was
168,574. 1If this fishing area was being depleted it would certainly show up
in the Sooke area where, as you said yourself, the. fish of all the homing
variety, going back to the spawning places. These are the fish that are being
caught right off the Sooke area. Now, actually it is increasing. And you were
saying that this run goes up the Fraser river, and the Fraser river run is also
increasing. I am giving you the figures which are in here.

Mr. NemwL: There are two answers to that. I am trying to make my
answer as clear as I can. There are two answers. The thing is quite under-
standable from your own point of view. There are two, one thing is the reduc-
tion resulting from lessened demand for fish; they could not sell their fish, as you
will remember, in 1931 and 1932, and 1933 on account of the big reduction in
demand. Then, too, times are getting different in British Columbia. Last
year a lot of people went fishing who could do nothing else. It is not the
amount of fish taken as to their being depleted—that is an old argument, I have
heard it so often—and you can do anything with figures—any man who wants
to show that fish are not being depleted has only to point to the figures of 20
yvears ago. Then, there is another answer to this; 20 years ago we did not
catch the inferior fish, we didn’t catch the chums then. We didn’t call them
chums then, they were called dog salmon; we are calling them chums now to
make it sound better, we didn’t think of canning chums in those days. And the
same thing can be said of the pinks. Then, as the better fish got reduced in
quantity they had to take the cheaper varieties.

Mr. Mayuew: I would like to conserve your energy, if I might, because I
was quoting sockeye, the highest grade of fish T think that we have to sell, and
I quoted you sockeye salmon only.
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Mr. Greex: On that point, I did not read the statement to which Mr. :
Mayhew referred, did he say that last year’s total catch of sockeye in the
Fraser river area was 311,212 cases? 4

Mr. Mayuew: That is the total for British Columbia.

Mr. Green: That is the total for the Fraser river?

Mr. WaiTMORE: Production of sockeye in the Fraser river area.

Mr. Rem: Both the United States and Canada. :

Mr. Greex: In 1934 it was 491,855, which is far better.

% hMr. Mayuew: There are only two years in the whole 20 in which it went
igher.

Mr. Green: In 1930 it was 450,000. .

Mr. Mayuew: Yes, and in 1928 it was only 90,000, and in 1923, 79,000; and
back in 1919 it was only 100,000. '

Mr. GreEN: Apparently the run is getting better.

Mr. Mayaew: I would like to point this out too, in these figures given by
the department, that the sockeye salmon caught in the Sooke area, their big
run was in the same year as the big run was down in the Fraser river area. For
instance, in 1938 there were 168,000 sockeyes caught in British Columbia Fraser
river area and only 3,652 in Sooke. In the year before that there was in this
part a catch of 66,000, and if you follow the figures all the way up and down
you will find that the big run into the Sooke area is in the same year as the big
run into the Fraser river area, which would show in itself that if there were
depletion going on at the Sooke area it would be evident from the figures.

Mr. Greex: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Neill read a brief of the company, the
Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Company Limited, and that brief refers
in paragraph 15 to the scientific value; it refers to the taking of fish for the
government.

Mr. NemwL: At what page is that?

Mr. Green: At page 160. It says:—

The International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission is at present
engaged in studying methods of rehabilitating the sockeye runs of the
Fraser. This research requires large numbers of fish for tagging. At
present the best of these are obtained at Sooke. If the traps were taken
out the commission would in all probability find it necessary to operate
a trap itself at Sooke, or eatch fish by other methods there; in any case
it would mean added and unnecessary expense.

We have two of the members of the International Pacific Salmon Fisheries
Commission here to-day, Mr. Reid and Mr. Whitmore, and I wonder if one of
them would be good enough to explain whether or not that statement is eorrect.

Mr. Waitmore: I may explain last year that the sockeye commission as
this International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission is generally known,
took advantage of the fact that traps were in operation at Sooke and endeavoured
to ascertain a little more information about the life history of the sockeye
and their migration routes, what particular spawning ground they were headed
for, and so on. Some thousand sockeye, all told, were tagged at the Sooke
trap. They were tagged progressively throughout the season. Two men were
stationed at the traps for a couple of days a week. The commission were a
little hard pressed for funds and through the co-operation of the trap operators
the fish that were used, were not charged us for them; but a special arrange-
ment was made whereby the traps would be allowed to operate sufficient week-
ends to recoup the trap operators for the fish that the commission used so
there would be no charge to the commission for the fish that we used.

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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) Mr. Greex: What about the point if the traps were taken out? The
~ commission would find it necessary to operate traps then at Sooke?

Mr. Rem: I think the fish have always been tagged at Sooke for many
years, even before the commission was there. I think the department had a
poliey or felt that some means of catching fish should be put into effect at that
point, as it would catch the fish on their way in from the open water, heading
for the Fraser river.

Mr. MacNEeiL: It would hardly operate a trap.

Mr. NeiLL: You have tagged fish for many years on the west coast?

Mr. WHITMORE: Yes. '

Mr. NeiLL: And you did it outside of traps?

Mr. Mayuew: That is the only humane way you can catch fish.

Mr. WHirmore: Various types of gear have been used for tagging fish.

Mr. NeiLL: You can tag fish without a trap.

Mr. Mayaew: Not and be more humane.

Mr. WarTMoRE: It is a matter of the particular type of salmon, the particular
kind of salmon that are to be tagged. For.instance, spring salmon and cohoes
salmon may be taken on the troll, in offshore waters, tagged and released,
perhaps with very little injury; but there will be some that will be damaged.
Sockeye could not be taken by the troll at the same points where spring salmon
and cohoes were taken for tagging, because sockeye do not take the lure. Purse
seines could not be operated at those points—I will refer to off the mouth of
Quatsino, for instance; and, speaking offhand I would say the closest point to
the Fraser river that tagging could be done, on the information presently avail-
able, for sockeye coming to the Fraser river, would be Swiftsure Banks just off
Cape Flattery.

Mr. Greex: Further out?

Mr. WaitmorE: Further out; be taken by the purse seines.

Mr. Rem: The commission have been giving consideration to placing a small
trap near the mouth of the Frasér river, because in the view of the director,
Dr. Thompson, he considers that is splendid.

Mr. Greex: What you would do would be to place a small trap at Sooke
simply for scientific purposes?

Mr. REmp: Yes, in all likelihood that would be the case.

Mr. Warrmore: To make it clear, I was not a member of the commission
that so decided last year, about the tagging at Sooke; but I believe the fact that
wraps were there and they could get the fish without cost influenced them to a
great extent in the tagging program they instituted at that point. The traps were
there. If the traps were not there and the commission had to consider the outlay
of $15,000 or $20,000 for setting up a trap there, I am afraid it would not have
been able to do it and some other arrangement would have had to be made.

Mr. Green: What would a small trap cost for scientific purposes?

The CrAmrMAN: A large one costs from $14,000 to $20,000, according to
the size. !

Gentlemen, are we going to meet to-morrow or do you want the report
printed before we have another meeting?

Mr. Tavror: I think we should have it printed first.
The Cramrmax: We cannot have it ready for to-morrow, then.

The committee adjourned at 1.05 p.m., to meet again at the call of the chair.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

- WebpNESDAY, May 10, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 11 am.
The Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince), presided.

Members present: Messrs. Brooks, Ferron, Green, Hanson, Kinley, MacLean
(Prince), MacNeil, Mayhew, McDonald (Soums), Mlchaud Neill, Pelletier,
Reid, Ro'blchaud Taylor (Nanaimo), Tustin, Veniot and Whlte, (18)

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whltmore, Head of the Western Division, Depart-
ment of Fisheries.
The Committee resumed its study of trap net fishing in British Columbia.
The Chairman read telegrams received from:—
1. J. H. Todd & Sons Limited, of Victoria, B.C., dated May 9, 1939;
2. Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Company Limited, of thorlal
B.C., dated May 9, 1939.

Mr. Reid placed on the record an extract of a letter from the London Fish
Company Limited, of Vancouver, B.C. He also read excerpts of a news item
in the Vancouver Daily Province, dated March 13, 1939, with respect to salmon
trap-net fishing in the State of Washington waters and at Sooke.

Discussion followed.

Referring to the brief previously submitted and printed in the minutes of
evidence of May 4, 1939, Mr. Mayhew expressed his views to the effect that
the use of trap-nets should be maintained in the Sooke area. He also referred
to the statements made by Mr. Neill at the previous meeting.

Discussion followed and Mr. Whitmore was recalled and further questioned.

Mr. Robichaud asked the following questions of Mr. Whitmore, which
he will answer at the next meeting.

1. The number of men employed in the salmon fishing industry in British
Columbia.

2. The number of men employed in the salmon fishing industry by J. H.
Todd & Sons Limited and the Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing
Co., Limited.

The witness retired.

At 1.10 o’clock, the Committee adjourned to meet again on Thursday,
May 11, at 2 p.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commattee.
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TrUrspAY, May 11, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 2 p.m.
The Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince), presided.

Members present: Messrs. Clark (Essex South), Coté, Deslauriers, Green,
Hanson, Kinley, MacLean (Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton North-Victoria),
MacNeil, Mayhew, Michaud, Neill, Pelletier, Reid, Rickard, Robichaud and
Taylor (Nanaimo)—(17).

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Depart-
ment of Fisheries.

Mr. Whitmore tabled his answers to Mr. Robichaud’s questions with
respect to employment in the fishing industry.

The Chairman read these answers and Mr. Robichaud commented on them.
Discussion followed.

Mr. Reid placed the following on record:—
1. A letter, dated February 16, 1939, from the Ladner, B.C., Fishermen,
along with a resolution, respectlng Sooke traps.

2. A telegram, dated May 24, 1939, from F. Rolley, Secretary of the B.C.
Fishermen’s Protective Association.

3. A letter, dated March 20, 1939, from J. E. Fuller, Secretary of the Native
Sons, Ladner Prairie, B.C., enclosing copy of a petition.

Mr. Reid also read extracts of letters, dated May 3, 1939, and January
30, 1939, from the B.C. Fishermen’s Protective Association.

Mr. Taylor (Nanaimo), commented on the briefs submitted and printed
in the minutes of evidence of Thursday, May 4, 1939, as well as on Mr. Neill’s
statements, contending that trap-net fishing should not be discontinued in the
Sooke area.

At 3 o’clock, the Committee adjourned until Friday, May 12, 1939, at
10 a.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commattee.
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Fripay, May 12, 1939.
The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 10
o’clock. The Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince) presided.

Members present: Messrs. Deslauriers, Ferron, Green, Hanson, MacLean
(Prince), MacLean = (Cape Breton North-Victoria), MacNeil, Mayhew,
McDonald (Souris), Michaud, Neill, Reid, Roblchaud Taylor {Nam,azmo),
Veniot and Whlte—(lﬁ) 4

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division, Depart-
ment of Fisheries.

54 Mr. Taylor (Nanaimo) proceeded with his remarks regarding trap-net
shing.

Mr. Whitmore was recalled and further examined.
The witness retired.

At 11 o'clock, the Committee adjourned to meet again on Monday, May 15,
1939, at 2 p.m.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commiattee.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMmons, Room 429,
WepNEsDAY, May 10th, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 11 o’clock. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CuAamRMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum now, and if you will come
to order we shall begin. There are a couple of telegrams which have come in,
one from J. H. Todd and Sons, and the other from the Sooke Harbor Fishing
and Packing Co., Ltd. I shall read the telegrams.

Mr. NemwL: Which one are you reading first?

The CuamrMmaN: This is from J. H. Todd & Sons, Ltd. It is dated May 9,
Victoria, B.C., is addressed to A. E. MacLean, M.P., chairman Fisheries Com-
mittee, Ottawa, and reads as follows:—

Re minutes number five page one sixty-four we assume Whitler
should read Whitla and Westwood means Eastwood STOP We hold
signed statement by Eastwood emphatically denying he ever made any
such statement to Whitla or anyone else although solicited to do so STOP
No such absurd lift as deseribed by Whitla was made STOP Please place
this on record.

Mr. NemwL: That is signed by J. H. Todd?

The CuamMan: J. H. Todd & Sons, Litd. We have another telegram
dated Victoria, B.C., May 9, 1939, to A. E. MacLean, M.P., chairman Fisheries
Committee, Ottawa— ;

Mr. NemwL: This is from whom?

The CrARMAN: This is from the Sooke Harbour Fishing and Packing Co.,
Ltd. Tt reads:—

Re minutes number five appendix three our records show total sock-
eyes purchased last August from gillnetters quoted and claiming to have
sold us their entire catech were as follows Malvek eighty eight M. Johnson
thirty eight Berg three hundred thirty four A. Remmen one hundred
eighty five H. Remmen one hundred eighty nine A. Halvorson one hundred
thirty seven STOP Please compare these numbers with those quoted in
letters STOP Moreover these fish were all caught west of our trapnets
and could not have been affected by them STOP All gillnetters agreed at
the time that these waters were not suitable for gillnetting.

Mr. Nemn: May I just point out that that is signed by the Sooke Harbor .
Fishing and Packing Co.

The CraamMAN: Yes.

Mr. NemwL: They say that they bought all that fish. I want to point out
that Malvek does not say he sold to the Sooke Canning Company, but to the
Todd people. The same is true about Remmen. I want also to point out that
the Sooke canning company say they bought all these fish. Here is Halvorson’s
letter. He says:—

This is to certify that I, the undersigned, fished between Sooke traps
and Jordan river for six nights in the first part of August, 1938, and
average fifty sockeye per night.
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He does not say who he sold them to at all.
Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: It is in the telegram.

Mr. NemwwL: The telegram says that they all claim to have sold their fish
ta the Sooke packing company. But they did not.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuDp: Do they mention Halvorson?
Mr. NemL: Yes. They said 137 instead of 500.

Mr. Mavyaew: He does not say in his letter that he did not sell to Todd,
does he?

Mr. NemwL: No. But these people claim to have bought their entire catch.
Mr. Mayuew: That is all right.

Mr. NemLn: They did not buy their entire catch. This man did not say
he sold it to anyone.

Mr. MaysEW: He just dumped them overboard, did he?

Mr. Nemwn: They make the assertion that these men who sent in these
letters said they sold their entire catch to them, and they did not.

Mr. MayHEW: They may have said that.

Mr. Nemn: One sold to another company and one did not say where he
sold them. So that telegram is incorrect.

Mr. Rem: Mr. Chairman, to me this matter of other gear fishing outside
the Sooke traps is very important now. I think it is one of the angles we have
not gone into very deeply.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: What is that?

Mr. Rem: The other forms of fishing or other gear outside the traps. You
take this statement that is placed on the record for the first time this year that
nine gill net men have fished outside the Sooke traps. That is very important.
We are interested in that, because arguments have been advanced against gill-
netting in certain districts of the Gulf of Georgia, as against seines. I am
interested there as to traps. But I am also particularly interested in knowing
whether other gear can fish outside Sooke. Personally, I think they can—outside
the Sooke traps. Personally, I believe that they can.

Mr. NemL: This company admits they bought a number. They admit that
they bought a quantity from these different people. I would ask, Mr. Chair-
man, to have these nine original letters returned to me. I put them in a day
or two ago at the request of Mr. Taylor in order that they might be incorporated
in the minutes. They have been incorporated, and as they are originals, I should
like to have them back.

The Cuarrman: Will you see to that, Mr. Clerk?

The Crerk: Yes, sir.

Mr. MayuEw: I think Mr. Reid’s point is very well taken, because if
that area is suitable for fishing—which I maintain that it is not—of course prae-
tically your whole argument falls down. It becomes then pretty much in the
same position as any waters any place else in British Columbia. I would feel
as though I was taking the wrong attitude. I would feel like taking an entirely
different attitude if that is suitable water for fishing with other gear. I still
maintain it is not.

Mr. Rem: Apart from the tides that run and the storms that might arise.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: So far we have evidence—and it has not been disputed
—by the department that it is possible to fish there to a limited extent.

Mr. MayHEw: To a limited extent?

Hon. Mr. MicuHAUD: Yes.

Mr. MayaeEw: That is the point.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: The statement put in here by the department is—
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Mr. NeiLL: What page?
Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Page 20 of No. 1—appendix 1 to report No. 1.
Mr. WaitMmore: Page 23.
) Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: It begins at page 20 but it is on page 23, paragraph
(c).
The Cuamrman: Is that last year’s report or this year’s report?
Mr. Wairmore: This year’s report.

Mr. Mayaew: I should like to point out here, Mr. Chairman, that these
men were there fishing.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: For how long?

Mr. MayHEw: One fished for a week and another fished for a week; one
says the first part of August, another one says August and one says two weeks,
but that is the most. Is it reasonable to say, if men are fishing and it is a
success, that they are going to run away and leave it for less remunerative
fields? In addition to that, I can quite see where a man could go in for one or
two weeks in the centre of the season when they just happened to run into a
stretch of good weather and get some fairly good fishing. I have fished in
that area from Sooke right up past Beachey Bay myself just for fun. But
I can tell you it is no fun if you get caught out there in a gale or in those high
tides. My whole argument for wanting to keep the Sooke traps there is the fact
that you will destroy that area for fishing, and no one else can use it—success-
fully use it—and catch their fish. If you turn back to the department’s own
figures in here, they will show you about what time the fish are really caught.
You will see it runs from the last of July; when you get down to the fish that
will take the spoon, for instance, you have got to go down into September—
practically into October. I maintain that the weather in there in the latter part
of September,—practically all of September and October,—is not safe for fishing,
both from tides and from storms. I have been there often enough to know
whereof I speak.

Mr. Rem: What I am interested in is from another point of view. We
had Dr. Found arguing in this committee, when I was arguing for the elimina-
tion of seines in the Gulf of Georgia, that the gillnetters did not or could not fish
out in the clear waters. The waters are clear outside the Sooke traps, apart
from tides; and I should like to know more about this, because it has a bearing
on my argument. If these gillnetters can fish outside in the clear waters at the
Sooke traps, then the argument that they cannot fish in the Gulf of Georgia
because it is clear water all falls by the board. We had Dr. Found arguing
that here. There is then nothing to the argument that the clear waters of the
gulf are against gillnetting if the gillnetters can fish outside the Sooke traps. I
say it is most important and I should like to know more about it.

The CuamrMAN: You mean right in the same territory but farther out to
sea?

Mr. REm: Yes.

Mr. Nemn: Here are nine men who say they fished for one or two weeks
in August at this very spot, who caught between 300 and 400 fish each. The
Sooke canning company say they bought fish from all these men or most of
them. So it is evident they were catching fish. Mr. Mayhew wants to know
why they left. One of the men gives an -explanation—one N. Johnson. He
says: “Gillnetters would benefit greatly by the removal of fish traps.” Another
man made the same remark.

X I:?Ion. Mr. Micuaup: That is what you call the reason given for removing
them?
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Mr. NemL: That is just his comment. He says:—

Found it excellent place for gillnetting and fish were in number one
condition. Caught as high as 400 sockeyes—some cohoes and springs in
one night’s fishing. Fish were sold to Nelson Brothers for sixty-five cents.

There is no word of that in that telegram.
Gillnetters would benefit greatly by the removal of fish traps.

Mr. Rem: I am arguing that they can—I believe that the gillnetters and
also other gear can fish outside of the Sooke traps equally as well as in the
Gulf of Georgia.

Mr. NemLL: Another man says: “Abandoned the area because run had passed
by into Gulf of Georgia.” So naturally he turned back.

Mr. MayHEw: I should like to point out that Mr. Neill himself said in
the House of Commons on March 28:—

The gill net catches any variety of fish, but it eannot operate in
clear water. The water must be muddy or discoloured because, if it is
clear, the fish can see the net and readily dive under the net and so
escape.

Mr. Nemn: I am of the same opinion.
Mr. Mayaew: That is Mr. Neill’'s own statement.

Mr. Tayror: This controversy has considerably muddied the waters around
Sooke.

Mr. Remn: The waters in the Gulf of Georgia are not as clear as the waters
at Sooke.

Mr. Tayror: Not now.

er. Rem: We will probably get a chance to argue that point out after-
wards.

Mr. NeiLn: Mr. Taylor is trying to be funny.

Mr. Rem: Mr. Neill cannot very well take both sides, I know.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think he can. He does it successfully, too, at times.

Mr. Rem: I will probably have something more to say about that later
when we get into it. I do not want to raise that here. I do argue, however,
that they can fish in both areas; that they can fish in the clear waters off the
Seoke traps and that they can fish in the clear waters of the Gulf of Georgia.

Mr. NemLL: Here is the evidence at Sooke.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes; but do you admit—

Mr. NemwL: My explanation is that the water must be muddy.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: There is a difference—

Mr. Mayaew: Who is being funny now?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: There is a difference between whether it is an impos-
sibility or an impracticability. No one to my knowledge claimed that it was
altogether impossible.

Mr. NemL: Oh, absolutely. Goodrieh swore it was absolutely impossible
and impracticable.

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: Impracticable.

Mr. Mayaew: I still maintain that Goodrich is right; it is impossible to
fish for the full fishing season of fishing.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Nobody disputed that.

Mr. MayHEW: Anybody ean go in for three days at a time and catch fish.

Mr. NemL: And catch 400 in a night? Pretty good business.
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: Hon Mr. MicHAUD: What puzzles me is why these people who fished for
a week last summer, if it was so profitable, did not fish any longer.

Mr. NemwL: They were handicapped by the traps and they moved on.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The traps did not handicap them for a week.

- Mr. Nemww: They happened to benefit from the run at. the moment.

Mr. Mayaew: If it had been suitable fishing for gill nets or any other
type of fishing they would have been fishing there for the last twenty years, and
they have not been fishing there.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Mr. Reid, have you the record before you of No. 1,
page 23?

Mr. Rem: Yes.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Paragraph 3 Would you mind reading that?

Mr. REID:—

The following extract from the annual report of the local fishery
inspector summarizes salmon fishing carried on by gill-nets in the Straits
of Juan de Fuca during 1938:—

Sockeye gill-net fishing off Sooke by about 17 nets is worthy of
note as this is the first time for over ten years that this method has
been tried. Although the fishermen had the expected difficulty of
having their nets wound up by swirling tides, they were exceptionally
fortunate in having good weather conditions and some fair catches
made. However, in mid-August the fishermen left for the Fraser
river immediately they heard sockeye had reached there. Due to
tide conditions in the trap area it was found necessary to fish far
offshore where exposure to weather constltuted considerable danger
to boats and gear.

The operations extended from August 3 to 16 inclusive. While in
all 17 gill-netters fished at some time during this period, the greatest
number delivering fish in any one day was 12. Their total catch was:
sockeye 3,006, springs 30, cohoe 291, pinks 77, chums 30. Fishing was
largely conducted from four to five miles offshore in the area between
Sooke and Sheringham Point. The prevalence of mud sharks and gray-
fish interfered with operations to some extent and some damage to the
fishing nets was experienced. Fishing was “spotty.” On some days some
fishermen secured good catches, in one instance, 469 sockeye in one night.
On other days fishing was unproductive.

Mr. NemwL: At sixty-five cents apiece.

Mr. Tayror: If that is an argument, Mr. Chairman, against Sooke traps,
then T do not understand the English language.

Mr. NemLL: That is the trap owners.

Mr. Tayror: Four or five miles offshore.

Mr. Mavyuaew: If they were four or five miles oﬂ\hore they were a long
piece from the trapmen.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is a report from the department, from the fishery
inspector.

Mr, Nemwn: They quoted it. Is there any reason to believe that it is
accurate?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think there is mo reason to believe that it is not
-aecurate?

Mr. Hanson: I think, Mr. Chairman, the only way to make headway is
to allow the brief to be submitted by the trap people, which I understand is
going to be explained by Mr. Taylor. Then we will have all the evidence and
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be able to take a vote, because we have been sitting a long time on this com-
mittee.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: We have it in the brief filed by the fishermen.

Mr. NemL: I think we should hear Mr. Taylor.

Mr. Rem: I should like to say a few words before Mr. Taylor starts. I
should like to follow Mr. Neill and then we will be through. I will not be very
long, I think five or ten minutes, unless Mr. MacNeil has something to say.

When I spoke at the last meeting I brought up the question of quality.
I do not want to go into that again because I think we reached some under-
standing on that. T do wish to place on the record, however, a statement made
by the London Fish Company, Limited, when the matter was before the com-
mittee in 1937, in regard to the question of quality as affecting sockeye salmon
caught at Sooke traps.

Mr. TayLor: You must not place one thing on the record without the other.

Mr. Rem: What do you mean “without the other”?

Mr. Tavror: If you are going to appreciate Sooke traps.

Mr. Rem: You can refute this. I am doing this to support my statement,
because you said there had to be no thinking, and, Heavens above, if I now
follow your advice, why are you raising an objection? Be reasonable, man.

Mr. Tavror: Go ahead.

. Mr. REm:—

We believe the firm in question—(that is the Todd interests)—puts
up good salmon but no better than the average. They had, we believe,
the largest parcel of fish condemned by the late board as being unfit for
human food that any packer ever had.

Mr. Nemwn: Who says that?
Mr. Rem: The London Fish Company, Limited, Vancouver.

Their horse-shoe brand has a good name in Canada owing to the
length of time they have been in the business and good advertising. The
fish in this brand comes almost altogether from Rivers Inlet and not from
the traps, as they will not pay for fancy sockeye in Canada and it all
goes to the old country where nobody ever heard of Todd getting a higher
price than anybody else on account of superior quality.

I think that is sufficient.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Who is that from?

Mr. Rem: The London Fish Company are in the canning business at
Vancouver. This is from a man by the name of Humphreys, representing the
London Fish Company.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: Is he a competitor of Todd?

Mr. Rem: Yes, the same as they all are.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: What special qualifications or knowledge have they
upon which to pass judgment? It is a matter of opinion?

Mr. Rem: Yes. I suppose it is.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I thought you were offering this as a statement from
someone in authority, a specialist, for instance.

Mr. Rem: Well, I had made the statement at the last meeting, and I thmk
it was in the minds of some members that I was merely voicing my own opinion.
I said at that time if the canneries were wired I thought some information would
be forthcoming to the committee as to the question of quality, and to support
my statement I am now quoting one firm at least who had said and was willing
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to come before the committee if necessary to prove it, that the Sooke caught
sockeye in the canneries whilst of good quality but were not superior.

Mr. NemwL: This is a practical working canneryman.

Mr. Rem: Yes. Mr. Chairman, while Mr. Neill put in T think most of the
argument covering practically every phase that could be covered at our last
meeting, there was one matter he did not stress, and I think it should be stressed,
because it was considered to be of great importance last year, also at the time
the committee discussed it in 1937, as to the bearing the Sooke trap might
have in regard to the American traps.

We argued, and rightly argued at that time, that by the Americans doing
away with their traps and the Canadians maintaining traps at Sooke, the argu-
ment could very well be used and would be used by the American interests that
traps should once again be placed on the American side of the line, seeing that
the Canadians maintained their traps at Sooke. We put forward that argument
very seriously. .

This year there has been a statement by the Todd interests placed on the
record at page 161 in the minutes of proceedings and evidence, No. 5. Speaking
about the controversy in the state of Washington when the question of that bill
was before the legislature, they have this to say:—

Faced with this situation, Governor Clarence D. Martin in a recent
session of the legislature, introduced a bill restoring in part trap-net fishing,
the object being to secure a larger proportion of Fraser-bound fish. This
bill which had the support of Mr. Brennan, never reached the floor of the
house but died in committee.

To what extent did the Canadian traps enter the picture? Mr.
Brennan, Mr. John N. Sylvester, Speaker of the legislature, and Mr. Harry
D. Austin, vice-chairman of the House Fisheries Committee, frankly
declared that Washington legislators paid practically no attention what-
ever to the fact that British Columbia still keeps a few fish traps. “Those
fish traps have no weight with us whatever. They don’t take enough fish
to worry us,” Mr. Brennan commented recently.

I maintain, Mr. Chairman, that that statement, if nothing was said about it,
might appear to brush aside all the arguments that we had been using in 1937,
1938 and 1939, and I wish to go on record as disputing the statement as con-
tained in the minutes of proceedings and evidence, No. 5, and as put forward
by the Todd interests.

I have here a statement which is equally as weighty made when the matter
was before the United States interests. I am going to quote one man as reported
in the press, March 13, 1939:—

Mayor John Siegle of Tacoma, an ardent conservationist, has definite
ideas upon the subject. He was largely responsible for the movement that
resulted in Initiative 77 being introduced. Although extremely ill, he
gil('iected the fight against the recent effort to restore traps, from his sick

ed.

Tacoma’s mayor, between fits of coughing as he lay in an invalid’s
chair, said that it was not within his province to criticize public administra-
tion in Canada, but he would very definitely state that the existence of
traps on one side of the Strait of Juan de Fuca and not on the other was
beizlg used as a basis of an appeal for their restoration in Washington
waters. :

_ “And it carries weight, too,” he asserted. “Senators and representa-
tives from interior districts are impressed by the logic of the question if
Canada allows traps why should we refuse them?

“If Canadian conservationists can succeed in eliminating those traps
at Sooke, it is my firm belief that we will never have them again on
either side of the border,” he went on.
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Now, I think that statement refutes the statement contained on page 161.

Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: I do not think so.

Mr. Rem: Well, T am going to say this, Mr. Minister, that I personally
made it my business to go across the line and discuss this matter with American
fishermen in the city of Bellingham. I discussed it with ten of them to find out
their ideas, without being an advocate of doing away with the Canadian traps,
and I found that each and every one of them said emphatically that as long as
Canada has traps in the Sooke, why should not we have traps on Puget Sound?
That was the argument advanced to me, and it had some bearing. I am disputing
the statement alleged to have been made by Mr. Brennan when he said that
the effect of Canadians maintaining traps at Sooke had no bearing whatsoever.

I am going to read this article into the record, also:—

The Point Roberts trap fishing bill won the approval of the upper
house, and time alone prevented it getting before the House of Represen-
tatives. It will be brought forward again at the next session.

The argument of Governor Martin in support of his limited trap
policy was significant. He said that Washington fishermen were not
obtaining as large a proportion of salmon as formerly, while catches in
British Columbia waters had increased since abolition of traps by the
state.

This official attitude is clarified by B. M. Brennan, director of fish-
eries. Mr. Brennan emphasizes the cordial relations between his depart-
ment and the fishery service of the dominion, and states that there exists
no difference of opinion between them.

I am not sure right there, Mr. Chairman, whether he means cordial relations
in connection with traps or whether he means cordial relations between the men.

Hon. Mr. MicaAuDp: Who is Mr. Brennan?

Mr. REem: He is the director of fisheries, in the same position as Dr. Found
held here, or the same as Mr. Alexander, Deputy Minister of Fisheries in British
Columbia. Mr. Brennan is in charge of all the fisheries in the state of Wash-
ington.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: I just asked that to have it on the record.

Mr. Rem: The article continues:—

Under the international agreement between Canada and the United
States, the director states, Washington fishermen are entitled to half the
runs of salmon on their way to the Fraser. It has been found, in practice,
however, that purse seine operations have fallen far below netting the
United States quota. It was, therefore, proposed to establish under strict
supervision a limited number of traps. This would not interfere with
proper conservation of the fishery resources of the Fraser.

The plan, he stoutly maintained, was not intended as a retaliation
because of the Canadian traps at Sooke, which caught but a small pro-
portion of the sadman passing up the Strait. It was purely a domestic
arrangement, he said.

Mr. Brenan did -admit, though, that the operation of the Sooke traps
under dominion licence, was being used as a forceful argument by private
interests seeking re-establishment of fixed gear at Point Roberts.

That statement is just as authentic and just as weighty as the argument used on
page 161 by the Todd interests.

Hon. Mr. Micuaun: What were you reading from?

Mr. Rem: I was reading from an article in the Vancouver Province, dated
March 13, 1939.

Mr. NemwwL: And you were quoting the mayor of what town.
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Mr. Rem: The mayor of Bellingham.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The mayor of Tacoma.

Mr. Rem: I am sorry.

Mr. NeiLn: He would be more disinterested than a man interested in the
traps.

Mr. Tavror: He was a sport fisherman.

Mr. Rem: I am placing that on the record in an effort to show that the
matter is a live issue in the state of Washington.

Hon. Mr. MicHauD: Mr. Reid, you are a member of the International
Sockeye Commission?

Mr. Rem: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: To study the method of regulating the conservation of
fish in those waters?

Mr. Rem: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Micaauvp: Particularly the Fraser river?
Mr. Rem: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Is it a fact that the purpose of the treaty and the
work of the commission is to allot an equal portion of the fish going through
those waters to each country?

Mr. Rem: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Micaavp: It would make no difference how the fish were caught,
by gill-nets, purse seines, traps or troll, each country under the treaty would
be entitled to 50 per cent.

Mr. Rem: It is true it might not make much difference to the individual
commissioners or commission as a commission, but it might and would make
quite a difference to the individual fisherman as to how the 50 per cent of the
cateh was caught on both sides of the line.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: We have evidence so far that the percentage of the
catch caught by traps is not over 2 per cent.

Mr. NemL: Of sockeye.

Mr. Rem: These figures were gone into very extensively in 1937, and they
have been gone into this session as well. T think the 2 per cent relates to the
cateh of sockeye, not to the cateh of all fish, because, as you know, the traps
at Sooke catch a great many varieties other than sockeye.

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: Last year they caught very little of other varieties.
Mr. NemLL: Just as many as sockeye.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Yes; the sockeye amounted to only 41,000 fish.
Mr. NemwwL: Sockeye sells for 65 cents and spring for $2.50.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Compared with the total quantity of fish caught in
these waters—

Mr. Rem: It is on behalf of the gill-net fishermen that I speak in this
committee. They are protesting against the traps; they say the catch of spring
salmon reduces very materially their earnings. If the gill-net fishermn had to
depend entirely on the sockeye alone, he could never afford to fish, because by
the time he buys a net every two years and keeps his boat up, and the time
he would be fishing for sockeye, he could not exist. He depends on spring
salmon, white salmon and red; he depends on coho; he depends on all varieties,
pink as well; and they argue individually and through their association and so
through myself that the traps catch a great percentage of these spring salmon
and other varieties which are heading for the head waters of the Fraser, and
therefore deplete their earnings. That is their argument to me.
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Mr. Mayuew: Probably this would be a good place, Mr. Chairman, to
read a letter from the editor of the Vancouver Daily Province.
The CaairmaN: The same one who publishes the paper?
Mr. Mayuew: The same one who publishes the paper and the same paper
that wrote this long editorial.
The Cuamrman: The same paper that wrote the article that Mr. Reid read
a moment ago?
Mr. MayueEw: Yes, and the same paper that wrote this editorial here, and
it is addressed to Mr. Goodrich.
Mr. NemL: Signed by whom?
Mr. MavyaeEw: Signed by W. L. McTavish, editor of the Vancouver Daily
Province.
The CrARMAN: The man who just came from Winnipeg? Until he got to
Vancouver he never saw a salmon in his life.
Mr. Fair: He is not managing salmon, he is managing the Daily Province.
Hon. Mr. MicuAauD: Every person has to see a fish for the first time in his
life, whether he comes from the east or from England.
Mr. NemwL: That does not make him an expert.
Mr. Mayuew: He is not claiming to be an expert. If you let me have a
chance to read the letter you will see that.
Hon. Mr. Micaaun: We have not had defined yet what we would accept
as an expert on fish.
Mr. Mayuew: The date of the letter is—
Mr. Hanson: Is it a letter to an individual or an editorial?
Mr. Maysew: It is a letter apologizing for an editorial that his marine
and fish man wrote in the Province.
Mr. NemwL: A personal letter?
Mr. MayHEW: A personal letter that I have the privilege of using. It is
dated May 1, 1939, fairly recently, and written to Mr. Goodrich:—
Dear Mr. Goodrich:—Mr. Woodsworth has shown me your letter of
April 24th, and I note your reference to our recent editorial on the sub-
ject of the fish traps at Socke. Frankly, had we possessed at the time
the information which has since come to us through your representations
and Mr. Woodsworth’s investigations, the editorial would not have
appeared. Our only interest in the matter was from the standpoint of
conservations of our fisheries and we are now satisfied that no question
of conservation arises in connection with the operation of these fish traps.
The question is not at the moment one of public controversy, but if
as you say the position of your company has been prejudiced in the eyes
of the Minister of Fisheries, you are at liberty to send him copy of this

letter.
Faithfully yours,

(signed) W. L. McTAVISH.

This letter was written by the editor of the paper who wrote the editorial that
was just read.

Mr. Rem: It was not an editorial that I read; pardon me, it was not an
editorial, it was an article.

Mr. MacNEIL: A news report.

Mr. REm: A news report.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: A news item.

Mr. Mayuew: Here is the editorial that was written—
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Mr. Nemwrn: Did he write another editorial changing his idea, or write a
letter covering it? ' ;

Mr. MavyHEW: Apparently he is willing to do that when it becomes an issue,
after sending a man to make proper investigation.

~ Mr. NemL: I have known that to happen before. I have known people to
take one attitude in the press and another behind doors.

The CuAamrMAN: In all fairness, the evidence shows that the Sooke traps
are watching their own interests very carefully, and the moment anyone says
a word against them those interests immediately get after that party and have
him retract or rewrite an article. That letter, Mr. Mayhew, is from the editor
of the paper, and it is written in answer to a communication that he had from
the Sooke interests.

Mr. Mayuew: This matter was investigated outside of any interests at the
Sooke. These insinuations are not just exactly right. The Sooke trap people
certainly had to defend their-own interests. Why would they not defend their
own interests? In defending them they are also defending the livelihood of at
least 41 people in the Sooke area, and as many more people in the Victoria area,
the area that I am interested in as well.

The CualrmAN: On the other hand, the public fishermen are endeavouring
to protect their interests.

Mr. Tavror: Absolutely.

Mr. Mayuaew: Certainly; I do not blame them at all. I will go further
than that and say that if anybody can show me that those traps are interfering
with the lives of more people in other means of fishing than they are protecting,
then I will back them every time. The reason I am taking this attitude is that
the traps are giving employment.

Mr. Hanson: I think we should look at this not only from the preservation
of fish point of view, but from the human point of view. If the trap nets
caught 41,372 sockeye and 12,677 springs and some other fish, now, any fisher-
man on the Pacific coast knows that 41 men cannot cateh that number of fish.
In order to catech them it would require at least 200 men instead of 40.

The CuAlRMAN: Can they catch that many by any other method?

Mr. Hanson: No; it is impossible. It would take hundreds of men to
cateh that number of fish. :

Mr. Rem: Take, for instance, the question of 2 per cent fish. If you take
one of the great varieties of fish, springs, you will find that even as against the
total catech by the Sooke traps compared with the catch in British Columbia,
the Sooke traps caught is 8 per cent of the springs. That is for the whole
of British Columbia.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: No, not 8 per cent; you are off there.

The CuamrMAN: Is it the wish of the committee that Mr. Taylor go on?

Mr. Tayror: I do not think that is the question. I thought Mr. Reid was
following Mr. Neill.

_Mr. Rem: I am about through, because as I said. when I opened, Mr.
Neill covered practically every point and there is no use my repeating.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think, Mr. Reid, your percentage of springs caught
by the traps compared with the total amount of springs caught in the province,
‘of 8 per cent is off; I think it is 3 per cent.-

Mr. Rem: I think perhaps you are right. I was taking the total gill-net
catch and the total trap-net.

Hon. Mr. MicaAup: Oh, yes. I think 3 per cent is nearer the amount.

78605—2
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~Mr. Rem: Have we any figures, Mr. Whitmore, to show the total catch of !
springs in the Puget sound and Fraser river areas?

Mr. WaiTMmore: I am afraid I have not got any figures available.

Mr. Rem: It would be interesting, Mr. Chairman, to have the total catch
of spring salmon heading to the Fraser river, because that is a per cent that
is very often quoted, and it refers to one variety and not to all varieties.

Mr. NemL: Yes.

Mr. Rem: Not all varieties. Mr. Chairman, I think that is all I wish to
say at the moment. ‘ '

The CuAmMAN: All right, Mr. Taylor.
Mr. TavLor: Mr. Mayhew said that he was ready to go on.

Mr. MayHEW: I would rather stand up, if you do not mind. I am sorry
I am not very well prepared for this to-day. T did not get the report of the
committee until this morning and I have had several interruptions, therefore
I have not had full opportunity of going through it; but I know that what I
have to say is not going to be very important compared with Mr. Taylor’s argu-
ment. I have too many handicaps against me this morning besides the cold,
in trying to defend myself against such experienced and venerable opposition
as our friend, Mr. Neill. Therefore I do not feel quite adequate to do very much
with it. I think probably I had better refer first to the fact that I believe that
the area is not suitable for any other type of fishing than the trap nets.

The CuamrMAN: That is commercial.
Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Commercial.

Mr. MavyaEw: You can fish the odd day during the summer from June until
probably September, but it is only at very great risk that you will go out there
in anything else but a really substantial power boat. And the reason is this:
if you look at that map on the wall, you will see the amount of inland water
there is on the east side of Vancouver Island, and also running down into the
State of Washington. You will also see that it is only a very narrow area going
into the straights of Juan de Fuca. It is very narrow, although it is indicated
as being sixteen miles across where it comes into the straights of Juan de Fuca;
and that means that all that basin of water with the exception of what comes
down at the tip of the island, all that strip of water, some two hundred miles
long and about ninety miles across, has to rush in and out of that narrow channel
four times a day, which means that even in calm water there is a constant tide
and a constant movement of water and a very swift movement. If you are
coming in from the Pacific, as I presume most of us in British Columbia have,
in our large boats, even on a calm day, a smaller boat will completely disappear
over the rolling swell coming in that area.

The CuHAIRMAN: Is that swell caused by the tide?

Mr. MavyuEW: Yes, it is caused by the tide going in and out and by cross-
currents cutting across from Vietoria to Port Angeles. And many of us cross that
strip of water quite frequently and I have never yet gone across that particular
piece of water without encountering pretty rough water; and anyone who goes
over with a small boat, a reasonably small boat, feels he has accomplished a
fairly good bit of navigation by crossing there if he encounters any wind at all.
But the movement of that water, in my opinion, makes it almost impossible.
Then there is the further factor of wind. We have the Oylmpic mountains on
the south, and in some places high ground on the Canada side which intensifies’
the wind pressure which comes through there at times. That particular area
is recognized as the graveyard of the Pacific, and on more than one occasion
have I seen large boats—one not so long ago, a boat of 7,000 tons—which piled
up on the rocks right within the area that we are talking about now, because
as soon as it lost control it could do nothing at all but pile up on the rocks on
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the Canadian side or the American side, and the Canadian side seemed to get
most attention. : :

Now, that is the evidence again, when you read the report, that these men
put into this committee. They went in there and they fished and they fished
successfully for a matter of a week; I think one of them said two weeks. I
don’t want to colour my statements in any way, shape or form, and I would be
only too pleased if anyone will correct me as I go along if I appear to make any
exaggeration in what I have to say. But these men fished there and they fished
apparently successfully for that lenth of time. But in my poinion that is no
proof at all that it could be fished successfully during the full fishing season,
which you will have to agree runs close to three months. That is the only
objection that I take particularly to the brief that these men put in. I think
that they would have been probably well advised had they let their friend, Mr.
Neil, prepare a brief for them; it appeared to lack the touch of an experienced
hand like his, and I think possibly they might have done a little better for
themselves had they had the assistance of an expert like him in the presentation
of their case.

Now I want to put to you the reasons for my opposition to this move, and -
in doing so I must admit that I was not always of the same opinion that I am
at the present time—I was more or less, although I did not take the trouble to
really investigate the thing for myself—but like many others I formed an opinion
on what someone else said about the fish traps, and while I happened to have
on that particular occasion enough brains to keep quiet and not express myself
on the matter—and I am very glad I did—in the last two years I have in fairness
to the interest in Victoria taken the trouble to do some thinking and some
figuring and some inquiring for myself. And the more I read and study the
figures put out by the department, the more I am convinced that the statements
made, while made with the best of intentions, are not correct statements; at
least, they are not statements that will bear out the fact that the trap nets are
destroying the fishing industry in that district; nor do they appear to bear out
the fact that it is less exepnsive per case to cateh fish in trap nets than it is in
gill nets. I am sorry that I have not the figures with me, but I will place the
accurate ones on the record later if you wish. They run about in this fashion;
last year there were needed for fishing in the Fraser river some 2,500 gill netters.
They and the Sooke traps were the ones that were fishing in there—I don’t know
whether the seine net figures are included in that total or not; if they are, then
so much the worse. Could you tell me, Mr. Whitmore, if in these figures the
seine netters are included, you have the Sooke traps and the gill netters?

Mr. WHIiTMORE: Yes.

Mr. MayaeEw: Then you have the other varieties.

Mr. Wairmore: The figures include both the gill nets and the purse
seines.

Mr. Mayaew: Then that means 2,500 men catching these, plus the small
amount that would be in the seine nets. If you take 2,500 men, 2 per cent of
2,500 would be only 50.

Mr. Nemnn: You must count the seines in too—700 men.

Mr. Mayuew: Even so, count them in; take it the worst possible make it
out; and if you do that you must go down and take the trap nets not at 2 per
cent but at 1-2 per cent; and you will find that 1-2 per cent gives you more
than 41 men. You will find that you will have less men. You will find that
the percentage of 2,500 plus 700, that would equal 3,200—

Mr. Rem: I do not like to interrupt you, but so we will follow along the
same argument, how would that work out compared with the catch of fish, com-
paring the total employed at the Sooke traps.

78605—2}
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Mr. MayHew: You will find out that your percentage of men just about
coincides with the percentage of fish caught.

Mr. Kincey: The men employed? :

Mr. Mayuew: Yes. As a matter of fact, if you figure it out on the basis
of cases of fish caught and the number of hours worked, there is no way of
getting that unless you take the number of men, of the 2,500, and allow them
the full 90 days fishing in that area, and compare that with the record caught
by the Sooke Harbour Canning Company. You will find, even figuring it that
way, that it costs more man-days, more man-days are consumed in the catehing
of one case of salmon by the trap nets than are consumed in catching a case of
salmon by the gill nets. v

Mr. NeLL: Does Mr. Hanson agree with that? He is a practical cannery
man, and he just told us that he had to employ many more men.

Mr. Mavyaew: Well, my figures along that line may be a little bit off.

Mr, NemwL: You can do anything with figures.

Mr. MayHeEw: Not I. I am not very good at that, I am no Einstein.

Mr. NemL: I do not mean that you are doing it wrongly, but in a sense
like this, you can take certain figures and certain varieties and you can make
most anything out of it.

Mr. KinLey: There is this feature about it; in the other types of fishing did
yvou take in the shore operations in making up the figure? A

Mr. Mayuew: No, you would not take that in, nor did they in this case
take in the time of the men making wire; but you take in the time of the men
that is taken up annually in rebuilding the traps.

Mr. KinLey: And tending the traps also, I suppose?

Mr. Mayaew: In tending the traps while they are in operation and re-
building.

Mr. Kinuey: That is all you have taken in? °

Mr. Mavaew: That is all I have taken in. I wrote Mr. Goodrich some
time ago and I asked him a question, I asked him to send down to me the
actual figures—that was 11,975 man-days at the Sooke traps.

Mr. MacNEeiL: Was that per annum?

Mr. MayHEW: Per annum, yves. It looked to me as though he had brought
in the canning operations with the fish operations. :

Mr. NemwL: Is that days, did you say?

Mr. MayHEW: Yes, man-days. I wrote him again a letter sent by air-
mail and I asked him if he would clear up on that point and he wired me back;
“Your air-mail letter fourth figures given reference man-days apply operation
trap nets only no cannery operations included Stop Maximum number employed
any one monthly pay-roll was 49 for August.” Now, that was for August. I
tried to get it down to a very definite and positive statement. Now, if you
figure it out on that basis and allow your men 90 days of fishing in the other
season vou will find what I say is correct.

The CuamrMmaN: To carry that a little further, and apart from figures and
apart from men employed, would you care to give an opinion? If the Sooke
traps were removed would the public fisherman get a better percentage of catch,
a larger percentage?

Mr. Mayuew: Well, let us take the fishermen in the province of British
Columbia—or, rather, we will take the Fraser river for that is where they are
fishing where this type of fishing is going on, and if all the fish caught in the
Sooke traps right on the Fraser river were caught by the Fraser river men,
and you took your own figures here, it would mean about a case and a half of
fish apiece. That is not a very great thing to talk about.
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Mr. Hanson: If they were all caught.

Mr. Mavaew: If they were all caught. We know they are not all caught.
I think I am right— ‘

Mr. NemwL: Mr. Mayhew, I have been trying to get your argument carried
through. You gave us the figure of 11,975. As it is pretty close suppose we
call it 12,000 man-days, and they worked 90 days—

Mr. MayueEw: It is their total days.

Mr. NemwL: You figured that was the whole bunch working 90 days each?

Mr. Mayuew: Oh, no, they worked more than that. The men on the Sooke
(tiraps work nine months a year. Your men in your Fraser river work only 90

ays.

Mr. Rem: No, they work longer than that.

Mr. Mayuew: Not the full length of the season.

Mr. Rem: You are speaking of the sockeye. They start fishing and they
are fishing nine months a year, if not ten, and they are fishing all varieties.

Mr. Mavaew: Yes, but we have no figures as to the production on other
lines. For instance, we have no figures in our statement to prove anything
to the contrary.

Mr. Rem: I will produce figures which I got from the department.
Mr. NeLL: Your premise was based on the idea that the Fraser river
people in this period only work 90 days; that is not so.

Mr. Mayuew: They work only 90 days catching the fish we are talking
about.

Mr. Nemv: Yes, but you are insisting in making your argument about
sockeyes, and the trap people catch more than sockeyes; they caught more other
fish than sockeyes last year, and the last two years.

Mr. MayHew: If you go into all the other fish and compare them in the
other way you will find that your percentage is still worse. Instead of getting
only 2 per cent you get four-fifths of one per cent, if you want to include all the
fish from all sections.

Mr. NemwL: I did not say from all sections.

Mr. MayreEw: All fish from that area. Anyway you want to figure it, you
will find that the percentages work out pretty much the way I say. I have
figured it until I am tired. The statement is also made, as I tried to point out,
that it is depleting the fish. If that statement is true, then I do not think that
either Mr. Taylor or I would be here in the slightest defending it. It is an indus-
try of British Columbia of which we are proud, one on which we are depending
and one which we want to leave, without depleting it, to the generations that
come after us. If you take the statement which I tried to point out the other
day, there is no evidence either locally or as a whole that there is any depletion
going on in connection with it. Of course, if you want to include the year 1917
—that was the year just after—I think it was not the year of the Hells Gate
disaster, but the last big run was about three or four years later, just when
they were coming up.

Mr. Tayror: 1913 was the Hells Gate disaster.

Mr. Mayuew: Yes, the Hells Gate disaster was in 1913, but the real effect
of it was not shown up until the eycle of the run four years later.

Mr. PerLrerier: Would you mind telling me what you mean by depletion?
Do you mean depletion of fish running in any particular season, from year to
year, or all kinds of fish?

Mr. Mayuaew: We are talking of salmon, which is a migratory fish.

A Mr. NemwL: We are only dealing with salmon. There are different kinds of
em.
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Mr. Mayaew: In 1918 it dropped, in the Sooke area, to 2,348 cases. I am

talking of sockeye, but the same percentage goes through the whole thing. The
figures for the years 1918 to 1938 inclusives are as follows:—

Year Cases Year Cases
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In 1933 it went up to 8,721.

Mr. Rem: What is the variety?

Mr. Mayuew: That is sockeye. In 1934 it was 6,000; in 1935 it was 5,000;
in 1936, 3,000; in 1937, 6,000 and in 1938, it was 3,600 again.

Mr. Rem: Other varieties have dropped also. That is why I asked about
the variety.

Mr. NemiL: Would you mind quoting 1913? Total cases, 2,409,000. In
1938, total cases, 311,000. Yet you say the sockeye run in British Columbia is
not depleted?

Mr. MayHeEw: I do not get you.

Mr. NemL: The total cases of sockeye in the Fraser river area went down
from 2,409,000 odd in 1913 to 311,000 odd in 1938. Yet you say the run is not
depleted.

Mr. Mayuew: Now, Mr. Neill, I am trying to be fair, and I should like
you to be fair, too. 1913 we admit was the year of the Hells Gate disaster. I
pointed out that I was not starting my comparison until 1918. :

Mr. Nemwr: Why not 19177

Mr., Mayaew: Well, 1917—

Mr. NemwL: 559,000 as against 132,000 in 1937.

Mr. MayueEw: That is correct. That is the tail end of that sockeye run
after your four year period. That is the tail end. I think I am about right in
that, am I not, Mr. Whitmore?

Mr. WHITMORE: Yes.

Mr. NEiLL: It is not the tail end. There are no tail ends in those big runs.
They are theré one year and then they drop off.

Mr. MayHEW: Yes; but if they do not get up the river to spawn, there
are no fish to come back four years later; and that is what you say. I do not
think anyone knows it any better than Mr. Neill does. From that time there
has been a steady increase. Last year it was 311,000. If you take the total,
it is just the same thing.

Mr. Rem: 1 might explain why I asked about sockeye. If you look at the
run of the other varieties of fish to the Fraser river—taking red springs, pink
springs, whites, bluebacks steel heads, cohoes, and chum—you will find a drop
in almost every variety from the year 1925. I have not the earlier years just
here, but you will find it on page 83 of the last annual report. I am not going
to interrupt Mr. Mayhew to give the figures. I will just make that statement.
I can give that later.
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Mr. Mavuew: I should like to go back again. Mr. Neill, or Mr. Reid,
rather—I apologize to one of you; I do not know which one it would be to.

Mr. NemL: As long as you do not apologize to Mr. Taylor, it will be all
right.

- Mr. MayHeEw: Mr. Neill made the statement—and I do not blame him at
all for making it—in his summing up yesterday that the fishermen were forming
the basis of a very efficient military service—a protection basis.

Mr. NemL: Naval

Mr. Mayuew: Naval protection, yes; and that they are using them to a
great extent. But I should like to ask if they are using, out of the 2,500, some
1,800 of the Jap fishermen on the Fraser river? And what assurance are they
going to have if this is opened up that the Japs will not control the fishing in
that area just as they are controlling it in the Fraser area?

Mr. NemLn: The answer is that they are on a quota. They cannot get any
more licences.

Mr. MavyaeEw: That does not mean to say, if it is such a wonderful place,
that they would not come over.

Mr. NriLL: The quota is fixed.

Mr. Rem: And reduced this year and last year, too.

Mr. NemL: The quota is fixed. They cannot get one more licence.

Mr. Mayuew: It does not say where they are going to use them.

Mr. NemLL: Yes, that is fixed too. There are so many in each district.

Mr. Mayuew: Thank goodness. You can have them over there; we do not
want them.

Mr. Neill also made a reference, when he was talking of the associated
boards of trade on Vancouver island, to their meeting. Mr. Neill gave a
definite statement that there were so many votes cast. I think he said—

Mr. NemwL: Seven to twenty-seven.

Mr. MayHEw: Seven to twenty-seven? That is thirty-four. I do not
think that was it. :

Mr. Nemn: That is right.

Mr. Maysew: I think what he said here—

Mr. NemwL: Yes, I said that.

Mr. MayHew: No, I do not think so. A vote of seven to twenty-three.
That is what is in the report here. That means thirty.

Mr. NemwL: Oh, yes. ‘

Mr. Maynew: There were only twenty-nine accredited delegates at that
meeting, and the minutes of the meeting do not give a record of who voted or
who did not vote, nor do they give any record as to the majority.

Mr. PerreTiEr: [ am sorry to interrupt you, but I should like to get this
clear. What meeting are you referring to and where was it held?

Mr. Mayaew: On Vancouver island there are a number of boards of trade
throughout the island that hold an annual meeting; and they bring up at this
annual meeting certain things that will be of general interest to the island.

Mr. PeLreTIER: T see.

Mr. MayHEw: And the resolution came up at the meeting—whether pro-
posed correctly or incorrectly, it got on the paper anyway—to discuss fish traps.
At the first meeting, without any opposition at all, there was a resolution to
abolish the fish traps.

Mr. PeLLeTier: These people who were meeting would be the representatives
of the various boards of trade?



214 STANDING COMMITTEE

Mr. Mayuew: The various boards of trade throughout Vancouver island;
but Vancouver island only.

Mr. PeLrETIER: 1 see.

Mr. MacNEL: May I ask what the last decision of the associated boards
of trade was?

Mr. Mayaew: The last decision was against the trap licences. There has
to be more than a clear majority to rescind a former motion, so it was defeated.
The point I am making is that Mr. Neill gave a definite figure that there were
seven—that there were only seven people in favour of the trap nets and twenty-
three opposing it, and he made that as a definite statement. So I have taken the
trouble to try to get the information from the secretary, Mr. Ironside. He said
that there was no record of the votes taken at that meeting.

Mr. NeiLn: No record of a vote?

Mr. Mayuew: There was a record of a vote, but there was no record of
those opposing it or those supporting the resolution; no record of the number
for or against.

Mr. NemwL: That is a funny kind of board of trade that would, after three
hours of debate, decide something on a vote without recording the vote. It does
not seem to make sense to me.

Mr. MayaeEw: Well, I am giving you my information.

Mr. NemLL: My man writes: “I was there and the vote was so-and-so0.”

Mr. MayuHEw: I wrote to our own chamber of commerce and the letter
is here.

Mr. NeLL: What do they say the vote was?

Mr. MayHEW: They do not know.

Mr. NemLL: I do know.

Mr. PeLiLETIER: Do they say it was in favour or what?

Mr. Mayuew: Mr. Neill, says he knows what the vote was. We know
what the result of the vote was, but not the division.

Mr. PeLrLeTier: That is the important thing.

Mr. Mayuew: But the Vietoria Chamber of Commerce wrote down here
and said there was pretty nearly an equal break.

Mr. NeiLL: That is it. :

Mr. Mayuew: Mr. Neill took exception to that and said you would not
call seven to twenty-three an equal break. I say, and the records show, that
Mr. Neill must have got information not in the record—information as the
records do not give numbers voting. %

Mr. NemL: I did not get it from the Victoria Chamber of Commerce, I
admit. :

Mr. Mayaew: I did get mine from the Victoria Chamber of Commerce.
You can sée the letter that is here. I do not want to take up the time to read it.

Mr. NemwL: They never denied that it was turned down.

Mr. Mayaew: They do not deny it was turned down at all. But it was
not turned down with any majority to speak of. You try to make out that
Victoria was running the situation. Well, Victoria is not. Victoria had three
delegates out of twenty-nine at that meeting; and the biggest and the strongest
opponent of abolishing the traps on Vancouver Island for years has been Reeve
Crouch, Reeve of Saanich municipality. Reeve Crouch, in this motion here
and throughout this thing, supported it; so did Saanich and so did the Duncan
people; so did the Nanaimo people and so did the Malahat people.

Mr. NemL: Supported what?

Mr. Mavuaew: Supported the Victoria people.
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Mr. NemwwL: Supported the traps.

Mr. Mayuew: And so did Tofino. Out of the total, so far as population is
concerned—regardless of your representation—a very preponderating proportion
of the population of Vancouver Island were opposed to abolishing the traps.

Mr. PerreTier: Do they represent the population?

Mr. NeiLL: No, of course they do not.

Mr. Mayaew: Victoria is a city. i

Mr. NemnL: It is the same as in the House of Commons; you may represen
a constituency with a greater number of people in it than are in mine.

Mr. Mayuew: It is the particular people that are interested. That is the
difference. You say on the record that that was not right; and you cannot prove
it from the record. '

Mr. NemwL: I can prove it from the record.

Mr. MayHEW: You cannot prove from the minutes of the association that
what you said was right.

Mr. NemwL: I can prove it from the record of the man who was there; and
even your people do not say what it was. They only say they do not know.

Mr. MayHEW: They are perfectly honest; they do not know. There is no
record to show.

Mr. NemwL: Why do they say it was almost even? This is a telegram I
received from the Port Alberni board of trade: :

After a three hour discussion at A.B.T.V.I. convention Messrs. Todd
Goodrich, &e. present it is our pleasure to inform you that the resolution
of abolishment of Sooke fish traps was very strongly sustained.

Mr. Mayaew: I would submit there, Mr. Chairman, that if those men
had a victory of seven to twenty-three in a meeting of that kind they would
not have used the words ‘“very strongly sustained”. I am sure I would not
have used those words; I would be so proud of a victory of that size that I
would make sure to quote the number of people in it, and I think they would
too.

I should like to clear up one other impression that is largely left in the
minds of the people here; that is, that the Sooke canning people, Mr. Todd
and Mr. Goodrich, have a monopoly in that area. I do not think I need say
anything about it as you all know perfectly well that they have no monopoly,
neither a monopoly of fishing by traps nor have they a monopoly of fishing
by any other gear.

Mr. Hanson: Call it a special privilege.

Mr. Mayaew: No, I do not think it is a special privilege. I do not take
exception to the rest of you backing it up, but I want to point out that not one
of you proposes the abolition of one single solitary sou’s worth of business
from around your door. It is quite all right to come over and attempt to
discredit an undertaking that is at our door, but not at your own door.

Mr. Hanson: I think we all agree with you on that point.

Mr. Tayror: Let it sink in.

Mr. Mayaew: I am not defending Mr. Todd or Mr. Goodrich—

Mr. NemwL: No?

Mr. Mayaew: No, I am not. And in spite of what you say, Mr. Neill, and
I do not want to lose my temper, I think it is a very miserable insinuation to
put it that Mr. Todd was financing somebody in a political way.

Mr. NemL: I did not say that.

Mr. MacNeiL: None of us said that.

Mr. Mayaew: No, I know you didn’t.
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Mr. Nemn: Take that-back. ‘

Mr. MayuEw: I would be glad to take it back if T could refer to the
evidence. ' ;

Mr. NemwwL: You said that I stated Todd was financing a political party.
I rise to a point of order. I did not say that.

Mr. Mayrew: I will take it back for the time being.

Mr. NeLL: Noj; settle it right now. ‘

Mr. MayHEW: I cannot dig it up now. All right, I will take it back. I
will be most happy to do it, because I like to think of deferring my own costs
if I am in a political campaign and financing my own campaign.

Mr. NeLL: Certainly, but—

Mr. Tayror: You have insinuated a lot about my actions, and you had
better be careful, and I am saying that.

Mr. NemwwL: That is another line.

Mr. MacNerL: This is not a matter of self-interest. If traps were pro-
posed at Howe Sound, adjacent to North Vancouver, I would oppose them
vigorously on the same ground as a matter of principle. I have always opposed
certain methods of fishing which meant loss of business to the area and to
the industry generally, as a matter of principle.

Mr. Maynew: I will say this to the committee; that they have not taken
the opportunity of fishing in that area by any other means to prove that they
can do it or cannot do it, taking it over the period of a season. I will say
if they can put in fifty trollers or fifty gill-netters next year and prove they
can make a success of it I will support the abolition of fish traps.

Mr. NeLL: You cannot do it unless you take the traps out.

The CuarrmAN: There was one point you made Mr. Mayhew, that that
was a very rough and boisterous sea and you gave that as a reason why it
was difficult to fish with other types of gear. Then it was brought out either
by you or someone else that on account of the traps being there the ordinary
fisherman is pushed out five miles into the more boisterous waters off the strait.
Is that correct?

Mr. Mavyaew: I do not think that is right. If a man is out five miles
fishing along most of the strait he is in American waters. Only last year I had
to help rescue three men who had been fishing and got over and fished in
American waters and their gear had been confiscated and taken to the United
States.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: These traps are at the most half a mile long. They could
not drive fishermen five miles out, could they?

Mr. MavHEW: As has been said before, one end of the trap is up to the
shore line and the total lead is 1,200 feet, so it is out 1,200 feet, how far have
you to keep from the trap, Mr. Whitmore?

Mr. MacNew: Mr. Mayhew, I understand that these traps are at the
headlands?

Mr. Mayaew: They run up mostly along the shore; they do not extend out.

Mr. MacNEL: But in the erection of traps there are usually piles left;
there is considerable pile driving, and if the traps and the remnants of former
traps were removed would it not be possible for the fishermen to go in closer
to shore?

Mr. MayHew: There are no remnants of traps. They get a location and
they do not move around from place to place.

The CuairmaN: I can hardly agree with that because it was brought out
quite definitely here in 1937 that where those wire ends dig in there is an awful
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lot of refuse at the bottom. I think it was brought out pretty clearly that it
did prevent seining and other types of fishing over that ground even after the
traps were removed. ;

Mr. Rem: It would not prevent seining because in the Gulf of Georgia
they are seining right on the bottom.

Mr. MacNemwL: If there are snags.

The CuamrMAN: On the question of whether it is a special privilege, you and
Mr. Hanson do not agree. The question to my mind is this: That Mr. Hanson
or the other fishermen, even if they had $500 to buy a licence, cannot get a
licence in their section of the province. It is only in this special section that
those licences are granted.

Mr. WarrMore: It is in that particular section.

Mr. MayHEw: It is a twenty-mile area, but that area is not taken up.

The CuamrMaN: Would you admit, Mr. Mayhew, that on account of it
being confined to that area, and on account of those people getting in there first
and getting the site and retaining it, it is a special privilege or not?

Mr. MavHEW: It is not a special privilege, because others can get a licence
in that same area if they want it. Mr. Goodrich and Mr. Todd, for instance,
are fairly good examples. Mr. Goodrich was operating purse seine beats and a
cannery at Sidney and he conceived the idea of going up to the Sooke area and
getting a trap licence, which he did. I think he had a couple of years of very
successful operation, outside of Mr. Todd’s interests, altogether. After a time
they found it was convenient and better business for the two of them to combine;
consequently you have one company with the two men in it. It is a matter of
amalgamation.

Mr. NemwL: They have nine places along there.

Mr. Tavror: No, they have nine foreshore leases.

Mr. MacNeiL: Would it be possible for any other person, even if he cared
to risk the capital, to get a location where they could operate suceessfully by
reason of these foreshore leases?

Mr. Mayaew: I would not say that because I would not know a good
fishing area. But there are many districts where traps could be located. I used
to be around that area some years ago when I felt more like pulling a row-boat
?r wrying to steer through those rough waters, but I have not been around there
ately.

The CuarrMAN: Thank you, Mr. Mayhew, that is a very good presentation.

Mr. MacNEeiL: Does Mr. Mayhew know of others who have attempted to
establish their traps there and failed?

Mr. MayHEW: At one time there were nineteen traps in there and they have
drifted out one by one because it was not profitable.

The Cuamrman: All right, Mr. Taylor.

Mr. TavrLor: Mr. Chairman,—

~ Mr. MacNew: May 1 interject for just a moment? If any other person
with the investment applied for a licence to operate a trap on the location
now occupied by the Todd interests and the Sooke interests, would that licence
be granted by the department?

Mr. Warrmore: Under the policy prevailing this year an applicant for
a trap in the Sooke area would be granted a licence.

Mr. MacNEew: Supposing I wanted it on a location that was last year
occupied by Mr. Goodrich?

Mr. Warrmore: It is a condition that foreshore rights or some authority
coming from the province is needed, and it is up to the applicant to secure it.
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Mr. Peuierier: Would you say that a licence gives exclusive rights to
certain individuals? .

Mr. WHiTMORE: Not at all.

Mr. Hanson: Supposing somebody else was in the canning business and
you are going to issue licences at Sooke and that canning interest applied to
you for a licence, would it be given consideration?

Mr. WaitMoRrE: I understand your question is if a cannery applied for
a salmon trap net licence in the Sooke area— ‘

Mr. Hanson: Yes.

Mr. Warrmore: If the application were made this year he would be given
a licence for the Sooke area. He would be required to indicate the possible
location of the site of the traps.

Mr. Hanson: When you decided to issue five licences in the Sooke area,
and I go to work and I say, “I want two of those and I will pay three times
as much for those licences as you are now getting,” would a cannery or any-
body interested get consideration from the depeartment?

Mr. Waitmore: 1 understand your question is based possibly on the
thought that there are only five licences being authorized this year?

Mr. Hanson: Yes. :

Mr. Warrmore: That is not so. The policy decided upon this year is
to issue trap licences for the Sooke area embracing the section of the coast
line between Sombrio Point and Beachy Head, a twenty-four mile streteh of
the coast. The British Columbia fishery regulations require that traps may
not be construeted closer than four hundred fathoms to one already located.
There is a twenty-four mile stretch of coast line and four hundred fathoms
is roughly half a mile; theoretically there would be room for forty-eight traps
in that area, and there could be forty-eight licences issued.

Mr. HansoN: You have not answered my question. There is this licence,
and suppose that another party interested applied to have one of those sites
and he said to the department, “I am prepared to pay three times or twice as
much or ten times as much, and I want you to call for tenders.”” That interest
would not be considered; consequently it must be a special privilege given to
one or two companies and it is not open to the public.

Mr. WHaiTMORE: A special privilege would not come from the depart-
ment inasmuch as I said it is a condition of the licence that the licensee must
procure any authority needed for the use of the soil, and in this particular case
it is authority from the provinecial government in the way of a foreshore lease.

Mr. RoBicuauDp: We have that down east. When the smelt fishermen buy
a licence they are entitled to a certain place as long as they fish. Their neigh-
bour cannot come in and say, “Get out; I want your place; I will pay more for
it.” That is not the question. So it is really not a privilege. It strikes me that
it is not a personal privilege so much as it is a privilege to the district. I would
say it is more of a district privilege than a personal privilege.

Mr. MacNeiL: By reason of their foreshore rights, no other company could
secure or operate on the exact locations, the very successful locations, now con-
trolled by the Goodrich and Todd interests? Is that true?

Mr. Waitmore: Yes. So far as foreshore rights are concerned it would
be a matter for determination by the provineial authorities issuing them as
to a particular site.

Mr. Tavior: In other words, you could get a theatrical licence on the
Capitol theatre in Ottawa; you have to respect the existing conditions.

Mr. Kintey: Yes, but no one man would get all the licences in Ottawa.

Mr. Tavror: Neither do they out there. There is a twenty-four mile
stretch.
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Mr. Hanson: The sites are taken up.

Mr. RosicHAUD: There is some other information I should like to get.
How many fishermen are there in the whole province of British Columbia
actually engaged in fishing from boats?

Mr. Mavuew: May I make a suggestion? If there is any idea in the
minds of the people that because of the British Columbia foreshore leases to
the Todd interests, or any other interests, nobody else can get there, I do
not see why that cannot be corrected. I do not think British Columbia wants
an idle lease, and it would be an easy enough matter to make representations
to the provincial government to the effect that unless the lease is being used
it will not be granted to any individual.

Mr. NemwL: They get a rental out of it whether they use it or not.

" Mr. Mavaew: Not very much; they get more if it is used.’

Mr. Kinvey: Is there any relationship between the foreshore lease and our
licence? For instance, must a man have a lease before he gets a foreshore
licence, or is there any connection between the two?

Mr. Mayaew: I could not tell you that.

Mr. Kinrey: That is very important.

~ Mr. Nemwwu: It is the other way around. You cannot get a licence here
unless you have a location licence from the province.

Mr. KizLey: You are sure of that?

Mr. NemL: Yes, because you must get the right to put the traps on the
land. The province owns the land, and you must take out a provincial licence
for that. :

Mr. KinLey: What is the good of the lease without the licence?

Mr. NeiLL: They have nine trap locations in the province. That takes in
all the available sites, and they come here and get as many fishing licences
as they want, four, five, six, up to nine.

Mr. Maynew: I do not object to anything being said that is fair. I do
not think, Mr. Neill, that is fair, for a man to go and say categorically that .
nine leases are all the available foreshore sites.

Mr. NemL: I say that.

Mr. Mayuew: 1 do not believe that.

Mr. Nemn: I say experience proves that. There used to be twenty-seven
there and they have all gone bust.

Mr. Mayaew: They are not all taken.

Mr. Nemn: I do not say they are all taken, but I do say all the available
useful ones are taken.

Mr. KiNLEy: You mean they did not turn out profitable?

Mr. NemwL: Not practical.

Mr. KiNnLey: Too many?

Mr. Nemn: It was found by experience that there were only a very few
practical sites. These two companies have nine trap locations, and they use
only from four to five.

. Mr. Mayaew: I do not think that British Columbia would permit nine
licences, if it was called to their attention. By holding those foreshore licences
and not using them they are obstructing further development of fishing.

Mr. NeiL: They get $100 a year whether they are used or not. By “they”
I mean the province.

Mr. Rem: May I ask Mr. Whitmore if the provincial government has
made any protest against those traps?

Mr. Wartmore: Has the provincial government ever protested against
the use of traps in the Sooke area?
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Mr. Rem: Yes.

Mr. WaitMore: No; I have no information; I eannot recall any protest.

Mr. Rem: I know they did. I had the protest here a moment ago, and if
I could locate it I would read it to you.

Mr. NemwL: The legislature?

Mr. Rem: The provincial government.

Mr. Neww: If that is so, it is very important. :

Mr. RosicHAUD: Can you give me this information at this meeting or the
next meeting? Can you give me the number of actual fishermen employed in
British Columbia, that is, actual fishermen on vessels, and then the number of
men employed in the salmon fishing industry in the whole province, and the
number of men employed in the salmon fishing industry by Todd and Goodrich,
by those two companies that operate in the Sooke area?

Mr. TusTin: I was going to ask a similar question to what Mr. Robichaud
asked. The only difference was this: I was going to ask how many men were
employed on these traps, and then how many men would be employed in other
lines of fishing in proportion to the number of fish taken by the traps? What I
was trying to get was the relative proportion of fish taken.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: That is my idea.

Mr. TusTiN: And the labour proportion.

Mr. NemwL: I can answer part of that. It is on the record that 41 people
are employed, and various people have sworn each trap would put out of
employment from 100 to 150 fishermen.

Mr. Rem: I have the figure.

Mr. Tustin: I heard that same thing, but I should like this gentleman
here to answer it. I should like the number of employees that would be
employed on other lines of fishing, such as boats, in proportion to the number
of fish taken by the traps.

Mr. Rem: I think I have figures here, for 1937, if he will accept them.
Comparing the number of fish caught by the Sooke traps and dividing that by
the number of men employed as compared with the number of fish caught in
the balance of the Fraser river divided by the number of fishermen on the
Fraser river, would run something like this. If you took 3,000 fishermen, which
is allowing a very wide margin, you would find the total fish caught in 1937
outside of the Sooke traps, was 2,236,922 fish. Now, that is all fish, all varieties,
like sockeye, spring, coho, and chum.

Mr. NemLL: All salmon.

Mr. Rem: If you divide it up by 3,000 which allows for a little better
than 2,000 gill-netters plus the seiners who operated there, it works out at an
average of 745 fish. If you take the number of fish that were caught in the
Sooke traps, which was 311,438 in 1937, that is, sockeye, spring, coho, pink
and chum, and divide that by the number of men at Sooke, which is given here
as 44, it works out at 6,228 fish.

Mr. NemwL: You are not counting herring?

Mr. Rem: No.

Mr. Rosicaaup: What is the number of men, 44?

Mr. NeiLL: 41, I think.

Mr. Mayaew: One man works three months and the other man works
nine months.

Mr. Ropicaaup: I am only going by the evidence here that I read this
morning and last night. 1 see on page 191, about in the middle of the page,
Mr. Neill says that there were 82,570 fish caught by the traps, and the whole
number caught in the province was 19,703,685. If you divide 19,000,000 by
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82,570 you would get only 200, so it is Ysgoth part. If you multiply 200 by 41
you get 8,200, and if you multiply it by 44 you get 8,800, and I see by the report
that the number actually employed as fishermen in the whole province in the
fishing industry—that is the salmon fishing industry—is 8,630; so according
to these figures it would take as many men employed at the trap to catch the
fish as it would in the whole salmon fishing industry in the province.

Mr. Tayror: Just about the same.

Mr. RoeicHAUD: Just about the same.

Mr. Tavror: Taken on a basis of efficiency of each particular type of gear.
i Mr. Tustin: Possibly the gentleman from the department can give us the

gures. :

Mr. WartMoRre: I can give you round figures of the number of fishermen,
including every type of salmon fishing. It will be appreciated that some
fishermen are engaged in more than one type of fishing. Trollers may be gill-
netters for part of the season. I have before me the statement of the licences
issued in 1938, and that will give the picture fairly well; but it will be
appreciated that there will be the odd duplication where a man might have two
licences.

Mr. RosicuHAUD: It will be salmon anyway.

Mr. Wartmore: Salmon. Salmon gill-netters in round figures amounted to
6,500 in 1938. In salmon trolling the round figure would be 3,400.

The Cuamrman: Would these be additional men or the same men?

Mr. Waitmore: There would be some duplication, not very much. Salmon
purse seining, round figures, 2,000.

Mr. NeLL: That is about 12,000 instead of the figure you gave.

Mr. Tayror: That is an unfair total; there are many duplications.

Mr. Mayuaew: The time the men work differs as well.

Mr. RosicaaUuD: 3,000 more in 1938 than in 1937.

Mr. WHiTMORE: Probably a few more.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: A few?

Mr. WHITMORE: Yes.

Mr. Rosicuaup: It is 3,000 more than what we have here.

The Cuamrman: Mr. Whitmore, there is one very important question here
that I do not think we have cleared up. Mr. Mayhew takes the ground that
there is a difference in the length of time that the fishermen fish.

Mr. KinLey: He does not say that.

The CuAalrMAN: I understood that he did.

Mr. Rem: He used the figure of 90 days.

The CuAlRMAN: Ninety days?

Mr. KinLey: For the fishermen?

The CuarMmaN: For the fishermen, and these other men say that the
others work from 6 to 7 and 8 months for the traps. Please clear that up and
tell us the difference in the fishing seasons and what dates they are allowed to
fish and so on.

Mr. WHirmore: In the Fraser river district salmon gill-netting may be
carried on for 11 months in the year; that is, from the 1st January to the end
of November, unless some special closure is enforced, from a conservation
standpoint; but actually the number of gill-netters working up to the 1st July is
not very great. Possibly at the present time there might be 200 -gill-netters
working on the Fraser river.

Mr. Rem: You should explain that is probably on account of the difference
in size of the nets.
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- Mr. WairMoRe: Yes. Today there are only two varieties of salmon running
- into the river, spring salmon and steelheads; whereas on July 1st the vanguard
of the sockeye run shows up and more glll—netters arrive on the river. So that
possibly the period in which gill netting is most mtenswe is from July 15th to
say October 15th.

Mr. MacNeiL: What are the opening dates of the gill netters on sockeye?

Mr. Wartmore: July 1st, but actually in recent years very few sockeye
gill nets have been used until possibly the beginning of the third week in July.

Mr: Tavror: The fishing season with respect to both kinds of fish is exactly
the same, is it not; there is the same season for both?

Mzr. REm: No, the traps don’t wait until the 1st of July.

Mr. MacNemw: The gill netters are not allowed to put out prior to July
1st for sockeye, but prior to July 1st traps are fishing for springs.

Mr. WHITMORE: Yes.

Mr. MacNemwL: Then it is possible for the traps prior to July 1st to catch
sockeye if they are running?

Mr. WHITMORE: Yes.

Mr. MacNEmw: And, is it not a fact that some sockeye are caught in traps
before the gill netters are allowed to put out?

Mr. Rem: As a matter of fact the date was May 13 last year when the
traps opened up.

Mr. KinLey: Surely the fishing season is not longer for the traps than it
is for the fishermen?

The Caamrman: Oh yes, it is, apparently.

Mr. WaitMmore: In gill net fishing on the Fraser river the minimum size
of mesh that can be used in the gill nets is 64 inches, that is up to the 1st
of July, and then for the next three months there is no minimum mesh pre-
seribed.

Mr. Kixrey: They could not very well ehange the nets could they?

Mr. WairrMore: No, but up to the 1st of July they must use nets of 64 inch
mesh or larger; actually the fishermen operating for spring salmon will be
using a 9 and 10 inch mesh net.

Mr. Kinrey: That is not the point, the point I wanted to get at is, the
salmon season in British Columbia opens at the same time and everybody
starts fishing when it opens.

Mr. Tavyror: There are a number of different kinds of seasons.

Mr. WaitMore: Might I explain that there are controlling dates for the
opening of sockeye fishing at various points in the province. On the west coast
of Vancouver Island the opening date for sockeye is May 15th.

Mr. Tayror: That is the period when the fish are supposed to reach that
spot?

Mr. WaiTMORE: Yes. In the Fraser river district the opening date is July
1st. In northern areas such as Skeena and Nass the opening date for sockeye
fishing is the 1st Sunday before July 1st each year.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I have three questions which I would like you to answer.
You have given me the answer to one of them. Will you be able to give me
the information with respect to the others at our next meeting?

Mr. WaIiTMORE: Yes, I shall be glad to answer them all.

Mr. RosicHAUD: My first question related to the actual number of fisher-
men employed, and you gave me the answer to that. My next question is, the
number of men employed in the industry, including the canning and all other
forms of employment in the industry; then the number of men employed in the
industry in these two companies?
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Mr. Warrmore: Yes, I think I will have to let you have that at the next
meeting. :

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Chairman, I think it might be of advantage to spread on
the record the catch in the Puget Sound area in cases from the earliest days.
The report shows only from 1925, but to get the real significance of the picture
it should be discoverable from an earlier date, and I have it from 1891.

Mr. Rem: I am not disputing Mr. Taylor at all, but I think you will agree
with me that it makes it very confusing sometimes when we are dealing with a
subject and we are dealing with the numbers of fish in one case and then we
come along and Mr. Taylor gives cases, I mean, it is sometimes confusing.

Mr. Tavror: If you have a statement built up on cases you can compare
case with case; but if you get cases and fish together then I agree with you it is
a difficult question.

Mr. Remn: We have been dealing with the numbers of fish.

Mr. Tavror: Well, it really doesn’t matter.

Mr. KinLey: I would like to be clearer on whether the men in the Sooke
area on the traps are employed longer at fishing than the fishermen are employed
at it?

The Cuairman: That is very important, that is what I was asking.

Mr. Kintey: Now, it is intimated that they go to work and bring out their
gear and poles and stuff to build their traps, and if they do that, if they bring
that into the picture there, you have got to allow for the mending of nets and the
over-haul of boats and things of that kind with respect to the other fishermen.
I do not see why the comparisons should not be made both on the same basis.

Mr. Rosicaaup: What do the other fishermen in the other part of the
province do?

Mr. ReEm: Most of the gill net fishermen are fishing in the Fraser river now
for springs and other varieties of fish.

Mr. RoBrcaaun: When they are not fishing what do they do? Do they
engage in something else?

Mr. Rem: No.

Mr. Rosicaaup: Can they make a living out of fishing; is that their pro-
fession and do they live at that only?

Mr. Rem: They appear to—

Mr. Tayror: That is nonsense, they augment their income by their fishing,
many of them are small farmers and others, some of them, spend their winters
in the cities.

Mr. RosicaAaup: I think that would have to be taken into consideration
if the Sooke fishermen are getting a living at their fishing, or most of their
living, and the others only get half of their living and then go and do something
else. I think that has to be taken into consideration.

- Mr. Mayuew: The figure I gave you was 11,975 man-days, and taking
the 41 men, that gives each man 291 days steady operation at the Sooke traps.

Mr. RoicaAUD: The other fishermen would not fish that long.

Mr. Kintey: They can’t get more fish than the season will give them,
there are only so many days.

Mr. Mayaew: That is the complete living of these men.

The CHARMAN: The fishery regulations, Mr. Kinley, allow the trap nets
to start fishing on the 13th of May and to fish right through until the last of
October, and in that time they take the different runs as they come along.

Mr. Kintey: Do the fishermen have the same privilege?
78605—3



224

Mr. Warrmore: Yes, the fishermen have that privilege. The traps, as a
matter of fact, may start on January 1st and the fishermen may too; but
actually the traps this year—I do not know whether they have started yet,
but last year the first trap was in operation about May 13th.

Mr. NemwL: Wasn't there a lift before that?

Mr. WaiT™MORE: I do not think so.

Mr. NeiLL: Wasn’t there one lift in March?

Mr. Warrmore: No, I don’t think so.

4 Mr. Kintey: If you are going to correct these traps that is the basis for
it.

Mr. REm: On the Fraser river, Mr. Kinley, the legitimate fisherman is
operating early in the year for different varieties of salmon using a different
net; but what you say is very true, the trap does operate ahead of the gill net
fisherman for sockeye salmon.

Mr. KinLey: You don’t object to that?

Mr. Rem: Yes. I do object to that, to the trap opening earlier. Yes, I
do object to the trap opening earlier.

Mr. KinLEY: You object to the apparent inequality?

Mr, Rem: Yes, we believe there are inequalities.

Mr. Mayaew: My own suggestion is to correct the inequalities but don’t
destroy it; if it wants regulation, regulate it, but don’t destroy it.

Mr. Rem: For instance, Mr. Kinley, so you may get the picture, the gill net
fishermen are allowed to start fishing for sockeye on July 1st; the traps started
to fish on May 15th. And if you will look at the record given to each member
of the committee you will find that from May 15th to July 1st the traps caught
S0 many sockeye——

Mr. Tavror: Right at that point may I ask Mr. Whitmore why? Was
it not because the sockeye were at the Sooke traps on May 15th and not where
the gill netters were? :

Mr. Wuirmore: The opening date for sockeye fishing on the west coast
of Vancouver island is an earlier date than for the Fraser river.

Mr. MacNEiL: :How much earlier?
Mr. WaHITMORE: A month and a half.
Mr. RosicHAUD: Is it because they arrive there earlier than they do on the

Fraser river?

Mr. Wartmore: Quite so. At different point along the west coast of
Vancouver island there are early runs of sockeye peculiar to certain areas which
can be taken in the months of May and June. There is a general regulation
for the west coast of Vancouver Island, and so far as that area is concerned the
fishing usually starts about May 15th.

Mr. Rem: If you will look at the record you will find that the Sooke traps
were allowed to start fishing on May 8th, and their catch of sockeye was not
very great until July 4th when the main run started. Now, it is a long time
from May 15th until July 24th. On May 15th the catch there was eight fish;
on May 22nd it was twenty-nine fish; and on the 29th it was eighty-two fish;
on June 8th it was sixty-six; on June 12th it was eighteen; on June 18th it was
nine fish; on June 26th it was one hundred and eighteen—and so on down. The
last big day in July before the main run started was three hundred and one
sockeye on July 17th, but on the following day 1,174; July 1st, 14,328—showing
quite a lapse of time, from May 15th until July 24th, before the main run struck
the traps; so that while the traps evidently started fishing earlier the main run
of sockeye did not strike the traps until July 24th. However, on August 7th
they caught 33,704, whereas in the month of May they only caught the small
numbers I have indicated above.
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Mr. NemL: They were getting springs in the meantime.

The CuarMAN: There is no quorum, gentlemen, I suppose we will have
to adjourn.

Mr. Tayror: When shall I present my argument?

The CuAmMAN: I think you should have the first chance at our next
meeting.

Mr. RosicHAUD: I would suggest, Mr. Chairman, and it is only my sug-
gestion, that we sit this afternoon, because we should get through with this.

Mr. Tavror: There is the committee on banking and commerce sitting this
afternoon.

Mr. Remn: If the estimates are on it makes it very difficult for some mem-
bers because some of us have items to watch on which we would like to speak.

Mr. HansoN: We have been sitting on this now for three years and have
never done anything. I think it is about time we got the evidence in and did
something.

‘Mr. NeiLn: How long would Mr. Taylor take?

Mr. Tayror: I have no idea, I am going to carry on until I get my argument
complete, and that will be at least forty minutes.

Mr. Rem: I just wanted to place on record representations made on behalf
of the fishermens’ organizations protesting against the traps up there, the Fish-
ermens’ Protective Association and the fishermen at Ladner.

Mr. Tavyror: Before we adjourn; Mr. Whitmore, are you aware how many
fishermen there are in the Kyuquot Co-operative Trollers’ Association?

Mr. WaIiTMORE: Off hand, I could not say. It is some 200 odd.

The CuAamrMAN: Very well then, gentlemen, we will adjourn until 2 o’clock
to-morrow afternoon.

The committee adjourned at 1.10 o’clock p.m. this day to meet again to-
morrow, Thursday, May 11th, at 2 o’clock p.m.
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MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or COMMONS, Room 429
May 11, 1939.

The Standmg Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 2.00 p.m. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

Mr. A. J. WHITMORE, recglled.

The CuarMAN: Gentlemen, we have a quorum. Before our other business
starts, there is a memorandum which has been handed in by Mr. Whitmore
. upon the request of Mr. Robichaud. Would you like to have it read?

Mr. Rem: Put it on the record. ]
The CHalRMAN: I shall read it:—

MEMORANDUM

In 1938 the total number of persons licensed to engage in the various
forms of salmon fishing in British Columbia amounted to 11,672, made
up as follows:—

Salmon Gill-Netting:

Salmon gill-net licensees. .........ovevvivnnns Gy iy o

Assistant salmon gill-net licensees........... 505 6,236
Salmon Purse-seining and Drag-Seining:

Licensees and captains.........coovvevunnne 300 s

Assistants on salmon seines................. 1,762 2,062
Salmon Trolling:

(EioemRees I i o b el g S A S S R 3,374 3,374

11,672
Salmon trap-net employees (about)......... 40

1938 official figures not being available, the following figures for 1937
are given respecting the numbers of employees in salmon canning estab-

lishments:—
INGDeP . of “Canmierien . s e L wa L TS e 37
Number of employees:
Salpriedyemployees i ta el Sl i e e 137
BNARE CATTIENE | o x s St iaar et s o s T 1,104
BT Y R O I e e N eSS 3,203
4444

~ The exact number of employees at Empire Cannery, Esquimalt, is
not immediately available, but the average for the thirty-seven canneries
operated was 120.

Ottawa, May 11, 1939.
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Mr. Rosicaaup:  Might T be permitted to comment on those figures, since
I asked that they be supplied. It was claimed, and I wanted to have my mind
clear about the matter, that trap-nets were not giving employment as com-
pared with other sorts of fishing. Taking the figures as you will find them in
report No. 6 at page 191, quoted by Mr. Neill, the traps in 1938 got 82,570
salmon and the whole catch for the province was 19,703,685. Now, if you
divide the number of employees, both the fishermen and those employed in the
canneries and all employees in the salmon fisheries of British Columbia—

Mr. NemwL: On vessels?

Mr. RosicHAUD: Yes, and in the canneries—the amount is 16,116, clear
of the Sooke traps.

Mr. NeiLL: Is that fish?

Mr. RoBicHAUD: 16,116 employees. Divide that into the cateh of 19,621,115
—that is after subtracting 82,000 for the Sooke traps—and that gives you 1,215
fish to each employee. Well, if you divide the 82,000 fish caught by the trap-
nets—that is forty fishermen and 120 in the cannery—they caught only 516 fish
instead of 1,210 fish, and to have their quota they should have caught 197,000
fish instead of 82,000.

Mr. NeznL: You are including the canneries.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Where they give more employment. It takes more men
to catch a fish with the traps than it does with the seine or the gill-nets.

Mr. Rem: Mr. Chairman, I think Mr. Robichaud is probably unwittingly
a little unfair in his argument in this respect: When we are dealing with the
traps situation we are dealing with the fish that come through the straits of
Juan de Fuca into the Fraser river water-shed, and it is very unfair to take the
figures of the whole province and begin to deal with fish that are 200 miles away
or more and do not come near the traps. I do not think it is a fair argument to
say we have to divide by all the men, all the fish in the province and by all the
men in the province.

Hon. Mr. Micgaup: Mr. Reid, all the men in the province are petitioning
against these traps in the Juan de Fuca straits.

Mr. Hanson: It is absolutely unfair to take such a statement and have it
placed on the record. If they had the same amount in the north of British
Columbia as they have at Sooke we would need no fishermen at all. To com-
pare it with the Fraser river is fair, but to compare it with the whole of British
Columbia is absolutely ridiculous. If we had the same thing in the north there
would be five in the north, but you cannot compare these figures to show what
it does to the fisheries of the Fraser river. If we had the same amount outside
of the Skeena river or the Naas river, we would not have 'any fishermen at all.
We would have approximately forty outside of the Skeena and forty or sixty
outside of the Naas and forty to sixty outside of Rivers Inlet, which is the
biggest territory where salmon are caught in British Columbia. You might as
well compare it with Canada and take in the maritime provinces where salmon
are also caught.

Mr. RoBicHAUD: I think my compilation is good. I think it is good because
one of the arguments I heard was that it would give more employment. Now,
you will see you have only forty actual fishermen compared to 11,000.

Mr. HansonN: There are no fishermen on the traps..

Mr. RoBicHAUD: There are forty who work on the traps compared to 11,000,
while, on the other hand, you have 120 operating in the canneries as compared
to only 4,000. You would have many more men on your canneries if you had
less in actual fishing.

The CaamrMAN: How do you make your figures up to 15,000, the return
gives 11,0007
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Mr. RosicHAaup: 11,000 and 4,444 in the canneries. They are all the
employees in the business. .

Mr. NemL: The canneries cost the same no matter how you catch your fish.
You should not count the canneries in at all.

Mr. RosicHAUD: Oh, yes, it is the fishing industry.

Mr. Nemwy: It is the question of catching them. Once the fish are caught
they have to be canned and charged.

Mr. Rosicuaup: That is all right, they have to be charged, but it is the
fishing industry. The traps take less men. The proportion of men in the
canneries is much larger than in the other branch. As I said, forty to eleven
thousand as compared with one hundred and twenty to four thousand. So their
proportion is nine times more men in the canneries than gill netters, and so on.
But it is much less in proportion on the traps. It balances because they have
nine times more men.

Mr. NemwL: Does it cost more to can a trap caught fish?

Mr. RoicHAUD: I suppose it does. They take more fish in a way to each
man. but the canneries give more employment.

Mr. NemL: In relation to cost the canneries do not take any more men.

Mr. RosicuAUD: I think you will find no flaw in that comparison.

Mr. Rem: I think it is a fairer comparison to compare the fish coming in
through the Straits of Juan de Fuca to the Fraser river and divide the quantity
caught by all the fishermen of the Fraser System as compared with the quantity
caught by the Sooke traps and then divide it by the fishermen or men engaged
in the Sooke traps, just divide the Fraser river catch by the men employed
there, and if you do that it comes out at 6,228 per man for the Sooke traps and
only 745 for the other.

Mr. NemL: That is a fair comparison.

Mr. Rem: I consider it very fair.

Mr. NemwL: You are leaving out the canneries?

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Did you give us the figures of the men employed?

Mr. MacNEemwL: I think Mr. Robichaud should remember that the canneries
also buy fish from other sources as well as to can the fish caught in the traps.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: All caught in British Columbia waters.

The CHARMAN: Do the same men work in the canneries that work on
fishing?

Hon. Mr. MicaAup: Oh, no.

Mr. RosicHauD: I do not wish to be unfair, gentlemen, but I thought that
was perfectly clear. I think it is the whole industry of the province. The strong
point was that you would get more employment by fishing without traps than
with traps.

Mr. Perierier: Do the traps operate all over the province or only in one
particular area?

Mr. RoBicHAUD: Just five traps in one district. But every man employed
on the traps only gets 500 fish in a season.

Mr. Hanson: No, he gets 6,000 against the other man’s 700.

Mr. NemwL: You cannot mix up the canneries.

Mr. RosicHAUD: They are all employees of the same industry.

Mr. MacNEemL: I do not think there is any dispute. We are all agreed the
reasonﬁ t}};e traps operate and operate profitably is that fewer men can catch
more fish.

Mr. RopicHAUD: If they take more fish it takes more men to can them.
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The CuaRMAN: Mr. Reid asked permission to make a statement so we
shall afford him that opportunity.

Mr. Remw: It will only take two or three minutes to place this on the record.
I think it is necessary to back up the arguments and to show that the arguments
are not entirely our own; that we have the support of various organizations of
fishermen.

The first one I want to place on record is from Ladner, British Columbia.
This is a letter dated February 16, 1939, reading as follows:

On January 28, 1939, the Ladner B.C. fishermen met at the parish
hall, Ladner, B.C., for the purpose of discussing the matter concerning
fish traps located at Sooke, Vancouver Island, B.C.

This meeting elected a committee to forward to you, the enclosed
resolution, and the petition signed by the fishermen, and merchants of the
district, protesting against these present existing fish traps.

We would be very glad to have you bring this matter to the
immediate attention of the Department of Fisheries, as this is of vital
interest to the fishermen and merchants of the district. ‘

Then they sent me a copy of a resolution which to save time I will place on
the record rather than read it.

Hon. Mr. MicuauD: It would be well to have it read so that we will know
what is in the resolution.

Mr. Tavror: Hear, hear.

Mr. Rem: Very good.

Whereas;—fishermen of the Pacific coast have gone on record many
times in favour of the elimination of traps and other destructive gear, -
and—

Whereas;—Regardless of the fact that the dominion government in
1937 passed legislation prohibiting traps in B.C. waters, “ with the
exception of seven trap sites at Sooke, Vancouver Island.” there is no
guarantee that at some future date, trap interests may be successful in
having this legislation revoked and traps legalized in any part of the
B.C. coastal waters, and—

Hon. Mr. MicuHAUD: Right there, is that an absolutely correct statement?

Mr. Rem: I have not come to the point of arguing the statement, I am
merely first of all placing the resolution on the record.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Is that an accurate statement of fact, I am asking you
that question? )

Mr. PeLLETiER: Is that not the preamble to the resolution?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, but the preamble recites facts to support the
resolution and the resolution must be based on the facts advanced to support it.

Mr. MacNeiL: Mr. Reid is not accepting responsibility for the resolution.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: No, no, but I am just asking him.

Mr. Remp: Later on when I get time to examine it I will give you an answer.

Mr. Mayaew: Is it right to put something on the record that is not borne
out by facts? ,

Mr. REm: Any man can send in a statement or resolution to this committee
and it can be placed on the record.

Mr. PeLrerier: Until it is disproved I do not see any reason why we should
not accept it.

The Cuamman: I think you had better read it.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: I am not asking the question to prevent it going on the
record, I am asking the question to find out whether Mr. Reid—
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Mr. Rem: You are disputing that one point, the second whereas.

Whereas:—Several bills are now before the Washington legislature
drafted with the express purpose of getting traps back in Washington,
when previous to 1934, “this was the year when they were taken out when
Initiative No. 77 was passed” traps in that state took 70 per cent of Fraser
river sockeye, and—

Whereas;—We consider that Canada’s insistence on allowing seven
traps at Sooke, after Washington removed 219 constitutes a convincing
argument for trap interests in Washington to have them restored. Now
therefore be it resolved that we petition the dominion government to pass
the necessary legislation during the present session, prohibiting the taking
of salmon by means of traps in B.C. coastal waters. And be it finally
resolved that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Prime Minister
of Canada, the members from British Columbia at Ottawa, the dominion
and provincial department of fisheries, to all sport and commercial
fishermen’s organizations, the Trades and Labor Councils of B. C. and
to the press, asking their endorsement.

That was sent to me with 114 names, but it is not necessary to put the
names on the record so long as it is understood that this is the petition emanating
from a mass meeting at Ladner to which 114 names were affixed.

Mr. NewL: Which portion did Mr. Michaud question?

Mr. Rem: It was the second whereas.

Mr. NemwL: “Whereas, regardless of the fact that the dominion government”,
and so on?

Mr. ReEm: Yes. _

Mr. NemwL: What is questionable there? What is wrong with that statement?
Read it again.

Mr. Rem: Whereas; regardless of the fact that the dominion government
in 1937 passed legislation prohibiting traps in B.C. waters, ‘with the exception
of seven trap sites at Sooke, Vancouver Island, there is no guarantee that at
some future date, trap interests may be successful in having this legislation
revoked and traps legalized in any part of the B.C. coastal waters.”

Now that is correct.

Mr. NeiLL: It was not legislation, the committee recommended it.

Mr. Rem: Yes.

Mr. Nemwn: Is that the point?

Mr. Rem: That is perhaps the more correct way of putting it. “There is
no guarantee that at some future date, trap interests may be successful in
having this legislation revoked and traps legalized in any part of the B.C.
coastal waters.” I think they are a little narrow. They are mixed there.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: I agree with you they are.

_ Mr. Rem: There was also some doubt about the fishermen on the Fraser
river, and this wire of theirs should have been placed before the committee at
its sittings last year. I have recently received a letter also from the B.C.
Fishermen’s Protective Association. Their wire reads:—

WaonNock, B.C.
May 24, 1938.
Tom REip,
House of Commons, Ottawa.

Any intimation that Fraser River fishermen wish Sooke traps to
remain absolutely false Stop Every fishermen’s organization on Pacific
coast to the best of my knowledge want Sooke traps out immediately
and expect action to this end from Parliament this session Stop Letter
follows. ' F. ROLLEY.
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That came from the President of the British Columbia Fishermen’s Protective
Association.

Mr. Nemn: What is the membership of that organization?
Mr. Rem: It has about 1,200 members, I believe.
Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: And is the membership made up of trollers?

Mr. Rem: No, they are all gill net fishermen. This is the letter. I am only
reading a part of it, because the first part has to do with the seines in the Gulf
of Georgia and there is no need of bringing that in—I am only reading that
part which relates to this question of traps.

With regard to the question of the Sooke traps, it will not be necessary
for me to point out to you the gravity of the situation which faces the
Fraser river fishermen in view of the immediate threat of the restoration
of fish traps by the state of Washington. Our association would like
to go on record that they hold the fisheries committee at Ottawa entirely
responsible for the serious threat which now faces the Fraser river fisher-
men, as we feel that the federal government did not play the game with
the United States interests in refusing to cancel the fish trap licences in
B.C. and we now look to the federal government to rectify this mistake
this year.

I want to emphasize the fact brought out in the first sentence of that paragraph,
that is the implication of fact that almost everyone to-day takes from the present
situation, of Sooke traps.

Then they tell me that on May 3rd of this year they had a meeting, had
in fact two meetings, one at Ladner, and both meetings passed resolutions; I am
drawing that also to the attention of the committee. The B.C. Fishermen’s
Protective Association is an organized body representing the gill net fishermen,
and they are absolutely opposed to the maintenance of the traps, they want
the traps removed absolutely. They tell me here, and I want to refer to this
and have it on record, that at the two meetings referred to they went on record
as being in favour of no trap licences being issued in B.C. waters.

The Native Sons of British Columbia, of Fort Langley, composed almost
entirely of gill netters, passed a resolution which I think should be on the record.
It reads as follows:—

March 20, 1939.

To the Minister of Fisheries,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Sir—Post No. 9 of Native Sons of British Columbia, by
resolution duly passed, respectfully beg to draw your attention to the
very grave condition confronting the fishing industry of the Fraser river.

For some time past our American neighbours to the south have
discontinued the use of fish traps in the neighbourhood of Point Roberts,
as their use was decidedly detrimental to the run of fish up the Fraser
river.

It is now reported that unless the Canadians desist from the use of
traps around Sooke and other places, the Americans threaten to again
operate traps in the vicinity of Point Roberts.

Should they do this, Fraser river fishing will be a thing of the past,
a serious blow indeed, not only to our fishermen, but also to the allied
industries.

We are therefore petitioning you to be good enough to investigate
this matter, and if possible, prohibit the use of fish traps in our British
Columbia waters.
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We are sending a copy of this petition to our member, Mr. Tom
Reid, with the request that he co-operate with you in this matter,
believing Mr. Reid to be highly informed on this question.

Yours respectfully,

J. E. FULLER,
Secretary.

The CuamrMAN: Now, gentlemen, we have been waiting for Mr. Taylor.
Mr. Tavror: No, sir; I have been waiting.
The CuamrrMAN: We have been waiting anxiously to hear you.

Mr. Tavror: I think I have given everyone a chance to say what he had
to say.

The CuamrMAN: Yes, Mr. Taylor, and now we would like to hear from you.

Mr. Tavror: Well, at the outset, I begin by referring to Hansard, page 1616,
of the 2nd of March:—

The house resumed from Thursday, February 16, consideration of
Bill 15 in committee, to amend the Fisheries Act, 1932—

Mr. NeiLL: What year is this?

Mr. Tavror: I am talking about this year’s Hansard. Mr. Michaud in
his remarks said:—

There was some question as to the legality of the procedure adopted
by the hon. member for Comox-Alberni in trying to amend other pro-
visions of the Fisheries Act by adding to the bill a suggestion which he
called an amendment. Since then I notice the hon. member has intro-
duced a bill of his own which apparently covers what he intended to
accomplish by the amendment he had offered, and I thought he intended
either to abandon or to withdraw his amendment in view of the fact that
he has introduced a separate bill.

Now, while I am on that page I want to show Mr. Neill’s reaction; first of all,
with his statement after recess:—

Mr. Chairman, at six o’clock I was giving my reason why I preferred
that my amendment should be discussed now rather than in connection
with the bill of which I have given notice.

Earlier in the afternoon he had stated among other things,

I introduced it only in order to do what a good general does, prepare
a position to which he may retire if he is driven from his present one.

Mr. NemL: Hear, hear.
Mr. TayLor: These were his reasons:—

With regard to the suggestion that I should withdraw my amend-
ment, that would put me under a handicap, because “to-day is ours and
to-morrow is not.”

If I should drop my amendment and trust to the vague, distant,
fortuitous possibility—for that is all it is—that a private bill, or a public
bill introduced by a private member, to be strictly accurate, may be

reached, I may find myself in the position that my bill may never
come up.

Before proceeding further I think I might here traverse in part the brief sub-

mitted through John Stanton, East Hastings street, Vancouver, British Columbia,
for the fishermen.

Mr. NemL: You are finished quoting me from Hansard? I don’t want
to be taken as saying more than what appears in Hansard.
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Mr. TayLor: Please don’t interrupt. I want to get through. If you are
afraid I won’t deal honestly with you I am prepared to state when I quote and
when I end quote.

Mr. NemL: Quite so. i

Mr. TayLor: On page 163 in No. 5 of the minutes of proceedings—

Mr. NemwL: Of this year? .

Mr. Tayror: If you will listen you will hear, Mr. Neill.

Mr. Hanson: We are entitled to know what you are quoting from.

Mr. TavrLor: In Appendix 2 is submitted the reports received from nine
responsible fishermen who operated in the area in 1938. Now, it will be remem-
bered that I asked Mr. Neill to submit these letters to be spread on the minutes
of proceedings, and I carefully compared them with this statement made by
the fishermen themselves. You will find this on page 163. Name, A. Halvarson
—beginning of August—50 per night—conditions no worse than in any open
waters. Now, if you refer to that man’s own letter we read:—

This is to certify that I, the undersigned fished between Sooke traps
and Jordon river for six nights in the first part of August, 1938, and
averaged fifty (50) sockeye per night.

No remark as to the open water conditions at all. No reference to his con-
ditions of fishing. There I see a deliberate misstatement of facts. Take the
very next one, A. Remmem—2 weeks—fish caught, 450—and the remark, gill
netters would benefit greatly by the removal of fish traps, sharks there. Let us
take A. Remmem’s letter:— g

I fished around Sooke for two weeks in August this year and caught
four hundred and fifty sockeye (450). I sold these to the Todd Fish
Company for sixty-five cents (65 cents). The only thing wrong was that
there were too many sharks and dogfish.

Now, had we not had these letters placed on record we would never have learned
that this was a deliberate misstatement of fact.

Mr. NemLL: It is not.

Mr. Tavror: Now, please, Mr. Neill; make a note of it and traverse the
situation when I am finished.

Mr. NeiLL: Mr. Chairman, I rise to a point of order. He brings my name
into it. I did not put that in at all, that is out of the brief submitted by the
fishermen.

Mr. Tayror: Mr. Chairman, I am now talking about the fishermen’s brief;
and if my good friend will not learn a lesson, I cannot help it, in this committee.

Mr. NemLL: He brings my name in it. I am not responsible for putting that
in at all, it was part of Stanton’s brief.

Mr. TavLor: They next introduced a letter from Mr. G. T. Whitler, which
occupies about thirty per cent of the brief which is submitted; and in Mr.
Whitler’s statement he says:—

I came to Vancouver Island in 1921 and settled at Rocky Point, took
up salmon fishing with a row boat, and used to make about $600 a year,
about 30 more men were doing the same. After about five years the fish
began to get scarcer and I was asked by the fishermen in my district if
something could be done to compel the Sooke traps to close for the 48
hours a week as called for by the Dominion government.

Actual reference to the number of fish being caught indicates that the fish
were actually increasing, not decreasing, during the period that this man is
complaining about. They were not getting scarcer; they were getting more
numerous. Rather than allow that to be unsupported by the actual evidence,
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I am taking up the time to discover the facts. In 1921, the catch for Canadian
waters was 39,000. I am treating these in round figures of thousands. In 1922,
it was 51,000; in 1923, 31,000; 1924, 39,000; 1925, 35,000; and in 1926, after
about five years from his settlement at Rocky Point in 1921, the total was
85,000 in 1927, 61,000; in 1928, 26,000; in 1929, 60,000; in 1930, 107,000. Need
I go further? ¥ ;

Mr. PeLieTier: What are those—cases or fish?

Mr. Tavror: Cases canned fish from fish caught in Canadian waters. I
noticed some remarks privileged in this letter which should be traversed, but I
do not propose to make much of them, except to read them and allow the mem-
bers to draw their own inferences. Mr. Whitler is writing and says:

I at once saw the fishing inspector in Victoria, not the present one,
and reported the matter. He refused to inspect any of the traps and
asked whether I wanted him to lose his job. I then wrote to Major
Motherwell, Vancouver, who replied that steps would be taken to insure
the traps complied with the regulations. . . . I then saw Mr. Babcock,
Dominion representative, and reported the matter to him. He informed
me that he had already had several complaints that the Sooke traps
were not complying with the regulations but had been unable to have
anything done. I asked him why and he replied, “The financial interests
are too strong”.

Later on, close to the end of his letter, he says:—

You probably know that last year we forwarded a petition to have
the traps removed, signed by nearly ten thousand, but Mr. Mitchard,—
“as he 1s called here,” was determined to give the traps their licence.. In
my opinion, we shall be unable to have the traps removed as long as
party funds benefit.

Mr. Mayaew: Will you pardon me for interrupting, Mr. Taylor, for a
moment? That was the phrase that I had in mind when I wrongly accused.
you yesterday of saying that same thing, Mr. Neill.

Mr. NeLL: But which you agree I did not say.

Mr. Mayuew: Which I agree you did not say, yes.

Mr. TayLor (continuing): I have had several conversations with Senator
Green who supported us last February, but he now does not appear to know
what to do in the matter; neither does Mr. Neill. The only hope seems to be
that Mr. Mitchard may go to the Senate.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Was that suggested by Mr. Neill or by Senator Green?
Mr. Hanson: Who is the letter from?

Mr. Tayror: If we are to take these statements as having a bearing on this
fish question, then I am afraid we cannot regard our work as being very
straightforward. In dealing with those letters from various fishermen, we find
that three of them fished at Sooke, one around Sooke, and four to the seaward
of Sooke; that is to say, the four may be utterly discounted as having the slight-
est effect upon the operation of the traps, because they never came near the

trap area to have their business resolved by the activities of the Sooke traps.
Let me read precisely what I mean:—

This is to certify that I, the undersigned, fished between Sooke traps
and Jordon river for six nights in the first part of August, 1938, and
averaged fifty sockeye per night.

He went thirteen miles to the seaward of the Sooke traps in his business and
never was affected in the slightest degree by the fish taken at the Sooke traps.
Mr. Nemn: How do you know?
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Mr. TayLor: Another man, N. Johqson, says this:—

Started fishing about August 1st, 1938, between Sooke and San Juan
Harbour.

San Juan Harbour is also known as Port Renfrew. Continuing:—

Found it excellent place for gill-netting and fish were in number
one condition. Caught as high as four hundred sockeyes—some cohoes
and springs in one night’s fishing. Fish were sold to Nelson Brothers for
sixty-five cents. Gillnetters would benefit greatly by removal of fish traps.

The man never went near the fish traps. He definitely says he did all his
fishing from the Sooke traps, thirty-five miles on the way to San Juan Harbour;
and not one of his fish was ever in danger of being caught by the traps. He
caught them before they had a chance to get to the fish traps. I want that
argument to sink right home, because if these letters were placed on as a sum-
mary—according to Mr. Neill they were not “precis” because they were not
precise enough for that—or if these letters were supposed to record facts con-
vincing our members here that a wrong was being done by the fish traps, then
I put my finger on these statements of the men themselves and show directly
to the contrary.
But to clinch the argument, Lars Aunli says:

Started fishing around middle of August, 1938, fishing area between
Sooke and San Juan.

Precisely the same area.
Mr. NemwL: What is the name?
Mr. TayLor: Aunli.
Mr. Nemn: Oh, yes.
Mr. Tayror: Continuing:—

And after my opinion is a fine gill net area. Abandoned the area
because run had passed by into Gulf of Georgia. I caught around 300
sockeye which I sold to Todd & Sons and Nelson Bros., for sixty-five
cents each.

Then he abandoned his run because they had passed. But he established by
himself that seaward of Sooke he had got a fine gill netting area. Let him stay
by it. His argument obtains precisely for that area and not for the Sooke traps.
Again, H. Remmen says:—

I fished between San Juan and Sooke during the middle of August.
During this time I caught four hundred (400) sockeye which sold for
sixty-five cents (65¢) to Todd and Sons fish company. The major draw-
back was the number of sharks and dogfish, which however would be
driven away when more gill-netters start fishing there.

Now, then, let them go ahead. They are not interfering with the Sooke traps,
neither are the Sooke traps interfering with them. I do trust that I have
honestly presented the situation as it is put before us by those fishermen.

There is one other that I have not mentioned, and he did his fishing between
Jordon river and Race rocks, a distance of presumably 25 miles. I have not
charted it off, but I am about right. This is what he says:

In the first part of August I was gill-netting in the area from Jordon
river to Race rocks and caught about 400 sockeye. Some of these fish
were sold to Nelson Brothers Fisheries, Limited, for 58 cents each and
some to Sooke Harbour Canning Co. for 65 cents each. The fishing con-
ditions there are no worse than encountered in any open waters.
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Considering that the man fished when the tides were relatively of neap
character and not spring character, in the early part of August, he would not
have heavy tides to buck, but there is a 15 foot spread between datum marks
and highwater tide, spring tides, such as occur in and around the solstice in
June. For instance, on the 26th June, the tides were -1 foot below datum
mark and rose to 13-1 at the height. Therefore there is a spread of 13-2
there. But in August the half tide has a range—Ilet us take the 1st August; at
3.25 in the morning it was 4-5 feet; at 9.30 it was 10-5, a spread of 6 feet. At
14.58 o’clock it was around 5-9 and it rose at 21.28 o’clock to 13 feet, a very
different situation, showing that the fishing was easier during that period in
August than it would be at other portions of the fishing season. I just throw that
in, not as a very strong reference, because a good boat can handle these tides,
but the swirling of the tides of that water on a lee shore makes fishing difficult.

If you will refer to the pilot instructions issued by the United States
Marine Department you will discover that in reference to Juan de Fuca straits
they warn all ships entering Juan de Fuca straits to keep well into the centre
of the stream because of the set which is practically continuous towards the
lee shore, the north shore of the straits; so that when it is contended that this
is easy water, I say that all the evidence that I have been able to discover
is directly to the contrary. It is easy at times; it has easy tides, but if nothing
else, it by no means is an easy water. That is the position.

The CuarMaN: We have the privilege of sitting while the house is sitting
if we can keep a quorum.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I have to go.

Mr. PerieTier: I have to go.

The CraARMAN: When shall we meet again?

Mr. Hanson: I am ready to go on if we have a quorum.

Mr. Rem: That is the trouble from now on.

Mr. Tavror: If you can avoid the Banking and Commerce Committee
it will be all right. I have to be at the Banking and Commerce Committee
at its next meeting because I understand I go on next.

Hon. Mr. MicHaup: To-morrow at 10 o’clock.

Mr. Rem: I would rather meet at 2.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: At 10 to-morrow.

b tT}iel CrHAlRMAN: We shall try to put in an hour to-morrow morning from
to 11.

: 1(’)I‘he committee adjourned at 3 p.m. to meet to-morrow, Friday, May 12,
a @.m.






MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

House or ComMons, Room 429,
May 12, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 10 a.m. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CuamrMAN: Well, gentlemen, we have a quorum now. I think it is in
order for Mr. Taylor to go on and complete his brief.

Mr. Tavior: Before proceeding, Mr. Chairman, I should like to have
Mr. Neill identify the reference he made about me in his brief. At page 174
of this session’s proceedings, after pleading that he be allowed to make a state-
ment, be it good or bad, he says:—

I might give a very good illustration of that which is before me, and
which cost me a good half-hour’s work yesterday. Mr. Taylor made a
statement. He produced a blue book and discovered some error where
I said there were 219 traps on the American side one year. He produced
a blue book according to which there were only 203 ¢ :

I need not go into it any further, but I should like Mr. Neill to identify the
particular place in which I made all these statements. Can you do so?

Mr. Nemwn: Well, there are 22 hansards that I would have to go through.
Mr. TavLor: You are unable to do so?

Mr. NemwL: No, I am not unable to do so. It is a matter of common
knowledge, I should think here. I particularly remember Mr. Taylor—I am
addressing the chair—making the statement that I made there. He introduced
a blue book and kind of flourished it and he said: “Here are the real facts. In
1934 the traps were 203 in number.” That made me look rather like a fool or
a liar. Then, when I looked at the hansards—it took me a long time to do it—
I discovered the statement I had made was that the average for 1933 and 1934
was 219. Looking over the blue book he had in his hand I found in 1934
the number was 203; in 1933 the number was 235, and adding 203 and 235
together it gives a total of 438, and if you divide that by 2 you get the number
219. That is my statement, and I certainly stick to it. If Mr. Taylor says
it is not on the record in the last few days, it might have been made before the
reporter began or after he closed, but I think most members must remember
that statement.

Mr. Tavror: You permitted yourself to be distinguished in one of two
categories. Now, perhaps I will be permitted to recall the actual facts about
it. You were discussing the number of traps.

Mr. NmiLn: Address the chair.

Mr. Tavror: I was discussing the number of traps, Mr. Chairman, that
were issued to the Sooke people, and 1 said—

The CramrMAN: The number of licences?

Mr. Tavror: Exactly, trap licences, and I said the question had been that
there were 7 issued. I said no, 5. I was then asked where did I get my authority.
I said right here. The statement is found on page 79 of the annual report of
the Department of Fisheries. It is marked here by me for the very purpose
of showing it to you. Instead of my making any reference at all to 203, I was
dealing with an entirely different subject and I am bound to say right here that
some of the arguments advanced by Mr. Neill are all of the same class.

239
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I am going to show this morning how most of the argument against traps
can be defeated out of the mouths of those who are doing it.

Mr. Nemww: I suggest he go on, Mr. Chairman, without talking about it.

Mr. Tavror: On page 176 of these proceedings also, talking about Mr. Good-
rich Mr. Neill says—"he refers to my statement in the house about there being
219 traps and states that our catech had dropped from 80 per cent to 30 per
“cent, and then he proceeds to offset that, to show how erroneous it is (on
“page 34) he put in a statement of the Puget Sound and Fraser river sockeye
“packs; and that is on page 34, under date of January 30. Then on page 37,
“ only four days later, on February 4, he found it necessary to correct his positive
“statement and to say that it was all wrong and suggested to Mr. Taylor,
“we suggest you use the figures in this letter which-cannot be challenged by
“ anyone. He had already discovered on February 4 that his first statement was
“ all wrong,” impeaching Mr. Goodrich in his letter to me.

Now, there was no question of the statement being all wrong, because all
the statements were taken from official records. The first statement showed
the Fraser river figures and the Puget sound figures taken from Canadian
records and U.S. records; but Mr. Goodrich in order to be particularly fair
considered that he ought to add the Sooke trap catch as well and the second
list provided showed the three sets of figures. Please estimate that in its
proper light, because it has a value in the proceedings. That is another dog run
into its hole.

Mr. Nemn: Wait a minute. I did not catch that.

Mr. Tavror: Dog run into its hole.

Mr. MacNemL: Who is the dog?

Mr. NemLL: I did not get that. However, never mind.

Mr. RosicaAUD: Ground hog.

‘Mr. Tayror: In the proceedings of the Standing Committee of Monday,
April 17, many petitions were advanced.

Mr. Nemwn: What number?

Mr. Tayror: No. 2.

Mr. NemwL: What page?

Mr. Tavror: Towards the end where the petitions are advanced.

The CuAmRMAN: What page?

Mr. Tavror: On page 89 there is one, and on page 90 another. They have
been submitted from time to time. In examining these closely I find that every

one of them resolves itself into four arguments and they have all been presented
from the same foundation, every one of them.

Whereas: The fishermen on the Pacific coast have gone on record
many times in favour of the abolition of fish traps and other destructive
gear. ..

That is repeated in three of the petitions presented exactly in the same words or
varying them sligtly, and would show they were drafted originally by the same
individuals. That is the Prince Rupert Trades and Labour Council. The Queen
Charlotte City fishermen have exactly the same argument. The Prince Rupert
Trades and Labour Council have exactly the same argument. The New West-
minster City Council leave out the first argument and use the others, turning
them around so that it may not appear that they are exact copies.

Mr. Hanson: The fishermen originated it.

Mr. Tavror: The Vancouver, New Westminster, and District Trades and
Labour Council have exactly the same arguments, leaving out the first; the
Victoria and District Trade Labour Council have exactly the same arguments.
I want to point out here that all these are built from the one foundation, and
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it would appear that the whole thing is engineered by the workers to support
" the fishermen in their fight.

Mr. Hanson: The fishermen originated it; there is no doubt about that.

Mr. Tavror: I am not talking about that. Will you please let me go on?
You will have your opportunity to speak after I am through. The workers are
massing together for the purpose of getting this thing, whether it is right or
wrong. If they would pay a little more attention to the tenth Commandment,
quit their talk of the dictatorship of the proletariat and believe in the justice of
parliamentary procedure, we might get somewhere; and I say that in all kind-
ness. I come from working stock myself. For hundreds of years my mother’s
people have been fishermen. My father accompanied his father to the Aretic,
on an Arctic whaler when he was a boy of less than twelve years of age; and
because they did their best to place me where I am, I am not turning them
down now. My fight is not a fight merely for the fishermen because they are
fishermen, but a fight to bring right and justice to the conditions that have
obtained in“our country. That is what I am here for. Simply because a man
is a fisherman and wants to get another gear out of the way, I am not going
to support him. I do not intend to sit idly by and see others do it without
showing up what tricks they are resorting to.

It has been said that this is a monopoly, that it is something that ought to
be done away with. This is a legitimate business under the Acts in British
Columbia and in Canada. If a prospector discovers a piece of likely ground,
he immediately goes to the government and gets the right to work that ground.
It does not matter to anyone whether he takes a million or loses a million in
the prosecution of his work. He is secure in what he has obtained. If a timber
cruiser notices timber and gets a licence to cut it, it does not matter what profit
he makes out of it. If a man takes a strategic business site in the centre of
a city and makes a fortune out of it, nobody disturbs him. He has a perfect
right to do his work there. No number of fishermen or:workmen of any kind
can advance the plea satisfactorily that because a man has made money for
thirty-four years it is time he quit. That is not the way business is conducted.
That is not the way workmen are enabled to live in this country. A workman
has just as much right to get into a strategic position as the man who has made
his money in this particular situation.

I want to quote from Hansard in order that I may take this matter up
seriatum. Last night I opened this by reciting what Mr. Neill had said at page
1616. He took the line himself—

The Cramrman: Hansard of this year?

Mr. TayrLor: Yes, Hansard of this year. He took the line himself—

Mr. Nemwn: Wait a minute. Page 16, did you say?

Mr. Tavror: Page 1616.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Of Hansard. That is the report of the committee that
you have, Mr. Neill. He is quoting from Hansard of the House of Commons.

Mr. NeiLL: What is the date?

The CHAIRMAN: Page 1616.

Mr. Nemwwn: All right.

Mr. TAayror: March 2.

Mr. Nemww: If T said it, it will be all right anyhow. Go on.

Mr. Tavyror: He took the line himself that both his bill and his amendment

were the outcome of the work of a good general, who when defeated in one
place could retire to another.

Mr. NemL: You said that yesterday. I agreed with you.

Mr. Tavror: Will you call that gentleman to order, Mr. Chairman.
78605—4} :
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Mr. NemwL: There is a rule about tedious repetition.
The CrarmaN: It is all too interesting to do that.

Mr. Tayror: At page 1621 we have Mr. MaeNeil supporting Mr. Neill and
saying in contra-distinction to what Mr. Neill had already said:—

There is a distinet difference between the terms of his amendment
and the terms of the bill that now stands in his name for second reading.
I say there is an essential difference, and in that respect it cannot be
held that the amendment which the hon. gentleman has just read which
is now before the committee, anticipates in any respect the bill that stands
on the order paper.

Mr, MacNEiL: Would you add that I was discussing a point of order?

Mr. Tavror: You have got it recorded now. But Mr. Neill had accepted
his own position and you were trying to oust him from it.

On page 1617 Mr. Neill, continuing, stated:—

One of the greatest arguments that they advance is that the Dominion
of Canada has not kept faith with the written agreement and under-
standing between our fishermen and theirs.

Mr. NemL: Hear, hear.
Mr. Tayror: Continuing:—

They contend that they have taken out 219 traps, while we had not
taken out our four or five. This is the reason for the urgency. The
scope of this matter is comparatively small, but I do not know of
anything that has provoked so much ill feeling in the western states and
British Columbia.

Mr. MacNEiL: You are quoting whom?
Mr. Tayror: End quote.
Mr. NemwL: Quoting this bad man Neill.
Mr. MacNeiL: Oh, I see.

Mr. Tayror: Right on top of that I took the trouble to write to Mr.
Brennan and received a reply which reads as follows:—

STATE OF WASHINGTON
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

B. M. BrenNaN, Director
1308 Smith Tower
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON,
April 7, 1939.
Honourable J. S. TAYLOR,
Member of Parliament,
House of Commons,
Ottawa, Canada.

Dear Sir,—The total number of traps referred to in your letter as
having been licensed in 1934 is apparently erroneous in accordance with
our records. Instead of 219, we have 203 recorded in our statistical
tables. Of this number, we have a record of 96 having operated and
93 not operated. There are 14 locations missing in this record of operated
and not operated. We apparently have no report from these locations as
to whether or not they did or did not operate. Of the total 96 operated
for the year 1934, only 67 were operated in the waters related to the
Fraser river salmon migrations.
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It is entirely true that a number of locations were held that were
only driven as “ dummies” every four years to comply with the law.
These dummy locations, if operated, would not be a financial success
because of the high cost of driving the location. You appreciate that
the trap locations in Puget Sound cost from $5,000 to $25,000 a year to
drive; hence, it would take a considerable quantity of fish to pay for
the driving of the location. Thus, the location is held but not operated
in order that a location immediately above, which might be cheaper to
drive and is logically a better location, would catch more fish.

The number operated in 1934 is also higher than average in view
of the fact that the 1934 sockeye runs were expected to be above normal.
The records for the number operated in outside waters, or in the waters
related to the Fraser river, are as follows: 1933—53; 1932—29; 1931—
59. These figures are to be compared with the 67 quoted for the year
1934. :

If you wish any additional information, we will be glad to furnish it.
Yours very truly,

B. M. BRENNAN,
Director of Fishertes.

Mr. Rem: Does he give last year, Mr. Taylor, 1938? Or is he just deal-
ing with 1934, 1933, 1932 and 1931?

Mr. Tayror: Last year the traps were not operated, Mr. Reid.

Mr. Rem: There were none.

Mr. Nemn: His figures don’t jibe; if you take his 96 and 93 they make
-a total of only 189.

Hon. Mr. MiceAUD: He says there were fourteen more cases on which
he had no report.

Mr. NemwwL: Oh, that may be; I did not get that. That would account for
the difference.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Yes. I suppose, without knowing the details, it would
be very fair to assume that the rest of these licences were not operated, just as
they do in British Columbia.

Mr. TavrLor: At page 1624, towards the end of the first column of Hansard
of March 2nd, I quote. (And this is Mr. MacNeil speaking) :—

For reasons of conservation, and because there was a gentlemen’s
agreement in this respect between the Canadian and United States
authorities, the State of Washington abolished their traps by legislation
which became effective in 1935.

Mr. Nemwn: It sound somewhat better when he reads it than when you
stated it.

Mr. MacNEIL: Yes. :

Mr. Tayror: I have so many things before me, and so much to look
after——

Mr. NemwL: He puts a zest into it that I could not.

Mr. TavLor: The Pacific Coast News of March 10, 1939, is the next item:—

The proposals to reinstate a certain number of sockeye traps off
Point Roberts near the international boundary failed to succeed when
the state legislature prorogued without taking any action on the traps
measure. This means that traps will remain prohibited in state waters
until the house sits in 1941 when the matter may be re-opened.
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Thén, the Vancouver Sun of March 11:—

Olympia, Washington: (Special to the Vancouver Sun), March 11th,
Washington legislature prorogued yesterday without acting favourably
on the senate proposal to restore salmon traps at Point Roberts near the
Canadian boundary. The proposal to revive trap fishing even in a small
degree is outlawed in this state for another two years at least. Years ago
when Washington state canneries were able to gather in 75 per cent of
all the salmon caught that were headed for the Fraser river the traps
numbered in excess of 70. The recent proposal for the restoration of the
trap idea would have provided sites for only 8 traps, those all under the
lea of Point Roberts. The question of Canadian policy regarding traps
did not enter into the recent discussion. The fact that 5 traps were
maintained by Canadians at Sooke on Vancouver Island was not men-
tioned in discussion this year and was not a factor. The former system
of trap fishing in the states was abolished because of the fight made
against it by sport fishermen and individual commercial fishermen. They
won out against the trap fishing interests and for the same reason this
week’s defeat of the proposal to restore traps in the Point Roberts area
was a victory for the individual fisherman.

Mr. NerLL: Hear, hear.
Mr. Rem: Hear, hear.
Mr. Tayror: It is not a question of justice, it is a question of a fight.

Now, here is the Pacific Coast News of the 16th of March which has practically
the same statement that I quoted:—

A report from Olympia in the local daily press said the question of
Canadian policy regarding traps did not enter into the discussion.

In Hansard of this year at page 1625 Mr. Reid takes up the cudgels and does
not hesitate to stand four square to the same statement.

Mr. Rem: Thank you.
Mr. TayLor: He says:—

Last fall T took occasion to go down to Bellingham with a view to
finding out what the United States fishermen thought of the Canadian
traps. I found the opinion of the United States fishermen was similar to
that expressed by the hon. member for Comox-Alberni (Mr. Neill) and
the hon. member for Vancouver North (Mr. MacNeil). They felt that
the retention of traps in Canadian waters was being used by the United
States interests as an argument to again have traps in the United States
waters. That fight is going on at the present time. I say in all serious-
ness that if the traps are again brought into use in the United States
waters they can point to the traps in Canadian waters as something that
helped to bring that about.

Mr. MacNEiL: Hear, hear.
Mr. NemL: Hear, hear. :
Mr. Tayror: Don’t say hear, hear, until we are finished. Then, at page

1633 of the same issue of Hansard, the minister, the Hon. Mr. Michaud, said:—

No representations have been made as yet by the Canadian com-
missioners that traps should be removed. The hon. member for New
Westminster, speaking as a representative of the fishermen of the Fraser
river, has said that in his opinion these traps should be removed, but the
commission as such has not made any representation to the department
or to the government. I am sure the work of the commission has not
advanced sufficiently to justify it making any such representation.
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No representation. And now, reading again:—

I had occasion to meet officials from the Department of Fisheries
in the State of Washington and no representations were made. Since then
this government has appointed a commission known as the International
Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission, to study the best methods of
conservation.

And later:—

The commission has already commenced its work of studying the
best methods of conserving sockeye. :

Now I should like the members to evaluate Mr. Neill’s statement in the
_ light of what he said at page 1617 of Hansard of March 2:—

That is why I am so urgent and insistent that we should pass this
amendment to-night rather than wait for six, eight or perhaps twelve
weeks hence, even though the bill might pass at that time, in order to
get action. If we pass it now, the argument of those who want traps
restored to United States waters would be gone. The opponents of
traps would be able to say that now the conditions are fair. If we do
not do this, the chances are considerable that they will put back their
219 traps as against the four or five on this side.

It is important that we bear in mind all these errors that were advanced to
support the argument against the traps.
At page 1618, Mr. Neill again states:—

That will have the great advantage, if it passes to-night,—that is,
the amendment—that it will be telegraphed to Olympia and it will
save the situation there. That is the all-important thing.

Mr. NemwL: Hear, hear.

Mr. Tayror: “The general principle, too, is urgent, on account of the
work it will make for individuals—seiners, trollers, gill-netters.”

At page 1623, on the same date, Mr. Neill spoke as follows:—

We had this matter up before a committee of the house, and I :
remember very well one member of the committee said,  Mr, Minister,
you changed your policy, you refused to issue these licences beyond 1936,
and you have now changed your mind or your policy or both; will you
explain the reason for this change of mind.” But we have not heard
that reason yet, and I hope we may get it to-night. It will need to be a
pretty sound and substantial reason to combat the decision, carefully
arrived at, as the minister himself says, after full consideration and in
the light of all the circumstances, backed up by his officials, that these
traps must not be permitted after 1936, that they would be allowed
until that year as a concession to the vested interests.

~ That is answered by Hon. Mr. Michaud at page 1632 when he prefaced
his remarks by stating:—

_ Fish traps, co-called, have existed for a long time and have been
licensed by the dominion government continuously since 1904.

Later he stated:—

When I came to the department towards the end of 1935, I found
that an agitation had been going on for some time in British Columbia
seeking to remove these traps, and that the officials of the department
had considered recommending that this be done. Representations were
made to me; I looked over the records, and on the representations that
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were made and the evidence that was before me I thought they were
right, so in the early part of 1936 I wrote to the hon. member for Comox-
Alberni the letter which he has read this evening and which was before
the committee. ‘
In the summer of 1936, however, it was my privilege to visit British
Columbia and I attempted to become acquainted with the problems which
existed on that coast, and which were new to me. I studied the various
methods of fishing—trolling, purse-seining, gill-netting and catching fish
by means of traps. I walked all over those traps; I covered the whole
territory, I believe. I inquired from people in Viectoria and Vancouver
who I thought were capable of giving advice on the matter, and I found
that the agitation arose from competition between those practising the
various methods of fishing. Naturally the largest number think they are .
entitled to rule. The traps are operated by the capitalists, those who have
invested, I understand, over a million dollars in an industry which is a
credit to the country. They have kept that industry going and have
developed around it one of the most creditable villages that can be found
on the coast of British Columbia. I visited that village, which depends
entirely upon the fish traps at Sooke. I interviewed the fishermen. I
received a delegation from the returned men and another from the wives
and daughters of the returned men. I interviewed the clergyman, and
" after listening to all the representations that could be made I came back
convinced that if that industry were interfered with, the village at Sooke
would have to go on relief, because they had no other means of support.

The CumairmMAN: That rather condemns Mr. Robichaud’s argument.

Mr. RoBicaAaup: What was that?

The CmamrMAN: The argument that the public fishermen were making
more money than the Sooke fishermen; if the Sooke traps were put out of
business the men who are employed there would be in a better position because
they could fish the same as the ordinary fishermen.

Mr. Mayuew: But they cannot fish there.

Mr. RosicuAup: That was not my argument at all. I think my argument
was the other way about.

Mr. Tavror: May I be allowed to proceed?

The CaalRMAN: Yes.

- Mr. TayLor: At page 1617 of Hansard I notice another remark by Mr.
Neill: —
Since the Americans removed their 219 traps, our share of the catch
has run as high as eighty-six per cent.

And then follows this remarkable conclusion personal to himself:—

It would pay us as sharp-dealing people, let alone for reasons of .
fairness and humanity, to pension off the forty-one employees who are
engaged to operate these traps, although I think the number is less
than that, in order to retain such a high proportion of the salmon.

Mr. Nemwn: Hear, hear.

Mr. Tayror: All right, we will show you your error by and by; just keep
guiet.

Mr. Neww: It is too bad if a man cannot endorse his own statement.

Mr. Tayror: I should like to know precisely where Mr. Neill gets his
eighty-six per cent? The reports do not show it, and yet it has been iterated
several times by Mr. Neill. It may be that he is using a printer’s error de-
veloped in the records of two years ago.
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Mr. NewL: No, I would not do that.

Mr. TayLor: Where in answer to questions——
Mr. Nemwn: What page?

Mr. Tavror: At page 9 of the proceedings of 1937.
Mr. NemwL: Yes.

Mr. TayLor: Mr. Ryan asked Dr. Found:—

By Mr. Ryan:

Q. You are speaking of the trap fishing now?—A. No, I am speak-
ing of the catch of sockeye on the two sides. Prior to the traps going
out on the American side, as a general rule we were getting a great
deal smaller proportion of the run. When the traps went out the pic-
ture changed. There is no question about that. The picture changed
in these two years from twenty-eight to thirty per cent to 53-6 per cent
in 1935. In 1936 we got slightly over eighty per cent.

Mr. Nemr: And on page 11 he said eighty-six per cent.
Mr. TavLor: And on page 11, in answer to Mr. Reid, Dr. Found said:—

A. T am speaking of sockeyes alone. Let that be clearly understood.
In 1935 these traps took 73,103 fish when we got 53-43 per cent; in
1936 took only 44,336 when we got 86 per cent.

Mr. NemwL: There you are.

Mr. Tavror: But I say that is a printer’s error because again on page 13
in answer to Mr. Neill the witness said:—

To come back to the taking of fish, I think it may safely be taken
as an indication that 80 per cent of the fish that were taken by these
traps, if those traps were not there, would have passed on to the United
States side.

Oh, no, that is not the point.
Mr. Nemwu: No.

Mr. Maynew: Mr. Taylor, would you permit me to ask Mr. Whitmore
a question right here?

Mr. Tavror: Surely.

A. J. WHITMORE recalled

By Mr. Mayhew:

Q. Has there not been a change in the run of the salmon at just about
that period? Instead of going down the west coast of Vancouver Island they
are coming down the east coast of Vancouver Island, in which case the salmon
would never get as far south as Point Roberts where they had originally been. If
they come down the west coast of the island they are then below the forty-ninth
parallel and naturally their swing is into the Point Roberts area. But if they
come down the inside channel or the east side of Vancouver Island they never
get that far south before they reach the Fraser river. Does that not account
fort it?—A. That phase was, I think, dealt with pretty fully in the 1937 evi-
dence. There always has been a small run of sockeye down what we know
as the inside passage. In 1936, however, the run instead of by the usual route,
the Juan de Fuca straits, was very much larger. To what extent it increased
the share we got of the Fraser river runs in 1936 I am not prepared to say,
but unquestionably it increased our share much more than normal.

Q. That had quite a bearing on the large percentage of fish—not the
moving of the fish but the changing of the run of the fish that year, did it
not?—A Yes, that is so. :
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By Mr. Hanson: e
Q. That is the only year on record they had such a big run on the east

coast of Vancouver Island?—A. Yes, the following year, 1937, there was a
very  fair run too. 4

By Mr. Neill:
Q. In 1938, what happened?—A. There was nothing out of the ordinary.
Q. That was a phenomenal, abnormal run that might never occur again
in 100 years. ,
Mr. MayaeEw: You were very bright not to point that out in your argument.
You wanted to stick to your 80 per cent.

Mr. Nemww: I did not point it out.
Mr. Maysew: I would not point it out either if I were in your place.

By the Chairman:

Q. Mr. Whitmore, do you agree with Mr. Mayhew’s statement that the
fish have changed their habits in not coming down the same way?

Hon. Mr. Micuavp: We will see next year.

The WiTness: Yes, we will see next year. The cycle runs on a four-year
cycle basis, 1936 and 1940, and we will watch developments very closely.

By the Chairman:

Q. The last one you thought had changed to some extent, did you?—A. in
the 1936 run there was no question that a very large percentage came down.

By Mr. Neill:

Q. Were those fish that came down the inside passage, the late run, the same
quality and the same type as the regular run?—A. No, the fish that came
down the inside passage were good quality fish. They came down in August,
reached the mouth of the Fraser river in the second or third week in August,
and produced a very fine quality pack.

Q. Were the biggest of them the late run?—A. Not that particular run.

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: They came there at the time we were on the coast, and
it was the latter part of July, if I recall.

Mr. Tavior: May I proceed? The note I wanted to bring up was the
statement I put in at page 1628 of Hansard showing the pack of Fraser river
sockeyes caught in the Fraser river, the Sooke trap-nets and Puget Sound, and
it does not show anything like 86 per cent. These figures are authentie, taken
from the record of the Uinted States and the Canadian report. There is so
much to traverse in this matter that one has to go ahead very carefully. At
page 1624—

Mr, Nemwn: Of Hansard?

Mr. Tavror: Yes, of Hansard—quoting, Mr. MacNeil said:—

The average Canadian share of the Fraser river sockeye salmon
pack prior to 1935 was about 30 per cent.

Mr. MacNEemwL: The average?

Mr. Tavror: The average. As a matter of fact, the average run was from
thirty-three to thirty-five. “In 1936, our average rose to 53 per cent . . . .
Actually it was 72-2 and 1-7 or a total of 73-9. :

“In 1937 it was about 80 per cent.” Actually it was 60-1 and 3-7 or a total
of 63-8.

“And T am reliably informed that last season it was over 60 per cent.”
Actually it was 54-1 and 1-2 or a total of 55-3. Is that correct, Mr. Whitmore?

[Mr. A. J. Whitmore.]
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The WirnEss: Yes, that figure is borne out by the statement the department
handed in at page 24 of report No. 1. N s

Mr. Tavror: Thank you.

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. Are those figures obtained from the department?—A. The figures in the
statement, on page 24, report No. 1?

Q. The evidence given by Dr. Found before the committee corroborated my
statement made in the house as to the Canadian percentage of the Fraser river
pack?—A. That would be Dr. Found’s statement made in the 1937 committee.
They would be departmental figures.

By Mr. Neill:
Q. Eighty-six per cent?—A. No. I am afraid our figures do not bear out
that 86 per cent, as you will see on this statement on page 24—
Q. Dr. Found did say that, did he not?—A. It is reported, as Mr. Taylor
read, as 86 per cent in one place.
Mr. Tavror: It is also reported as 80 per cent in exactly the same circum-
stances and I say that 86 is a misprint. ,

Mr. NemL: He refers more than once to 86 per cent.
Mr. Tavror: No. I can find only one reference.
Mr. NuLn: Only one at 80 per cent.

Mr. Tavror: I want to prove that you are making statements which are
not substantiated.

Mr. NemLL: Not at all. It was 86 per cent. Mr. Found swore to it twice.
_ Mr. Tavror: At page 1718 Mr. Neill advances a strange argument:—

The fish come round a headland and make for the Fraser river.
They go around the shore line and they come up to a lead, as it is called,
which may be 600 feet or 6,000 feet long... The law is that for 48 hours
in the week this mouth or gate here must be closed. The gate must be
closed. ..

That is the gate to the trap.

The gate must be closed; but as the fish come along on Friday and
Saturday nights and find they cannot get through, they simply mill
around and around. You or I would go down around one side or the
other and get past the traps, but that is not fish nature. They simply
mill around, and their instinet guides them until they start up again,
when they again hit this lead. Then they mill around again. “They are
millers—not fish.” On Monday morning there are just three times as
many fish as there were on Friday morning. 90 per cent of the fish stay
there. That is what the wing is intended for.

If we are to believe that actually as it is stated, then we must believe that
fish cannot swim in the sea or go from one place to another, because the lead is
nothing more than a simulated headland stuck out into the water, and the fish
are -.quite able to go around any obstacle, and they do. It is part of their
business to reach their spawning grounds, and nothing will be allowed to
interfere with that. Many animals, birds and insects are the same; they have
the same stubborn homing nature. The lead can only be operated when it is
definitely working. If it is open they will find their way through, if it is closed
they will find their way around.

Mr. Rem: I think that can be disputed later on.

Mr. Tavror: I am stating it right now.
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Mr. MacNeiL: You are not suggesting that the fish go by a direct route
from the sea to the spawning grounds, are you? Do they not linger?

Mr. Tavror: That is precisely what I am not suggesting. It does not
matter how many little twists or turns they have to navigate, they have their
ultimate objective always in mind, and they go there.

Mr. MacNeiL: Do they not school from time to time?

Mr. TavyrLor: No. I think Mr. Whitmore will answer that.

By Mr. Taylor:

Q. Mr. Whitmore, will you kindly give us the difference between schooli
and massing up?—A. It is characteristic of the salmon runs that they do schol:ﬁ
at certain points occasionally coming in the Juan de Fuea straits. At times
they will be massed in schools; at other times that condition will not be found.
Then again they school at the mouth of creeks, preparatory to going up to spawn.
I may say the salmon purse seine gear is mainly successful because of the
schooling characteristics of salmon. If salmon did not school the purse seine
- could not be successfully operated inasmuch as the principle of operation is
encircling the fish. The salmon purse seine is not successful in all waters of
the province; only in certain areas where it is found that fish do school do they
make their catches.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Now it is schooling time for us.

Mr. MacNEeiL: Shall we meet at the call of the chair?

The CHAIRMAN: When do we meet again? Shall we try to meet to-morrow
morning?

Mr. Tavror: 10 o’clock to-morrow?

Mr. MacNEeiL: The call of the chair. .

The Cramrman: We will try to meet to-morrow morning at 10 o’clock.

The committee adjourned at 11 a.m. to meet Monday, May 15, at 2 p.m.
















SESSION 1939
HOUSE OF COMMONS

STANDING COMMITTEE

ON

'MARINE AND FISHERIES

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE

No. 8

MONDAY, MAY 15, 1939

OTTAWA
J. O. PATENAUDE, 18.0.
PRINTER TO THE KING’S MOST EXCELLENT MAJESTY
1939






MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Monpay, May 15, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 2 p.m.
The Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean (Prince), presided.

Members present: Mrs. Black and Messrs. Clark (Essex South), Farquhar,
Green, Hanson, Kinley, MacLean (Prince), MacLean (Cape Breton North-

Victoria), MacNeil, McAvity, Michaud, Neill, Reid, Robichaud, Taylor

(Nanaimo), Telford, Veniot, and White—19.

In attendance: Mr. A.-J. Whitmore, Head of the Western Division,
Department of Fisheries.

The Committee resumed its study of trap-net fishing.

Mr. Neill placed on the record, along with a resolution, a letter dated
May 11, 1939, from the Greater Vancouver Youth Council.

The Honourable Mr. Michaud, reverting to the briefs already submitted,
suggested that the matter of trap-net fishing be referred to a judicial commission
for investigation, including the taking of evidence under oath, and that this
committee should so recommend to the House.

After discussion, Mr. Mayhew moved that the Minister’s suggestion be
adopted. The motion was carried.

On motion of Mr. Kinley,—

Resolved,—That a sub-committee be appointed to draft an order of refer-
ence for the suggested judicial commission and report to this committee, that
all British Columbia members of this committee be appointed to the said sub-
committee.

The motion was carried unanimously.

It was suggested that Mr. Whitmore give his assistance in preparing the
order of reference. ¢

At 3 o’clock, the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE,
Clerk of the Commattee

78028—13%
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House or CoMMONS

Room 429, May 15, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 2 p.m. The
Chairman, Mr. A. E. MacLean, presided.

The CramrMAN: Ladies and gentlemen, I think we have a quorum.

Mr. Hanson: I think we should be complimented on having one lady
member.

The Cuairman: Yes, I think we should put that on record. If there is
nothing anyone wants to bring before the committee immmediately, we will have
Mr. Taylor proceed.

Mr. NemL: I have a letter I should like to put on record if I may?

Mr. Rem: Probably it is the same resolution that has come to the rest
of us.

Mr. NemLn: It is from the Greater Vancouver Youth Council and dated
May 11, 1939, and reads as follows:—

Dear Sir:—

At the recent British Columbia Youth Congress held at Vancouver,
April 7-10th, 232 delegates from 56 major youth organizations repre-
senting a total of 45,113 young people met to discuss the many vital
issues facing them.

The following resolution was passed referring to the fishing problem:

WHEREAS the dominion government in 1937 passed legislation prohibit-
ing fish traps in B.C. waters, but allowed seven trap sites located at
Sooke, Vancouver Island, to remain; and

WHEREAS there is no guarantee that at some future date trap interests
may not have this legislation revoked and traps legalized in any part of
B.C. coastal waters, and

WHEREAS we consider that Canada’s insistence on allowing seven traps
at Sooke after the State of Washington had removed 219, constitutes a
convinecing argument for trap interests in that state to have them restored,
and

WHEREAS the State of Washington has again this year voted traps out,
while our government has just issued licences again for the operation of
the Sooke traps, for the 1939 season, though they are still held up,—

These words, “though they are still held up” are a mistake. The licences were
being held up, but they are not held up now.
—and

WHEREAS there is an amendment now before the federal house, calling
for complete elimination of the Sooke traps in 1940,

THEREFORE be it enacted by the youth of B.C. in congress assembled
that this Youth Congress respectfully petition the dominion government
to pass the necessary legislation during the present session prohibiting
the taking of salmon by means of traps in the waters of B.C., from 1940
on; and that we forward a copy of this resolution with our official endor-
sation to the Honourable J. E. Michaud, M.P., Minister of Fisheries.
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This is the considered opinion of the young people of this province
and the outcome of the present debate will be watched with consider-
able interest.
Yours sincerely,

(Signed) J. S. HUNDAL,
General Secretary.

45,000 are a good many people out of the population of British Columbia.

: Mr. Tayror: That petition is precisely on all fours with all the resolutions
that have been filed actually, almost the same words.

Mr. Rem: You had better associate my name with that petition, too.
Mr. Tavror: That comes from a common source.

The CuamrmaNn: Mr. Reid has a similar resolution.

Mr. Haxson: I have one, too.

The Crarman: Which he wishes to file also. :

Mr. Rem: Just associate my name with the same resolution.

Mr. Hanson: I have one too.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Mr. Chairman, before Mr. Taylor is asked to proceed

with the presenting of his views as opposed to the views presented by Mr. Neill,
I would ask Mr. Taylor if he would mind if I be allowed to say a word or two?

Mr. Tavyror: Surely.

Hon. Mr. Mricuaup: This question which has been before the committee
for some time is very intricate, and I am sure to those who are not familiar
with conditions on the coast it is hard for them to decide, just as hard as it
has been for myself in the last three years and for my predecessors. We have
had many sittings and we have heard what I would call hearsay evidence on
both sides. We have had a brief presented by those who are in favour of the
traps, and we have had a brief presented by the unionized fishermen of the
coast. We have first the North Island Trollers’ Cooperative; second, the Pacific
Coast Fishermen’s Union; third, Salmon Purse Seiners Union, local 141; and
fourth United Fishermen’s Union, local 44; and finally I have a letter endors-
ing the attitude of these people by the Youth Congress, I believe, of the prov-
ince of British Columbia.

Mr. Rem: And the B.C.F.P.A.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think also we have had representations from the
gill-netters, at least through Mr. Reid, who claims to represent most of the
gill-netters of the Fraser river.

Those who have read the brief presented by the organized fishermen must
have noted the conclusion, the last paragraph of the brief which reads as
follows:—

The Associations above named believe that only by securing the
fullest evidence from all points of view can the Minister reach a satis-
factory conclusion in the matter of fishing traps.

In order to enable all interested parties to present their views
fairly, openly, and in a straightforward manner, it is now proposed that
public inquiries be instituted by the department, with hearings in Van-
couver, Victoria, New Westminister and such other fishing communi-
ties as are agreed upon by the department in consultation with fisher-
men’s associations.

Adequate advance notice should of course be given of these hearings
and the minutes should be recorded and made available to the publiec.

Only by adopting this procedure can the Department of Fisheries
obtain a true and unbiased picture of the situation and thus be enabled
to recommend the necessary legislation to the next session of parlia-
ment.
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It is finally proposed that the public inquiry urged above should be
held throughout the fishing season of 1939 and should extend until such
time as all parties desiring to be heard have presented their views.

It is a diffieult question to decide and I have felt right along that it is
possible that the minister has not had all the information that he should have
had in order to come to a satisfactory conclusion, and for some time I have
thought of having the matter gone into more fully on the ground when all
parties interested could be summoned to give their evidence under oath.

It will be impossible for myself, and I think it would not be accepted by
all interested if I delegate my powers to an official of the department, to
make that inquiry. And I have thought that in order to act fairly with all
concerned we should have the matter referred to an unbiased, unprejudiced
tribunal for investigation. My view would be to refer the matter to a judicial
commissioner to be investigated as soon as the session closes so that the people
interested have a chance to present their views in sufficient time before the
next session of parliament and the recommendation of the commissioner or the
tribunal be implemented at the next session. I am throwing out this sugges-
tion with a possible view to curtailing the work of this committee for the
present, and also to facilitate the work of members of parliament, and mem-
bers of the committee; that this matter be referred for investigation to a royal
commission or a commissioner appointed under the Inquiries Act, and my
views would be in order to have as independent a tribunal as is possible, to
have a judge either of the supreme court, the superior court or the county
court for the province of British Columbia investigate this matter and give
a chance to all interests to appear before him and present their evidence under
oath; and the department, or so far as I am concerned, will be satisfied and
willing to abide by the recommendation of that body.

Mr. Tayror: Would that be a one man commission?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: If a judge were appointed I think it would be a one
man commission, With respect to the appointment of laymen for that work,
I am afraid it would be difficult to find any man or three men among lay-
men who would be considered absolutely unprejudiced or unbiased and be
satisfactory to all sides, but if we select a judge who is independent of all
parties and who does not have to depend either for his position or for his
profession on the public we shall be more likely to have an unprejudiced and
independent opinion. That is my suggestion to the committee.

Mr. Remp: While there is considerable merit in the suggestion, on hearing
this in committee for the first time I am of opinion that a judge might know
very little in particular about fishing, and unless he had sitting with him
another person who was familiar with the fisheries in British Columbia the
judge might not be able to get full information. Those are my views at the
moment.

Mr. Haxson: He would have the benefit of all the evidence that has been
presented to this committee in the last three or four years.

Mr. NemwL: If you appoint a three-man commission one would have to
be a representative of the traps, one would have to be a representative of the
fishermen, and the other would preside, with the result that in the final analysis
the decision will be made by the chairman; so you might as well start with
the chairman and have him a judge. That is what it would amount to. A
judge would be supposed to be impartial and he could get his information from
the evidence before him and there would be representatives to put up the case
for both sides. I personally would regret very much to see this thing done.
I hardly think it is justified. We have been listening to this subject for three
years—both sides of it. We have had the sworn evidence of Mr. Found and
Mr. Goodrich at great length which could not be improved upon or extended
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from bodies which are not lightly set aside. For instance, there is this civie
very much. We have had numerous petitions, not only from fishermen but
body from Vancouver; then there are the boards of trade and chambers of
commerce from Vancouver, Prince Rupert and other important points; and
finally to-day there is this petition from the youth council. The thing has gone
beyond the scope of a little fishermen’s dispute now, it is a provinecial matter.
The minister says he wants to have evidence. We have all the evidence in one
form or another likely to be presented, and this committee is supposed to be
impartial; and if we cannot decide it is rather a reflection on our ability. We
have been sitting for three years and we can’t make up our minds, and now we
are going to turn it over to be all heard again by men totally unfamiliar with the
matter.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: If you take the evidence which has been presented
before us in committee since 1937 and make an analysis of it you will find
that we have had the evidence under oath of one man representing the trap
owners, one of the owners, and against that we have had the evidence under
oath of two men, one from the organized fishermen, and the other man had very
little experience. And in 1937 I think the committee was satisfied that the
evidence was not sufficient to justify any definite attitude, and they so decided.
Since then all we have had are petitions which, as members of the committee
know, are very easy to get, but we have had no direct evidence under oath by
those who are opposed to the traps. As far as I am concerned I would not
feel T was discharging the duties of my office if T were to act without giving
every opportunity to all parties to present their views under oath, and to
substantiate them. And for that reason I think we should have more evidence.
It is not possible to bring these people from the Pacific coast down here for
examination under oath, but I think it is proper and possible to refer this
question to a body, a tribunal of one or three men—the number is immaterial—
so that the matter may be fully investigated on the ground, and afford an
opportunity for interested parties on both sides to appear before a tribunal
properly constituted to investigate the whole thing, as it should be investigated.

Mr. Rem: Might T ask this question, Mr. Chairman, of the minister: would
you be prepared to abide by a recommendation of that kind and carry it out?

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: Certainly, most certainly.

Mr. Haxson: He has said he would.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Certainly. That is the purpose I had in mind in
making this suggestion. As far as I am concerned, it would enable me to come
to a decision and at the same time satisfy me that I am not doing an injustice
to anybody. I want to do justice to everyone concerned in this matter.

Mr. Mayaew: I think that the suggestion of the Minister is a good one,
but my argument during this debate has been based on the belief that fishing
cannot be carried on in this area during the whale-fishing season. I would
therefore be glad to have it properly investigated. It would be necessary to
get more than just a report. It would be necessary to include a report of
weather conditions in that area during the fishing season, because if they are
not able to fish, then our contentions that the traps should stay there are right.

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: That is one of the arguments that has been advanced
in favour of the traps. This is a matter which cannot be investigated by the
committee right here in Ottawa. It is a matter that can only be investigated
by a tribunal of men who can go on the spot and verify for themselves whether
the statements are correct or not.

Mr. Mavuew: If that investigation is earried out so that weather reports
can be incorporated as to fishing conditions during the fishing season, I for one
would be thoroughly satisfied with that arrangement.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: This is a matter, of course, which concerns most
vitally the British Columbia members. The selection of the tribunal could be
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made in consultation with the British Columbia members, and the order of
reference could be framed after consultation with the British Columbia mem-
bers. The points to be investigated could be outlined in the order of reference
and we could include all the points that the British Columbia members have
in mind pertaining to this intricate question. ;

Mr. GreenN: One of the most serious features, in my opinion, is the danger
of the Americans putting back their traps. If that is done, our fishermen will
be very much affected, and I doubt very much whether a tribunal such as the
minister suggests could go into that aspect of the matter. After all, it is really
a question for the members to decide. The responsibility rests right here.

"~ Mr. TayLor: Mr. Chairman, that remark just shows how inefficient the
opposition have been in presenting the charge against the traps. It is a well-
known fact that the convention established the fact that British Columbia
sockeye fishing had been depleted almost to the point of negligibility, and that
the high governments of both countries had determined that there should be an
equal division of the fish from the Fraser river area. With that in mind as one
of the strongest arguments the Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission was estab-
lished. My work here, Mr. Chairman, has been simply taking up the state-
ments in one form or another of the opponents of the traps and refuting them
by the definite evidence that can be disecovered in publications of record.

Mr. NeLL: 1 object to that statement; it is not correct.
Mr. Rem: He means endeavouring to refute the statements.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is exactly the point. We are no further ahead
than when we started. We have had some members of the committee making
statements considered to be facts but which were merely statements of opinion
possibly based on facts. On the other hand, some other members refute those
allegations by counterstatements. I do not feel that the committee would be
justified in coming to a decision in the nature of a permanent policy for the
future simply on these statements of opinion. My suggestion is for the purpose
of either verifying or substantiating those statements and counterstatements
by evidence taken on the spot under oath from people who are vitally interested
and concerned in the matter.

Mr. Tayror: Providing there is proper representation on the commission
then I should be quite satisfied because, personally, I want nothing more than
the truth in these findings. I entered into- this business not because I was the
mouthpiece of any trap owner but because I was convinced of the correctness
of my stand, and I followed that up in spite of very definite opposition of a
peculiar character. But I should be very willing to support the minister’s sug-
gestion if that commission can be properly representative and properly able to
do its work.

Mr. MacNEeiL: I understood the minister to suggest a judge.

Hon. Mr. MicuAaup: I suggested a judge. Some members have suggested
that a judge should be assisted by a representative of the owners of traps and
also by a representative of the opposition. I feel that it would not be practic-
able. I think if we had a good judge—they have to decide more difficult things
than that in the courts—we can expect to have a very, very good report and
very valuable suggestions, and no doubt I would have to abide by the recom-
mendation.

Mr. NemL: Would the minister permit the terms of reference to be wide
enough to take in what might be called the “political angle” as mentioned by
Mr. Green, not exactly as between the fishermen and trap owners, but the
bigger angle of international relationship?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Certainly.

Mr. QREEN: It seems to me that is a matter for the house to act upon and
not for a judge.
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: If a judge, after taking the evidence of those advancing
arguments and possibly looking into what has transpired on the American side
of the line for the last four or seven years, recommends that the maintenance of
traps there would induce the Americans to revert to their former policy of
licensing traps and that it would be against public interest and the interest of
the fishermen of British Columbia, there is no doubt that we would have to
abide by such a recommendation.

Mr. NemwL: Mr. Minister, here is another question: Supposing we took a
vote now and go against the traps, what would the minister’s action be, or what
would your attitude be?

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: If you voted the traps out my attitude would be to
look into the matter. But if the committee through legislation ties my hands
completely I will simpy have to abide by their decision and my hands will
remain tied until they are untied. But I do not think it would be fair, Mr.
Neill, for the committee or parliament to take that attitude on the evidence that
has been brought before it.

Mr. Hansox: Mr. Chairman, I think that if we have established nothing
else we have at least established during the last two years—if I understand the
evidence—that 95 per cent of the fishermen in British Columbia are against
traps. I also think we have established that at least 80 per cent of the
population of British Columbia are against fish traps. Taking into consideration
the representations from boards of trade and the resolutions which we have had
from public bodies, I am convinced that 80 per cent of the population of British
Columbia are against fish traps. '

Mr.Tayror: I deny that.

Hon. Mr Micuaup: That is being disputed, Mr. Hanson, and even if it were
true, I do not think I would be discharging the duties of my office if I were to
deprive certain persons of their natural right to use that method of fishing just
because there is a greater number on the other side interested in depriving them
of those rights or claiming that they should be deprived. The very purpose of
parliament, in fact, the very purpose of our being here, is to prevent such things
happening.

Mr. Tavyror: Hear, hear.

Hon. Mr. Micaaup: Because if the argument was simply that those who do
not use or resort to that method of fishing are opposing it because they want to
have them disappear, I feel it would be our duty to prevent that sort of thing.
It is the duty of parliament. That is the reason for the existence of parliament,
to prevent that sort of thing. There are better arguments than that advanced.
The argument of conservation is the only one that should be considered by us,
the conservation of the fisheries of British Columbia. That is the very thing
I want: to have investigated. Ancillary to that the suggestion has been made
by Mr. Green that the fact of keeping the traps there might cause the traps to
be instituted again in the border line waters of the United States thus further
depleting the amount of sockeye salmon, which is now very low. That is part
of the conservation argument that has been advanced.

Mr. RosicHAUD: Mr. Chairman, as an eastern member and one not directly
interested in this controversy, I must say that in spite of the fact that I have
read the evidence given in 1937—because I was not a member of the committee
then—and in spite of the fact that I have read it most thoroughly, almost tiring
my eyes out this last couple of weeks, and in spite of what I have heard here in
committee, to tell vou the truth, if it came to a vote, I eould not vote on this
question intelligently and be able to explain my vote either way. That is the
way I feel about it. I should like to give an intelligent and conscientious vote,
whether in the house or in the committee, as far as the merit of the case is
concerned.
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One of the big points that came up here was that it was depriving men of
employment, that if you did not have the traps you would have more employ-
ment. I do not know—I may be all wrong—but I took the figures that I saw
in the reports and I think I showed the other day that the figures would be the
other way, that the traps and the cannery of that firm gave more employment
in proportion to the fish they canned than the rest of the fishing industry.
Another big point that was made here was, it seems to me, that it was a special
privilege granted to certain persons. Well, as a democrat, I think there is
nothing that would have more weight with me than the matter of special
privilege. I certainly am not for granting anybody special privileges. But as
I remarked the other day, to my mind this is not a special privilege to any
persons. It is a district special privilege. If you want to call it a special
privilege, it is a district special privilege. It is not people. It is not a firm
that has a special privilege. It is the district. For what reason? It is
advanced—and I do not know whether it is true; it seems to me it is true—
that it is the only kind of fishing that can be done in that district. Therefore
the special privilege is to the district. That is the way it strikes me. It is not
to individuals, whether it be just one man or a big firm of capitalists or the
fishermen themselves. Suppose the fishermen should buy this plant of Todd’s,
and wish to run that plant on a co-operative plan. Would you say that was a
special privilege to the co-operative? No, I would say that is a special privilege
to the district, because they cannot fish in any other way. That is the way it
strikes me. As an eastern member, I should like to vote one way or the other
on this thing if I could. But really, conscientiously, I can tell you that I could
not to-day give an intelligent vote and explain my reason for that vote one way
or another. I think the suggestion of the minister is really a providential
suggestion, an inspirational one. I think it would go a long way towards solving
this question. I think you would do away with a whole lot of things that
perhaps are not there—things that are exaggerated; a whole lot of chaff—and we
would come down to the truth of the whole matter. I believe that a judge of
the supreme court or the county court, or of the superior court or county court,
would be more competent than a layman or two or three laymen or two or three
coupled with a judge. I think it would be better just to have one judge. We
had an investigation in Nova Scotia a couple of years ago with one judge. Of
course, he had counsel with him to prepare the case, get the witnesses and the
evidence. We could have two counsel if we wanted to, one on one side and one
on the other. If you thought one was not getting the evidence, the counsel on
the other side would get it out. But I think really the judge—who is beyond
politics, who can be absolutely neutral-—would be the solution to the matter. I
should like to see a vote to that effect, and I would support it.

Mr. NemL: Let us bring this thing to a head. The minister has made a
proposal. It is on record that there are certain members from British Columbia
interested in this matter, of whom five are against the traps and two are favour-
ing them. We have more or less divided into two parties on that matter. We
have gone to a lot of trouble, the five men against the traps, getting out
evidence, attending the meetings here and so on. It would be perhaps only fair
to us to give us at least a run for our money. I would make this simple
suggestion which I am sure the minister would see his way clear to agree to, that
we take a vote here and if it goes in favour of the traps, that we accept the
minister’s offer.

Mr. Tayror: I object to that, Mr. Chairman.

.Hon. Mr. Micuaup: No, I do not think it would be fair to pass a vote in
favour of the traps and then refer the matter. I am not asking that.

Mr. NemLi: I was not asking that either.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That is what T understood you to say.
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Mr. Mayaew: There is no use in being foxy about things. What we want
is a square deal all the way around. : ,

Mr. NeiLL: What is the word you used?

. Mr. Mayuew: I said there was no use trying to be foxy about the thing, or
being foxy. We might as well try to get a square deal about it, and that is all.

Mr. NemwL: You are addressing yourself to me, are you?

Mr. Mayuew: I am addressing myself to you through the chair, yes.

Mr. NemwL: There is no need to' be what?

Mr. MayHEW: I say there is no need to be foxy about it at all. That is
a very foxy suggestion of yours, but we are not quite so stupid as to accept it.

Mr. NemLL: I thought it was a fair suggestion.

Mr. Mayuew: No.

Mr. NemwL: We have been talking about this matter for three years and
we have five representatives here now. Why not take a vote? If the minister
says he will not agree with it, then I guess we will have to accept this thing
with the consent of our colleagues. I expect the best we can do is to accept the
minister’s offer and hope that good may come out of it.

Mr. Tayror: I am perfectly content. '

Mr. Mavuew: I quite agree with the minister’s suggestion. What we
want is fairness in the thing. We want to get the evidence. I would be pre-
pared to support that.

Hon. Mr. MicaAuD: I think what Mr. Neill intended to suggest was that
a vote be taken on my suggestion.

Mr. Mayuew: That is all right.

: ; Mr. Nemwn: I am afraid to open my mouth for fear my friend will think
it foxy. ;

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: That is what you intended to suggest. There is no
doubt of that.

Mr. NemLL: I suggest that we know when we are beaten. We will accept
the minister’s suggestion and hope that good may come out of it.

Mr. Mayuew: Is there going to be a closed season on fish traps? I notice
there was not one in the house the other night. It was introduced again.

Mr. NrmL: Yes.

Mr. Mayuaew: Will this mean a closed season for fish traps?

Mr. NemwL: Mr. Mayhew has well suggested a further point of reference
which should be considered, in connection with doing away with fishermen in
connection with naval reserves. That is a point which would have to be included
in the reference.

The CuAmRMAN: Your department would be quite willing to allow counsel
on both sides?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.

Mr. NemL: No fishermen, no naval reserves; if there are no fishermen,
there would be no naval reserves.

Hon. Mr. MicuAup: But there is no intention of doing away with the
fishermen.

Mr. Nemwn: It will if you do not do away with the traps.

Hon. Mr. MicuaAuD: You know better than that. You know that the traps
that have been licensed there have not done away with any number of fishermen.

Mr. Green: Would it help to appoint a sub-committee to draft the refer-
ence—to help the minister draft reference?

Hon. Mr. MicHAUD: Yes.
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Mr. Green: To assist the minister in drafting that reference?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: We have seven members from British Columbia here
as members of the committee. Why should they not be appointed as a sub-
committee to help draw up the reference? We have seven members from the
province of British Columbia who are members of this committee and are inter-
ested in this matter.

The CuamrMaN: We have seven members from the province of British
Columbia on this committee who are interested in this matter.

Mr. Hanson: The majority of three to one is giving in now not to take
a vote to-day. The majority against fish traps in British Columbia is practically
seven to five or three to one, and we are giving up to a minority. However, I
am in favour of the minister’s suggestions because I think it is proper that
there should be a fair decision in this matter and everybody should get a good
break. A parliamentary committee has been sitting on this matter for three
years and we have not been able to straighten it out, so we shall have to have
somebody else do it.

Mr. Rem: If the reference covers all the arguments pro and con it will
be all right.

Mr. Kixrey: Do I understand that the British Columbia members have
accepted the suggestions of the minister?

Mr. Mayaew: I move that the suggestion of the minister be accepted.
Mr. KiNLey: It is up to the British Columbia members. I am going to

make a motion that the reference to the sub-committee be dealt with by the
members from the province of British Columbia.

Mr. TayLor: I cannot agree with that. First of all, I will ask the minister
if the government will provide counsel for each side, or should both sides be
expected to provide their own counsel?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think it would not be fair to ask the government
to provide counsel for the owners of the traps.
The CrAlRMAN: No.

Mr. MacNEmw: Any judge sitting as a commissioner would have counsel
who would act for the commission.

~_ Hon. Mr. Micuaup: The department would provide counsel to help the
judge get the evidence before him.. That is what we have been doing in all
references of that kind and that is what will be done in this case.

Mr. Tayror: I am not aware—

Mr. MacNEeiL: If any of the interests having matters to bring before the
commission desire to have counsel I suppose there will be no objection to their
being associated with counsel for the commission?

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Not at all, but there will be counsel designated by the

government to help the commissioner in the matter. He would be an indepen-
dent minded man.

~ Mr. Rem: His job would be to get the agenda ready and line up the
evidence.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Yes, to get all the evidence that can be gathered to
substantiate the points referred to the judge in the reference.

Mr. KINLEY:. In regard to what the minister said a few moments ago, I
make the suggestion that the members of the committee from British Columbia
should be invited to decide the terms of the reference, and it was for that reason
that I made the motion which I did and which was ancillary to the suggestion
that they be the ones to make the reference, and I made that motion as a
part of the whole scheme, but Mr. Taylor objects to it.
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Mr. Tavror: I object to it only on these grounds, that there are seven B.C.

members and five of them are definitely opposed to traps and only two are in
favour of the traps. ; :

Mr. MacNemw: But they represent the people.

Mr. RosicHaUuD: Had we not better decide on the first motion first?

Mr. Mayuew: It has been moved and seconded—

Mr. Rem: I want to put this on the record before the motion goes through,
because Mr. Kinley a few moments ago asked: do I understand that the British
Columbia members are going to accept this? I for one say that they are accepting
it with reservations as the second best. '

Mr. NemwL: With reluctance.

The Cmammman: Now, ladies and gentlemen you have heard the motion
moved by Mr. Mayhew and seconded by Mr. Taylor, that the minister’s sug-
gestion that a judge either of the supreme court or a county court be appointed
as a commissioner to investigate the whole question be appointed.

Mr. MacNEemL: That is by way of recommendation to the house.

The CaAlRMAN: Yes, by way of recommendtaion to the house. .

Mr. NemwL: And were you not going to propose a sub-committee to draw
up the reference to this committee and to include that reference in our reference?

Mr. Mayuew: That is another matter.

The CratrmaN: Perhaps it would be better to have a separate motion for
that. Are you ready for the question? I notice that some did not vote, but the
motion is carried.

(Motion agreed to). )

Now, we are open for a motion to appoint a committee to assist the min-
ister or the department in drawing up the terms of the reference.

Mr. Kincey: I move that motion, seconded by Mr. MacLean of Cape
Breton.

The CrarRMAN: It is moved by Mr. Kinley seconded by Mr. MacLean of
Cape Breton that a sub-committee to help the department to map out an
order of reference be appointed. Do you want to add to that that the members
be British Columbia members?

Mr. KiNnLEY: Yes.

The CaamrMAN: The motion would then read that a sub-committee to help
the department map out the reference be appointed, and that the members of
this committee from British Columbia be the members of that sub-committee.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: That the members from the province of British Col-
umbia sitting on this committee be members of that sub-committee.

Mr. Mayaew: On a point we would be entirely ruled out, being only two
against five. We would have no chance at all to get a fair representation.

Mr. Hanson: We have agreed to the minister’s suggestions.

Mr. Green: It is only a matter of making the reference as broad as pos-
sible, and I think my good friends from Nanaimo and Victoria are going a little
far in suggesting that the rest of us might be a little unfair. I am very busy
with the Public Accounts committee, and I would be glad to drop off that
sub-committee.

Mr. Hanxson: You are not the only fair man on this committee, I hope.

Mr. NemwL: We need a lawyer.

Hon. Mr. MicuAaUD: As far as I am concerned, I think Mr. Green would be
a valuable member on that sub-committee.

The Cuaamrman: There have to be five or seven, and we should have Mr.
Green on the committee.
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Hon. Mr. Micuaup: I think it is the wish of the whole committee that that
reference be as broad as possible, and that all possible points and angles of the
question be submitted for investigation to this tribunal. That is my view of the
matter, and I am sure it is the view of the committee. That is the intention.
Mr. Green has expressed that very well.

Mr. Mayuaew: I am prepared to leave it to Mr. Green and Mr. Reid.

Hon. Mr. MicaAUD: No, no.

Mr. MacNEiL: There is no contentious matter involved now.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: No, no. So many arguments have been presented, and
they will all be lined up and included in the brief, and if there are some that
have not been brought out and we think of them we will include them, so that
the whole matter will be thoroughly gone into. I do hope it will be the last
time this matter comes up.

Mr. Nemr: The sub-committee will report to this committee with a
reference and we will accept it and put it into our reference.

Hon. Mr. MicuAuD: Yes.

Mr. NeLL: That is satisfactory.

The Cuamman: All in favour? Carried unanimously.

(Carried)

Mr. NeLL: Somebody should be appointed chairman. Of course, we have
our own chairman, ’

The Cuarman: Well, I may not always be able to be there.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: We will take care of that.

Mr. Rem: I suggest that, perhaps the department might draw up a rough
draft of the reference to start with and the sub-committee can work on that.

Hon. Mr. MicHauD: Yes. Mr. Whitmore, who is the director in charge of
western fisheries, will prepare a draft and he will submit it to the sub-committee
and the sub-committee can add to it in any way they like. The draft will be
ready for submission to the full committee in a short while.

Mr. Tavror: Now, Mr. Chairman, what about my submission. I can
furnish that in written form if you wish, but I contend that it should form part
of the minutes of these proceedings.

Mr. NemL: I move that we adjourn. A motion to adjourn is in order.

Mr. MacNeIL: It is almost 3 o’clock.

Mr. Tavror: All I want, Mr. Chairman, is that the evidence placed before
this judicial committee shall be as complete as it should have been if the sugges-
tion of the minister had not been accepted and dealt with as a part of these
proceedings.

The CrARMAN: How long will you take?
¥ Mr. Tavror: I might be 40 minutes or I might be an hour, or maybe two

ays.

Mr. MacNeL: In view of the fact that Mr. Taylor has been attacking other
members of the committee it is, of course, quite impossible that we should allow
it to be placed on the record without objection. He said he might take two days.

Mr. KinLey: Has not the matter been finally dealt with by resolution and
is it not going to be referred to a judge?

Mr. Tayror: I submit it has not been. I want fair consideration in the
whole matter.

Mr. NemwL: A motion to adjourn is not debatable, Mr. Chairman.

The CuAtRMAN: The motion before the committee now is that we adjourn
to thecca.ll oé)the chair, and for the sub-committee to report to the full meeting.
(Carried).

The meeting adjourned to the call of the chair.
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

: Tugespay, May 23, 1939.
The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met this day at 2 p.m.

Members present: Mrs. Black and Messrs. Deslauriers, Green, Hanson,
MacLean (Cape Breton North-Victoria), McCulloch, McDonald (Sours),
Michaud, Neill, Pelletier, Pottier, Reid, Robichaud, Taylor (Nanaimo), and
Veniot. (15).

In attendance: Mr. A. J. Whitmore, head of the Western Division, Depart-
ment of Fisheries. ;

In the unavoidable absence of Mr. MacLean (Prince), Chairman, Mr.
Michaud moved that Mr. Reid act as Chairman.

The motion carried and Mr. Reid took the chair.

Mr. Taylor concluded his remarks in favour of trap-net fishing in British
Columbia waters.

On motion of Mr. Hanson:—
Resolved,—That the Committee proceed in camera.

The Committee proceeded with Bill No. 15.
Clause 1, carried.

Clause 2—Moved by Mr. Hanson that, in line 13, after the word “Obstruc-
tion,” the words “which he deems necessary for the public interest” be inserted.
Amendment carried.

Clause 2, carried as so amended.
Preamble and title carried.
Ordered:—That the chairman report the Bill as amended.

The Chairman informed the Committee that the sub-committee appointed
on May 15 and composed of Messrs. Green, Hanson, Mayhew, MacNeil, Neill,
Reid and Taylor (Nanaimo), had prepared a draft report for its consideration.

The said draft report was considered.

On motion of Mr. Veniot, the sub-committee’s report was adopted, as
amended, viz:—

Your sub-committee met on Thursday, May 18, and on Monday, May 22,

and begs to recommend that the following order of reference be submitted to
the suggested Commission.

“To fully investigate and hear evidence under oath, and to determine and
report whether or not it is in the public interest that trap-nets for the capture of
salmon should continue to be authorized in the Sooke area, British Columbis,
i.e., between Beachy Head and Sombrio Point along the southwest coast of Van-
couver Island, such investigation and report to have regard to all such points
as in the judgment of the Commission require consideration, and without restrict-
ing the generality of the foregoing to include the following:
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1. Destructiveness of trap-nets from the standpoint of conservation and or
depletion, as compared with the use of other varieties of fishing gear.

2. Feasibility of successful operation of other types of fishing in Juan de Fuca
Straits and waters of and adjacent to the Sooke area, keeping in view, among
other things:

(a) Nature of waters, specially exposed or otherwise.

(b) Tidal and current conditions.

(¢) Unusual phosphorescence, if any, in water.

(d) Proximity of International Boundary.

(e) Fog, prevalence of sharks, ete.

3. The significance of continued operation of trap-net fishing in the Sooke
area in relation to the possible re-introduction of trap-nets in the State of
Washington.

4. Whether or not unemployment is accentuated by the operation of trap-
nets in the Sooke area.

Your sub-committee further recommends that all parties wishing to do so
be allowed to attend and give evidence, and that all transactions and evidence
be recorded and obtainable by the public.”

The Committee having considered and amended a proposed final report to
the House, it was resolved, on motion of Mr. Taylor (Nanaimo), that the said
final report, as amended, be adopted and that the Chairman be authorized
to present same to the House. ;

The Committee adjourned sine die.

ANTONIO PLOUFFE, _
Clerk of the Committee.

TurspAay, May 23, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries begs leave to present
the following as its second and final Report.

Your Committee has had under consideration an Order of Reference dated
Thursday, March 2, 1939, viz:— :
That Bill No. 15, An Act to amend the Fisheries Act, 1932, together
with the proposed amendment of Mr. Neill thereto, be referred to the
said Committee.

The Committee has held twelve meetings and has heard three witnesses,
including representatives of the Department of Fisheries.

Your Committee has agreed to recommend the adoption of Bill No. 15
with the following amendment: Insert after the word “ obstruction,” in line 3
of 57 A (1), the words “ which he deems necessary for the public interest.”

In connection with Mr. Neill’s amendment, your Committee recommends
that the question of salmon trap-net fishing in the Sooke area be referred to a
Royal Commission forthwith for investigation and report, and that the follow-
ing be embodied in the order of reference to the Commission:—

To fully investigate and hear evidence under oath, and to determine and
report, whether or not it is in the public interest that trap-nets for the capture
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. of salmon should continue to be authorized in the Sooke area, British Columbia,

i.e., between Beachy Head and Sombrio Point along the southwest coast of
Vancouver Island, such investigation and report to have regard to all such
points as in the ]udgment of the Commission require consideration, and without
restricting the generality of the foregoing to include the following:

1. Destructiveness of trap-nets from the standpoint of conservation and/or
depletion, as compared with the use of other varieties of fishing gear.

2. Feasibility of successful operation of other types of fishing in Juan de
Fuca Straits and waters of and adjacent to the Sooke area, keeping in
view, among other things: :

(a) Nature of waters, specially exposed or otherwise.
(b) Tidal and current conditions.

(¢) Unusual phosphorence, if any, in water.

(d) Proximity of International Boundary.

(e) Fog, prevalence of sharks, ete.

3. The significance of continued operation of trap-net fishing in the Sooke
area in relation to the possible re-introduction of trap-nets in the
State of Washington.

4. Whether or not unemployment is accentuated by the operation of trap-
nets in the Sooke area.

Your Committee further recommends tlmt all parties wishing to do so be
allowed to attend and give evidence, and that all transactions and evidence be
recorded. and obtainable by the public.

Your Committee wishes to express its appreciation of the assistance and
ready co-operation received from the officials of the Department of Fisheries.

A copy of the minutes of proceedings and evidence taken by the Committee
is tabled herewith.

All of which is respectfully submitted.

T. REID,
Acting Chairman.

N.B.—The above Report was concurred in May 25, 1939.







MINUTES OF EVIDENCE .
House or Commons, Room 429, May 23, 1939.

The Standing Committee on Marine and Fisheries met at 2 o’clock.

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: I move that Mr. Reid take the chair, in place of the
chairman, who is sick.

Motion agreed to..

The Acting CramRMAN: Gentlemen, if you will kindly come to order, we
shall proceed. When we broke up at our last meeting there was some discussion
about completing the remarks of Mr. Taylor before dealing with the report. I
think that should be disposed of first. Is it the wish of the committee that
Mr. Taylor be permitted to complete his statement? I think that should be
done before we go into camera for the adoption of the report. However, I
leave that to the committee.

Mr. PeLierier: May I ask if the report of the sub-committee has been
altered in any respect?

The Acting CHAlRMAN: It was discussed at the last meeting. The altera-
tions are not very important. There was the odd one, but there was no change
in substance.

Hon. Mr. Micuaup: Just two words, I think.

The Acting CHAIRMAN: Is it the wish of the committee to hear Mr. Taylor?

Mr. Tavror: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have written my remarks out
in order that I may stay close to the text and reduce the time taken as far as
possible.

The Acting CHAlRMAN: May I ask, for the information of the committee,
how long you expect to be?

Mr. TavLor: About 20 to 25 minutes.

Mr. Chairman, it will be remembered that at the last session I delayed a
continuance of my submission in order that the Minister of Fisheries might
make his very excellent suggestion that the whole fish traps problem be referred
to a judicial commission.

Obviously, then, I should be permitted, without question, to continue to
present the case for the traps and to have it filed with the rest of the proceedings
in order that the whole history of the case as it developed in 1937, and as it
has continued during this session, might form material for examination by the
commission to be appointed.

Continuing, therefore, I was dealing with the descriptive statement of
Mr. Neill as recorded in Commons Hansard of 1939, page 1617, 2nd March, 1939,
when he described exactly what the fish would and would not do and wound
up by saying that 90 per cent of the fish stay there from Friday morning to
Monday morning milling round and round in front of the lead.

It will be interesting to see what the department has to say about this.
Minutes No. 1 of these proceedings, appendix 1, recommendation No. 7, page 22:

Observations reveal that while some salmon passed through the lead
openings during weekly close times, larger numbers passed on by following
the lead of the traps and around the outside piling until clear of the traps.

Then there was that statement about 86 per cent of the sockeye having
been taken in the Fraser river and Sooke areas in 1936. I asserted that the
percentage attributed to Dr. Found at page 11 of the Minutes of Proceedings
of the Standing Committee in 1937 was a misprint and I repeat that assertion,
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supporting it by three spoken references by Dr. Found—one on page 9 (line 32)
and two on page 11 (at lines 13 and 40). It can also be refuted by the chart I

have drafted showing totals of sockeye for Fraser river and Puget sound areas

since the year 1891 taken from both U.S. and Canadian records.

Appendix No. 2 of No. 1 of this session’s proceedings in Standing Committee
at page 24 thereof also officially supports my contradiction of the figures sub-

" mitted by Mr. MacNeil (page 1624 this session’s Hansard). I had commenced

analysis of the resolutions submitted by various bodies and pointed out their
imitation each of the other, but it is well that this should be stressed. However,
reference is made to the various resolutions: three and often four submissions
common to all are made. One submission is in these words: +q

Whereas the fishermen on the Pacific coast have gone on record many

times in favour of the abolition of fish traps and other destructive gear.

It has been asserted and cannot be disproved that the troll, the seine, and
to a limited extent, the gillnet, are each destructive gear, therefore this general
condemnation cannot be regarded as wholly applicable to traps.

Whereas regardless of the faet that the Dominion government in
1937 passed legislation prohibiting traps in B.C. waters (with the excep-
tion of seven traps at Sooke, Vancouver Island) there is no guarantee
that at some future date trap interests may be sueccessful in having
this legislation revoked and traps legalised in any part of B.C. waters.

Evidently the resolvers, copying their preambles from the same suggested
form have all fallen into the same grammatical error and the sentence should
read:—There is no guarantee that at some future date trap interests may not
be successful in having this legislation revoked and traps legalised in B.C.
waters.

Obviously this may happen under any change of thought or heart on the
part of the government but no one is at present fighting for the retention of the
right to set traps all over the waters of the province of B.C. Again:—

Whereas several bills are now before the Washington legislature
drafted with the express purpose of getting traps back in Washington
where previous to 1934 (this was the year when Initiative No. 77 was
passed and they were taken out) traps in that state took 70 per cent of
the Fraser River sockeye.

If the value of any resolution or petition lies in the veraecity of its claim
and the absolute truth of the preambles, there can be little merit in any of
those presented to this committee or to the house. Each statement proves to
be wrong and there is no exception in this case for if figures are taken from
official U.S. and Canadian sources since 1891 to 1938 inclusive, 47:66 per cent
of the sockeye were taken in Canadian waters proper to the Fraser river and only
52-45 per cent in the Puget sound waters, not 70 per cent as alleged. Further,
as every type of fishing gear was permitted on the U.S. side up to 1934 (when
traps were taken out at the initiative of the sports fishermen) it can be no
more than wilful inexactitude to say that U.S. traps took 70 per cent of Fraser
river sockeye when every type of gear took an average over 48 years of only
52-34 per cent, and this in spite of large percentages for every type of gear in
certain years, of which 1934 was one with 71-7 per cent (see No. 1 Minutes
appendix 2, page 24).

It is further interesting to note that all these resolving and petitioning
bodies claim that these fish were Fraser river sockeye. Let us read the contra-
diction from the Minutes of this Standing Committee, session 1937, at page 340
—Mr. A. J. Whitmore being interrogated:

-
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By Mr. Moyer:
Q. Would you tell us your experience with the sockeye tag?—A. Well,
we would have to review the results of the sockeye—

By Mr. Neul: ; :

Q. That is, the sockeyes tagged in the Sooke traps?—A. Yes, in 1918.
This was an international arrangement between U.S. and Canadian
authorities for the purpose of gathering information on the migration
route of the sockeyes. The sockeyes were tagged at tagging stations along
the route, the Sooke traps being the first tagging station. Four other
stations in Puget sound were used, the last of the four, point Roberts,
just on the international boundary. There was an award of 25 cents offered
for the return of any tag recovered with information as to where and
how it was taken. At Sooke traps 871 sockeye were tagged.

By Mr. MacNeil:

Q. What is a distinctive tag?—A. All numbered, every tag had a
different number. They were fish caught in the traps there. Recaptures

came from all along the generally recognized migration route right up to

the headwaters of the Fraser. Full details of date and place of each cap-
ture are shown in the official publication.

In all from the 871 fish that were tagged there were 147 recoveries—
3 were from points far up the Fraser above the commercial fishing
limits—2 were at points which suggested the fish were not going to the
Fraser for spawning—1 up in Burrard inlet and the other away down
in Puget sound—8 were recaptured at Sooke traps and 136 were caught
in commercial fishing operations in either Canadian or U.S. waters.

Of these 136 fish only 14 were caught by Canadian operators,
whereas 122 were recaptured in U.S. waters.

Again:
Whereas we consider Canada’s insistence in allowing seven traps

at Sooke after Washington had removed 219 constitutes a convincing
argument for trap interests in Washington to have them restored.

Here again, for 1937-38 and again this year, the Sooke traps number five
NOT seven, and it does not have to be repeated that never at any time have
219 traps operated against the Canadian Fraser river sockeye.

I read Director Brennan’s letter setting the figures for 1934. Let me
repeat extracts for better acceptance:

Of the total 96 operated for the year 1934 only 67 were operated
in the waters related to the Fraser river salmon migrations.

And again:

The number operated in 1934 is also higher than the average in
view of the fact that the 1934 sockeye runs were expected to be above
normal. The records for the number operated in outside waters or in
ige waters related to the Fraser river are as follows: 1933, 53; 1932, 29;

31, 59.

Surely with every statement grossly in error and with every resolution
framed from one pattern, is it not evident that there is an emotional attempt
to get rid of traps not in any spirit of just trial and condemnation but in a
fight of one type of fisherman against another?

Now it will be noted that in the house on the 2nd March, 1939, as reported
at page 1617 of unrevised Hansard, column 1, the same looseness of statement
is found where Mr. Neill states:

g e S
1 bl ke S
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Then for some unknown reason ‘the fish proceed across to Puget
sound which is the U.S. waters and where there are no spawning streams.

I recall that Mr. Neill called these rivers of Puget sound “ ecreeks” when

I drew attention to these facts in the fisheries committee in 1937. I was told

that I did not know what I was talking about, but I was able to retort that

the Skagit was 200 miles long and had its source in B.C. from where it flowed

;rlllany miles at the foot of the Cascades before entering U.S. territory to reach
e sea.

John N. Cobb in fisheries document No. 1092 of the U.S. Department of
Commerce dealing with Pacific salmon fisheries, answers this very clearly at
page 413 where he states “In the Puget Sound region where it is known as
‘the sockeye, this species ascends only the Skagit river in commercial numbers
although a small run appears in the Lake Washington system of lakes and
possibly in the Snohomish, Stellaguamish and Nooksack rivers.

Now let me come to another phase of the argument. At page 1618, Hansard,
2nd March, 1939, Mr. Neill says of the trap:

It is an enormously destructive method of fishing and the whole
idea that one man or two men should be allowed such a particular
privilege is against all sense of common decency and what we call public

policy.
At page 1625, Hansard, 2nd March, 1939, Mr. MacNeil-also says:

I cannot be too emphatic with regard to the traps. They violate
the regulations under the Act, as was shown in evidence; they violate
the principles of conservation, particularly with regard to catching im-
mature fish and the mutilation of fish which are held when milling round
within the spiller and the heart of the trap. Piracy is sometimes described
as an act of depredation on the high seas, but these traps are committing
acts of depredation on the fishing industry just as much as if they were
boarding Canadian fishing vessels and looting them. It is piracy on the
high seas. I think at this time the minister should make clear his inten-
tion to discontinue the issuance of licences for the stationary traps at
Sooke.

Mr. MacNeil has worked himself into an immodest frenzy in this matter but
it will be more interesting to read how another opponent of traps takes the
hook when fishing in other waters.

At page 2545, Hansard, 28th March, 1939, Mr. Tom Reid says:—

But I point out that the seine boats in the estuary of the Fraser riven
can be more destructive than traps because while it is true that the fish
meet the traps, follow the lead into the heart of the trap and are thereby
caught, the seiners watch just like hawks and when the fish gather together
in schools preparatory to heading up the Fraser river, the seine boats
swoop into the midst of them, encircle their nets around them, pull tight
the string at the bottom and bring the fish up, and a catch of 10,000
salmon at one haul is not unusual.

Now note, if these salmon weigh an average of only 5 pounds each a rope net
is thus enclosing 25 tons. Can it mean anything else than that many hundreds
of fish are bruised and battered as a result?

On page 2546, Hansard, Mr. Reid again speaking, states:—

Spring salmon have been getting scarcer as the years go by and
fewer of this variety of fish have been caught by the gill net fishermen
ever since 1933 when the seine boats were first allowed to operate. . . .
I have before me a letter from Edmunds & Walker Limited which states:
[in part, when pointing out that better prices are paid to the gill net fisher-
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men for this variety of salmon than are paid to the seine fishermen] “The
reason for this is that these fish in the process of being brailed and of
being transferred from the seine boat to the collector are being so badly
bruised and smashed that they must be classified along with white salmon
and sold at an equivalent price.”

There is no element where predatoriness is so much the law of life as the
sea. Please remember that the so-called trap is a net and every net is destruc-
tive—catches everything it can. No apology lies to the capture of any fish and
no prayer for forgiveness is breathed by any fisherman whether he baits his
hook or spreads his net. When the fish is caught on a troll line, does the fisher-
., man slow down so that the hook will not hurt too much, or does he not in these
days of keen competition keep going and often tear the jaw right away from the
body of the fish? It is commonly reported that in the open waters on the west
coast of Vancouver island trolling fishermen are fortunate if they land 65 per
cent of the fish they hook, the remainder having the jaw torn away, the gills
torn out or the head torn off. The rough waters, the speed of the boat and the
mechanical aids used when the signal along the troll line indicates the catch
of a fish, all contribute to this enormously destructive method of fishing. I
wonder what would be discovered if a scientific observer went from troller to
troller and purse seiner to purse seiner and reported back to the government on
the catch and the conditions of the catch! These men cry Wolf! Wolf! They
had better look to themselves and their own methods.

Here is a form of destructiveness which cannot possibly be laid to the Sooke
traps. I refer to Bulletin 27 U.S. Bureau of Fisheries, where George A. Rounsefell
and George B. Kalez dealing with cohoe salmon on page 782 say: * Gilbert
(1913) reported the cohoes at Cape Flattery to average 13-35 fish per case 23rd
July and 7-56 per case 2nd September. Smith (1921) stated that the average
weight of cohoes taken by trollers in the same season increased from 5-63
pounds 8th July to 9-75 pounds 2nd September.”

These early cohoes are caught playing around before proceeding on their
biological run. Is it not wholesale destruction and deplorable economic waste
to take these soft immature fish in the early summer when they would be at
least 40 per cent heavier in September as well as greatly improved in quality?
This is not the Sooke trap; it is the purse seiner and the troller.

At page 1624, Hansard, 2nd March, 1939, Mr. MacNeil says:—

These traps have been operating under licence since 1918 at the
southwesterly tip of Vancouver island where they may intercept the main
migration of the sockeye before they pass through U.S. waters to the
mouth of the Fraser river. It is an extraordinary monopoly. These people
are permitted to operate under conditions that are denied thousands of
commercial fishermen who stake their livelihood on the operation of their
vessels and gear in the coastal waters of B.C.

And later:

When I think of all the restrictive regulations imposed upon the
ordinary commercial gill netter, purse seiner and troller in the waters of
B.C., I think I have a right to feel indignant at the extreme privileges
enjoyed by the operation of the Sooke traps.

And again:

It is true that the regulations in regard to closed seasons apply to
the Sooke operators as well, but it is a well known fact that . . . the
fish are held under favourable tidal conditions waiting until the apron
of the trap is lifted at the expiration of the closed season.
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Mr. Neill at the top of the same page says:

There is the issue. It is not the fishermen vs. the canneries; it is the
common people vs. one gigantic firmly entrenched, all-embracing mon-
opoly. The people of B.C., will call their members and the government
Olf t}tl_e day to account when this question comes before them in the next
election.

Strange how these arguments run together, but the one outdoes the other in the
sentimental appeal infused into the statements.

At page 1626, Hansard, 2nd March, 1939, Mr. Green is reported as reading
the recommendations asked for by the committee, and in spite of all that has
been said as well as all that has hitherto now been quoted, Mr. Michaud stated
as reported in Hansard, page 1632, 2nd March, 1939:

The hon. member for Vancouver South, Mr. Green, has quoted the
recommendations of the committe which have been lived up to in every
instance.

If further confirmation is required appendix No. 1 printed with No. 1 of the
minutes of the Standing Committee, session 1939, makes it very clear on page 21,
22 and 23, under date of April 6, 1939. On recommendation 5 it is interesting
to quote the following:—

Fishing at the traps was required to be conducted in accordance
with general regulations applicable to other methods of salmon fishing
in the area. The 48-hour weekly close season prevailed. Eight sockeye
salmon taken in 1937 prior to May 15th—the legal opening date for
fishing for that variety of salmon—were surrendered to the department.
They were handed over to a charitable institution in Victoria furnishing
free meals to needy persons. Any fish below minimum weight require-
ments were likewise given to needy persons. In 1938, operation of the
trap nets for their scientific investigations by the International Pacific
Salmon Fisheries Commission during the weekly close times was author-
ized. On five occasions advantage was taken of this permission, fish so
taken being used to recompense the trap net operators for fish from legal
catches utilized by the commission for tagging.

I did intend to animadvert on the scurrilous insinuations made by Mr. Neill
about Mr. Chas. F. Goodrich and the entirely unwarranted assertion that T was
his mouthpiece, but T shall not give it voice. This business is a legitimate
business, legitimately conducted; it is profitable alike to its owner as to the
government and under our system to the employees who work in it. It harms
no one but those—and there are many I will grant—who find themselves unable
to keep the 10th Commandment of the Decalogue. Tt is quite necessary, there-
fore, that the whole question be approached with a punctilious regard for the
correctness of all statements made and for as much concern for the character
of others as we desire for our own.

Before leaving the criticism of the muddy water in which this discussion
has proceeded, T feel that I should read Mr. Neill at Hansard, page 2547, on
March 28, 1939:—

The gill net catches any variety of fish but it cannot operate in clear
water. The water must be muddy or discoloured because if it is clear
the fish can see the net and readily dive under it and so escape.

The fact that he had already on March 2, 1939, stated as at Hansard, page

1618:
The general principle, too, is urgent on aceount of the work it will

make for individuals—seiners, trollers, gill netters,
shows the inconsistency of his statements.
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There are important historical reasons for the whole situation being
experienced to-day. I drew attention to this in committee two years ago but
its importance was not accepted. 1 assert now that it is the basic reason for
the prime necessity of all the international co-operation which has been called
forth. In fisheries document 1092 of the U.S. Department of Commerce,
J. H. Cobb says, on page 472, that there were 48 canning plants on the Fraser
river in 1901, and then proceeds:—

During the period from 1902 to 1918 a number of new canneries
were started in this region. The blocking of Hell Gate Canyon in 1913
by a rock slide—together with the dumping of debris from a railroad
being built through the canyon deseribed elsewhere in this report—was a
great disaster to the salmon industry. The effects of this disaster which
were not observable until the season four years later led to a tremendous
decrease of the quadrennial big year—in one of which the blockade
occurred—and thig soon led to a corresponding decrease in the number
of canneries operating.

In 1928 the number had dropped to 4. The significance of this statement
cannot be overestimated and it is perhaps better described at page 673 of the
same publication where the following may be found:

In 1913, the year of the quadrennially big run of sockeye salmon on
the Fraser River, the contractors who were building the new Canadian
Northern Railway, in blasting their way along the banks of the river,
threw the rock and other debris into the stream until in the narrow part
of the canyon south of North Bend at Whites Creek, Hells Gate, China
Bar and Scuzzy Rapids, all within a few miles of each other, the debris
formed great sloping banks extending out into the stream at these points,
and entirely changed the direction of the currents, and, of course, the
velocity of the water. At best the salmon had a hard time getting
through there, but the added obstructions rendered it practically im-
possible. :

At a rather late hour the authorities woke up to the menace this
work was to the run of salmon, and the dumping of debris into the river
in such a manner as to obstruct their ascent was stopped.

How to clear the stream once more was now the problem, and this
was seriously complicated by a slide of rock which took place in Hells
Gate in February, 1924, which narrowed the channel of the stream
considerably.

In March, 1914, the dominion Marine and Fisheries Department
contracted with a private concern to remove the obstructions, and this
was done from Scuzzy Rapids, China Bar and Whites Creek within a
short period of time, but a couple of season’s work were required to
clear up Hells Gate so as to permit of passage for the fish. Some people
claim that the fish still find it difficult to pass these obstructions.

But let us learn how our American cousins regard the whole situation. In
the same publication Fisheries document 1092 at page 512, it may be noted:

On April 18, 1929, a convention between the United States and
Great Britain, looking to the protection, preservation and extension of
the sockeye-salmon fisheries in the Fraser River system, signed at Wash-
ington on March 27, 1929, was transmitted by President Hoover to the
United States Senate for its action. i

The convention reads as follows, inter alia:

_ The high contracting parties agree to establish and maintain a com-
mission to be known as the International Pacific Salmon Fisheries Com-
mission, hereinafter called the commission, consisting of six members,
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- three on the part of the United States of America and three on the part
of the Dominion of Canada. :

The commission shall make a thorough investigation into the natural
history of the Fraser River sockeye salmon, into hatchery methods,
spawning ground conditions and other related matters.

Inasmuch as the purpose of this convention is to establish for the
high contracting parties, by their joint effort and expense, a fishery
that is nmow largely non-existent, each of the high contracting parties
should share equally in the fishery. The commission shall, consequently,
in regulating the fishery, do so with the object of enabling, as nearly as
they can, an equal portion of the fish that is allowed to be caught each
year to be taken by the fishermen of each high contracting party.

Each high contracting party shall be responsible for the enforcement
of the regulations provided by the commission in the portion of their
respective waters covered by the convention, and to this end they agree
to enact and enforce such legislation as may be necessary to make
effective the provisions of this convention with appropriate penalties for
violations thereof.

The present convention shall be ratified by the President of the
United States of America, by and with the advice and consent of the
Senate thereof, and by His Majesty, in accordance with constitutional
practice, and it shall become effective upon the date of the exchange
of ratifications which shall take place at Washington as soon as possible
and shall continue in force for a period of sixteen years, and thereafter
until one year from the day on which either of the high contracting
parties shall give notice to the other of its desire to terminate it.

In witness whereof, the respective plenipotentiaries have signed the
present convention and have affixed their seals thereto.

Done in duplicate at Washington, the twenty-seventh day of March,
one thousand nine hundred and twenty-nine.

Signed and sealed by Frank B. Kellogg,
Signed and sealed by Vincent Massey.

It will be read on page 29 of the Department of Fisheries eighth annual
report for the year 1937-38 that the convention was ratified in July, 1937,
and that thereafter the two nations established the International Pacific
Salmon Fisheries Commission. I will not read this statement in extenso, but
I will note the following:—

Approval of the convention was qualified by three conditions. One
of these conditions was that the commission shall have no power to
authorize any type of fishing gear contrary to the laws of the State of
Washington or the laws of the Dominion. The second was that the
commission ‘““shall not promulgate or enforce regulations until the
scientific deductions provided for in the convention have been made
covering two cycles of sockeye salmon runs, or eight years.” Under the
third condition the commission was required to set up an advisory com-
mittee representative of various salmon interests in the United States
and Canada, and this committee has already been created.

I am compelled at this point to observe that traps are not represented
and I consider this to be an affront to a legitimate method of fishing although,
perhaps, not intended.

Before leaving the general case, I think it well to cite from the annual
report of the chief supervisor of fisheries for the western division (B.C.)
Major J. A. Motherwell, which can be read at page 59 of the eighth annual
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~ report of the Depﬁrtment of Fisheries. Dealing with the Fraser river area, he
says:i—

The pack of 66,})83 cases from fish actually caught in this area com-
pared with 53,481 cases in the brood year 1933. It is interesting to
remember, however, that the catches of sockeye in Johnstone straits
were unusually good. This was the result of more intensive seining
operations in the straits area. These operations undoubtedly intercept,
to some extent, at any rate, sockeye salmon proceeding to the Fraser
river. Such catch is not credited to the Fraser river area.

"The period under review, 1937, was the cycle year in what were
previously known as the “big run” years but the quantity of salmon
proceeding to the spawning grounds frequented in the previous “big run”
seasons did not indicate any increase over the runs of average in between
years.

I might pause here to say that the intensive seining operations spoken of by
Mr. Motherwell really were initiated through the chance observance by an
Indian fisherman out from Alert bay who saw the fish sporting in the John-
stone strait and went after them as soon as he noticed them, others copied his
example and the run was thus discovered as of value.

Statement No. 15, showing the pack of sockeye salmon caught at
or en route to the Fraser river, shows a total of 132,994 cases, from
salmon caught at the Fraser river, the Canadian traps in Juan de
Fuca straits, and in Puget sound waters. This, again, does not tell
the whole story, as there is no information as to what proportion of
the runs using the Johnstone straits approach are Fraser river fish.

But do not let us forget Article 7 of the convention already cited and let
us keep it especially in mind in view of the unwise and selfish display of the
fish trap antagonists as stated by Mr. Neill (page 1617 Hansard 2nd March):
“It would pay us as sharp dealing people, let alone for reasons of fairness and
humanity, to pension off the 41 employees who are engaged to operate these
traps—although I think the number is less than that—in order to retain such
a high proportion of the salmon.

Now, finally, I want to declare that in the 76 sections of the bill ample
provision is made for the matter of this amendment to be dealt with at the
discretion of the minister who is constantly advised by his departmental
officials, one of whom is a member of the newly established Pacific Salmon Fish-
eries Commission. Reference to the fisheries regulations will show that, based
on the Act, several prohibitions in line with Section 34 thereof cover methods
of fishing which esentially include traps and nets in every phase of their
work. The work of the Pacific Salmon Fisheries Commission, supported as it
will be by the scientific fact finding of men whose interest is the truth and
not political or commercial advantage, will become of increasing value as
time goes on, and it would appear to be the policy of wise men to await the
lead and direction of this body rather than to introduce an element of negation
into the Fisheries Act by any amendment or bill of amendment at this time.

I am bound to say that I would not have taken up the time of the
committee if I had not felt it compulsory to meet the exaggerations in
statements or the half truths advanced to support the arguments against
traps. I have attempted to bring the truth to the occasion wherever I
could discover it in official records and if I have been prolix it is purely

in'ttéhe interests of that truth which I desired to place before the com-
mittee.

The Acting CHalRmMAN: That concludes the evidence to come before the
committee. I suggest that it might be advisable to consider meeting in camera




and gmng ahead w1bh our report "My own views !'egardimg Mr. Taylor’

evidence are on the record. 1 do not think his statement needs discussion. ‘I
think we have answered that very well in our previous observations.

We have to proceed to bill No. 15, which we are to discuss in camera, then
there is the report of the sub- commlttee and also the final report of the com-
mittee. There are those three things to be discussed in camera, and the final

report at least should not be given out until such time as it is given in the

house. It must be discussed here and presented to the house before we can
give a report on it to the press.

Is it the wish of the committee that we sit in camera and try to get through",

Hon. Mr. MicuAUD: Someone might make a’ motmn that we sit in camera.
Mr. Hansox: I would so move.

Mr. Remp: There is a motion before the committee that we sit in camera.
Motion agreed to.

The committee continued its sitting in camera.
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